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IMPORTANT NOTICE

THIS OFFERING IS AVAILABLE ONLY TO INVESTORS WHO ARE EITHER (1) QUALIFIED
INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 144A UNDER THE U.S.
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE ¢‘U.S. SECURITIES ACT”’) OR (2) NON-U.S.
PERSONS OUTSIDE OF THE UNITED STATES IN ACCORDANCE WITH REGULATION S UNDER
THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT (AND, IF INVESTORS ARE RESIDENT IN A MEMBER STATE OF THE
EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA, A QUALIFIED INVESTOR).

IMPORTANT: You must read the following disclaimer before continuing. The following disclaimer
applies to the attached offering memorandum (the “Offering Memorandum”), and you are therefore advised to
read this disclaimer page carefully before reading, accessing or making any other use of the attached Offering
Memorandum. In accessing the attached Offering Memorandum, you agree to be bound by the following terms
and conditions, including any modifications to them from time to time, each time you receive any information
from us as a result of such access.

NOTHING IN THIS ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION CONSTITUTES AN OFFER OF SECURITIES
FOR SALE IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE IT IS UNLAWFUL TO DO SO. THE SECURITIES HAVE
NOT BEEN, AND WILL NOT BE, REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OR THE
SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES OR OTHER JURISDICTION AND THE
SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR TO, OR FOR THE
ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, U.S. PERSONS (AS DEFINED IN REGULATION S UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT) EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT
SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT AND
APPLICABLE STATE OR LOCAL SECURITIES LAWS.

THE FOLLOWING OFFERING MEMORANDUM MAY NOT BE FORWARDED OR DISTRIBUTED
TO ANY OTHER PERSON AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER. ANY
FORWARDING, DISTRIBUTION OR REPRODUCTION OF THIS DOCUMENT IN WHOLE OR IN PART
IS UNAUTHORIZED. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS DIRECTIVE MAY RESULT IN A VIOLATION
OF THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OR THE APPLICABLE LAWS OF OTHER JURISDICTIONS.

Confirmation of your representation: In order to be eligible to view this Offering Memorandum or make an
investment decision with respect to the securities, you must: (i) not be a U.S. person (as defined in Regulation S
under the U.S. Securities Act), and be outside the United States; or (ii) be a qualified institutional buyer (as
defined in Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act), provided that investors resident in a Member State of the
European Economic Area must be “qualified investors” (within the meaning of Article 2(1)(e) of Directive
2003/71/EC and any relevant implementing measure in each Member State of the European Economic Area).
You have been sent the attached Offering Memorandum on the basis that you have confirmed to the lead
manager set forth in the attached Offering Memorandum (the “Lead Manager” and the co-manager set forth in
the attached Offering Memorandum (the “Co-Manager”)), being the sender or senders of the attached, that either:
(A)(1) you and any customers you represent are not U.S. persons; and (ii) the e-mail address to which this
Offering Memorandum has been delivered is not located in the United States, its territories and possessions, any
state of the United States or the District of Columbia; “possessions” include Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands,
Guam, American Samoa, Wake Island and the Northern Mariana Islands; or (B) you and any customers you
represent are qualified institutional buyers and, in either case, that you consent to delivery by electronic
transmission.

This Offering Memorandum has been sent to you in electronic form. You are reminded that documents
transmitted via this medium may be altered or changed during the process of transmission and, consequently,
none of the Lead Manager, the Co-Manager, any person who controls the Lead Manager or the Co-Manager,
4finance S.A. (the “Issuer”), 4finance Holding S.A. (“Holdco”) or any of its direct or indirect subsidiaries, or any
director, officer, employer, employee or agent of theirs, or affiliate of any such person, accepts any liability or
responsibility whatsoever in respect of any difference between the Offering Memorandum distributed to you in
electronic format and the hard copy version available to you on request from the Lead Manager or the Co-
Manager.

You are reminded that the attached Offering Memorandum has been delivered to you on the basis that you
are a person into whose possession this Offering Memorandum may be lawfully delivered in accordance with the
laws of the jurisdiction in which you are located and you may not nor are you authorized to deliver this Offering
Memorandum to any other person. You may not transmit the attached Offering Memorandum (or any copy of it
or part thereof) or disclose, whether orally or in writing, any of its contents to any other person except with the
consent of the Lead Manager or the Co-Manager. If you receive this document by e-mail, you should not reply by
e-mail to this announcement. Any reply e-mail communications, including those you generate by using the
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“Reply” function on your e-mail software, will be ignored or rejected. If you receive this document by e-mail,
your use of this e-mail is at your own risk and it is your responsibility to take precautions to ensure that it is free
from viruses and other items of a destructive nature.

The materials relating to this offering do not constitute, and may not be used in connection with, an offer or
solicitation in any place where offers or solicitations are not permitted by law. If a jurisdiction requires that the
offering be made by a licensed broker or dealer and the Lead Manager or the Co-Manager or any affiliate of the
Lead Manager or the Co-Manager is a licensed broker or dealer in that jurisdiction, the offering shall be deemed
to be made by the Initial Purchaser or such affiliate on behalf of the Issuer in such jurisdiction.

Restrictions: The attached document is in draft form and is being furnished in connection with an offering
exempt from registration under the U.S. Securities Act. Nothing in this electronic transmission constitutes an
offer of securities for sale in the United States or to any U.S. person. You are reminded that the information in
the attached document is in draft form, is not complete and may be changed. An investment decision should only
be made on the basis of the final Offering Memorandum.

Any securities to be issued will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act or the securities laws of any
other jurisdiction and may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of,
U.S. persons (as such terms are defined in Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act) except pursuant to an
exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act.

The attached Offering Memorandum is not a prospectus for the purposes of the European Union’s Directive
2003/71/EC (and any amendments thereto) as implemented in member states of the European Economic Area
(the “EU Prospectus Directive”). The attached Offering Memorandum has been prepared on the basis that all
offers of the securities described herein made to persons in the European Economic Area will be made pursuant
to an exemption under the EU Prospectus Directive from the requirement to produce a prospectus in connection
with offers of the securities.

In the United Kingdom, this document is being distributed only to and is directed only at: (a) persons who
have professional experience in matters relating to investments falling within Article 19(5) of the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005 (the “Order”), (b) high net worth entities
falling within Article 49(2) of the Order and (c) any other persons to whom it may otherwise lawfully be
communicated (all such persons together being referred to as “relevant persons”). This Offering Memorandum is
directed only at relevant persons and must not be acted on or relied on by persons who are not relevant persons.
Any investment or investment activity to which this Offering Memorandum relates is available only to relevant
persons and will be engaged in only with relevant persons. Any person who is not a relevant person should not
act or rely on this Offering Memorandum or any of its contents.

In connection with the offering, the Lead Manager and the Co-Manager are not acting for anyone other than
the Issuer and will not be responsible to anyone other than the Issuer for providing the protections afforded to
their clients nor for providing advice in relation the offering.
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4finance S.A.

@ FINANCE
USD 325,000,000 10.75% Senior Notes due 2022

Issue Price: 100% plus accrued interest, if any, from the Issue Date.

4finance S.A. (the “Issuer”), a public limited liability company (société anonyme) incorporated and existing under the
laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg (“Luxembourg”), is offering USD 325 million aggregate principal amount of its
10.75% Senior Notes due 2022 (the “Notes,” and such offering, the “Offering”). The Issuer will pay interest on the Notes
semi-annually in arrears on May 1, and November 1, of each year commencing on November 1, 2017. Unless previously
redeemed or repurchased and cancelled as described under “Description of Notes,” the Notes will mature on May 1, 2022 (the
“Maturity Date”).

The Notes constitute senior unsecured obligations of the Issuer and will rank pari passu in right of payment to all of the
Issuer’s existing and future unsecured indebtedness and senior to all of the Issuer’s subordinated indebtedness, if any. The
Notes will be structurally subordinated to all existing and future liabilities (including trade payables) of the Issuer’s
non-guarantor subsidiaries. The due and punctual payment of all amounts due at any time on or in respect of the Notes will be
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed on a joint and several basis by 4finance Holding S.A. (“Holdco”), the Issuer’s
indirect parent company, and by certain other direct and indirect subsidiaries of Holdco, including the Issuer’s direct parent
company (the “Subsidiary Guarantors” and together with the Holdco, the “Guarantors” and each a “Guarantor”) under
the terms and conditions set forth herein (collectively, the “Guarantees” and each a “Guarantee”).

Payments on the Notes will be made without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any withholding taxes
imposed by Luxembourg, and payments on each Guarantee will be made without withholding or deduction for, or on account
of any withholding taxes imposed by the jurisdiction of incorporation of the relevant Guarantor, to the extent described in
“Description of Notes” herein. In certain limited circumstances under current Luxembourg tax law and the current tax laws of
certain of the Guarantors’ jurisdictions as more fully described in “Risk Factors” and “Taxation” in this offering
memorandum (the “Offering Memorandum”), withholding tax on interest payments to certain types of investors may apply.
Subject to certain exceptions, the Issuer and the Guarantors, as applicable, will undertake to pay such additional amounts as
will result in the receipt by holders of Notes (“Noteholders”) of such amounts as would have been received by them if no
such withholding had been required.

At any time prior to May 1, 2019, the Issuer may redeem all or a portion of the Notes at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount of the Notes plus the applicable “make-whole” premium plus accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date. On or after May 1, 2019, the Issuer may redeem all or a portion of the Notes at the redemption prices
(expressed as percentages of principal amount) as described in the “Description of Notes” herein. At any time prior to May 1,
2019, the Issuer may redeem up to 40% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes using the net cash proceeds from
certain equity offerings at a price equal to 110.75% of the principal amount of the Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest,
provided that at least 60% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes originally issued remains outstanding immediately
after the occurrence of such redemption. Upon events constituting a Change of Control (as defined in “Description of Notes”),
the Issuer may be required to redeem the Notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the redemption date.

Investing in the Notes involves a high degree of risk. See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 22.

The Notes and the Guarantees have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “U.S. Securities Act”), or the securities laws of any other jurisdiction and may not be offered or sold
within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, any U.S. person (as such terms are defined in
Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act (‘“Regulation S”)), except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a
transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act. See “Transfer Restrictions” and
“Plan of Distribution” for additional information about eligible offerees and transfer restrictions.

There is currently no public market for the Notes. Application has been made to the Irish Stock Exchange for the approval of
this Offering Memorandum as Listing Particulars and for the Notes to be admitted to the Official List and trading on the Global
Exchange Market (the “GEM”) which is the exchange regulated market of the Irish Stock Exchange (the “ISE”).The GEM is not a
regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council on markets in financial
instruments. There can be no assurance, however, that the listing application will be approved by the ISE.

The Notes will be represented on issue by one or more Global Notes (as defined herein), which the Lead Manager
expects will be delivered through Euroclear Bank SA/NV (“Euroclear”) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme,
Luxembourg (“Clearstream”) and their participants, on or about April 28, 2017 (the “Issue Date”). The Notes will be cleared
through Euroclear and Clearstream and will not be eligible for clearance through The Depository Trust Company. The Notes
can only be held through Euroclear or Clearstream accounts. See “Book-entry, Delivery and Form.”

Lead Manager and Sole Bookrunner

STIFEL

Co-Manager

ABG

SUNDAL COLLIER

The date of this Offering Memorandum is April 12, 2017.
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NOTICE TO INVESTORS, ETC.

You should rely only on the information contained in this Offering Memorandum. None of the Issuer,
the Company (as defined herein), the Guarantors, the Lead Manager or the Co-Manager has authorized
anyone to provide you with information that is different from the information contained herein. If given,
any such information should not be relied upon. You should not assume that the information contained in
this Offering Memorandum is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of this Offering
Memorandum.

None of the Issuer, the Company, the Guarantors, the Lead Manager or the Co-Manager is making
an offer of the Notes in any jurisdiction where the Offering is not permitted.

REFERENCES

Unless the context otherwise requires, for any period subsequent to April 30, 2014, references to “we,”
“our,” “us,” “dfinance Group” or the “Group” refer to 4finance Holding S.A. and its direct and indirect
subsidiaries, and prior to April 30, 2014, refer to AS 4finance and its subsidiaries. Unless the context otherwise

requires, references to the “Company” refer to AS 4finance.

Information posted on our website and those of our affiliates and subsidiaries do not constitute a part of this
Offering Memorandum.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS

THE NOTES DESCRIBED IN THIS OFFERING MEMORANDUM HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED
WITH, RECOMMENDED BY OR APPROVED BY THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION (THE “SEC”), ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION IN THE UNITED STATES OR
ANY OTHER SECURITIES COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY IN THE UNITED STATES
OR IN ANY OTHER JURISDICTION, NOR HAS THE SEC, ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION IN
THE UNITED STATES OR ANY OTHER SECURITIES COMMISSION OR AUTHORITY IN THE UNITED
STATES OR IN ANY OTHER JURISDICTION PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF
THIS OFFERING MEMORANDUM. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL
OFFENSE.

You are not to construe the contents of this Offering Memorandum as investment, legal or tax advice. You
should consult your own counsel, accountant and other advisors as to legal, tax, business, financial and related
aspects of a purchase of the Notes. We are not, and the Lead Manager and the Co-Manager are not, making any
representation to you regarding the legality of an investment in the Notes by you under applicable investment or
similar laws.

We have prepared this Offering Memorandum solely for use in connection with the Offering and for listing
the Notes on the GEM.

In making an investment decision regarding the Notes offered by this Offering Memorandum, you must rely
on your own examination of the terms of the Offering, including, without limitation, the merits and risks
involved. The Offering is being made solely on the basis of this Offering Memorandum. Any decision to
purchase Notes in the Offering must be based solely on the information contained in this Offering Memorandum.

No person is authorized in connection with the Offering to give any information or to make any
representation not contained in this Offering Memorandum, and, if given or made, any other information or
representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by us TMF Trustee Limited (the “Trustee”) or
the Lead Manager or the Co-Manager. The information contained in this Offering Memorandum is as of the date
hereof and subject to change, completion or amendment without notice. The delivery of this Offering
Memorandum at any time after the date hereof shall not, under any circumstances, create any implication that
there has been no change in the information set forth in this Offering Memorandum or in our affairs since the
date of this Offering Memorandum. We undertake no obligation to update this Offering Memorandum or any
information contained in it, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, save as required
by law.

il



This Offering Memorandum is being provided for informational use solely in connection with the
consideration of a purchase of the Notes (i) to QIBs and (ii) to qualified purchasers in offshore transactions
complying with Rule 903 or Rule 904 of Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act. Its use for any other purpose
is not authorized.

The Offering is being made in reliance upon an exemption from registration under the U.S. Securities Act
for an offer and sale of the Notes that does not involve a public offering. Prospective purchasers are hereby
notified that sellers of the Notes may be relying on the exemption from the provisions of Section 5 of the
U.S. Securities Act provided by Rule 144A thereunder. In making your purchase, you will be deemed to have
made certain acknowledgments, representations and agreements as set forth under the caption “Transfer
Restrictions.”

The Notes are subject to restrictions on transferability and resale and may not be transferred or resold except
as permitted under the U.S. Securities Act and all other applicable securities laws. See “Transfer Restrictions.”
You should be aware that you may be required to bear the financial risks of this investment for an indefinite
period of time.

We accept responsibility for the information contained in this Offering Memorandum. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained
in this Offering Memorandum is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything that is likely to affect
the import of such information. The information contained in this Offering Memorandum has been furnished by
us and other sources we believe to be reliable. Nothing contained in this Offering Memorandum is or shall be
relied upon as a promise or representation, whether as to the past or the future. This Offering Memorandum
contains summaries, believed to be accurate, of some of the terms of specific documents, but reference is made to
the actual documents, copies of which will be made available to you upon request, for the complete information
contained in those documents. All summaries herein are qualified in their entirety by this reference.

We reserve the right to withdraw this Offering at any time, and we and the Lead Manager and the Co-
Manager reserve the right to reject any commitment to subscribe for the Notes in whole or in part and to allot to
any prospective purchaser less than the full amount of Notes sought by such purchaser. The Lead Manager and
the Co-Manager and certain related entities may acquire for their own account a portion of the Notes. See “Plan
of Distribution.”

The distribution of this Offering Memorandum and the offer and sale of the Notes may be restricted by law
in some jurisdictions. This Offering Memorandum does not constitute an offer to sell or an invitation to subscribe
for or purchase any of the Notes in any jurisdiction in which such offer or invitation is not authorized or to any
person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or invitation. Persons into whose possession this Offering
Memorandum comes must inform themselves about and observe any such restrictions. For a description of the
restrictions on offers, sales and resales of the Notes and distribution of this Offering Memorandum, see “Notice
to Prospective Investors in the United States,” “Notice to Certain European Investors” and “Transfer
Restrictions.” Neither we nor the Lead Manager nor the Co-Manager are making any representation to any
offeree or purchaser under any applicable law.

STABILIZATION

IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF THE NOTES, STIFEL NICOLAUS EUROPE LIMTED
(THE “STABILIZING MANAGER”) (OR ANY PERSON ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE STABILIZING
MANAGER) MAY OVER-ALLOT NOTES OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WITH A VIEW TO
SUPPORTING THE MARKET PRICE OF THE NOTES AT A LEVEL HIGHER THAN THAT WHICH
MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL. HOWEVER, THERE IS NO ASSURANCE THAT THE STABILIZING
MANAGER (OR ANY PERSON ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE STABILIZING MANAGER) WILL
UNDERTAKE STABILIZING ACTION. ANY STABILIZATION ACTION MAY BEGIN ON OR AFTER
THE DATE ON WHICH ADEQUATE PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF THE TERMS OF THE OFFER OF THE
NOTES IS MADE AND, IF BEGUN, MAY BE ENDED AT ANY TIME, BUT IT MUST END NO LATER
THAN THE EARLIER OF 30 DAYS AFTER THE ISSUE DATE OF THE NOTES AND 60 DAYS AFTER
THE DATE OF THE ALLOTMENT OF THE NOTES.

il



NOTICE TO PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS IN THE UNITED STATES

This Offering is being made in the United States in reliance upon an exemption from registration under the
U.S. Securities Act for an offer and sale of the Notes which does not involve a public offering. In making your
purchase, you will be deemed to have made certain acknowledgments, representations and agreements. See
“Transfer Restrictions.”

This Offering Memorandum is being provided (1) to a limited number of U.S. investors that the Issuer
reasonably believes to be QIBs under Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act and (2) to investors outside the
United States who are not U.S. persons in connection with offshore transactions complying with Rule 903 or
Rule 904 of Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act, for informational use solely in connection with their
considerations of the purchase of the Notes. The Notes described in this Offering Memorandum have not been
registered with, recommended by or approved by the SEC, any state securities commission in the United States
or any other securities commission or regulatory authority, nor has the SEC, any state securities commission in
the United States or any such securities commission or authority passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this
Offering Memorandum. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

iv



NOTICE TO CERTAIN EUROPEAN INVESTORS

European Economic Area

This Offering Memorandum has been prepared on the basis that all offers of the Notes will be made
pursuant to an exemption under Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive (as defined herein), as implemented in
Member States of the European Economic Area (the “EEA”), from the requirement to produce a prospectus for
offers of the Notes. Accordingly, any person making or intending to make any offer within the EEA of the Notes
should only do so in circumstances in which no obligation arises for us or the Lead Manager or the Co-Manager
to produce a prospectus for such offer. We, the Issuer, the Lead Manager and the Co-Manager, have not
authorized, nor do we authorize, the making of any offer of Notes through any financial intermediary, other than
offers made by the Lead Manager or the Co-Manager, which constitute the final placement of the Notes
contemplated in this Offering Memorandum.

In relation to each member state of the EEA that has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a
“Relevant Member State”), with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is
implemented in that Relevant Member State (the “Relevant Implementation Date”), an offer to the public of
any Notes which are the subject of the Offering may not be made in that Relevant Member State, except that an
offer to the public in that Relevant Member State may be made at any time with effect from and including the
Relevant Implementation Date under the following exemptions under the Prospectus Directive:

(a) to any legal entity that is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;

(b) to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus
Directive) per Relevant Member State; or

(c) 1in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive,

provided that no such offer of the Notes shall require us or the Lead Manager or the Co-Manager to publish a
prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an “offer to the public” in relation to the Notes in any
Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the
terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for
the Notes, as the same may be varied in that Relevant Member State by any measure implementing the
Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State, and the expression “Prospectus Directive” means Directive
2003/71/EC (and any amendments thereto, including the 2010 PD Amending Directive, to the extent
implemented in the Relevant Member State) and includes any relevant implementing measures in each Relevant
Member State and the expression “2010 PD Amending Directive” means Directive 2010/73/EU.

This EEA selling restriction is in addition to any other selling restrictions set out in this Offering
Memorandum.

Each subscriber for, or purchaser of, the Notes in the Offering located within a member state of the EEA
will be deemed to have represented, acknowledged and agreed that it is a “qualified investor” within the meaning
of Article 2(1)(e) of the Prospectus Directive. The Issuer, the Lead Manager and the Co-Manager and their
respective affiliates, and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing representation,
acknowledgment and agreement.

United Kingdom

This Offering Memorandum may not be used for, or in connection with, and does not constitute, any offer
to, or solicitation by, anyone in any jurisdiction or under any circumstance in which such offer or solicitation is
not authorized or is unlawful. In particular, this Offering Memorandum does not constitute an offer of Notes to
the public in the United Kingdom. No offering memorandum has been approved or will be approved in the
United Kingdom in respect of the Notes. This Offering Memorandum is addressed to and directed only at persons
who (i) are outside the United Kingdom, or (ii) are investment professionals for the purposes of Article 19(5) of
the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005 (as amended) (the “Order”), or
(iii) are persons falling within Article 49(2)(a) to (d), “high net worth companies, unincorporated associations,
etc.,” of the Order, or (iv) other persons to whom it may lawfully be communicated (all such persons together
being referred to as “relevant persons”). This Offering Memorandum must not be acted on or relied on by
persons who are not relevant persons. Any investment activity to which this Offering Memorandum relates is
available only to relevant persons and will be engaged in only with relevant persons. Any person who is not a
relevant person should not act or rely on this Offering Memorandum or any of its contents.
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Federal Republic of Germany

The Offering is not a public offering in the Federal Republic of Germany. The Notes may be offered and
sold in the Federal Republic of Germany only in accordance with the provisions of the Securities Prospectus Act
of the Federal Republic of Germany (Wertpapierprospektgesetz) (the “German Securities Prospectus Act”) and
any other applicable German law. Consequently, in Germany the Notes will only be available to, and this
Offering Memorandum and any other offering material in relation to the Notes is directed only at, persons who
are qualified investors (qualifizierte Anleger) within the meaning of Section 2 No. 6 of the German Securities
Prospectus Act. Any resale of the Notes in Germany may only be made in accordance with the German Securities
Prospectus Act and other applicable laws. The Issuer has not, and does not intend to, file a securities prospectus
with the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (Bundesanstalt fiir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht)
(“BaFin”) or obtain a notification to BaFin from another competent authority of a Member State of the EEA,
with which a securities prospectus may have been filed, pursuant to Section 17 Para. 3 of the German Securities
Prospectus Act.

Luxembourg

This Offering Memorandum has not been approved by and will not be submitted for approval to
Luxembourg Financial Services Authority (Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier) for the purposes
of a public offering or sale of the Notes in Luxembourg. Accordingly, the Notes may not be offered or sold to the
public in Luxembourg, directly or indirectly, and neither this Offering Memorandum nor any other circular,
prospectus, form of application, advertisement, communication or other material may be distributed, or otherwise
made available in or from, or published in, the Luxembourg, except in circumstances which do not constitute a
public offer of securities to the public, subject to prospectus requirements in accordance with the Luxembourg
law of July 10, 2005 relating to prospectuses for securities, as amended (the “Luxembourg Prospectus Law”),
implementing the Prospectus Directive, as amended. Consequently, this Offering Memorandum and any other
offering circular, prospectus, form of application, advertisement or other material may only be distributed (i) to
persons who are qualified investors within the meaning of Article 5 para. 2 a) of the Luxembourg Prospectus
Law or (ii) under any other circumstances that do not require the publication of a prospectus pursuant to Article 5
para. 2 of the Luxembourg Prospectus Law.

The Netherlands

In addition to the selling restrictions in respect of the Netherlands under the section headed “—~Notice to
Certain European Investors” above, the Notes which are the subject of the Offering will not be offered to the
public in the Netherlands or in reliance on Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive unless:

(i) such offer is made exclusively to legal entities which are “Qualified Investors” as defined in the
Prospectus Directive; or

(i1) standard logo and exemption wording are incorporated as required by article 5:20(5) of the Dutch
Financial Supervision Act (the “Dutch FSA”); or

(iii) such offer is otherwise made in circumstances in which article 5:20(5) of the Dutch FSA is not
applicable.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS IN OTHER JURISDICTIONS

The distribution of this Offering Memorandum and the offer and sale or resale of the Notes may be
restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession this Offering Memorandum (or any part
hereof) comes are required by us, the Lead Manager and the Co-Manager to inform themselves about, and to
observe, any such restrictions.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Each purchaser of the Notes from the Lead Manager and the Co-Manager will be furnished with a copy of
this Offering Memorandum and, to the extent provided to the Lead Manager and the Co-Manager by us for such
purpose, any related amendments or supplements to this Offering Memorandum. Each person receiving this
Offering Memorandum and any related amendments or supplements to this Offering Memorandum
acknowledges that:

(1) such person has been afforded an opportunity to request from us and to review, and has received, all
additional information considered by it to be necessary to verify the accuracy and completeness of the
information herein;

vi



(2) such person has not relied on the Lead Manager or the Co-Manager or any person affiliated with the
Lead Manager or the Co-Manager in connection with its investigation of the accuracy of such
information or its investment decision; and

(3) except as provided pursuant to clause (1) above, no person has been authorized to give any information
or to make any representation concerning the Notes offered hereby other than those contained herein
and, if given or made, such other information or representation should not be relied upon as having
been authorized by us or the Lead Manager or the Co-Manager.

For so long as any Notes are outstanding and are “restricted securities” within the meaning of
Rule 144(a)(3) under the U.S. Securities Act, we will, during any period in which we are neither subject to the
reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “U.S. Exchange
Act”), nor exempt from the reporting requirements under Rule 12g3-2(b) of the U.S. Exchange Act, provide to
any holder or beneficial owner of such restricted securities or any prospective purchaser of such restricted
securities designated by such holder or beneficial owner, in each case upon the written request of such holder,
beneficial owner or prospective purchaser, the information required to be delivered pursuant to Rule 144A(d)(4)
under the U.S. Securities Act.

We have also agreed, pursuant to the Indenture (as defined below), to furnish to the Trustee (as defined

herein) and to publish on our website certain additional information and reports. See “Description of
Notes—Designation of Restricted and Unrestricted Subsidiaries—Reports.”
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Offering Memorandum are not historical facts and are “forward looking.”
Forward-looking statements appear in various locations in this Offering Memorandum, including, without
limitation, under the headings “Summary,” “Risk Factors,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Operations and Financial Conditions,” and “Business.” We may from time to time make written or oral forward-
looking statements in reports to our shareholders and note holders and in other communications. In addition, this
Offering Memorandum includes forward-looking information that has been extracted from third-party sources.
Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements concerning our plans, expectations,
projections, objectives, targets, goals, strategies, future events, future operating revenues or performance, capital
expenditures, financing needs, plans or intentions relating to acquisitions, our competitive strengths and
weaknesses, our business strategy, and the trends we anticipate in the industries and the political, regulatory and
legal environments in which we operate and other information that is not historical information.

Forward-looking statements that may be made by us from time to time (but that are not included in this
Offering Memorandum) may also include projections or expectations of revenue, income (or loss), dividends,
capital structure or other financial items or ratios.

ELINNT3 ELINNT3 ELINNT3 ELINNTS

Words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” ‘“‘target,” “potential,” “‘expect,” “intend,” “predict,”
“project,” “could,” “should,” “may,” “will,” “plan,” “aim,” “seek” and similar expressions are intended to

identify forward-looking statements but are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements.

The forward-looking statements contained in this Offering Memorandum are largely based on our
expectations, which reflect estimates and assumptions made by our management. These estimates and
assumptions reflect our best judgment based on currently known market conditions and other factors, some of
which are discussed below. Although we believe such estimates and assumptions to be reasonable, they are
inherently uncertain and involve a number of risks and uncertainties that are beyond our control. In addition,
management’s assumptions about future events may prove to be inaccurate. We caution all readers that the
forward-looking statements contained in this Offering Memorandum are not guarantees of future performance,
and we cannot assure any reader that such statements will be realized or the forward-looking events and
circumstances will occur.

By their very nature, forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties, both general and
specific, many of which are beyond our control, and risks exist that the predictions, forecasts, projections and
other forward-looking statements will not be achieved. You should be aware that a number of important factors
could cause actual results to differ materially from the plans, objectives, expectations, estimates and intentions
expressed in such forward-looking statements. These factors include:

e currency exchange rate fluctuations;

e changes to accounting principles, regulations, taxation and governmental policies related to our
activities, including, but not limited to, user and consumer protections laws;

* increased regulation;

e ability to react to interest rate changes;

e increases in defaults by customers, as well as increases in adjustments for loan losses;
e decreasing consumer demand for our products and services;

» risks associated with our expansion strategy, including additional strain on managerial and operational
resources and an increase in costs from operating in numerous jurisdictions, a failure to diversify the
markets in which we operate, an inability to properly identify and gather information on potential
targets, an increase in costs from researching potential acquisitions that do not come to fruition and a
failure to secure financing for potential acquisitions or manage any future acquisitions, including the
integration thereof into our existing network;

e continued acceptance of our online and mobile channels by our customers;
e aprolonged economic downturn or volatile credit markets;
e our ability to attract and retain key personnel;

o difficulty of obtaining adequate managerial and operational resources;
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e difficulty in assessing the credit risk of potential borrowers;
e our ability to attract new customers and retain existing customers;

e our ability to generate sufficient cash flow to fund our requirements in order to make significant capital
expenditures to maintain our competitive position;

e the inability of our capital expenditures to generate a positive return or a significant reduction in costs
or promote the growth of our business;

e significant and intense competition in the markets in which we operate;
e negative public perception of our business;

e our insurance not covering all potential losses, liabilities and damage related to our business and certain
risks being uninsured or not insurable;

e adverse decisions of tax authorities or changes in tax treaties, laws, rules or interpretations;

e our ability to safeguard against failure to comply with anti-corruption laws;

e other contractual claims, complaints, litigation and publicity;

e difficult business climate as a result of corruption in some of the markets where we operate;

e fluctuations in the global economys;

e rapid or unforeseen economic or political changes in the emerging markets where we operate;
e less developed legal and judicial systems in some of our markets of operation;

e those described in the part of this Offering Memorandum entitled “Risk Factors,” which should be read
in conjunction with the other cautionary statements that are included in this Offering Memorandum;
and

e factors that are not known to us at this time.

This list of important factors and the other factors discussed in “Risk Factors” are not exhaustive. Other
sections of this Offering Memorandum describe additional factors that could adversely affect our results of
operations, financial condition, liquidity and the development of the industry in which we operate. New risks can
emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict all such risks, nor can we assess the impact of all
such risks on our business or the extent to which any risks, or combination of risks and other factors, may cause
actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements. Given these risks and
uncertainties, you should not rely on forward-looking statements as a prediction of actual results.

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made. Accordingly, we do not
intend, and do not undertake any obligation, to update or revise any of them, whether as a result of new
information, future events or other factors except as otherwise required by applicable law. We do not make any
representation, warranty or prediction that the results or events anticipated by such forward-looking statements
will be achieved or occur, and such forward-looking statements represent, in each case, only one of many
possible scenarios and should not be viewed as the most likely or standard scenario.

You should interpret all subsequent written or oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or to

persons acting on our behalf as being qualified by the cautionary statements in this Offering Memorandum. As a
result, you should not place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial information set forth herein, has, unless otherwise indicated, been derived from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014
(the “Financial Statements”). The Financial Statements and other financial information in this Offering
Memorandum have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union (“IFRS”) in effect at the time of preparing the Financial Statements.

Discontinued operations are shown separately from continuing operations in our Financial Statements.

IFRS differs in various significant respects from U.S. GAAP. In making an investment decision, you should
rely upon your own examination of the terms of the Offering and the financial information contained in this
Offering Memorandum. You should consult your own professional advisors for an understanding of the
differences between IFRS, on the one hand, and U.S. GAAP, on the other hand, and how those differences could
affect the financial information contained in this Offering Memorandum.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires us to use certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires us to exercise judgment in the process of applying our accounting policies.
See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations And Financial Condition—Discussion of
Critical Accounting Policies” for a discussion of the areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity
and of the areas where assumptions and estimates are significant.

ISSUER, GUARANTORS AND NON-GUARANTOR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Financial Statements include the financial information of the Issuer and of all subsidiaries within the
Group, including the Subsidiary Guarantors and Holdco. See “—Business—History.”

The Issuer generated EBITDA of EUR 41.7 million, representing 33.4% of our EBITDA for the year ended
December 31, 2016, and had net assets of EUR 94.5 million, representing 41.1% of our total consolidated net
assets as of December 31, 2016.

The Guarantors generated EBITDA of EUR 204.9 million, representing 164.1% of our EBITDA for the year
ended December 31, 2016, and had net assets of EUR 285.1 million, representing 123.9% of our total
consolidated net assets as of December 31, 2016.

The non-guarantor subsidiaries generated EBITDA of EUR 25.4 million, representing 20.3% of our
EBITDA for the year ended December 31, 2016 and had net assets of EUR 86.5 million, representing 37.6% of
our total consolidated net assets as of December 31, 2016.

There were no Guarantors which individually comprised greater than 20% of our EBITDA for the year
ended December 31, 2016 except for AS 4finance, which accounted for EUR 38.5 million, or 30.8% of our
EBITDA and EUR 67.2 million or 29.2% of our net assets in 2016 and Vivus Finance sp.z.0.0. which accounted
for EUR 31.0 million, or 24.8% of our EBITDA and EUR 37.2 million, or 16.2% of our net assets for the year
ended December 31, 2016. There were no Guarantors which individually comprised greater than 20% of our net
assets as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 except for AS 4finance, which accounted for
EUR 67.2 million or 29.2% of our net assets and EUR 38.5 million or 30.8% of our EBITDA for the year ended
December 31, 2016. There are no risks specific to, or encumbrances on the assets of, the Company and Vivus
Finance s.p.z.0.0. that could have a material adverse effect on its ability to meet its obligations under its
guarantees. Please see the section entitled “Description of Issuer and Guarantors” for more information on the
Issuer and Guarantors.

REPORTING SEGMENTS

We have the following reporting segments under IFRS: Latvia, Lithuania, Finland, Sweden, Denmark,
Poland, Georgia, Spain, Friendly Finance OU (“Friendly Finance”) and TBIF Group. In 2014 and 2013, we
reported six segments, and in 2015, we introduced Spain and Denmark as separate reporting segments. In 2016,
TBIF Group and Friendly Finance were introduced as new reporting segments.

In our Consolidated Financial Statements, we present in our segment information an additional item labeled
“Other,” which includes Argentina, Armenia, Bulgaria, the Czech Republic, the Dominican Republic and
Mexico.



Our Latvia reporting segment corresponds to our intermediate holding company, AS 4finance, which holds
our operating companies in Lithuania, Finland, Sweden, Denmark, Poland, Georgia, and Spain. As such, the
revenue and profit before tax of our Latvia segment includes both interest income received from its operations
and dividends received from subsidiaries of AS 4finance, recorded separately as “internal revenue”. Accordingly,
the profit before tax of our Latvia segment is not comparable to the profit before tax of our others segments.

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Non-IFRS financial information

This Offering Memorandum includes references to “EBITDA”, “Adjusted EBITDA”, “Net Debt” and “Net
Assets” and certain other financial measures, none of which are defined by or applied in accordance with IFRS.
These measures may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies and are not
measurements under IFRS or other generally accepted accounting principles, and they should not be considered
in isolation from, or as substitutes for, the information contained in the Financial Statements.

EBITDA is defined as profit for the period plus tax plus interest expense, plus amortization and
depreciation. Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure that represents EBITDA (profit for the period plus tax,
plus interest expense, plus depreciation and amortization) as adjusted by income/loss from discontinued
operations, non-cash gains and losses attributable to movement in the mark-to-market valuation of hedging
obligations under IFRS, goodwill write-offs and certain other one-off or non-cash items. Adjusted EBITDA, as
presented in this Offering Memorandum, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures that are reported by
other companies due to differences in the way that these measure are calculated.

For a reconciliation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to profit for the period, see “Selected Financial
Information and Operating Data”.

Net debt is defined as debt less cash. Total debt is defined as long and short term loans and borrowings.

Net assets is defined as the value of the Group’s assets less its liabilities.

Ratios

This Offering Memorandum also includes certain ratios, which are derived from a combination of our
principal IFRS and non-IFRS measures. Where such amounts have been presented, a description of the amount
and the measures from which it has been derived has been included.

Financial information of TBI Bank EAD

This Offering Memorandum presents certain financial information in relation to TBI Bank EAD (“TBI
Bank”). Such financial information includes the audited consolidated financial statements of TBI Bank as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2016, including comparative figures as of and for the year ended December 31,
2015, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and audited by its independent auditor Ernst & Young
Bulgaria, as set forth in their audit report included elsewhere herein (the “2016 TBI Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

Such financial information also includes the audited consolidated financial statements of TBI Bank as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2015, including comparative figures as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2014, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and audited by its independent auditor
for 2015, PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit OOD, as set forth in their audit report included elsewhere herein (the
“2015 TBI Consolidated Financial Statements™).

TBI Bank is wholly and directly owned by TBIF Financial Services B.V. (“TBIF,” and together with its
consolidated subsidiaries, the “TBIF Group”).

TBI Bank presents its consolidated financial statements in BGN. For the benefit of the reader, the financial

information for the TBIF Group contained in this Offering Memorandum is presented in EUR. The BGN has
been pegged to the EUR at an exchange rate of BGN 1.95583 to EUR 1 since January 1, 1999.
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Pro forma financial information

As part of this Offering Memorandum, the Group presents the unaudited pro forma consolidated income
statement for the year ended December 31, 2016, reflecting Holdco’s acquisition of the TBIF Group in August
2016, as if such acquisition had taken place on January 1, 2016. The historical financial information used to
prepare the unaudited pro forma consolidated income statement is derived from:

e the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the years ended December 31,
2016; and

e the audited consolidated financial statements of TBI Bank as of and for the year ended December 31,
2016.

The adjustments made in order to present the unaudited pro forma consolidated income statement have been
made based on available information and assumptions that the Group’s management believes are reasonable. The
pro forma adjustments are described in the notes to the unaudited pro forma consolidated income statement. The
unaudited pro forma consolidated income statement is for informational purposes only and does not necessarily
present what the Group’s results would have been had the TBIF Group acquisition actually occurred on
January 1, 2016, nor should it be used as the basis of projections of the Group’s results of operations or financial
condition for any future period. You are therefore advised to carefully consider the Group’s and TBI Bank’s
historical financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum, as well as
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

As Adjusted Data

The Group additionally presents in this Offering Memorandum certain financial information on an as
adjusted basis to give effect to the Offering. The adjustments made in order to present the financial information
on an as adjusted basis to give effect to the Offering have been made based on available information and
assumptions that the Group’s management believes are reasonable. The as adjusted financial information is for
informational purposes only and does not necessarily present what the results would actually have been had the
transactions described in “The Offering” actually occurred on December 31, 2016 nor should it be used as the
basis of projections of our results of operations or financial condition for any future period.

Neither the assumptions underlying the adjustments nor the resulting as adjusted financial information have
been audited or reviewed in accordance with any generally accepted auditing or review standards. See
“Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Information” for a more complete description of the adjustments
and assumptions underlying the pro forma financial data.

The financial information included elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum is not intended to comply with the
SEC’s reporting requirements.

ROUNDING

Certain amounts which appear in this Offering Memorandum have been subject to rounding adjustments;
accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures which
precede them.

CURRENCIES
Unless otherwise specified or the context so requires:

References to “Euro”, “€” and “EUR ‘“are to the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of
European Economic and Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the European Community, as
amended;

References to “Lithuanian Litas” or “LTL” are to the currency of the Republic of Lithuania through
December 31, 2014. On January 1, 2015, Lithuania changed its currency to the Euro;

References to “Swedish Kronor” or “SEK” are to the currency of the Kingdom of Sweden;
References to “Danish Kroner” or “DKK” are to the currency of the Kingdom of Denmark;

References to “Zlotys” or “PLN” are to the currency of the Republic of Poland,;
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References to “Georgian Lari” or “GEL” are to the currency of Georgia;

References to “Czech Koruna” or “CZK” are to the currency of the Czech Republic;
References to “Bulgarian Lev” or “BGN” are to the currency of Bulgaria;

References to “Pound Sterling” or “GBP” are to the currency of the United Kingdom; and

References to “US dollar”, “USD”, “US$” or “$” are to the currency of the United States.

On January 1, 2015, Lithuania changed its currency to Euro.

MARKET DATA

In certain cases, we have made statements in this Offering Memorandum regarding the economy, our
position in the industry, our market share and the market shares of various industry participants based on our
internal estimates, experience, our own investigation of market conditions and our review of industry
publications, including information made available to the public by our competitors. We cannot assure you that
the assumptions underlying these statements are accurate or correctly reflect our position in the industry and none
of our internal surveys or information has been verified by any independent sources. None of the Issuer, the
Group, the Trustee, the Lead Manager nor the Co-Manager makes any representation or warranty as to the
accuracy or completeness of this information. Any of the information set forth in this Offering Memorandum
relating to the operations and financial and operating results of competitor companies has been obtained from
information made available to the public in such companies’ publicly available reports, and independent
research. None of the Issuer, the Group, the Trustee, the Lead Manager nor the Co-Manager has independently
verified this information or can guarantee its accuracy. We confirm that this information has been accurately
reproduced and that as far as we and the Guarantors are aware and are able to ascertain from the published
information, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or
misleading. Unless otherwise indicated, data on the Group’s market position and market share is based on
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016 and corresponds to the Group’s historical consolidated financial
information. The Group’s estimates involve risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based on various
factors. See “Risk Factors,” “Industry,” and “Business” for further discussion.

Credit ratings included or referred to in this Offering Memorandum have been issued by Moody’s Investors
Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services (“S&P”), each of which is established in the
EU and registered under Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009, as amended (the “CRA Regulation™). As such, each of
Moody’s and S&P is included in the list of credit rating agencies published by the European Securities and
Markets Authority (the “ESMA”) on its website in accordance with the CRA Regulation. A rating is not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision, suspension or withdrawal at any
time by the assigning rating organization. The significance of the rating should be analyzed independently from
any other rating. Ratings of the Group by Moody’s and S&P are not necessarily indicative of the ratings that may
in the future be issued in respect of the Group, either by Moody’s or S&P or by any other rating organization.

EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION

The following table sets out the period end, high, average and low exchange rates for select periods of each
of our local functional currencies against the euro, in each case as reported by the relevant central bank on its
website (unless otherwise stated). Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
respective reporting date are retranslated into Euros using the exchange rates stated in the table.

12 months ended December 31, 2016 12 months ended December 31, 2015 12 months ended December 31, 2014

Period Period Period

End Average High Low End Average High Low End Average High Low
SEK ........ 0.10 0.11 0.11 0.10 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.10 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.10
DKK ....... 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13
PLN ........ 0.23 0.23 0.24 022 0.23 0.24 0.25 023 0.23 0.24 0.24 0.23
GBP ........ 1.17 1.22 1.37 1.11  1.36 1.38 1.44 128 1.28 1.24 1.29 1.19
CZK ........ 0.04 0.04 004 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04
BGN........ 0.51 0.51 0.51 051 051 0.51 0.51 051 051 0.51 0.51 0.51
GEL ........ 0.36 0.38 042 034 0.38 0.40 045 036 044 0.43 0.46 041

USD ........ 0.95 090 096 0.86 092 090 095 0.83 0.82 0.75 0.82 0.72
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Month ended February 28, 2017

Month ended January 31, 2017

Period

_End  Average High Low
SEK .. 0.10 0.11  0.11 0.10
DKK .o 0.13 0.13  0.13 0.13
PLN 0.23 0.23 023 0.23
GBP ... 1.17 1.17  1.18 1.16
CZK 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04
BGN .. 0.51 0.51  0.51 0.51
GEL ... 0.37 035 0.37 034
USD .. 0.94 094 095 093

Xiv

Period
End Average High Low

0.11 0.11  0.11 0.10
0.13 0.13  0.13 0.13
0.23 023 023 0.23
1.16 1.16 1.18 1.14
0.04 004 0.04 0.04
0.51 051 051 051
0.35 035 036 0.34
0.93 094 096 0.93



SUMMARY

The following overview should be read as an introduction to the more detailed information appearing
elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum, including our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying
notes beginning on page F-1. The financial information set forth herein has, unless otherwise indicated, been
derived from the Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum. Any decision by a
prospective investor to invest in the Notes should be based on consideration of the Offering Memorandum as a
whole, including the information discussed in “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and
“Risk Factors” and not solely on this summarized information.

OVERVIEW

We are one of the largest online and mobile providers of unsecured consumer loans in our principal
European markets based on market share. Our principal European markets are Latvia, Lithuania, Finland,
Sweden, Denmark, Poland, Georgia and Spain. Our approximately 6.3 million registered online customers
represent the growing number of consumers who use alternative financial services because of their convenience
or because they are underserved by more traditional consumer credit providers such as banks and credit card
companies. As a responsible lender, we work in close cooperation with the regulatory authorities in all of the
jurisdictions in which we operate.

We are a diversified provider of consumer loans, currently operating in 16 countries: Argentina, Armenia,
Bulgaria, the Czech Republic, Denmark, Dominican Republic, Finland, Georgia, Latvia, Lithuania, Mexico,
Poland, Romania, Slovakia, Spain and Sweden. The chart below illustrates the percentage of our total interest
income for the year ended December 31, 2016 across our key primary operating jurisdictions and business
segments.
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We offer Single Payment Loans with a term from one day up to 35 days and Installment Loans with a term
from one month up to 24 months via websites and mobile and selected offline channels. In September 2015, we
launched our third product, Credit Line, a revolving credit line, in Finland, and subsequently in Latvia in
September 2016. We also offer a range of products through our banking operations. The chart below illustrates
the composition of our net loan portfolio by product as of December 31, 2016.
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As of December 31, 2016, our net loan portfolio, which represents our total loan portfolio less impairment,
was EUR 493.9 million (of which, EUR 316.4 million was attributable to our online portfolio which excludes
TBIF Group, and EUR 177.5 million was attributable to TBIF Group), compared to EUR 308.3 million as of
December 31, 2015, and EUR 241.4 million as of December 31, 2014. Installment Loans represented
approximately 30% of our net online loan portfolio as of December 31, 2016. The charts below illustrate our net
online loans issued over each of the years ended, and our overall net loan portfolio as of, December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014.

Online loans issued Net loan portfolio
(in millions of EUR)1 157 (in millions of EUR)
1,062 ’ 494
805
308
I ;
2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016

* 2016 online loans issued and net loan portfolio presented in the charts above are presented inclusive of TBIF Group and Friendly
Finance, both of which were acquired during 2016; Friendly Finance contributed EUR 67 million to our 2016 online loans issued; TBIF
Group contributed EUR 177.5 million, and Friendly Finance contributed EUR 26.2 million to our net online loan portfolio as of year-end
2016.

In August 2016, as part of our strategy to enter new markets and pursue selective expansion opportunities,
the Group acquired TBI Bank (via the acquisition of TBI Bank’s direct parent company, TBIF), a consumer-
focused bank operating in Bulgaria and Romania. This acquisition enhanced the scale of our operations in these
two existing markets. TBI Bank maintains a consumer portfolio, including small-size loans (of a similar profile
in terms of size and maturity to our Installment Loans), Point of Sale financing and Credit Cards, as well as a
portfolio of small-to-medium enterprise (“SME”) loans, including leasing products. In 2016, the consumer
portfolio and SME portfolio accounted for 68% (62% in 2015) and 32% (38% in 2015), respectively, of TBI




Bank’s net loan portfolio. We believe that having an EU licensed bank within our Group will enable us to
diversify our funding and lower funding costs by accepting deposits, broaden our product range (for example,
allowing us to offer credit cards to our online customers) and operate in EU markets which require a banking
license for consumer lending.

We have a strong brand portfolio which we deploy through diversified marketing channels to acquire
customers, including traditional mass media (such as television and radio) as well as digital channels (such as
cost-per-click, where we pay a fee each time our ad is clicked; search engine optimization (SEO) techniques, i.e.,
enhancing the visibility of a website in a search engine’s unpaid search results; and affiliate marketing, where a
commission is paid for each successful transaction). While our offering is predominantly online and mobile, we
also cooperate with partners in Latvia, Lithuania, Bulgaria, Romania, Spain, the Czech Republic and Poland, who
help us acquire customers, many of whom ultimately become online customers, through physical points of sale,
such as post offices, kiosks and brokers. Following the acquisition of Friendly Finance in mid-2016, we have
multiple Single Payment Loan brands operating within many of our markets, allowing us to operate with
different brand positioning in such jurisdictions.

Our sophisticated underwriting process mainly relies on data-driven statistical analysis, and is typically
conducted in less than three seconds. If approved, money is transferred into our customers’ accounts typically
within 15 minutes. As of December 31, 2016, our proprietary database contained information from 27 million
loan applications, including both traditional and alternative data points, that together with the historical
performance of our customers provides us with an efficient underwriting and scoring process which we believe to
be an important competitive advantage in our industry. We have a strong record for delivering high-quality
customer service with local customer care teams in each operating market, with over 80% of our online lending
volumes in 2016 issued to returning customers.

We seek to minimize defaults in our loan portfolio through a range of advanced data-driven customer
assessment techniques. When defaults do occur, we aim to maximize recovery through an efficient debt
collection process. Our portfolio of loans overdue for more than 90 days (“non-performing loans”) as a share of
online loans issued has remained relatively stable in recent years, at 9.3% for the year ended December 31, 2016
and 9.0% for the year ended December 31, 2015. Similarly, our ratio of net impairment (i.e., impairment losses,
net proceeds from debt sales and write-offs of loans not repaid within two years, less recoveries on loans written
off) to revenue was 23% for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 24% for the year ended December 31, 2015.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we generated profit before tax (after impairment losses on loans and
receivables and general administrative expenses) of EUR 81.0 million and net profit of EUR 63.2 million. In
2015 and 2014, we generated profit before tax of EUR 73.8 million and EUR 60.6 million, respectively, and net
profit of EUR 64.1 million and EUR 46.3 million, respectively.

We have strong EBITDA generation, recording EBITDA of EUR 124.9 million, EUR 110.0 million and
EUR 82.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively (with an EBITDA margin
of 31.8%, 34.5% and 37.5% respectively for those years). We are well capitalized, with total equity of EUR
230.1 million and EUR 173.3 million as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively (with a ratio
of total equity to net loan portfolio of 47% and 56% respectively as of those dates). TBIF Group’s total capital
adequacy ratio was 22.3% and 19.5% as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

KEY STRENGTHS AND STRATEGY
Key strengths
Simple and transparent online/mobile product offering

We have designed our products to offer simplicity, convenience and transparency to our customers. Our
convenient online and mobile loan products aim to protect customer privacy, provide easy online access to
funding and offer easy-to-understand fee and interest structures. Single Payment Loans are loans with a term
from one day up to 35 days with the customer having an option to extend maturity, and Installment Loans are
loans with a term from one month up to 24 months. For Single Payment Loans, customers are charged interest,
payable when the principal is repaid, ranging from 6% to 28% in Europe and 30% to 40% in Latin America. For
Installment Loans, customers are charged annual nominal interest rates ranging from 58% to 96%, payable
monthly on the outstanding principal, depending on the jurisdiction, loan amount and maturity. For Line of




Credit, customers have a minimum monthly repayment, along with a monthly interest rate of 8.5% to 10.0%.
Maximum loan amounts under the Line of Credit are EUR 2,100.

We design our websites to be as simple and convenient as possible to use, with clear terms and conditions.
With respect to our Single Payment Loans, we typically disburse loans to a customer’s bank account within
15 minutes of approving an online application. We believe that our customers value our services as an important
component of their personal finances because of the convenience and transparency of our products compared to
other alternatives.

Strong brand awareness built on sophisticated marketing framework

We have put into place a sophisticated marketing framework, which is a vital component of our customer
acquisition strategy. We utilize a three-phase, multi-channel country launch marketing strategy. When entering a
new market, we employ online marketing channels to build initial interest and attract customers to the product.
Online tools include cost per click advertising, where the most relevant promotion and placement has a higher
likelihood of driving consumer action with greater efficiency; SEO, which enhances the visibility of our websites
in a search engine’s unpaid search results; affiliate marketing, where we pay a commission for each successful
transaction; and other internet marketing, including website display advertising. In the second phase, known as
the market rollout phase, we promote the proposition through offline channels, including TV, radio and
billboards. In the third phase, which we implement in our more mature markets, we use performance marketing
and customer management programmes to stimulate returning customers and brand endorsement. We also
employ a dual-brand strategy in some markets, for example SMS Credit and Ondo Single Payment brands in
Latvia and the addition of Friendly Finance brands to allow a different brand identity and positioning within a
given market. We also provide sponsorships and support charitable projects. These activities require substantial
investment; as a result, marketing expenses were EUR 55.4 million in 2016, or 14.1% of our 2016 revenues.
They also help us maximize customer reach and create a strong positive brand awareness. Thanks in large part to
our marketing efforts, we maintain a leading position in terms of brand awareness in a number of our markets.

Market innovation leader with sophisticated data-driven underwriting process

We have established ourselves as a leader in European online and mobile consumer lending with a reach
across a large number of European markets. We believe that we have the expertise to remain a leader in terms of
innovation in our services and product offerings, expansion capabilities, ease of use, customer convenience and
anticipation of and compliance with regulatory changes. In addition, our IT systems have demonstrated a track
record for reliability and performance.

We use data-driven analysis and decision making in all aspects of our business. This use of data improves
our understanding of existing and potential customers, enabling us to optimize our marketing expenditure,
enhance credit risk management and also to develop new products efficiently. For example, in our credit scoring,
we evaluate predictive data from credit bureaus and alternative sources such as social networks and use
technologies such as device fingerprinting to combat fraud.

We have built in-house expertise with our proprietary credit scoring databases containing information from
27 million loan applications as of December 31, 2016. Our databases include both traditional data points, such as
address, income level and credit bureau data; and alternative data points, such as mobile carrier and device and
social media presence and provide valuable insight into customer attitudes and behaviors in our existing markets.
Since our inception through December 31, 2016, we have issued online loans in an aggregate of EUR 4.0 billion
and, as of December 31, 2016, we had reached 6.3 million registered online customers (i.e., loan applicants). Our
information in relation to existing markets can provide us with an advantage when applied to new markets. We
believe this targeted, data-driven approach brings us potential customers who are more likely to apply for our
loans and reduces our cost per acquisition of new customers (an important component of operating costs).

We attract customers through a diversified multi-channel and data-driven marketing strategy, focusing on
marketing to customers with the highest conversion potential. At the application stage, our customer
identification methods are customized by country to reflect regulatory requirements and available sources of
information. Within seconds, proprietary systems analyse the customer data and determine the creditworthiness
of the applicant. Our dynamic credit scoring model aims to ensure that we capture the best mix of customers in




terms of balancing risk and reward and optimizing the profitability of the business in both our existing and target
markets. We look to set acceptance thresholds that both manage our risks and maximize our profitability. Our
non-performing loans have remained stable in recent years as our business has matured. As a percentage of
issued online loans, non-performing loans amounted to 9.3% as of December 31, 2016, compared to 9.0% as of
December 31, 2015 and 8.8% as of December 31, 2014. Such ratio takes into account non-performing loans as of
a specific date as a percentage of loans issued during the two year period finishing 90 days prior to that specific
date.

High rates of returning customers reflect our high levels of customer satisfaction

We emphasize customer satisfaction and operational excellence in order to attract a high proportion of
returning customers, one of the important pillars of our business model. Returning customers of Single Payment
Loans represented over 80% of our Single Payment Loan customers (in terms of lending volumes) in the year
ended December 31, 2016, and the average returning Single Payment Loan customer had three transactions per
year with us. Returning customers allow us to leverage existing credit score databases and thus reduce the costs
associated with new customer acquisition. They also help give us a stable customer base to which we can offer
new products to help optimize our performance. We define a Single Payment Loan returning customer as a
customer who had taken out a loan, repaid it in full, and later applied for a separate Single Payment Loan.

We have developed a customer service division with 738 full-time-equivalent (“FTE”) specialists as of
December 31, 2016, delivering customer support in local languages across all of our markets (in most of which
we offer customer support on a 24/7 basis). We continuously work to improve customer satisfaction by creating
personal contact with customers through telephone calls, e-mail and chats to, among other things, discuss product
options, address customers’ questions, inform customers of their payment due dates and encourage on time
payment, discuss options for late payments and help customers with their applications. With approximately 64%
of our customers millenials (i.e., under 40 years old), we have adopted a diversified, multi-channel marketing
approach, including such methods as cost-per-click (i.e., where advertisers pay a fee each time one of their ads is
clicked), search engine optimization (SEO) (i.e., enhancing the visibility of a website in a search engine’s unpaid
search results) and affiliate marketing (i.e., where a commission is paid for each successful transaction) and other
internet marketing, including website display advertising. In addition, we carefully monitor different customer
service quality ratios, including but not limited to abandoned-call and repeated-call rates. We also survey
customers on their perception of our quality of service and we actively monitor net promoter scores. We have
also started to work with external review sites such as TrustPilot that give independent and publicly available
customer feedback. We have been recognized for our customer service, having won the Quality Service Star
award in our largest online market, Poland, in 2014 and 2015. We have also recently launched external
independent customer reviews via Trustpilot in some of our European markets. As of February 2017, the
Trustpilot rankings were all above 8 out of 10 and mostly above 9 out of 10. We believe this strong level of
customer satisfaction is one of the reasons why customers who wish to access credit again often return to us.

We have high rates of recovery on our non-performing loans

We mainly handle collection of payments delayed up to 90 days past maturity in-house and over the years
we have gained substantial expertise in debt collection strategies. In certain countries, we outsource portions of
our debt collection activities to leading international partners, such as Intrum Justititia, Euler Hermes and Svea
Finance, which allows us to test and compare the efficiency of internal versus external debt collection. We
monitor the results of debt collection procedures and implement what we deem to be the most appropriate and
efficient procedure in each jurisdiction, thereby increasing the effectiveness of our debt collection process.

We have developed policies and procedures for debt collection that have resulted in a Single Payment Loan
average recovery rate of 93.4% of the principal amount of Single Payment Loans issued with a maturity date
during 2014 (such loans having been issued between January 2014 and December 2014) within two years after
maturity, and an Installment Loan average recovery rate of 92.5% of principal amount of the Installment Loans
issued with a maturity date during 2013 (such loans having been issued between May 2012 and April 2013)
within three years after maturity (as defined in “—Process—Debt Collection—Debt Collection Statistics”).

Emphasis on being a responsible lender

We operate as a responsible lender. Our product terms, including fee and interest structures, are easy to
understand. Our underwriting and credit scoring process is rigorous. We have developed a robust proprietary




credit scoring database that helps us optimize our customer mix, balancing risk and reward, and maintain stable
non-performing loans ratios (both in terms of loans issued and total gross loans outstanding). While we charge
penalty interest for delayed loans, which made up 9% of our interest income in 2016, we do not employ hidden
fees, penalties, automatic loan extensions or compound interest, and we impose a maximum penalty limited to
two times the principal on a defaulted loan (except in Latvia, where such penalty is limited to the principal
amount of the loan). Our debt collection principles are designed to help customers find the best way to repay
their loans. We do not employ controversial collection practices, such as the use of continuous payment authority
or the direct debiting of monies from customers’ bank accounts, and rely only on reputable and carefully selected
external collection service providers. Not only do our business practices contribute to a high level of customer
satisfaction, they also help us to maintain productive relationships with regulatory bodies in the jurisdictions
where we operate as well as a positive brand image within the online lending industry.

We conduct our business in a highly regulated industry. We work in close cooperation with governmental
authorities and consumer rights protection groups to support a fair and transparent market environment and
legislative framework. We are actively involved in the principal trade associations in our principal markets and
through these associations we may influence regulatory development as well as share knowledge with our peers.

Our Group and local legal and compliance teams continuously work to monitor the regulatory requirements
to which we are subject in each jurisdiction. We also work with external legal advisors in different jurisdictions.
Consequently we believe that we have the skills and capacity to manage the numerous regulatory requirements
applicable to our business and to adapt to regulatory changes successfully. For instance, we have rapidly adapted
our products to comply with new regulatory requirements in a number of jurisdictions in 2016, including Latvia,
Lithuania and Poland, and will continue to do so in the future for changes expected in other markets, such as
Sweden, Finland and Georgia.

Proven ability to adjust to regulatory change

We have the ability to dynamically adjust our business model in response to regulatory changes within a
particular market, and have a track record of doing this successfully as regulation has increased in many of our
markets in recent years. Our online lending business model has a number of key operating parameters at different
stages of the customer lifecycle that we are able to adjust to optimize performance in specific markets. At the
initial marketing stage in a new country, we adjust application volumes by controlling how much we spend (and
through which channels) to target a certain volume and type of potential customer to our websites. At the
underwriting stage, we control and adjust our scorecards to change the credit scoring thresholds for being granted
a loan. This helps drive our acceptance rate, which together with the cost of marketing forms the cost per
acquisition. Subsequently, we monitor the loan repayments, extension characteristics and behaviour of those
customers who are late with repayments. The short term nature of our Single Payment Loans and the monthly
repayments on our Installment Loans and Line of Credit products mean this data is gathered on a timely basis.
We use such data to determine our impairment provisions and cost-of-risk based on roll rates, probability of
default and loss-given-default. We then assess how the cohorts of customers we have attracted and then selected
in the first two stages are performing, and use this to feed back into either marketing to a different customer
segment (i.e., marketing specifically to attract the types of customers we want to accept from a credit
perspective) and/or adjust the credit scoring to change acceptance rates for particular customer profiles.

As we develop in each market, we adjust these key operating levers to get the appropriate balance of cost of
acquisition and cost of risk to ensure we have optimal ‘unit economics’ for each product in each market. This is
aided over time as our customer base, presence and market share grows because returning customers represent an
increasing proportion of lending volumes. For these returning customers, the cost of acquisition is substantially
lower because they have already used our product and so are familiar with the brand, and the cost of risk is also
lower because we have propriety data on their previous repayment behaviour.

This flexibility has allowed us to adapt to regulatory change. For example, if regulators introduce caps on
pricing, we can seek to adjust our marketing spend and risk cut-offs in order to continue to operate in a profitable
manner despite the lower revenue yield per customer. In Georgia, a 100% cap on effective interest rate was
introduced in January 2017. Previously we charged 15% for a 30 day loan, with a first loan for free offer for new
customers (resulting in a blended average yield of 13% per month). After the cap became effective, the pricing
has been limited to 6% for a 30 day loan. To adjust for this change, we have withdrawn the ‘first loan for free’
offer and reduced our marketing spend, but still received an increased number of applications (driven by the




lower pricing which increases natural demand) and tightened our acceptance criteria for new customers. Whilst
the results in terms of profitability will depend on how extension behaviour and repayments develop in the
coming months, we believe our ability to adjust these key levers on a real-time basis will significantly mitigate
the initial impact on our profitability from lower pricing.

As an additional measure, we also review the design of our products to see if it can be better adjusted to suit
a modified regulatory framework. For example, we may offer customers a premium service (such as faster
disbursement of funds) for an additional fee. An example of a more significant re-design occurred when Google
introduced paid search restrictions on products with less than a 60-day maturity. We are now trialing a 61-day
product in Poland that runs in parallel with our normal 30-day product.

Regulatory changes also affect the broader market. Not all of our competitors have the resources or
experience to adjust to new regulatory regimes. This is particularly the case for pricing caps because our products
already tend to cost less than those of our peers. For example, in Poland, our Single Payment Loan costs 16% for
30 days whereas most other operators charge 20-25% (closer to the current cap of 28%). If a new and lower cap
is introduced, as is being currently considered by Polish regulators, the reduction in revenue for us will be
proportionately lower. Over a longer time period, such as following the changes in Poland in March 2016, we
tend to see an increase in market share as smaller competitors who are less able to adapt have a lower presence in
the market or withdraw.

Strong financial position

We have a strong balance sheet and have demonstrated strong cash flow characteristics supported by a
flexible business model and a disciplined growth strategy. We achieved an annualized return on average equity
and an annualized return on average assets from continuing operations of 31% and 9%, respectively, in the year
ended December 31, 2016, as well as a profit before tax and interest income growth for continuing operations of
10% and 24%, respectively, in the year ended December 31, 2016. We have achieved a profit before tax margin
of 21% for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to 23% for the year ended December 31, 2015. We are
well capitalized with a capital to assets ratio of 25% as of December 31, 2016. We employ a conservative
strategy regarding the maturity profile of our balance sheet. The majority of our borrowings are not due for at
least one year, whereas our online loan portfolio is short term in nature, with 74.7% of the performing loan
portfolio as of December 31, 2016 having a maturity of less than 90 days. The short term nature of our loan
portfolio enables us to generate revenue and reinvest it into new loans to customers.

We operate a flexible cost base and infrastructure. 82% of our general administrative costs shown in our
income statement for the year ended December 31, 2016 were variable costs which broadly correlate to loan sales
(i.e., all marketing and sponsorship costs, personnel costs, application inspection costs, IT expenses, debt
collection costs, communication expenses and bank services). Our revenue base is geographically diverse, which
has helped us to naturally hedge our financial performance against foreign exchange rate movements in our
markets. We believe this has supported our historic growth profile.

Experienced management with proven track record

Our executive team and country managers consist of experienced professionals who have worked in
different segments of the international financial and banking sectors. Their knowledge, experience and support
have proven to be significant assets to us both on the strategic front and in the development of new products and
we believe such knowledge, experience and support provide us with a significant competitive advantage.

Strategy
Consolidate and strengthen our leadership position in our core markets and develop new markets

We are a leader in the Single Payment Loans market in our core markets and aim to maintain such position.
Our net online Single Payment Loan portfolio in these markets amounted to EUR 187.8 million as of
December 31, 2016. We plan to maintain our market leadership for Single Payment Loans in these core markets,
in part, through our marketing efforts and by adapting quickly to new regulations and by focusing on achieving
efficiencies.




At year-end 2016, nearly half of our products were less than 18 months old, with 15 out of the 33 online
products being offered online having been launched since the third quarter of 2015. This range of products reflect
our entry into new markets, such as Argentina, Mexico and Romania in 2015 and the Dominican Republic in
August 2016, the roll-out and re-launch of Installment Loans in existing markets, like Spain and the Czech
Republic, and the launch of new products, such as our Line of Credit offering in Finland and Latvia. We believe
there are growth opportunities for these markets and products, which we plan to capture by further development
of distribution channels and investments in marketing, IT and customer service.

More generally, we plan to invest in marketing in all markets of operations to maintain or increase our brand
recognition and grow our market share. We aim to increase the number of distribution channels we use in order
to attract new customers. We also plan to continue to refine our underwriting and debt collection processes in
every market of operation and more significantly the markets in which we recently launched our operations, such
as the Dominican Republic, Romania, Argentina, Armenia and Mexico.

Leverage our acquisition of TBI Bank, including use of our EU banking license

In August 2016, we acquired TBI Bank (via the acquisition of TBI Bank’s direct parent company, TBIF), a
consumer-focused bank operating in Bulgaria and Romania. TBI Bank maintains a consumer portfolio, including
small-size loans of a similar profile (in terms of size and maturity) to our Installment Loans, Point of Sale
financing and Credit Cards, as well as an SME portfolio, including leasing. This acquisition expands our product
offering and may serve as a platform for further expansion of such offerings. For example, TBI Bank currently
offers credit cards in Bulgaria and Romania and in the future we may use this capability to offer card-based
lending products in other markets. In February 2017, we secured Romanian and Polish regulatory approvals to
use TBI Bank’s credit card license in Poland. In addition, we anticipate the TBI Bank acquisition will allow us to
diversify and lower our costs of funds as well as operate within certain jurisdictions, such as Germany, which
require a banking license. It also gives us flexibility in the event that regulatory changes (in any EU jurisdiction)
restrict lending business only to entities which have banking licenses.

Introduction of new products

We plan to continue our innovative approach, offering convenient online services and transparent and
competitive lending products to customers not served by traditional lenders. We plan to continue to leverage our
existing proprietary database to introduce Installment Loans in existing markets where we do not already offer
them, and also develop new products in certain markets. For example, in 2015, we launched our third product,
Line of Credit, in Finland which we later launched in Latvia in 2016. In the fourth quarter of 2016, we also
commenced a trial of a Point of Sale product in Spain. Through our acquisition of TBI Bank, we have the
capability to offer credit cards. TBI Bank currently offers these in Bulgaria and Romania and in the future we
may use this capability to offer card-based lending products in other markets. We expect our continued
investment in our products to drive continuing increase in our revenues.

Continue to maintain a high level of investment in technology

We plan to continue to invest in our underlying systems and technology. We aim to enhance our software
platform to support more rapid product development and rollout of products across our countries of operation.
We will continue to integrate the latest technologies into our business, including in the areas of digital marketing
(e.g., IPonWeb), anti-fraud (e.g., lovation), risk tools (e.g., Experian risk suite) and payment systems.

As we capture an ever broader range of traditional and alternative data, we plan to further develop our data
management and governance capabilities so that the information can be effectively utilized in our marketing
technology, credit scoring and risk management.

Continue to pursue selective expansion opportunities

We regularly evaluate strategic opportunities for our business, such as acquisition transactions in new
countries, particularly in Latin America and Asia, as well as our existing markets, and offerings of securities in
the international capital markets (including a possible public offering of our shares), and will continue to do so in
the future. Making use of both organic growth and acquisitions, we aim to leverage our existing expertise to
expand over time into countries which we believe have an attractive customer base and growth potential.




The decision to acquire an existing entity or expand through organic growth in a new market is driven by the
analysis of several factors, including acquisition price, the cost and time required to build up a local operation,
licensing requirements and the likelihood that we could successfully manage the integration of an existing entity
into our Group operating model. For example, in 2015, we started greenfield operations in Romania and Mexico,
but acquired small businesses in Armenia and Argentina that accelerated our entry into those markets.

As we aim to build one of the world’s leading digital consumer finance businesses, we regularly review and
consider potential acquisition opportunities around the world.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS
Consent solicitation and tender offer in respect of the 2019 Notes

On March 29, 2017, the Issuer, as issuer of the 2019 Notes, launched a consent solicitation process in
respect of the 2019 Notes (the “Consent Solicitation”) and a tender offer in respect of all outstanding 2019
Notes (the “2019 Notes Tender Offer”). Pursuant to the Consent Solicitation and 2019 Notes Tender Offer, the
Issuer seeks to obtain consent to amend the 2019 Notes Indenture to remove certain covenants, terms and events
of default in the indenture governing the 2019 Notes and invites the holders of the 2019 Notes to tender their
2019 Notes for purchase by the Issuer at a purchase price of USD 1,060 per USD 1,000 in principal amount of
the 2019 Notes for holders of the 2019 Notes who tender prior to the early participation deadline, and at a
purchase price of USD 1,010 per USD 1,000 in principal amount of the 2019 Notes for holders of the 2019 Notes
who tender after the early participation deadline but prior to the expiration deadline, and on the terms and
conditions contained in the Tender Offer and Consent Solicitation Memorandum.

Pursuant to the Tender Offer and Consent Solicitation Memorandum, the acceptance for purchase by the
Issuer of any of the 2019 Notes for purchase is subject to, among other things, the receipt of consents in respect
of the Consent Solicitation from eligible holders of the 2019 Notes (the criteria for such eligibility being set out
in the Tender Offer and Consent Solicitation Memorandum) representing a majority of the then outstanding
principal amount of the 2019 Notes validly given and not revoked (the “Required Consents”) to the proposed
amendments, receipt of tenders in respect of the 2019 Notes Tender Offer of a majority in aggregate principal
amount of the then outstanding of the 2019 Notes validly tendered and not withdrawn (the “Requisite Minimum
Tenders”) and the issuance of the Notes offered hereby.

Redemption of the SEK Notes

On March 30, 2017, the Issuer issued a conditional notice to redeem all the outstanding SEK Notes pursuant
to the Redemption Option contained in the SEK Notes. The notice is conditional upon, amongst other things, the
aggregate gross proceeds of the Offering being such that the Interest Coverage Ratio contained in the SEK Notes
would be below 2.5 to 1.0, on a pro forma basis. If the conditions are met, the SEK Notes will be redeemed at a
price equal to 106% of the aggregate principal amount of SEK Notes outstanding plus accrued and unpaid
interest, such redemption to occur on or about May 31, 2017. The Issuer has obtained a waiver of the requirement
to meet the SEK Notes Interest Coverage Ratio of 2.5 to 1.0 during the period between closing of the Offering
and redemption in full of the SEK Notes.

HISTORY

AS 4finance was founded in Latvia in February 2008 by a group of individuals and companies and
commenced operations offering Single Payment Loans in July 2008 and Installment Loans in August 2009.

Our initial objective was to provide flexible and convenient consumer financial services to customers in four
countries, Sweden, Finland, Lithuania and Latvia, and more broadly to become the leader in Northern European
and Scandinavian markets for online Single Payment Loans. The services we originally provided focused on
Single Payment Loans through e-commerce, such as using the Group’s internet platform, phone calls or text
messages. We introduced online Installment Loans in Sweden, Finland, Lithuania, Latvia and Poland, as well as
online deposit-taking in Sweden. In 2012, we for the first time had days when we issued over 10,000 loans per
day and achieved over 4,000 registrations per day. In September 2015, we launched our third product, Line of
Credit, in Finland which we later launched in Latvia in 2016.

From 2009 to 2013, we initiated operations in Bulgaria, Canada, the Czech Republic, Denmark, Estonia,
Finland, Georgia, Poland, Russia, Spain, Sweden and the United Kingdom, principally through the establishment
of new start-up entities. During this period, we also started a Canadian-based company, which provided
management and administration service to a U.S. third-party entity that provided Single Payment Loans to
customers in the United States. In December 2013, we discontinued operations in the United Kingdom and




North America business segments as part of a strategic decision to place greater focus on markets which
provided, and which we believed would continue to provide, a higher return on investment. For the United
Kingdom, our decision was also based on the uncertainty around a potential cap on annual percentage rates
(““APR”) chargeable on loans that U.K. regulatory authorities were considering introducing. We sold our North
America business (including the loan operations in Canada and the management and administration services
provided to the United States) to a related party on January 1, 2014. See “Related Party Transactions.” In
December 2014, we decided to sell our operations in the Russian Federation, mainly due to political and
economic uncertainties in the market. The Russian Federation business segment was sold to a related party
outside the reporting group. The sale of 85% of the ceased operations in the United Kingdom was effective from
January 1, 2015. In March 2015 and mainly due to unfavorable market conditions, we discontinued our
operations in Estonia. See “—Group Structure—Legal Structure” below.

In 2015, we launched Installment Loans in Denmark, with further launches in Spain, Romania and the
Czech Republic in 2016. In 2015, we also commenced operations in Romania and Mexico through the
establishment of new start-up entities. In April 2015, we acquired GoodCredit Armenia, which holds a credit
organization license from the Central Bank of Armenia. The main activities of GoodCredit Armenia are micro-/
SME business and consumer lending. This acquisition has enabled us to expand our activities in the Republic of
Armenia.

In May 2015, we acquired Prestamo Movil in Argentina. The main activities of Prestamo Movil are
consumer lending through Single Payment Loans. In October 2015, we started lending in Argentina under the
Vivus brand.

In June 2016, the Group acquired 80% of the share capital of Friendly Finance OU (an online consumer
lender active in the Czech Republic, Poland, Spain, Slovakia and Georgia) from Tirona, our controlling
shareholder, for a purchase price of EUR 28.8 million. See “Related Party Transactions.” The acquisition of
Friendly Finance added additional brands to our portfolio and an additional database of over one million
registered customers, reinforcing our position in our core markets.

In August 2016, we completed the purchase of TBI Bank through the acquisition of 100% of the share
capital of TBI Bank’s direct parent company, TBIF Financial Services B.V. from its parent company, Kardan
N.V., for a sum of EUR 82 million. TBI Bank is a consumer-focused financial group in Bulgaria and Romania
with consolidated assets of EUR 318.9 million as of December 31, 2016. TBI Bank maintains a diversified loan
portfolio consisting of loans to both consumers and SMEs. Funding is predominantly through customer deposits
and customer accounts of EUR 224.4 million, representing 91.8% of TBI Bank’s total liabilities, as of
December 31, 2016.
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SUMMARY CORPORATE STRUCTURE

The following diagram reflects our corporate structure and our principal indebtedness on an adjusted basis

after giving effect to the offering and sale of the Notes and the use of the proceeds thereof.

Tirona Limited
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(1) On the Issue Date, the Notes will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by Holdco and by 4finance
ApS, 4finance Oy, AS 4finance, UAB 4finance, UAB Credit Service, Vivus Finance sp.z.0.0., 4finance AB, 4finance Spain Financial
Services S.A.U., and 4finance LLC. The Issuer generated EBITDA of EUR 41.7 million, representing 33.4% of our EBITDA for the
year ended December 31, 2016, and had net assets of EUR 94.5 million, representing 41.1% of our total consolidated net assets as of
December 31, 2016. The Guarantors generated EBITDA of EUR 204.9 million, representing 164.1% of our EBITDA (which is over
100% because it is before consolidation adjustments such as intra-Group dividends) for the year ended December 31, 2016, and had net
assets of EUR 285.1 million, representing 123.9% of our total consolidated net assets as of December 31, 2016.

(2) 3% of the shares in 4finance AB are owned by its managing director.
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The Notes will be the Issuer’s senior obligations and will rank pari passu in right of payment to all of the Issuer’s existing and future
senior unsecured indebtedness and senior to all of the Issuer’s subordinated indebtedness, if any. We intend to use a portion of the
proceeds from the issuance of the Notes to repurchase 2019 Notes tendered and not validly withdrawn in the 2019 Tender Offer and to
pay the fees and expenses related to the issuance of the Notes. The Issuer may in certain circumstances use a portion of the proceeds of
the Offering to redeem the SEK Notes in full, which is estimated to cost approximately EUR 42 million (including principal, redemption
premium and accrued and unpaid interest). See “Description of Notes—SEK Notes.” Any remaining proceeds will be used for general
corporate purposes, including potential selective acquisitions, and will be lent by the Issuer to the Group companies for such purposes, as
required. See “Use of Proceeds.” As of December 31, 2016 we had total debt of EUR 397.2 million, and pro forma total debt of
EUR 535.0 million, as adjusted to take into account the offering of the Notes.

4finance S.A. is an indirect subsidiary of Holdco and is a public limited liability company (société anonyme) incorporated and existing
under the laws of Luxembourg. It is registered with the Luxembourg Trade and Companies Register (Registre de Commerce et des
Sociétés de Luxembourg) under number B173403 and its registered office is located at 9, allée Scheffer, L-2520 Luxembourg.

RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Notes involves a high degree of risk. For a detailed discussion of the risks and other

factors to be considered when making an investment with respect to the Notes. See “Risk Factors” and
“Cautionary Note Regarding Forward—Looking Statements.” Prospective investors in the Notes should carefully
consider the risks and other information contained in this Offering Memorandum prior to making any investment
decision with respect to the Notes.
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OVERVIEW OF THE OFFERING

The overview below describes the principal terms of the Notes and the Guarantees. Certain of the terms and
conditions described below are subject to important limitations and exceptions. The “Description of Notes”
section of this Offering Memorandum contains a more detailed description of the terms and conditions of the
Notes and the Guarantees, including definitions of certain terms used in this overview.

Issuer ............. ... .. ... . ...

Guarantors .......................

Notes Offered .....................
IssueDate ........................
Issue Price .......................
Maturity Date ....................
InterestRate . .....................

Interest Payment Dates . ............

Form and Denomination of the
Notes .......... ...

Status of the Notes and Guarantees . . .

4finance S.A., a Luxembourg based company incorporated as a
société anonyme (public limited liability company) under the laws of
Luxembourg, having its registered address at 9 Allée Scheffer,
L-2520 Luxembourg, and registered with the Luxembourg Trade and
Companies Register under number B173403.

The obligations of the Issuer under the Notes and the indenture
governing the Notes (the “Indenture”) will be fully and
unconditionally guaranteed on a senior basis by AS 4finance, the
Issuer’s direct parent company, 4finance ApS, UAB 4finance, UAB
Credit Service, 4finance Oy, 4finance AB, Vivus Finance Sp.z 0.0,
4finance Spain Financial Services S.A.U., 4finance LLC and Holdco,
the Issuer’s indirect parent company. See “Limitations on Validity
and Enforceability of the Guarantees and the Notes and Certain
Insolvency Considerations” for information on the Guarantees.

USD 325,000,000 10.75% Senior Notes due 2022.
On or about April 28, 2017.

100% of the principal amount of the Notes.

May 1, 2022.

10.75% per annum.

Interest will be payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of
each year commencing on November 1, 2017. Interest will accrue
from the Issue Date.

The Issuer will issue the Notes in minimum denominations of
USD 200,000 in principal amount and integral multiples of
USD 1,000 in excess thereof.

Definitive Note Certificates evidencing holdings of Notes will be
available only in certain limited circumstances. See “Book-entry
Delivery and Form.”

The Notes constitute unsecured obligations of the Issuer and will rank
pari passu in right of payment to all of the Issuer’s existing and future
unsecured indebtedness and senior to all of the Issuer’s subordinated
indebtedness, if any. The Notes will be structurally subordinated to all
existing and future liabilities (including trade payables) of Holdco’s
non-Guarantor subsidiaries.

The Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by the
Guarantors. The Guarantees will rank pari passu with all of the
Guarantors’ existing and future senior unsecured debt and senior to
all of their existing or future subordinated debt. Each Guarantee is
subject to certain limitations under the laws of the relevant
Guarantor’s jurisdiction of organization. See “Risk Factors—Risks
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Certain Covenants

Optional Redemption ..............

Change of Control

Relating to the Notes and the Guarantees—The Guarantees may be
significantly limited by applicable laws or subject to certain
limitations or defenses.”

The Indenture will contain covenants that, among other things, limit
the ability of Holdco and its restricted direct and indirect subsidiaries
to:

e incur or guarantee additional debt;
e pay dividends on, redeem or repurchase capital stock;

e make certain restricted payments and investments, including
dividends or other distributions with regard to the shares of
Holdco or its restricted direct and indirect subsidiaries;

e create or incur certain liens;

* enter into agreements that restrict Holdco’s restricted subsidiaries’
ability to pay dividends or other distributions or make loans or
advances to the Guarantors or any of the restricted subsidiaries;

e transfer or sell assets;
e merge or consolidate with other entities;
e enter into transactions with affiliates; and

e change the nature of their businesses or engage in any business
other than those permitted.

Each of these covenants is subject to a number of important
limitations and exceptions as described under “Description of
Notes—Certain Covenants.”

At any time prior to May 1, 2019, the Issuer may redeem all or a
portion of the Notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the Notes plus the applicable “make-whole”
premium set forth in this Offering Memorandum plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the redemption date. See “Description of Notes—
Optional Redemption.”

On or after May 1, 2019, the Issuer may redeem all or a portion of the
notes at the redemption prices (expressed as percentages of principal
amount) as described in the “Description of Notes” herein, plus
accrued and unpaid interest to the applicable redemption date. See
“Description of the Notes—Optional Redemption.”

Prior to May 1, 2019, the Issuer may redeem up to 40% of the
aggregate principal amount of the Notes with the proceeds of certain
equity offerings at 110.75% of the principal amount of the Notes, plus
accrued and unpaid interest, provided that at least 60% of the
aggregate principal amount of the Notes originally issued remains
outstanding immediately after the occurrence of such redemption. See
“Description of the Notes—Optional Redemption.”

Upon the occurrence of certain events constituting a “Change of
Control”, the holders of the Notes will have the right to require the
Issuer to redeem all or part of the Notes at a purchase price equal to
101%. of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to the redemption date. See “Description of Notes—
Repurchase at the Option of Holders.”
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Withholding Tax ..................

Tax Redemption ..................

Events of Default ..................

Use of Proceeds ...................

Listing . ... ..

Governing Law ...................

Tender Offer and Consent

Solicitation

Payments on the Notes will be made without withholding or
deduction for, or on account of, any withholding taxes imposed by
Luxembourg, and payments on each Guarantee will be made without
withholding or deduction for, or on account of any withholding taxes
imposed by the jurisdiction of incorporation of the relevant
Guarantor, to the extent described in “Description of Notes” herein. In
certain limited circumstances under the current tax laws of certain of
the Guarantors’ jurisdictions as more fully described in “Taxation” in
this Offering Memorandum, withholding tax on interest payments to
certain types of investors may apply. Subject to certain exceptions,
the Issuer and the Guarantors, as applicable, will undertake to pay
such additional amounts as will result in the receipt by Noteholders of
such amounts as would have been received by them if no such
withholding had been required.

The Issuer may at its option redeem the Notes, in whole, but not in
part, at their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest in the
event of certain changes affecting taxation in Luxembourg or any
jurisdiction of organization of a Guarantor.

For a description of certain events of default that will permit
acceleration of the principal amount of the Notes together with
accrued but unpaid interest thereon, along with any other amounts due
in respect of the Notes, see “Description of Notes—Events of Default
and Remedies.”

We intend to use a portion of the proceeds from the issuance of the
Notes to repurchase the 2019 Notes tendered and not validly
withdrawn in the 2019 Notes Tender Offer and to pay the fees and
expenses related to the issuance of the Notes. The Issuer may in
certain circumstances use a portion of the proceeds of the Offering to
redeem the SEK Notes in full, which is estimated to cost
approximately EUR 42 million (including principal, redemption
premium and accrued and unpaid interest). See “Description of
Indebtedness —SEK Notes.” Any remaining proceeds will be used for
general corporate purposes, including potential selective acquisitions,
and will be lent by the Issuer to the Group companies for such
purposes, as required.

Application has been made to the ISE for the Notes to be admitted to
the Official List to trade on the GEM.

The Notes will be new securities for which there is currently no
established trading market. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that a
liquid market for the Notes will develop or be maintained.

The Indenture, the Notes and the Guarantees will be governed by, and
shall be construed in accordance with, New York law. For the
avoidance of doubt, Articles 86 to 94-8 of the Luxembourg law of
August 10, 1915 on commercial companies, as amended from time to
time, shall not apply to the Notes.

On March 29, 2017, the Issuer, as issuer of the 2019 Notes, launched
the Consent Solicitation and 2019 Notes Tender Offer. Pursuant to the
Consent Solicitation and 2019 Notes Tender Offer, the Issuer seeks to
obtain consent to amend the 2019 Notes Indenture to remove certain
covenants, terms and events of default contained in the indenture
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governing the 2019 Notes and invites the holders of the 2019 Notes to
tender their 2019 Notes for purchase by the Issuer at a purchase price
of USD 1,060 per USD 1,000 in principal amount of the 2019 Notes
for holders of the 2019 Notes who tender prior to the early
participation deadline (the “Total Early Tender Consideration”),
and at a purchase price of USD 1,010 per USD 1,000 in principal
amount of the 2019 Notes for holders of 2019 Notes who tender after
the early participation deadline but prior to the expiration deadline
and on the terms and conditions contained in the Tender Offer and
Consent Solicitation Memorandum. Pursuant to the Tender Offer and
Consent Solicitation Memorandum, the acceptance for purchase by
the Issuer of any of the 2019 Notes for purchase is subject to, among
other things, the receipt of consents in respect of the Consent
Solicitation from holders of the 2019 Notes that are eligible under the
terms of the Tender Offer and Consent Solicitation Memorandum (an
“Eligible Noteholder”) and who represent a majority of the then
outstanding principal amount of the 2019 Notes validly given and not
revoked (the “Required Consents”) to the proposed amendments,
receipt of tenders in respect of the 2019 Notes Tender Offer from
Eligible Noteholders of at least a majority in aggregate principal
amount of the then outstanding 2019 Notes validly tendered and not
withdrawn (the “Requisite Minimum Tenders”) and the issuance of

the Notes hereby.

Lead Manager and Sole

Bookrunner .................... Stifel Nicolaus Europe Limited
Co-Manager ...................... ABG Sundal Collier ASA
Trustee .......................... TMF Trustee Limited
Principal Paying and Transfer

Agent .......................... Banque Internationale a Luxembourg S.A. (the “Paying Agent”).
Registrar and Paying and Transfer

Agent . ....... .. ... ... The Paying Agent.
Risk Factors ...................... Investing in the Notes involves a high degree of risk. See “Risk

Factors” for a description of certain of the risks you should carefully
consider before investing in the Notes.

Security Codes: ................... ISIN: Reg S: XS1597294781
144A: XS1597295838.

Common Code: Reg S: 159729478
144A: 159729583.
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SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL DATA

The financial statements included in this Offering Memorandum are the consolidated financial statements of
the Company as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

The financial information set forth herein, has, unless otherwise indicated, been derived from the Financial
Statements (the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 and contained elsewhere in this offering memorandum). The result of
operations for prior years are not necessarily indicative of the results to expect for any future periods. The
Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with IFRS, in effect at the time of preparing the relevant
Financial Statements. The financial information set forth herein includes certain financial measures and ratios
that are not determined in accordance with IFRS. See “Presentation of Financial and Other Information.”

The summary consolidated financial information set forth below should be read in conjunction with the
Financial Statements of the Company which are included elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum. The summary
consolidated financial information of the Company should also be read in conjunction with “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition.”

Certain amounts and percentages included in this Offering Memorandum have been subject to rounding
adjustments; accordingly, figures shown for the same category presented in different contexts may vary slightly
and figures in certain other contexts may not be the exact arithmetic results of their components as shown herein.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME DATA

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
(EUR thousands)

Continuing operations
INterest INCOME . . . ottt e et et e e e e e 393155 318285 220333
INETESt EXPENSE . . . vt ot ettt e et e e (38 684) (28 657) (23749)
Net interest income .. ......... ... ... .. . .. .. ... 354471 289628 196 584
Fee and commisSSion INCOME . .. ..ot vttt et 2901 — —
Fee and commission EXPense . .. ... .....euetormintnen et (809) — —
Net fee and commissionincome ................... .. ... .. ... ....... 2092 — —
Net trading l0SS . .. oot (7 337) (6 988) —
Other INCOME . . . .o o ettt e et e e et e e e e 14 314 3813 2150
Other XPEINSE . . . vttt et e e e e e (2 446) (1752) (4037)
Net impairment losses on loans and receivables ....................... ... (89672) (76964) (54 030)
General administrative XPenSes . . ..o v vttt vttt (190 383) (133 899) (80 020)
Profit before taxes ........ ... ... ... ... .. 81 039 73838 60 647
Corporate income tax for the reporting period ........................... (17 832) (15683) (11639)
Profit from continuing operations ................. ... ... ... ... ..... 63 207 58155 49008
Discontinued operations
Profit from discontinued operations, netoftax ................ ... ....... — 5910 (2748)
Profitfor the period . .. ........ ... ... .. .. .. . . . .. 63 207 64 065 46 260
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of Group . ......... i 62 823 63470 45646

Non-controlling interests(!) .. ... ... . . . . . . . 384 595 614
PROFIT .. 63 207 64 065 46 260
Other comprehensive income that is or may be transferred to profit or loss

Net gain on available for sale financial assets: ....................... 5 — —

Reclassification of foreign currency differences on disposal of

SUDSIAIATIES: .« . ottt — (728) (165)

Foreign currency translation differences on foreign operations: ... ....... (4404) (5318) 1422
Other comprehensive income: 4 399) (6 046) 1257
Total comprehensive income for the period ........................... 58 808 58019 47517

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of Group . ........ ... 58 400 57414 47427

Non-controlling interest™) .. ... ... ... .. . . . . 408 605 90
Note:

(1) Non-controlling refers to minority shareholders who own or owned during the period 3% of the shares in each of our Swedish and
Lithuanian operating subsidiaries.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATA

As of December 31,
2016 2015 2014
(EUR thousands)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ........... ... ... 157 641 56 862 33713
Placements with otherbanks ............. ... ... ... .. ... .. i, 4752 — —
DeriVAtIVES . ot e 11 166 10503 18 626
Loans due from CUStOmers . .. ..........tintii it 493 897 308 288 241 375
Net investment in finance leases .............. ...ttt 13 082 — —
Financial assets available forsale ............... ... ... .. .. .......... 10 589 — 4418
Loans to related parties ... .........oiiiiini i 67 198 13732 134
Investments in aSSOCIALES . . . .t v vttt e 2 080 — —
Prepaid eXpenses . ... ... 5602 2 675 3331
Non-current assets held forsale .............. ... ... . ... i, 8576 — —
Property and equipment ... ........ .. 12 345 4328 2108
Intangible assets and goodwill . ....... ... ... . . . . 83 175 18 030 2751
INCOME taX @SSt . . ..ottt e 16 053 5465 4700
Deferred tax asset . ... ..ottt 23 697 12 941 10 727
Other @SSetS . .t vttt 21 531 5382 48 147
Total assets . ... ...ttt 931384 438206 370 030
Liabilities
Loans and bOrrowWIngs . .. ..ottt e 397 183 229462 231624
Deposits from CUStOMETS . ... ...ttt 237 119 9121 —
Income tax liabilities . ... ...... ...t e e 14 633 7 358 6 407
Other Habilities . . . . ..ot e 47 495 19 002 17 344
Liabilities held forsale . ...... ... .. . i 4 809 — 1 646
Total liabilities ........... ... .. .. .. .. . . . . 701239 264943 257 021
Share capital .. ... 35750 35750 35750
Retained earnings . . ...ttt e 232420 171048 107 578
RESIVES ..ot (38753) (34646) (31433)
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Group ................ 229417 172152 111895
Non-controlling iNterests . .. ... ...u. ittt e 728 1111 1114
Total equity . ... ... .. 230145 173263 113009
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities . . . .......................... 931384 438206 370030

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW DATA

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
(EUR thousands)

Net cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities ............... 106 224 74016 (389)
Net cash flows used in investing activities . .................c...ooouen .. (150 625) (52745) (3489)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) financing activities ............... 124 323 1770 15063
Effect of exchange rate fluctuationsoncash. ............ .. ... .. .. .... 236 (621) 2133
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period .................. 56862 34442 21124
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period .................... 137020 56862 34442
Minimum Statutory TESEIVE . .. ... v vttt ettt e 20 621 — —
Total cash on hand and cash at central banks . ........................ 157641 56862 34442
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NET DEBT

As of December 31
2016 2015 2014
(EUR millions)

Cash and cash equivalents ........... ... ittt 157.6 56.9 33.7
Bank loan . ... ... .. 0.2) (5.9) (6.2)
2015 NoOtes(D L Lo — — (43.4)
2019 NOteS—NON-CUITENL . . . oo\ttt et e et e e e et e ettt i — (167.2) (157.9)
2019 NOtES—CUITENL . . .\t vttt ettt et et e et e e e (194.3) (7.8) (7.3)
SEK NOtes—NON-CUITENT . . . .o\ttt ettt et e i e (38.4) (40.8) —
SEK NOteS—CUITENt . . . . ..ottt e e e (1.2) (1.3) —
2021 NOtES—NON-CUITENL . . . oo\t ettt e et et e et e et e (140.6) — —
2021 NOES—CUITENL . . .\t vttt ettt et et e e e e e (1.8) — —
Friendly Finance Notes—non-current . ................coovuiuenenen... (2.8) — —
Loans from related parties—non-current .. .............coovuvuenenen... (0.7) 0.7) (12.6)
Loans from related parties—current .. ............. ... (3.0) 3.0 4.2)
Other 10ans——CUITENt . . ... ... .. e e (10.0) (2.8) —
Other 10ans NON—CUITENT . . . ... ..ottt i e 4.2) — —
Netdebt .. ... ... . . e (239.6) (172.6) (197.9)

Notes:

(1) The proceeds from the offering of the 2019 Notes were primarily used to (i) repurchase the 2015 Notes tendered and not validly
withdrawn in the tender offer for the 2015 Notes and (ii) satisfy and discharge any 2015 Notes not so tendered or repurchased (the “2015
Notes Defeasance”). The 2015 Notes Defeasance was completed in August 2014, hence this amount is not included in 2014 net debt.

OTHER FINANCIAL DATA
Year ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014
(EUR millions)

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA:
Profit for the period ........ .. ... .. 63.2 64.1 46.3
Provision for corporate income taxX . ...............veniiiinninaan.. 17.8 15.7 11.6
INEEIESt EXPENSE . . o vttt ettt 38.7 28.7 23.8
Depreciation and amortization .. ............c.iuiii i 5.1 1.6 0.9
EBITDA . . 1249 110.0 82.6
Adjustments(D ... 12.5 8.6 7.6
Adjusted EBITDA .. ... ... . . . 137.4 118.6 90.2
Notes:

(1) Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure that represents EBITDA (profit for the period plus tax, plus interest expense, plus depreciation
and amortization) as adjusted by income/loss from discontinued operations, non-cash gains and losses attributable to movement in the
mark-to-market valuation of hedging obligations under IFRS, goodwill write-offs and certain other one-off or non-cash items. Adjusted
EBITDA, as presented in this Offering Memorandum, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures that are reported by other
companies due to differences in the way that these measures are calculated.

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
(EUR millions)
Summary breakdown of Adjustments to EBITDA
Discontinued Operations . . .. ......uut ettt — 5.9) 2.7
Neteffect of FX hedging ......... .. . 7.3 7.0 39
One-off costs and other prescribed adjustments ......................... 5.2 7.5 0.9
Total . . ... 12.5 8.6 7.6
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Net loans portfolio (in Euro millions)® .. ........ ... ... ... ...
Capital/assets ratio® ... ... ...t
Capital/net loan portfolio® . ...............................
Interest coverage™ .. ... ... ..
Adjusted EBITDA margin® . ........ ... ...
Profit margin®© . ... .. ... . ...
Return on average equity™ . ........ ... ...
Return on average assets® . ........ .. ... ... . i
Operating expenses/interest income ratio® ....................
Net impairment to revenue ratio® ... ... ... ... ... .. ......
Non-performing loans as a share of value of loans issuedD . ... ..
TBI capital adequacy ratio . ...........couiuinininnnnenenan.
Bank of Bulgaria statutory minimum capital adequacy requirement

Notes:

()
(@)
(3)
“
5
©)
(@)
®)
©)

Gross loan portfolio less provisions for bad debts.

Total equity/total assets. Adjusted for effect of 2015 Notes Defeasance in 2014.
Total equity/net loan portfolio.

Adjusted EBITDA/interest expense.

Adjusted EBITDA/interest income.

Profit before tax/interest income.

As of
December 31,
2016 2015 2014
493.9 308.3 241.4
25% 40% 35%
47% 56% 47%
3.6x 4.1x 3.8x
35% 37% 41%
21% 23% 28%
31% 41% 55%
9% 14% 16%
48% 42% 36%
23% 24% 25%
9.3% 9.0% 8.8%
22.3% 19.5% 18.1%
13.5% 13.5% 13.5%

Profit from continuing operations/average equity (sum of total equity as of the start and end of each period divided by two).
Profit from continuing operations/average assets (sum of total assets as of the start and end of each period divided by two).

General administrative expenses/interest income.

(10) Net impairment losses on loans and receivables/interest income.
(11) Non-performing loans with a delay of over 90 days/value of loans issued. The value of loans issued represents loans issued for the
two-year period before commencement of the 90 day past-due period, e.g., for December 31, 2016: October 1, 2014 to September 30,

2016.
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RISK FACTORS

Investing in the Notes involves a high degree of risk. Prospective investors should carefully consider each of
the risks described below, together with all of the other information in this Offering Memorandum, before
making any investment decision relating to the Notes. The occurrence of any of the following events could have a
material adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition and impair our
ability to fulfill our obligations in respect of the Notes, potentially causing a loss of all or part of the investment
made when purchasing the Notes.

Prospective investors should note that the risks described below are not the only risks we face. We have
described only the risks we consider to be material. However, there may be additional risks that we currently
consider not to be material or of which we are not currently aware, and any of these risks could have the effects
set forth above.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS

We have a limited operating history in an evolving industry, which makes it difficult to evaluate our future
prospects and may increase the risk that we will not be successful

We have a limited operating history in an evolving industry that may not develop as expected. Assessing our
business and future prospects is challenging in light of the risks and difficulties we may encounter. These risks
and difficulties include our ability to:

e increase the number and total volume of loans we extend to our customers, while managing our credit
risk;

e improve the terms on which we lend to our customers as our business becomes more efficient;
e increase the effectiveness of our direct marketing;

* increase repeat borrowing;

e successfully develop and deploy new products;

e favorably compete with other companies that are currently in, or may in the future enter, the business
of consumer lending;

e successfully navigate economic conditions and fluctuations in credit markets;
o effectively manage the growth of our business;

e respond to regulatory developments;

e successfully integrate new acquisitions; and

e successfully expand our business into new markets.

We may not be able to successfully address these risks and difficulties, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

We may face difficulties in assessing the credit risk of potential borrowers

Despite our credit scoring model, we may be unable to correctly evaluate the current financial condition of
each prospective customer and determine his or her creditworthiness. See “Business—Underwriting and Review.”
Our lending decisions are based partly on information provided to us by loan applicants. Prospective customers
may fraudulently provide us with inaccurate information upon which, if not alerted to the fraud, we may base our
credit scoring. Any failure to correctly assess the credit risk of potential customers, due to failure in our
evaluation of the customer or incorrect information fraudulently provided by the customer, may have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows and may even
invoke regulatory sanctions (including imposition of fines and penalties, suspension of operations, or revocation
of our licenses) as is the case in Sweden and Latvia, where a failure to comply with mandatory affordability
checks may result in regulatory penalties.

We utilize a variety of credit scoring criteria, monitor the performance of our loan portfolio and maintain an
allowance for estimated losses on loans and advances (including interest fees) at a level estimated to be adequate

to absorb expected credit losses. As of December 31, 2016, our portfolio of non-performing loans was
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EUR 196.6 million, which represented 9.3% of the value of loans issued (excluding any issued loans that have
been extended) between October 1, 2014 and September 30, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, non-performing
loans represented 41.5% of total gross loans outstanding, our impairment allowance was EUR 157.6 million
(covering 80.2% of non-performing loans) and our loss given default rate (i.e., the share of loans and receivables
lost in the event of default) was 57.0%. As of December 31, 2015, non-performing loans represented 36.9% of
total loans outstanding, the impairment allowance was EUR 92.9 million (covering 74.6% of the non-performing
loans) and our loss given default rate was 53.0%. Our allowances for doubtful debts are estimates and if
circumstances or risks arise that we do not identify or anticipate when developing our credit scoring model, the
level of our non-performing loans and write-offs could be greater than expected. Actual loan losses may
materially exceed the level of our allowance for impairment losses, which may have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

In addition, factors beyond our control, such as the impact of macroeconomic trends, political events or
adverse events affecting our key jurisdictions, or natural disasters, may result in an increase in non-performing
loans. Our allowances for doubtful debts may not be adequate to cover an increase in the amount of
non-performing loans or any future deterioration in the overall credit quality of our total loan portfolio. If the
quality of our total loan portfolio deteriorates, we may be required to increase our allowances for doubtful debts,
which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or
cash flows.

Our business is highly regulated, and if we fail to comply with existing or newly introduced applicable laws,
regulations, rules and guidance, we may be subject to fines, penalties or limitations, have to exit certain
markets or be restricted from carrying out certain operations

Our operations are subject to regulation by a variety of consumer protection, financial services and other
state authorities in various jurisdictions, including, but not limited to, laws and regulations relating to consumer
loans and consumer rights protection, debt collection and personal data processing. See “Regulatory
Framework.” National and international regulations, as well as plaintiff bars, the media and consumer advocacy
groups, have subjected our industry to intense scrutiny in recent years. Failure to comply with existing laws and
regulations applicable to our operations, or to obtain and comply with all authorizations and permits required for
our operations, or adverse findings of governmental inspections, may result in the imposition of material fines or
penalties or more severe sanctions, including preventing us from continuing substantial parts of our business
activities, suspension or revocation of our licenses, or in criminal penalties being imposed on our officers.

In several of the jurisdictions where we operate, we also face risks related to the acquisition of licenses to
conduct consumer lending services. We are dependent on the authorities to grant us such required licenses, and in
some jurisdictions the licenses are subject to renewal procedures. See “Regulatory Framework.” If we fail to
comply with the laws and regulations applicable to our business, it may result in us not being able to renew our
consumer lending license in one or several jurisdictions. Local regulators may also suspend existing licenses
temporarily or revoke them permanently. For example, on December 18, 2015, the Bank of Lithuania removed
UAB 4finance from the Public List of Consumer Credit Providers in Lithuania and suspended further issuance of
consumer credit, alleging that it had violated certain consumer lending regulations with respect to its
performance of customer solvency assessments. Pursuant to the Bank of Lithuania’s decision, UAB 4finance,
which accounted for approximately 11% of our revenue in 2015, was prevented from providing new consumer
loans (effective December 18, 2015), although it was able to continue to service existing customers until such
time that the products with such existing customers mature or terminate. In response to this development, we
restructured our Lithuanian operations (including dismissing UAB 4finance’s general director) so that we may
continue to service new customers. On January 23, 2016, we restarted lending services in Lithuania. Despite
these steps taken, there can be no assurance that the Bank of Lithuania will not require us in the future to carry
out potentially burdensome and/or costly, initiatives in connection with our relaunch of activities in Lithuania.

Governments may seek to impose new laws, regulatory restrictions or licensing requirements that affect the
products or services we offer, the terms on which we offer them, and the disclosure, compliance and reporting
obligations we must fulfill in connection with our business. For example, a proposal recently adopted by the
Polish parliament seeks to oblige creditors and intermediaries to apply for entry into a specified registry in order
to conduct operations. If such proposal becomes law, as it currently stands, we will be required to apply for such
registration. See “Regulatory Framework.” Governments may also interpret or enforce existing requirements in
new ways that could restrict our ability to continue our current methods of operation, including the development
of our scoring models, or to expand operations or impose significant additional compliance costs on us. In some
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cases these measures could even directly limit or prohibit some or all of our current business activities in certain
jurisdictions, or render them unprofitable and/or impractical to continue. In addition, they could require us to
refund interest and result in a determination that certain loans are not collectable and could cause damage to our
brand and our valued customer relationships.

In recent years, short-term consumer loan products (similar to those we offer) have come under increased
media and regulatory scrutiny. Certain consumer advocacy groups and regulators have advocated that laws and
regulations should be tightened so as to severely limit, if not eliminate, the type of loan products and services we
offer. The national governments in countries where we operate have introduced or considered introducing
legislation that could, among other things, place a cap on the interest or fees that we can charge, a cap on default
interest, a cap on the effective annual percentage rate (“APR”) that limits the amount of interest or fees that may
be charged or a cap on the total cost of credit. For example, in Finland and Bulgaria, interest rate caps were
introduced in 2013 and 2014, respectively. In the first quarter of 2016, caps on interest rates or the total cost of
credit were introduced in Latvia, Lithuania and Poland, and caps on APR, default interest and prepayment
premiums were introduced in Georgia during the first quarter of 2017. In addition, a proposal is currently being
considered by the government in Poland that would significantly reduce the caps on credit costs other than
interest, which may have a material adverse effect on our profitability in Poland. See “Regulatory Framework.”
Such legislation may be introduced in other jurisdictions as well. In Lithuania, regulators have introduced a
requirement to conduct affordability checks, requiring lenders, such as ourselves, to carry out additional
diligence to ensure potential consumers can afford to take out loans; this may impede our ability to issue loans as
quickly as we would like. National legislatures have also considered banning or limiting certain types of loan
renewals or extensions (where the customer agrees to pay the current finance charge on a loan for the right to
make payment of the outstanding principal balance of such loan at a later date plus an additional finance charge)
and the rates to be charged for such loan renewals or extensions, which, if they become law, may require us to
offer our customers extended payment plans, limit origination fees for advances, require changes to our
underwriting or collections practices, require short-term lenders to be bonded or require lenders to report
consumer loan activity to databases designed to monitor or restrict consumer borrowing activity or impose
“cooling off” periods between the time a loan is paid off and another loan is obtained. Moreover, in the last
quarter of 2016, the Lithuanian regulator mandated that borrowers, who (i) are declared incapable, (ii) have a
limited capacity, or (iii) who need assistance in taking decisions, are discharged from all outstanding obligations
against consumer credit providers (for example from repaying the principal, interests, default interest and any
other fees) unless the consumer credit provider evidences that the credit agreement was concluded with the
permission of the legal representative of the borrower. We are considering introducing direct debit servicing,
which would allow consumers of Installment Loans to set up automatic repayment dates. If we introduce such
service, we may become subject to laws and restrictions regulating direct debit transactions.

Any of the above factors may impede our ability to conduct our operations, force us to relocate existing
operations or force us to exit key jurisdictions and therefore may have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Our purchase of TBI Bank has exposed us to additional regulatory burdens

In addition, following the acquisition of TBI Bank (see “Business—Overview”), the Group became exposed
to new, or to changes in existing, laws or regulations in the banking sector, including the interpretation and
application thereof. For example, on 26 June 2013, the Basel III provisions were transposed on a European level
through amendment to a directive (the Capital Requirements Directive IV, as amended—the “CRD IV”) and a
new regulation (the Capital Requirements Regulation, as amended—the “CRR”). The CRD IV and CRR
encompass the new definitions of categories of capital, the increase in capital requirements, the implementation
of liquidity requirements and a leverage ratio, the new calculation of counterparty risks, the introduction of
capital buffers and the adoption of special rules relating to systemically important financial institutions. As of
1 January 2014, the CRR is directly applicable to all credit institutions and investment firms as defined under
CRR within the European Union. Furthermore, the provisions implementing the CRD IV into Bulgarian law and
the national discretions of CRR and CRD IV as implemented in the Bulgarian Law on Credit Institutions are also
applicable as of 1 January 2014. As of 1 October 2016, a new European Central Bank (ECB) Regulation through
which ECB exercises certain national discretions contained in CRR, CRD IV and delegated acts with regard to
significant euro-area institutions will be applicable to the TBI Bank. In addition, draft legislation proposing to
decrease the statutory penalty interest rate is currently pending before the Bulgarian parliament. The draft
amendment was approved on its first hearing in the Bulgarian parliament, however due to the resignation of the
government and the dismissal of the parliament the second hearing has been delayed until a new parliament has
been elected. The elections are scheduled for March 2017. The draft amendment will become effective, if it is
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approved by the new parliament on its second hearing. Such and other regulatory changes may significantly
impact the capital resources and requirements of TBI Bank and, therefore, could have a material adverse effect
on the Group’s business, results of operations and financial condition, thereby potentially affecting the Group by
requiring it to enter into business transactions which are not otherwise part of its current group strategy,
restricting the type or volume of transactions the Group may enter into, set limits on or require the modification
of rates or fees that the Group charges on loans or other financial products, the Group may also be faced with
increased compliance costs and material limitations on its ability to pursue business opportunities, which may, in
turn, have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash
flows.

Our business is subject to complex and evolving laws and regulations regarding privacy, data protection, and
other matters

Our business is subject to a variety of laws and regulations internationally that involve user privacy issues,
data protection, advertising, marketing, disclosures, distribution, electronic contracts and other communications,
consumer protection and online payment services. The introduction of new products or the expansion of our
activities in certain jurisdictions may subject us to additional laws and regulations. In addition, the application
and interpretation of these laws and regulations are often uncertain, particularly in the new and rapidly evolving
e-commerce industry in which we operate, and may be interpreted and applied inconsistently from country to
country and may also be inconsistent with our current or past policies and practices. A number of proposals are
pending before legislative and regulatory bodies that could significantly affect our business. For example, in
January 2012, the European Commission proposed a new Data Protection Regulation that was adopted in 2016
(Regulation (EU) 2016/679) and will replace the existing Data Protection Directive (Directive 95/46/EC) as from
May 25, 2018. The Data Protection Regulation expands the scope of the operational requirements that companies
receiving personal data must follow, and, as with the Data Protection Directive, imposes significant penalties for
non-compliance. In October 2015, the Court of Justice of the European Union adopted a decision that invalidated
the U.S./EU Safe Harbor framework that had facilitated the transfer of personal data from the EU to the U.S. This
decision will increase the cost and complexity of the transfer of personal data to the U.S. and the use of U.S.-
based services that involve personal data, as well as heighten the risk of fines and penalties related to the transfer
of such personal data. There is also risk of fines and penalties in case of non-compliance. Although the European
Commission negotiated a new framework for cross-border transfers of personal data with the U.S. Government,
the Privacy Shield Framework announced in July 2016, its stability and reliability, which is particularly
important for us since one of our main data recovery centers is located in the U.S., is uncertain and cannot be
guaranteed. In particular, the new framework may face further challenges before the Court of Justice of the
European Union, initiated both by European regulators and consumer groups. In addition, some countries have
adopted or are considering legislation requiring local storage and processing of data that, if enacted, would
increase the cost and complexity of delivering our services. Existing and proposed laws and regulations can be
costly to comply with and can delay or impede the development of new products, the expansion into new
markets, result in negative publicity, increase our operating costs, require significant management time and
attention, and subject us to inquiries or investigations, claims or other remedies, including demands which may
require us to modify or cease existing business practices and/or pay fines, penalties or other damages. This may
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Although we continuously educate our employees on applicable laws and regulations in relation to privacy,
data protection and other matters, we cannot guarantee that our employees will comply at all times with such
laws and regulations. If our employees fail to comply with such laws and regulations in the future, we may
become subject to fines or other penalties which may have a negative impact on our reputation and may have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Failure to comply with anti-money laundering laws could have an adverse effect on our reputation and
business

We are subject to anti-money laundering laws and related compliance obligations in most of the
jurisdictions in which we do business. We have put in place an anti-money laundering policy and procedures for
the Group (including employee trainings) which we apply in all of our countries of operation. We have also
adopted local anti-money laundering policies in those jurisdictions where it is required under local law to do so
and in certain other jurisdictions. However, these policies may not prevent all possible breaches of law. Country
managers in each jurisdiction are responsible for money laundering prevention and compliance. As a financial
institution, we are required to comply with anti-money laundering regulations that are generally less restrictive
than those that apply to banks. As a result, we often rely on anti-money laundering checks performed by our
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customers’ banks when such customers open new bank accounts. Our ability to continually comply with anti-
money laundering laws may be affected by legislative changes. For example, by June 26, 2017, member states of
the European Union are obliged to introduce legislation that implements the new anti-money laundering directive
(Directive (EU) 2015/849). This new directive may also be further changed, and in July 2016, the European
Commission put forward an amendment proposal (the timing for adoption of which is uncertain). To ensure our
compliance with the new directive, we have updated our anti-money laundering compliance procedures,
including relevant software implementation, in 12 of the jurisdictions in which we operate, and expect to have
such procedures updated in the remaining four jurisdictions by June 2017. While the amendment proposal, in its
current form, is not expected to have a material adverse impact on our business, there can be no assurance that
the substance of the proposal will not change or that other amendments will not be proposed, which would have a
material impact on our operations. If we are not in compliance with relevant anti-money laundering laws
(including as a result of relying on deficient checks carried out by our customers’ banks), we may be subject to
criminal and civil penalties and other remedial measures, such as cessation of business or license revocation. Any
penalties, remedial measures or investigations into any potential violations of anti-money laundering laws could
harm our reputation and may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations, prospects or cash flows.

We are dependent upon our information technology systems to conduct our business operations

Our operations are significantly dependent on highly complex information technology (“IT”) systems. The
loan underwriting process is mainly performed automatically by IT systems developed internally by us and used
at various stages of the underwriting process, including customer registration, application, identification and
credit scoring. See “Business—Information Technology.” In addition, bank transfers are completed online and
reminder emails and invoicing are automatically processed and sent to customers. If any IT system at any stage
of the loan underwriting process were to fail, any or all stages of the underwriting process could be affected and
customer access to our websites and products could be disrupted. Any disruption in our IT systems would
prevent customers from applying for loans, which would hinder our ability to conduct business and have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

In addition, IT systems are vulnerable to a number of problems, including computer viruses, unauthorized
access, physical damage to vital IT centers and software or hardware malfunctions. Any interruption in, or
security breach of, our IT systems, could have a material adverse effect on our operations, such as the ability to
serve our customers in a timely manner, accurately record financial data and protect us and our customers from
financial fraud or theft. If our operations are compromised, our reputation and client confidence in our business
may deteriorate and we may suffer significant financial losses, any of which may have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Moreover, our IT strategy is based on utilizing, in our view, the most sophisticated technologies and
solutions available on the market. Therefore, we intend to continue making substantial investments in our IT
systems (in 2016 alone, having invested EUR 43.8 million, of which EUR 22.2 million, or 11.6% of total cost,
was expensed in the income statement, and the remaining EUR 21.6 million was capitalized as intangible assets,
representing product and platform development) and to adapt our operations and software to support current and
future growth. We are required to continually upgrade our global IT system, and any failure to carry out such
upgrades efficiently may result in the loss or impairment of our ability to do business or in additional remedial
expense. In addition, there can be no assurance that we will be able to keep up to date with the most recent
technological developments due to financial or technical limitations. Any inability to successfully develop or
complete planned upgrades of our IT systems and infrastructure or to adapt our operations and software may
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Rapid growth and expansion may place significant strain on our managerial and operational resources and
could be costly

We have experienced substantial growth and development in a relatively short period of time, including the
two recent acquisitions of Friendly Finance and TBI Bank, and our business may continue to grow substantially
in the future. This growth has placed and may continue to place significant demands on our management and our
operational and financial infrastructure. Since the beginning of 2014, we have introduced new products in
existing jurisdictions and have expanded into new jurisdictions. Expanding our products or entering into new
jurisdictions with new or existing products can be costly and may require significant management time and
attention. The acquisition of TBI Bank, in particular, may be specifically challenging due to the need to integrate
a regulated entity into a nonbank financial group. Additionally, as our operations grow in size, scope and
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complexity and our product offerings increase, we will need to upgrade our systems and infrastructure to offer an
increasing number of customers enhanced solutions, features and functionality. The expansion of our systems
and infrastructure will require us to commit substantial financial, operational and technical resources in advance
of an increase in the volume of business, with no assurance that the volume of business will ultimately increase.
Continued growth could also strain our ability to maintain reliable service levels for our customers, develop and
improve our operational, financial and management controls, develop and enhance our legal and compliance
controls and processes, enhance our reporting systems and procedures and recruit, train and retain highly skilled
personnel. Managing our growth will require, among other things, continued development of financial and
management controls and IT systems; increased marketing activities; hiring and training of new personnel; and
the ability to adapt to changes in the markets in which we operate, including changes in legislation, incurrence of
additional taxes, increased competition and changes in the demand for our services. Rapid growth and expansion
may be costly, and may strain our managerial and operational resources; any difficulties encountered in
managing our growth may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations, prospects or cash flows.

The international scope of our operations may contribute to increased costs

We currently operate in 16 jurisdictions and, as part of our business strategy, we aim to continue pursuing
attractive business opportunities in new jurisdictions. Although we analyze and carefully plan our international
expansion, such expansion increases the complexity of our organization and may result in additional
administrative costs (including costs relating to investments in IT), operational risk (including risks relating to
management and control of cash flows and management and control of local personnel), other regulatory risk
(including risks relating to non-compliance with data protection, anti-money laundering and local laws and
regulations) and other challenges in managing our business. Any unforeseen changes or mistakes in planning or
controlling our operations in these respects may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

The continued expansion of our loan portfolio depends, to an increasing extent, upon our ability to obtain
adequate funding

Our growth depends, to a significant extent, on our ability to obtain adequate funding from a variety of
sources such as the international capital markets and bank facilities. It is possible that these sources of financing
may not be available in the future in the amounts we require, or they may be prohibitively expensive and/or
contain overly onerous terms. European and international credit markets have experienced high volatility and
severe liquidity disruptions, such as those that took place following the international financial and economic
crisis in 2008-09, and more recently, the European sovereign debt crisis. These and other related events have had
a significant impact on the global financial system and capital markets, and may make it increasingly expensive
for us to diversify our funding sources and refinance our debt if necessary. Increased funding costs or greater
difficulty in diversifying our funding sources may negatively impact our ability to sufficiently finance the
expansion of our business operations, which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

We may make acquisitions or pursue business combinations that prove unsuccessful or strain or divert our
resources

Our growth strategy depends, in part, on the acquisition of existing businesses, including possible
competitors. For example, in 2016, we expanded into new jurisdictions through the purchases of Friendly
Finance and TBIF Group, and in 2015 into Armenia and Argentina through the purchase of local enterprises. We
expect to continue growing our business by acquiring or combining with other businesses. Successful growth
through future acquisitions is dependent upon our ability to identify suitable acquisition targets, conduct
appropriate due diligence, negotiate transactions on favorable terms and ultimately complete such transactions
and integrate the acquired business into our existing network. If we make acquisitions, there can be no assurance
that we will be able to generate expected margins or cash flows or to realize the anticipated benefits of such
acquisitions, including growth or expected synergies. There can be no assurance that our assessments of and
assumptions regarding acquisition targets will prove to be correct, and actual developments may differ
significantly from our expectations. Integration risks are particularly high when entering a new market due to the
time associated with establishing an appropriate credit scoring model and an effective collection system. We may
not be able to integrate acquisitions successfully into our business or such integration may require more
investment than we expect, particularly if acquisitions are in regions or areas of business where we do not
currently have operations, and we could incur or assume unknown or unanticipated liabilities or contingencies
with respect to customers, employees, suppliers, government authorities or other parties, which may impact our
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results of operations. The process of integrating businesses may be disruptive to our operations and may cause an
interruption of, or a loss of momentum in, such businesses or a deterioration in our results of operations.
Moreover, any acquisition may result in the incurrence of additional debt. All of these factors may have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Damage to our reputation and brand or a deterioration in the quality of our service may impede our ability to
attract new customers and retain existing customers

Our ability to attract new customers and retain existing customers depends in part on our brand recognition
and our reputation for and delivery of high quality services. Our reputation and brand may be harmed if we
encounter difficulties in the provision of new or existing services, whether due to technical difficulties, changes
to our traditional product offerings, financial difficulties, regulatory sanctions, or for any other reason. Damage
to our reputation and brand, or a deterioration in the quality of our service, may have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

The introduction of our new products and services may not be successful

As part of our business strategy, we may develop and introduce products and services that complement our
current lending proposition. For example, in September 2015, we launched our new product, Line of Credit, in
Finland, later launched also in Latvia. However, we cannot guarantee these pilot products will be developed into
permanent product offerings or that we will launch any other new products. We can also offer no assurance that
any products or services that we introduce will be successful once they are offered to our current or future
customers. We may not be able to adequately anticipate our target customers’ needs or desires, which could
change over time rendering certain of our products and services obsolete. We may face difficulties in making
these products and services profitable and may incur significant costs in connection with such products.
Moreover, our introduction of additional financial products or services could subject us to additional regulation
or regulatory oversight by governmental authorities. Any of these factors may have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Negative public perception of our business could cause demand for our products to significantly decrease

In recent years, there has been an increase in negative media coverage relating to short-term and single-payment
loans of the type we offer. Certain consumer advocacy groups, as well as politicians and government officials in
various jurisdictions where we operate, have advocated governmental action designed to prohibit higher cost
consumer loans or place severe restrictions on the activities of short-term consumer lenders such as ourselves.
The fees and/or interest charged by us and others in the industry attract media publicity about the industry and
can be perceived as controversial. The negative characterization of these types of loans and lending practices
could lead to more restrictive or adverse legislative or regulatory changes, which, in turn, may have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows. See “—Our
business is highly regulated, and if we fail to comply with existing or newly introduced applicable laws,
regulations, rules and guidance, we may be subject to fines, penalties or limitations, have to exit certain markets
or be restricted from carrying out certain operations.”

In addition, our ability to attract and retain customers is highly dependent upon the success of our marketing
campaigns and public reputation, including perceptions of our customer service, integrity, business practices and
financial condition. Restrictions on our ability to advertise our products or negative perceptions or publicity
regarding short-term lending in general—even if related to seemingly isolated incidents or to practices not
specific to short-term loans, such as debt collection—could erode trust and confidence in us and damage our
reputation among existing and potential customers, which could make it difficult for us to maintain or expand our
customer base or could reduce the demand for our products and services, both of which may have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

If internet search engine providers change their methodologies for organic rankings or paid search results, or
our organic rankings or paid search results decline for other reasons, our ability to attract new customers or
to expand the volume of business from returning customers could be adversely affected

Our acquisition marketing for new customers and our relationship management with respect to returning
customers are partly dependent on search engines, such as Google, Bing, Yahoo! and others, directing a
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significant amount of traffic to our desktop and mobile websites via organic ranking and paid search advertising.
Our competitors’ paid search activities may result in their sites receiving higher paid search results than ours and/
or in a substantial increase to our advertising costs.

Our paid search activities may not produce (and in the past have not always produced) the results we desire.
Internet search engines often revise their methodologies, which could adversely affect our organic rankings or
paid search results, leading to a decline in our ability to attract new customers or retain existing customers (for
example, in July 2016, Google introduced a global policy update that prevented companies offering online loans
with a term of less than 60 days from using its advertising services). Such revisions may also cause difficulties
for our customers in using our web and mobile sites, or result in more successful organic rankings, paid search
results or tactical execution efforts for our competitors, a slowdown in the overall growth in our customer base
and the loss of existing customers, as well as higher costs for acquiring returning customers. In addition, search
engines could implement policies that restrict the ability of consumer finance companies, such as the Group, to
advertise their services and products, which could reduce the likelihood of companies in our industry appearing
in a prominent location in organic rankings or paid search results when certain search terms are used by the
consumer. Our online marketing efforts are also susceptible to actions by third parties that negatively impact our
search results such as spam link attacks, which are often referred to as ‘black hat’ tactics. Our sites have
experienced meaningful fluctuations in organic rankings and paid search results in the past, and we anticipate
similar fluctuations in the future. Any reduction in the number of consumers directed to our web and mobile sites
may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash
flows.

Our business depends on marketing affiliates to assist us in obtaining new customers

We are dependent on marketing affiliates as a source for new customers. Our marketing affiliates place our
advertisements on their websites, which, in turn, direct potential customers to our websites. As a result, the
success of our business depends substantially on the willingness and ability of marketing affiliates to provide us
customer leads at acceptable prices.

The failure of our marketing affiliates to comply with applicable laws and regulations, or any changes in
laws and regulations applicable to marketing affiliates or changes in the interpretation or implementation of such
laws and regulations, could have an adverse effect on our business and could increase negative perceptions of our
business and industry. Also, certain changes in our online marketing affiliates’ internal policies or privacy rules
could limit our ability to advertise online. Additionally, the use of marketing affiliates could subject us to
additional regulatory cost and expense. Any restriction on our ability to use marketing affiliates may have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Our business depends on services provided by third parties such as banks, local consumer credit agencies, IT
services providers, debt-collection agencies and offline partners

We advance loans to customers, who deliver repayments from local bank accounts. Our continuing
relationships with the banks with which we maintain accounts and with which we may in the future establish
direct debit arrangements are critical to our business.

We contact consumer credit agencies and use other publicly available data sources in the jurisdictions in
which we operate to verify the identity and creditworthiness of potential customers. In addition, every loan
application in every country is verified through one or more credit bureaus. Should access to such information be
restricted or disrupted for any period of time, or if the rates we are charged for access to such information should
significantly increase, we may not be able to complete automatic customer identity and credit scoring checks in a
timely manner or at all. This could impede our ability to process applications and issue loans and/or increase our
cost of operation.

We also outsource certain IT services, such as software development, data center and technical support, to
third-party providers.

Moreover, we generally outsource the collection of debt that is overdue by more than 90 days to debt-
collection agencies in the jurisdictions in which we operate. The loss of a key debt-collection agency
relationship, or the financial failure of one of our core debt-collection agency partners, could restrict our ability
to recover delinquent debt, and there is no guarantee that we could replace a strategic debt-collection agency
partner in a timely manner or on favorable terms.
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In Poland, Latvia, Lithuania, Czech Republic, Bulgaria, Romania, Georgia and Spain, we cooperate with
partners who distribute our products in offline points of sale. See “Business—Underwriting—Olffline partners.”
Our offline partners in these jurisdictions handle certain aspects of our underwriting process, including the
receipt of applications, identity checks and/or cash loan payments to our customers. Although our offline sales
account for a limited part of our income, the continued relationships with our offline partners in Poland, Latvia
and Lithuania play an important role in our ability to attract potential customers in these jurisdictions.

Any inability to maintain existing business relationships with banks, local consumer credit agencies, IT
service providers, debt-collection agencies, offline partners and other third-party providers or the failure by
these third-party providers to maintain the quality of their services or otherwise provide their services to us
may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash
flows.

New top level domain names may allow for the entrance of new competitors or dilution of our brands, which
may reduce the value of our domain name assets

We have invested heavily in promoting our brands, including our website addresses. The Internet
Corporation for Assigned Names and Numbers, the entity responsible for administering internet protocol
addresses, has introduced, and has proposed the introduction of, additional new domain name suffixes in
different formats, many of which may be more attractive than the formats held by us and which may allow the
entrance of new competitors at limited cost. It may also permit other operators to register websites with addresses
similar to ours, causing customer confusion and the dilution of our brands, which could materially adversely
affect our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition. Any defensive domain registration
strategy or attempts to protect our trademarks or brands may be costly and may ultimately prove unsuccessful,
which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or
cash flows.

Changes in our liquidity requirements may adversely affect our liquidity and financial condition

Our liquidity requirements can vary significantly from market to market, depending, in part, on differences
in demand for consumer credit. If our available cash flows from operations are not sufficient to fund our
on-going cash needs, we would be required to look to our cash balances and available credit facilities to satisfy
those needs, as well as potential sources of additional capital. We are, as such, exposed to liquidity risks arising
out of the mismatches between the maturities of our assets and liabilities, which may prevent us from meeting
our obligations in a timely manner. If short- and, in particular, long-term funding from international capital
markets is unavailable or if maturity mismatches between our assets and liabilities occur, this may have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Furthermore, an economic or industry downturn, such as the recent financial and economic downturn in
Europe, could increase the level of non-performing loans. A significant deterioration in our debt collection could
affect our cash flow and working capital position and could also negatively impact the cost or availability of
financing to us.

If our capital resources are insufficient to meet our liquidity requirements, we will have to raise additional
funds. We may not be able to raise sufficient additional funds on terms that are favorable to us, if at all. If we fail
to raise sufficient funds, our ability to fund our operations, take advantage of strategic opportunities or otherwise
respond to competitive pressures could be significantly limited, which may have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows. See also “—The continued expansion
of our loan portfolio depends, to an increasing extent, upon our ability to obtain adequate funding.”

The terms of existing and future financings may impose financial and operating restrictions on us

The terms of existing financings, contain (and the terms of future financings may contain) a number of
customary negative and other covenants, including, restricting our ability to do the following, among other
things:

e incur more debt;

e change our line of business;
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e make dividend payments, stock repurchases and other distributions;
e engage in certain mergers, consolidations and transfers of all or substantially all of our assets;

* make acquisitions of all of the business or assets of, or stock representing beneficial ownership of, any
person;

e dispose of certain assets; and

e incur liens.

These covenants and restrictions could limit our ability to fund future operations or make capital
expenditures, acquisitions or other investments in the future. Any failure to comply with any of the covenants
under our existing and future financings may constitute an event of default under such financings, entitling the
lenders to, among other things, terminate future credit availability, increase the interest rate on outstanding debt
and/or accelerate the maturity of outstanding obligations. See “Risks Related to the Notes—The Indenture
governing the Notes contains restrictions and limitations that could significantly impact our ability to operate
our business” for a description of restrictions under the Indenture governing the Notes. Any such default may
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Our current interest rate spread may decline in the future, which could reduce our profitability

We earn a substantial majority of our revenues from interest payments on the loans we make to our
customers. Bond issuance in the international capital markets and other funding sources provide us with the
capital to fund these loans and lines of credit and charge interest on those borrowings. In the event that the spread
between the rate at which we lend to our customers and the rates at which we raise debt funding or pay our
depositors decreases, our financial results and operating performance will suffer. The interest rates we charge to
our customers and pay to our lenders could each be affected by a variety of factors, including access to capital
based on our business performance, the volume of loans we make to our customers, competition and regulatory
requirements. These interest rates may also be affected by a change over time in the mix of the types of products
we sell to our customers and investors. Interest rate changes may adversely affect our business forecasts and
expectations and are highly sensitive to many macroeconomic factors beyond our control, such as inflation, the
level of economic growth, the state of the credit markets, changes in market interest rates, global economic
disruptions, unemployment and the fiscal and monetary policies of the jurisdictions in which we operate. Any
material reduction in our interest rate spread could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Increasing competition from banks, credit card companies, other consumer lenders and other entities offering
similar financial products and services in the consumer lending market may affect our business and
expansions plans

We have many competitors. We operate both in mature markets with high levels of competition among
consumer lending companies and in less developed markets where the consumer lending industry has not yet
been fully established. Globally, our principal competitors include other online lenders (including peer-to-peer
lenders), credit card companies, consumer loan companies, such as retail chains, and banks and other financial
institutions. See “Business—Competition.” Many banks and other financial institutions, as well as consumer loan
companies that do not currently offer products or services directed towards our traditional customer base, could
begin doing so, or new online lending companies could enter the markets in which we operate.

Our competitors may operate, or begin to operate, under business models less focused on legal and
regulatory compliance, which could put us at a competitive disadvantage. Additionally, negative perceptions of
these business models could cause legislators or regulators to pursue additional industry restrictions that could
affect our business model. To the extent such lending models gain acceptance among consumers and investors or
benefit from less onerous regulatory restrictions than ours, we may be unable to replicate their platforms or
otherwise compete with them effectively, which could cause demand for our products to decline substantially.
We can offer no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully against any or all of our current or future
competitors. As a result, we could lose market share and our revenue could decline, thereby affecting our ability
to generate sufficient cash flow to service our indebtedness or fund our operations.

Significant increases in the number and size of our competitors could result in a decrease in demand for our
online loan products, resulting in a decline in our revenues and earnings. Increased competition or more
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aggressive marketing and pricing practices on the part of our competitors could result in lower revenues, margins
and turnover rates in our operations, which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

A decrease in demand for our financial products and failure by us to adapt to such decrease could result
in a loss of revenues

Our revenue is primarily based on short-term consumer lending. Accordingly, any decrease in demand for
our products could have a significant impact on our revenue. A variety of factors could influence demand for our
products, such as regulatory restrictions that inhibit customer access to particular financial services, increased
availability or attractiveness of competing financial products, changes in consumer sentiment and spending or
borrowing patterns and changes in the financial condition of our customers that cause them to seek loans with
longer maturities and/or of larger size from other lending institutions or, alternatively, to exit the lending market
entirely. Should we fail to adapt to a significant change in customer demand for, or access to, our products and
services, our revenues could decrease significantly and our on-going business operations could be adversely
affected. Even if we do adapt our existing products or introduce new products to meet changing customer
demand, customers may resist or reject such products. The effect of any product diversification or change on the
results of our business may not be fully ascertainable until the change has been in effect for some time. All of
these factors may result in a loss of revenue and may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Potential union activities could have an adverse effect on our relationship with our workforce

None of our employees are currently covered by a collective bargaining agreement or represented by an
employee union. Occasionally we experience union-organizing activities, such as in Spain and Argentina. If our
employees become represented by an employee union or become subject to a collective bargaining agreement, it
may make it more difficult for us to manage our business and to attract and retain new employees and may
increase our cost of doing business. If our employees unionize or sign up to a collective bargaining agreement or
if other labor-related requirements are imposed on us, we may experience work stoppages and incur higher
employee costs, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results
of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Our ability to recover outstanding debt may deteriorate if there is an increase in the number of our consumers
facing personal insolvency procedures

Various economic trends and potential changes to existing legislation may contribute to an increase in the
number of consumers subject to personal insolvency procedures. Under some insolvency procedures, a person’s
assets may be sold to repay creditors; our loans, however, are unsecured, and we are often unable to collect on
such loans. The ability to successfully collect on our loans may decline with an increase in personal insolvency
procedures or a change in insolvency laws, regulations, practices or procedures, which may have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

We may be unable to protect our proprietary technology or keep up with that of our competitors and we may
become subject to intellectual property disputes, which are costly to defend and could harm our business and
operating results

The success of our online and mobile lending business depends to a significant degree upon the protection
of our software and other proprietary intellectual property rights. We may be unable to deter misappropriation or
other unauthorized use of our proprietary information or take appropriate steps to enforce our intellectual
property rights. In addition, competitors could, without violating our proprietary rights, develop technologies that
are as good as or better than our technology. Failure to protect our software and other proprietary intellectual
property rights or to develop technologies that are as good as our competitors’ could put us at a competitive
disadvantage. Any such failures may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results
of operations, prospects or cash flows.

From time to time we face, and we may face in the future, allegations that we have infringed the trademarks,
copyrights, patents or other intellectual property rights of third parties, including from our competitors. Patent
and other intellectual property litigation may be protracted and expensive, and the results are difficult to predict
and may require us to stop offering certain products or product features, acquire licenses which may not be
available at a commercially reasonable price or at all, or modify our products, product features, processes or
websites while we develop non-infringing substitutes. Such events may have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.
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We are subject to cyber security risks and security breaches and may incur increasing costs in an effort to
minimize those risks and respond to cyber incidents

Our business involves the storage and transmission of consumers’ proprietary information, and security
breaches could expose us to a risk of loss or misuse of this information, litigation and potential liability. We are
entirely dependent on the secure operation of our websites and systems, and the websites and systems of our data
center providers, as well as on the operation of the internet generally. While we experience cyber-attacks or
security breaches from time to time, we have incurred no material cyber-attacks or security breaches to date; a
number of other companies have disclosed cyber-attacks and security breaches, some of which have involved
intentional attacks. Attacks may be targeted at us, our customers and/or our data center providers. Although we
and our data center providers devote resources to maintain and regularly upgrade our systems and processes that
are designed to protect the security of our computer systems, software, networks and other technology assets and
the confidentiality, integrity and availability of information belonging to us and our customers, there is no
assurance that these security measures will provide absolute security. Despite our efforts to ensure the integrity
of our systems and our data center providers’ efforts to ensure the integrity of their systems, effective preventive
measures against all security breaches may not be anticipated or implemented, especially because the techniques
used change frequently or are not recognized until launched, and because cyber-attacks can originate from a wide
variety of sources, including third parties outside the Group such as persons who are involved with organized
crime or associated with external service providers or who may be linked to terrorist organizations or hostile
foreign governments. These risks may increase in the future as we continue to increase our mobile and other
internet-based product offerings and expand our internal usage of web-based products and applications or expand
into new countries. If an actual or perceived breach of security occurs, customer and/or supplier perception of the
effectiveness of our security measures could be harmed and could result in the loss of customers, suppliers or
both. Actual or anticipated attacks and risks may cause us to incur increased costs, including costs to deploy
additional personnel and protection technologies, train employees or engage third party experts and consultants.

A successful penetration or circumvention of our security systems or the security system of our data center
providers could cause serious negative consequences to our business, including significant disruption of our
operations, misappropriation of our confidential information or that of our customers or damage to our computers
or systems or those of our customers and counterparties, and could result in violations of applicable privacy and
other laws, financial loss to us or to our customers, loss of confidence in our security measures, customer
dissatisfaction, significant litigation exposure and reputational harm, all of which could have a material adverse
effect on us. In addition, most of our applicants provide personal information, including bank account
information when applying for consumer loans. We rely on encryption and authentication technology licensed
from third parties to provide the security and authentication to effectively secure transmission of confidential
information, including customer bank account and other personal information. Advances in computer
capabilities, new discoveries in the field of cryptography or other developments may result in the breach or
compromise of the technology used by us to protect transaction data. Data breaches can also occur as a result of
non-technical issues.

Our servers are also vulnerable to computer viruses, physical or electronic break-ins, and similar
disruptions, including “denial-of-service” type attacks. We may need to expend significant resources to protect
against security breaches or to address problems caused by breaches. Security breaches that result in the
unauthorized release of consumers’ personal information could damage our reputation and expose us to a risk of
loss or litigation and possible liability. In addition, many of the third parties who provide products, services or
support to us could also experience any of the cyber risks or security breaches described above, which could
impact our customers and our business and could result in a loss of customers, suppliers or revenue.

Any of these events could result in a loss of revenue and may have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Our success is dependent upon our executive officers and employees and our ability to attract and retain
qualified employees

Our success depends on our executive officers and employees who possess highly specialized knowledge
and experience in IT and the development of the consumer lending business. Many members of our senior
management team possess significant experience in the consumer lending industry and knowledge of the
regulatory and legal environments in the markets in which we operate, and we believe that our senior
management would be difficult to replace. The market for qualified individuals is highly competitive and labor
costs for the hiring and training of new employees are increasing. Accordingly, although we provide our
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executives and specialists with competitive compensation packages, including participation in the LTIP we may
not be able to attract and/or retain qualified executive officers or IT specialists, which may have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

The preparation of our financial statements under IFRS and certain tax positions taken by us require the
Jjudgment of management, and we could be subject to risks associated with these judgments or could be
adversely affected by the implementation of new, or changes in the interpretation of existing, accounting
principles, financial reporting requirements or tax rules

We prepare our financial statements in accordance with IFRS. IFRS and its interpretations are subject to
change over time. If new rules or interpretations of existing rules require us to change our financial reporting, our
results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected, and we could be required to
restate historical financial reporting.

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the board of directors and
other management personnel to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the dates of the consolidated financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. It also requires our
board of directors and other management personnel to exercise their judgment in the application of our
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the Financial Statements, are described in “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Results of Operations—Discussion of Critical Accounting Policies.” There is a risk that such
estimates, assumptions or judgments by the board of directors and other management personnel do not correctly
reflect the actual financial position of the Group.

In addition, management’s judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes, the levels of
deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance recorded against deferred tax assets, along with
our approach to matters concerning withholding tax and value added tax. We regularly assess the adequacy of
our tax provisions. If required, we also seek advice from external tax advisors. There can be no assurance as to
the outcome of these decisions, or to the quality of advice we receive. From time to time, we may become subject
to tax audits in the jurisdictions in which we operate. Furthermore, the tax laws and regulations, including the
interpretation and enforcement thereof, in the jurisdictions in which we operate may be subject to change. As a
result, we may face increases in taxes payable if tax rates increase, or if tax laws or regulations are modified in an
adverse manner. Any additional or increased tax payments may have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

We are subject to impairment risk

Our loan portfolio is subject to the risk of impairment. We examine each of our delinquency buckets
separately for impairment on a monthly basis and we apply a formula for assessing net impairment losses for
each reporting period. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial
Condition—Discussion of Critical Accounting Policies—Impairment.”

In relation to our growth, our net impairment charges have increased substantially in recent years. In the
year ended December 31, 2016, we recorded a net impairment charge of EUR 89.7 million, substantially higher
than the impairment charge of EUR 77.0 million taken in the year ended December 31, 2015. In the year ended
December 31, 2014, our net impairment charge was EUR 54.2 million (of which EUR 13.5 million represented
loan write-offs). Non-performing loans represented 41.5%, 36.9% and 34.2%, respectively, of online gross loans
outstanding as of December 2016, 2015 and 2014. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Operations and Financial Condition—Results of Operations.” Most of this increase in impairment charges is
attributable to our rapid expansion in existing and new jurisdictions in recent years (with the remaining increase
due to an increase in the scale of our operations). As we plan to continue expanding our operations in the future,
particularly in new jurisdictions, there is a risk that our impairment charges will continue to rise. We continue to
monitor relevant circumstances, including consumer levels, general economic conditions and the market prices
for our products, and the potential impact that such circumstances might have on the valuation of our assets. It is
possible that changes in such circumstances, or in the numerous variables associated with our judgments,
assumptions and estimates made in assessing the appropriate valuation of assets, could in the future require us to
further reduce our assets and record related non-cash impairment charges. If we are required to record additional
impairment charges, this may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations, prospects or cash flows.
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Our operations in various countries subject us to foreign exchange risk

We operate in various jurisdictions and provide loan products in local currencies, including the Euro (in
Finland, Spain, Latvia and Lithuania), the Bulgarian Lev, the Czech Koruna, the Danish Krone, the Georgian
Lari, the Polish Zloty, the Swedish Krona, the Armenian Dram, the Mexican Peso, the Romanian Leu and the
Argentine Peso. Thus, our results of operations are exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuations. As of
December 31, 2016, 71.0% of our net loans and advances due from customers were denominated in non-Euro
currencies and none was denominated in the US Dollar. Our liabilities are mainly composed of loans and
borrowings denominated in US Dollars, Swedish Kronor, and Euro, with US Dollar-denominated loans
accounting for 48.9% of our liabilities as of December 31, 2016. Therefore, we are subject to certain shifts in
currency valuations, namely, the depreciation against the US Dollar (and against the Euro, our reporting
currency) of the other currencies in which we extend loans and advances and the depreciation of the Euro against
the US Dollar. Although we have entered into a cross-currency swap and several forward agreements with related
parties as a hedge against the depreciation of the US Dollar against the Euro, such hedging has not provided us
with 100% coverage, nor has it protected us from fluctuations in the Euro value of our other operating currencies.
We have also entered into certain option agreements as a hedge against the fluctuation of the Polish Zloty,
Georgian Lari, and Czech Koruna. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and
Financial Condition—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Risk Management—Currency risk.” Any
failure to manage foreign exchange risk may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

If we fail to geographically diversify and expand our operations and customer base, our business may be
adversely affected

Several countries in which we operate, such as Georgia, Latvia, Lithuania, Poland and Spain, generate a
significant share of our revenues. In addition, following the acquisition of TBI Bank, a significant share of our
assets will be represented by loans granted to borrowers in Bulgaria and Romania. As a result, we are exposed to
country-specific risks with respect to such national markets. In such markets, a dissatisfaction with our products,
a revocation of our operating license, a decrease in customer demand, a failure to successfully market our new
and existing products or the failure to further expand our customer base and retain our existing customer base
may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash
flows. While we continue to seek opportunities to expand our operations into new markets, such as our recent
entry into Armenia, Argentina, Mexico, Romania, and the Dominican Republic, there can be no guarantee that
such efforts of diversification will be successful. Failure to geographically diversify and expand our operations
and customer base could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations,
prospects or cash flows.

We may be adversely affected by contractual claims, complaints, litigation and negative publicity

We may be adversely affected by contractual claims, complaints and litigation, resulting from relationships
with counterparties, customers, competitors or regulatory authorities, as well as by any adverse publicity that we
may attract. See “Business—Litigation and Other Proceedings.” Any such litigation, complaints, contractual
claims, or adverse publicity may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations, prospects or cash flows.

Defense of any lawsuit, even if successful, could require substantial time and attention of our management
and could require the expenditure of significant amounts for legal fees and other related costs. We are also
subject to regulatory proceedings, and we could suffer losses from the interpretation of applicable laws, rules and
regulations in regulatory proceedings, including regulatory proceedings in which we are not a party. Any of these
events could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects
or cash flows.

Our operations could be subject to natural disasters and other business disruptions, which could adversely
impact our future revenue and financial condition and increase our costs and expenses

Our services and operations are vulnerable to damage or interruption from tornadoes, earthquakes, fires,
floods, power losses, telecommunications failures, terrorist attacks, acts of war, human errors and similar events.
A significant natural disaster, such as a tornado, earthquake, fire or flood, could have a material adverse impact
on our ability to conduct business, and our insurance coverage may be insufficient to compensate for losses that
may occur. Although we have implemented business continuity plans, acts of terrorism, war, civil unrest,
violence or human error could cause disruptions to our business or the economy as a whole. Any of these events
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could cause consumer confidence to decrease, which could decrease the number of loans we make to customers.
Any of these occurrences may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations, prospects or cash flows.

Failure to keep up with the rapid changes in e-commerce and the uses and regulation of the Internet could
harm our business

The business of providing products and services such as ours over the Internet is dynamic and relatively
new. We must keep pace with rapid technological change, consumer use habits, Internet security risks, risks of
system failure or inadequacy and governmental regulation and taxation. Local regulators may have divergent
interpretations as to the classification of our services provided online, which may result in the reclassification of
our services into e-money, payment or other services requiring a separate license. In addition, concerns about
fraud, computer security and privacy and/or other problems may discourage additional consumers from adopting
or continuing to use the Internet as a medium of commerce, and each of these factors could adversely impact our
business.

Failure to comply with anti-corruption laws, including anti-bribery laws, could have an adverse effect on our
reputation and business

While we are committed to doing business in accordance with applicable anti-corruption and anti-bribery
laws, we face the risk that any of our operating subsidiaries or their respective officers, directors, employees,
agents or business partners may take actions or have interactions with persons that violate such anti-corruption
laws, or face allegations that they have violated such laws.

Corruption is one of the main risks confronting companies in certain of the markets where we operate.
According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), Armenia, Bulgaria, Georgia, Latvia and Poland are
emerging markets. According to the 2016 Transparency International Corruption Perceptions Index, which
evaluates data on corruption in countries throughout the world by ranking countries from 1 (least corrupt) to 176
(most corrupt), Armenia was ranked 113, Bulgaria 75, Georgia 44, Lithuania 38 and Romania 57. Poland and
Latvia, two of our key markets in terms of profits before tax and, particularly with respect to Poland, growth
potential, were ranked 29 and 44, respectively. Corruption has also been reported to affect the judicial systems
and certain of the regulatory or administrative bodies of the countries where we operate. While we have adopted
a formal Group-wide anti-bribery policy, this policy may not prevent breaches of law. The effects of corruption
on our operations are difficult to predict. However, under certain circumstances, corruption, particularly where it
heightens regulatory uncertainty or leads to regulatory changes adverse to our operations or to liability on our
part or on the part of our directors or business partners, may have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

Difficult conditions in the global financial markets and in the economy could have an adverse effect on our
business

Although there have been signs of a global economic recovery during the last several years, various
concerns remain regarding the ability of certain EU Member States and other countries to continue servicing their
sovereign debt obligations or maintain their existing credit ratings. The significant economic stagnation in certain
countries in the Eurozone, including in certain countries where we operate, like Spain, in part due to the effects
of the sovereign debt crisis and corresponding austerity measures in these markets, has added to these concerns.
The measures so far implemented to reduce public debt and fiscal deficits have already resulted in lower or
negative GDP growth and high unemployment rates in these countries. If the fiscal obligations of these or other
countries continue to exceed their respective fiscal revenues, taking into account the reactions of the credit and
swap markets, or if the banking systems of these jurisdictions destabilize, the ability of such countries to service
their debt in a cost efficient manner could be impaired. We operate in many countries which are likely to be
affected by these developments. The continued uncertainty over the outcome of various international financial
support programs, the possibility that other countries might experience similar financial pressures, investor
concerns about inadequate liquidity or unfavorable volatility in the capital and foreign exchange markets, lower
consumer spending, higher inflation or political instability could further disrupt the global financial markets and
might adversely affect the economy in general. In addition, the risk remains that a default of one or more
countries in the Eurozone, the extent and precise nature of which are impossible to predict, could lead to the
expulsion or voluntary withdrawal of one or more countries from the Eurozone or a disorderly break-up of the
Eurozone, either of which could significantly disrupt financial markets and possibly trigger another global
recession. Such events may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations, prospects or cash flows.

36



Significant, rapid or unforeseen economic or political changes in the economies in which we operate could
reduce demand for our products and services and result in reduced earnings

We operate in a variety of markets in Europe and Latin America, including some so-called emerging
markets, such as Georgia, Bulgaria, Mexico and Argentina. We also operate in Armenia and are considering
expanding our business into other new markets should opportunities present themselves. In recent years, certain
of the emerging markets where we operate have undergone substantial political, economic and social change. As
is typical of emerging markets, they do not possess the full business, legal and regulatory infrastructures that
would generally exist in more mature, free market economies, and the business, legal and regulatory
infrastructures in these jurisdictions are continuously evolving. See also “—Our business is highly regulated, and
if we fail to comply with existing or newly introduced applicable laws, regulations, rules and guidance, we may
be subject to fines or penalties, have to exit certain markets or be restricted from carrying out certain
operations.” In addition, the tax and currency legislation in the markets in which we operate are subject to
varying interpretations and changes, which can occur frequently. Any disruption of the reform policies and
recurrence of political or governmental instability may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

In certain of the jurisdictions where we operate, such as Georgia and Bulgaria, political and economic
environments continue to develop and remain at risk of disruption from domestic or international events. In
addition, although we do not operate in Russia, our indirect controlling shareholder, Tirona, was until recently
part of the Finstar Financial Group, one of the largest private investment groups in Russia which is ultimately
beneficially owned by Oleg Boyko, a Russian citizen. Since February 2015, Tirona’s largest ultimate beneficial
owner (owning 49% of Tirona) has been Vera Boiko, a Russian citizen who is related to Oleg Boyko. In
connection with events in Ukraine, the United States and EU have imposed economic sanctions on certain
Russian governmental officials and businessmen, several Russian companies and several non-Russian companies
holding assets in Russia. The US sanctions remain in place, and in December 2016, EU leaders agreed to extend
EU sanctions against Russia to July 31, 2017. If either our controlling shareholder or one of our ultimate
beneficial owners were to become the subject of sanctions, this could have a material adverse effect on our
business, including our reputation, and depending on the nature of the sanctions, on our ability (including the
ability of the Guarantors) to make payments on the Notes. Any significant changes in, or a deterioration of, the
political or economic environment in regions where we currently operate or will operate in the future could lead
to political and economic instability, which may have an adverse effect on investor and consumer confidence and
affect consumers’ ability to repay loans and accrued interest. Should the ability of our customers to repay loans
and accrued interest be affected, this could restrict our ability to sustain or expand our operations in these
countries and could therefore adversely and materially affect our cash flow, liquidity and working capital
position. If such a situation were to occur, we may be required to seek additional capital. There is no guarantee
that we would be successful in raising additional capital, or that we will be able to do so on a timely basis or on
terms which are acceptable to us. If significant political or economic deterioration were to continue, we could
face a liquidity shortage, which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations, prospects or cash flows.

The future economic direction of the markets in which we operate remains largely dependent upon the
effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by their respective governments,
together with tax, legal, regulatory, and political developments. Our failure to manage the risks associated with
our operations in emerging markets may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations, prospects or cash flows.

The legal and judicial systems in some of our markets of operation are less developed than western European
countries

The legal and judicial systems in some of the markets in which we operate are less developed than those of
western European countries. Commercial, competition, securities, anti-bribery, personal data protection,
company and bankruptcy law (as well as other areas of law) in such countries may be unfamiliar to local judges.
Related legal provisions in these jurisdictions have been and continue to be subject to ongoing, and at times
unpredictable, changes. Existing laws and regulations in our countries of operation may be applied inconsistently
or may be interpreted in a manner that is restrictive and non-commercial. Furthermore, it may not be possible, in
certain circumstances, to obtain legal remedies in a timely manner in these countries. The relatively limited
experience of a significant number of judges or other legal officials practicing in these markets, specifically with
regard to capital markets issues, and questions regarding the independence of the judiciary system in such
markets may lead to decisions based on considerations that are not grounded in the law. The enforcement of
judgments may also prove difficult, which means that the enforcement of rights through the respective court
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systems may be laborious, especially where such judgments may lead to business closures or job losses. This
lack of legal certainty may adversely affect our business, and may also make it difficult for you to address any
claims you may have as an investor.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE NOTES

Our substantial level of indebtedness could adversely affect our financial condition, our ability to obtain
financing in the future and our ability to fulfill our obligations under the Notes

We have substantial indebtedness. After the issuance of the Notes, we will have approximately
EUR 535.0 million of total debt outstanding, including the aggregate principal amount of the Notes issued.

Subject to restrictions in the Indenture covering the Notes, we may incur additional indebtedness. Our high
level of indebtedness could have important consequences for holders of the Notes. For example, it could:

e make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to the Notes and our other
indebtedness, resulting in possible defaults on and acceleration of such indebtedness;

e require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to the payment of principal
and interest on our indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of such cash flows to fund working
capital, acquisitions, capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes;

e limit our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, acquisitions, capital expenditures,
debt service requirements and other general corporate purposes;

* limit our ability to refinance indebtedness or cause the associated costs of such refinancing to increase;
e limit our ability to fund change of control offers;

e restrict the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends or otherwise transfer assets to us, which could
limit our ability to, among other things, make required payments on our debt;

e increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions, including interest rate
fluctuations (because a portion of our borrowings may have variable rates of interest); and

e place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to other companies with proportionately less debt or
comparable debt at more favorable interest rates who, as a result, may be better positioned to withstand
economic downturns.

The high level of our indebtedness and the consequences thereof (as described above) could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. We expect to obtain the funds to pay
our expenses and to repay our indebtedness primarily from our operations. Our ability to meet our expenses and
make these payments thus depends on our future performance, which will be affected by financial, business,
economic, regulatory and other factors, many of which we cannot control. Our business may not generate
sufficient cash flow from operations in the future and our currently anticipated growth in revenue and cash flow
may not be realized, either or both of which could result in our being unable to repay indebtedness, or to fund
other liquidity needs. If we do not have enough funds, we may be required to refinance all or part of our then
existing debt, sell assets or borrow more funds, which we may not be able to accomplish on terms acceptable to
us, or at all. In addition, the terms of existing or future debt agreements may restrict us from pursuing any of
these alternatives.

Despite our current indebtedness level, we may be able to incur substantially more debt, including secured
debt, which could further exacerbate the risks associated with our substantial level of indebtedness

We may incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future. The Indenture allows us to incur substantial
additional debt, including secured debt. If new debt is added to our current debt levels, the related risks that we
face would increase, and we may not be able to meet all of our debt obligations. In addition, the Indenture
governing the Notes does not prevent us from incurring obligations that do not constitute indebtedness.

The interests of our beneficial owners may conflict with those of the Noteholders

With a 100% shareholding in 4finance Group S.A., Tirona is the indirect controlling shareholder of the
Group. Tirona was until early 2015 part of Finstar Financial Group, one of the largest private investment groups
in Russia, which is ultimately beneficially owned by Mr. Oleg Boyko. The Group is now effectively owned by
three individuals. Three individuals, Uldis Arnicans, Edgars Dupats and Vera Boyko (who is related to Oleg
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Boyko) have ultimate ownership of the Group, through their ownership of 25.5%, 25.5% and 49%, respectively,
of Tirona. As a result, these individuals have and will continue to have the power to affect the legal and capital
structure and the day-to-day operations of the Group, as well as the ability to elect and change the management
team and approve other changes to the Group’s operations. The interests of the ultimate beneficial owners may,
in some circumstances, conflict with the interests of the Noteholders, particularly if the Group encounters
financial difficulties or if we are unable to pay our debts as they become due. The ultimate beneficial owners
could also have an interest in pursuing financings or other transactions which, in their judgment, could enhance
their equity investment, although such transactions might increase the Group’s indebtedness, require the Group to
sell assets or otherwise impair our ability to make payments under the Notes. Any potential conflict between the
interests of the indirect controlling shareholder or the ultimate beneficial owners, on the one hand, and
Noteholders, on the other hand, may have a material adverse effect on the value of the Notes.

The interests of the immediate parent company of Holdco may conflict with those of the Noteholders

4finance Group SA, the immediate parent company of Holdco, has, since mid-2015, developed other
businesses separate to those of the Group. These businesses include consumer lending in other jurisdictions, such
as the United States. The Executive Committee is established at the 4finance Group SA level. The Group’s
resources may therefore be strained or diverted by activities for non-Group companies, which may have a
material adverse effect on our business. Non-Group companies are active in consumer lending using the same or
similar brands to those used by the Group, for example, Zaplo in the U.S. Any reputational damage incurred by
those operations may affect the perception of our brands and may have a material adverse effect on our business.
Any potential conflict between the interests of the immediate parent company, on the one hand, and Noteholders,
on the other hand, may have a material adverse effect on the value of the Notes.

Our debt instruments, including the Indenture governing the Notes, contain restrictions and limitations that
could significantly impact our ability to operate our business

The Indenture governing the Notes and our debt instruments contain covenants that, among other things,
restrict our ability to:

* incur more debt;

e change our line of business;

* make dividend payments, stock repurchases and other distributions;

e engage in certain mergers, consolidations and transfers of all or substantially all of our assets;

e make acquisitions of all of the business or assets of, or stock representing beneficial ownership of, any
person;

e dispose of certain assets; and

e incur liens.

In addition, some of our debt instruments require us to comply with various financial covenants. Our ability
to comply with these covenants in future periods will depend on our ongoing financial and operating
performance, which in turn will be subject to economic conditions and to financial, market and competitive
factors, many of which are beyond our control. Our ability to comply with these covenants in future periods also
will depend substantially on our ability to successfully implement our overall business strategy.

These covenants could adversely affect our ability to finance our future operations or capital needs and
pursue available business opportunities. A breach of any of these covenants could result in a default under our
indebtedness. If a default occurs, the relevant lenders could elect to declare the indebtedness, together with
accrued interest and other fees, to be immediately due and payable and proceed against any collateral securing
that indebtedness. Acceleration of our other indebtedness could result in a default under the terms of Notes.
There is no guarantee that we would be able to satisfy our obligations if any of our indebtedness is accelerated.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cash to service all of our indebtedness, including the Notes, and may
be forced to take other actions to satisfy our obligations under our debt agreements, which may not be
successful

Our ability to make scheduled payments on or refinance our debt obligations depends on our financial
condition and operating performance, which is subject to prevailing economic and competitive conditions and to
certain financial, business and other factors beyond our control. We may not be able to maintain a level of cash
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flows from operating activities sufficient to permit us to pay the principal, premium, if any, and interest and
additional amounts, if any, on our indebtedness, including the borrowings under the Notes offered hereby.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt service obligations, we may be
forced to reduce or delay investments and capital expenditures, or to sell assets, seek additional capital or
restructure or refinance our indebtedness, including our indebtedness under the Notes offered hereby. Our ability
to restructure or refinance our debt will depend on the condition of the capital markets and our financial
condition at such time. Any refinancing of our debt could be at higher interest rates and may require us to comply
with more onerous borrowing covenants, which could further restrict our business operations. The terms of
existing or future debt instruments may restrict us from adopting some of these alternatives. These alternative
measures may not be successful and may not permit us to meet our scheduled debt service obligations. In
addition, any failure to make payments of interest and principal on our outstanding indebtedness on a timely
basis would likely result in a reduction of our credit rating, which could harm our ability to incur additional
indebtedness.

If we cannot make scheduled payments on our debt:
e the holders of our debt could declare all outstanding principal and interest to be due and payable;

e the holders of our secured debt, to the extent we have any, could commence foreclosure proceedings
against our assets;

e we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation; and

e you could lose all or part of your investment in the Notes.

The Issuer and Holdco are companies that have no revenue generating operations of their own and depend on
cash from our operating companies to be able to make payments on the Notes or the Guarantees, as applicable

The Issuer’s only business operations consist of providing financing to the Group companies and Holdco is
a holding company with no business operations other than the equity interests it holds in its subsidiaries.
See “Description of Issuer and Guarantors.” The Issuer and Holdco will be dependent upon the cash flow from
our operating subsidiaries in the form of dividends or other distributions or payments to meet their obligations,
including the Issuer’s obligations under the Notes and Holdco’s obligations under its Guarantee or other
indebtedness incurred to fund their equity interests and other financial assets. The amounts of dividends or other
distributions or payments available to the Issuer and Holdco will depend on the profitability and cash flows of
our subsidiaries and the ability of those subsidiaries to issue dividends and make distributions and other
payments under applicable law. Our subsidiaries, however, may not be able to, or may not be permitted under
applicable law to, make dividends, distributions or other payments to the Issuer or Holdco to make payments in
respect of their indebtedness, including the Notes and the Guarantees. In addition, our subsidiaries that do not
guarantee the Notes have no obligation to make payments with respect to the Notes.

If we default on our obligations to pay our other indebtedness, we may not be able to make payments on the
Notes

Any default under the agreements governing our indebtedness which is not waived could leave us unable to
pay principal or interest on the Notes. For example, payments under the Guarantees could result in a default in
respect of certain of our indebtedness. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow and are otherwise unable
to obtain funds necessary to meet required payments of principal, premium, if any, or interest on indebtedness, or
if we otherwise fail to comply with the various covenants, including financial and operating covenants, in the
instruments governing our indebtedness, we could be in default under the terms of the agreements governing
such indebtedness. In the event of such default, the holders of such indebtedness could elect to declare all of the
funds borrowed thereunder to be due and payable, together with any accrued and unpaid interest and we could be
forced into bankruptcy or liquidation. Although we may in the future seek waivers from lenders of our
indebtedness to avoid being in default, there is no guarantee that we will be able to obtain waivers from the
lenders thereunder.

Not all subsidiaries of the Group, including TBI Bank, are providing Guarantees

The Financial Statements include both Subsidiary Guarantors and non-Guarantor subsidiaries. As the
non-Guarantor subsidiaries of the Group represent 37.6% of the net assets of the Group as of December 31, 2016,
the Financial Statements included herein may be of limited use in assessing the financial position of the
Guarantors.
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The Notes will be effectively subordinated to our and our Guarantors’ secured indebtedness to the extent of
the value of the collateral securing such indebtedness

The Notes and the related Guarantees will not be secured. In addition, the Indenture governing the Notes
will allow us to incur substantial additional secured debt and the Notes will be effectively subordinated in right of
payment to any of our secured indebtedness to the extent of the value of the collateral securing such
indebtedness. Additionally, the Guarantees will be effectively subordinated to any secured indebtedness, to the
extent of the value of the collateral securing such indebtedness, incurred in the future by the Guarantors. The
effect of this subordination is that upon a default in payment on, or the acceleration of, any of our or any
Guarantor’s secured indebtedness or in the event of a bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation, dissolution,
reorganization or similar proceeding involving us or any of the Guarantors, the proceeds from the sale of assets
securing our or any Guarantor’s secured indebtedness will be available to pay obligations on the Notes or
Guarantees, as applicable, only after all of our or any Guarantor’s secured indebtedness has been paid in full.

The Notes will be structurally subordinated to all indebtedness of those of our existing or future subsidiaries
that are not, or do not become, Guarantors of the Notes

The Notes are initially guaranteed only by some of Holdco’s subsidiaries. Furthermore, the Indenture
governing the Notes will permit Guarantees to be released under certain circumstances. See “Description of
Notes.” Claims of holders of the Notes will be structurally subordinated to all indebtedness and the claims of
creditors of any non-guarantor subsidiaries, including trade creditors. All indebtedness and obligations of any
non-guarantor subsidiaries will have to be satisfied before any of the assets of such subsidiaries would be
available for distribution upon liquidation or otherwise to us or to a Guarantor of the Notes. The Indenture
governing the Notes will permit these non-guarantor subsidiaries to incur certain additional debt, including
secured debt, and will not limit their ability to incur other liabilities that are not considered indebtedness under
the Indenture.

We may be unable to repay or repurchase the Notes at maturity

At maturity, the entire principal amount of the Notes, together with accrued and unpaid interest, will
become due and payable. We may not have the ability to repay or refinance these obligations. If the maturity date
occurs at a time when other arrangements prohibit us from repaying the Notes, we could try to obtain waivers of
such prohibitions from the lenders and holders under those arrangements, or we could attempt to refinance the
borrowings that contain the restrictions. If we fail to obtain the waivers or refinance these borrowings, we would
be unable to repay the Notes.

We may not have the ability to raise the funds necessary to finance the change of control offer required by the
Indenture governing the Notes and the change of control put right may not be triggered in certain
circumstances

Upon the occurrence of a “change of control” as defined in the Indenture governing the Notes, we must
offer to redeem the Notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal amount, together with accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to the date of the redemption. Our failure to give notice of a change of control or redeem such
Notes would be a default under the Indenture governing the Notes, which could also trigger a cross-default under
our other outstanding indebtedness.

A change of control could also trigger a default or mandatory redemption under certain indebtedness
existing or incurred in the future. In order to satisfy our obligations, we could seek to refinance the indebtedness
under our debt agreements or obtain a waiver under debt agreements or from you as a holder of the Notes. We
cannot assure you that we would be able to obtain a waiver or refinance our indebtedness on terms acceptable to
us, if at all.

In addition, the change of control provisions in the Indenture may not protect you from certain important
corporate events, such as a leveraged recapitalization (which would increase the level of our indebtedness or
otherwise adversely affect our capital structure, credit ratings or the value of the Notes), reorganization,
restructuring, merger, or other similar transaction. Such a transaction may not involve a change in voting power
or beneficial ownership or, even if it does, may not involve a change of control that would trigger our obligation
to repurchase the Notes. If an event occurs that does not constitute a change of control, we will not be required to
redeem the Notes and you may be required to continue to hold your Notes despite the event.
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Holders of the Notes may not be able to determine when a change of control giving rise to their right to have
the Notes repurchased by us has occurred following a sale of “substantially all” of our assets

A change of control will require the Issuer to make an offer to redeem such Noteholder’s Notes (as
described above). A “change of control” as defined in the Indenture includes the sale, conveyance, transfer,
lease or other disposition of “all or substantially all” of our assets. There is no precise established definition of
the phrase “substantially all” under applicable law. Accordingly, the ability of a holder of Notes to require us to
redeem its Notes as a result of a sale, conveyance, transfer, lease or other disposition of less than all our assets to
another individual, group or entity may be uncertain.

Each Guarantee will be subject to certain limitations on enforcement and may be limited by applicable law or
subject to certain defenses that may limit its validity and enforceability

Each Guarantee provides the holders of the Notes with a direct claim against the relevant Guarantor.
However, the Indenture will provide that each Guarantee will be limited to the maximum amount that can be
guaranteed by the relevant Guarantor without rendering the relevant Guarantee voidable or otherwise ineffective
under applicable law, and enforcement of each Guarantee would be subject to certain generally available
defenses. See “Limitations on Validity and Enforceability of the Guarantees and the Notes and Certain
Insolvency Considerations.”

Enforcement of any of the Guarantees against any Guarantor will be subject to certain defenses available to
Guarantors in the relevant jurisdiction. Although laws differ among these jurisdictions, these laws and defenses
generally include those that relate to corporate purpose or benefit, fraudulent conveyance or transfer, voidable
preference, insolvency or bankruptcy challenges, financial assistance, preservation of share capital, thin
capitalization, capital maintenance or similar laws, regulations or defenses affecting the rights of creditors
generally. If one or more of these laws and defenses are applicable, a Guarantor may have no liability or
decreased liability under its Guarantee depending on the amounts of its other obligations and applicable law.

Although laws differ among various jurisdictions, in general, under bankruptcy or insolvency law and other
laws, a court could (i) avoid or invalidate all or a portion of a Guarantor’s obligations under its Guarantee,
(ii) direct that the holders of the Notes return any amounts paid under a Guarantee to the relevant Guarantor or to
a fund for the benefit of the Guarantor’s creditors or (iii) take other action that is detrimental to you, typically if
the court found that:

e the relevant Guarantee was incurred with actual intent to give preference to one creditor over another,
hinder, delay or defraud creditors or shareholders of the Guarantor or, in certain jurisdictions, when the
granting of the Guarantee has the effect of giving a creditor a preference or guarantee or the creditor
was aware that the Guarantor was insolvent when the relevant Guarantee was given;

e the Guarantor did not receive fair consideration or reasonably equivalent value or corporate benefit for
the relevant Guarantee and the Guarantor: (i) was insolvent or rendered insolvent because of the
relevant Guarantee; (ii) was undercapitalized or became undercapitalized because of the relevant
Guarantee; or (iii) intended to incur, or believed that it would incur, indebtedness beyond its ability to
pay at maturity;

e the relevant Guarantee was held to exceed the corporate objects of the Guarantor or not to be in the best
interests of or for the corporate benefit of the Guarantor; or

e the amount paid or payable under the relevant Guarantee was in excess of the maximum amount
permitted under applicable law.

These or similar laws may also apply to any future Guarantee granted by any of our subsidiaries pursuant to
the Indenture.

We cannot assure you which standard a court would apply in determining whether a Guarantor was
“insolvent” at the relevant time or that, regardless of method of valuation. There can also be no assurance that a
court would not determine that a Guarantor was insolvent on that date, or that a court would not determine,
regardless of whether or not a Guarantor was insolvent on the date its Guarantee was issued, that payments to
holders of the Notes constituted preferences, fraudulent transfers or conveyances on other grounds. The liability
of each Guarantor under its Guarantee will be limited to the amount that will result in such Guarantee not
constituting a preference, fraudulent conveyance or improper corporate distribution or otherwise being set aside.
However, there can be no assurance as to what standard a court will apply in making a determination of the
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maximum liability of each Guarantor. There is a possibility that the entire Guarantee may be set aside, in which
case the entire liability may be extinguished. If a court decided that a Guarantee was a preference, fraudulent
transfer or conveyance and voided such Guarantee, or held it unenforceable for any other reason, you may cease
to have any claim in respect of the relevant Guarantor and would be a creditor solely of the Issuer and, if
applicable, of any other Guarantor under the relevant Guarantee which has not been declared void. In the event
that any Guarantee is invalid or unenforceable, in whole or in part, or to the extent the agreed limitation of the
Guarantee obligations apply, the Notes would be effectively subordinated to all liabilities of the applicable
Guarantor.

Enforcement of the Guarantees across multiple jurisdictions may be difficult

The Notes will be guaranteed by the initial and any additional Guarantors, which are organized or
incorporated under the laws of multiple jurisdictions. In the event of a bankruptcy, insolvency or similar event,
proceedings could be initiated in any of these jurisdictions. The rights of holders of the Notes under the
Guarantees will thus be subject to the laws of a number of jurisdictions, and it may be difficult to enforce such
rights in multiple bankruptcy, insolvency and other similar proceedings. Moreover, such multi-jurisdictional
proceedings are typically complex and costly for creditors’ rights. In addition, the bankruptcy, insolvency,
administration and other laws of the jurisdiction of organization of the Issuer, Holdco and the Guarantors may be
materially different from, or in conflict with, one another, including creditor’s rights, priority of creditors, the
ability to obtain post-petition interest and the duration of the insolvency proceeding. The application of these
various laws in multiple jurisdictions could trigger disputes over which jurisdictions’ law should apply and could
adversely affect the ability to realize any recovery under the Notes and the Guarantees.

Relevant insolvency and administrative laws may not be as favorable to creditors, including Noteholders, as
insolvency laws of the jurisdictions in which you are familiar and may limit your ability to enforce your rights
under the Notes and the Guarantees and the Issuer and the Guarantors are subject to risks relating to the
location of their center of main interest (“COMI”)

The Issuer is incorporated in Luxembourg, and the Guarantors are incorporated or organized in
Luxembourg, Latvia, Denmark, Lithuania, Finland, Poland, Sweden, Spain and Georgia. Some of our
subsidiaries are incorporated or organized in jurisdictions other than those listed above and are subject to the
insolvency laws of such jurisdictions. The insolvency laws of these jurisdictions may not be as favorable to your
interests as creditors as the bankruptcy laws of certain other jurisdictions and your ability to receive payment
under the Notes may be more limited than would be the case under such bankruptcy laws. See “Limitations on
Validity and Enforceability of the Guarantees and the Notes and Certain Insolvency Considerations.”

In addition, there can be no assurance as to how the insolvency laws of these jurisdictions will be applied in
relation to one another. In the event that the Issuer, any of the Guarantors or any other of our subsidiaries
experienced financial difficulty, it is not possible to predict with certainty in which jurisdiction or jurisdictions
insolvency or similar proceedings would be commenced or the outcome of such proceedings. Under the
Regulation (EC) No 1346/2000 on Insolvency Proceedings (the “EUIR”) (and the incoming Council of the
European Union Regulation 2015/848 on Insolvency Proceedings (Recast)), the “main” insolvency proceedings
in respect of a debtor should be opened in the EU Member State in which its COMI is located. See “Limitations
on Validity and Enforceability of the Guarantees and the Notes and Certain Insolvency Considerations.” There is
a presumption in the EUIR that a company’s COMI is in the EU Member State in which its registered office is
located; however, this presumption may be rebutted by certain factors relating in particular to where the
company’s central administration is located. In addition, the concept of a company’s COMI is a fluid and factual
concept that may change. Although the Issuer’s registered office is in Luxembourg, a COMI may be found to
exist outside Luxembourg, and insolvency laws of another jurisdiction may become relevant. The insolvency and
other laws of different jurisdictions may be materially different from, or in conflict with, each other, including in
the areas of rights of secured and other creditors, the ability to void preferences, transactions at an undervalue
and transactions defrauding creditors, priority of governmental and other creditors, ability to obtain or claim
interest following the commencement of insolvency proceedings and the duration of the proceedings. The
application of these laws, or any conflict among them, could call into question whether any particular
jurisdiction’s laws should apply, adversely affect your ability to enforce your rights under the Notes or the
Guarantees in these jurisdictions and limit any amounts that you may receive. Prospective investors in the Notes
should consult their own legal advisors with respect to such considerations.
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The transfer of the Notes is restricted, which may adversely affect their liquidity and the price at which they
may be sold

The Notes and the Guarantees have not been registered under, and we are not obliged to register the Notes
or the Guarantees under, the U.S. Securities Act or the securities laws of any other jurisdiction and, unless so
registered, may not be offered or sold except pursuant to an exemption from, or a transaction not subject to, the
registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act or such securities laws as applicable. See “Transfer
Restrictions.” We have not agreed to or otherwise undertaken to register the Notes or the Guarantees, and do not
have any intention to do so.

There is no established trading market for the Notes. If an actual trading market does not develop for the
Notes, you may not be able to resell them quickly, for the price that you paid or at all

The Notes will constitute a new issue of securities, and there is no established trading market for the Notes.
If an active trading market does not develop or is not sustained, the market price and liquidity of the Notes may
be adversely affected and you may be unable to resell your Notes at a particular time, at their fair market value or
at all.

If a trading market does develop, the market price of the Notes will depend on many factors, including:
e our credit ratings with the major credit rating agencies;

e the market demand for securities similar to the Notes and the interest of securities dealers in making a
market for the Notes;

¢ the number of holders of the Notes;

e the prevailing interest rates being paid by other companies similar to us;
* our financial condition, financial performance and future prospects;

e the market price of our common stock;

» the prospects for companies in our industry generally; and

¢ the overall condition of the financial markets.

Historically, the market for non-investment grade debt has been subject to disruptions that have caused
volatility in prices of securities similar to the Notes. It is possible that the market for the Notes will be subject to
such disruptions. Any disruptions may have a negative effect on holders, regardless of our prospects and
financial performance.

The Notes may not become or remain listed on the ISE

Although the Issuer will, in the Indenture, agree to use its commercially reasonable efforts to have the Notes
listed on the Official List and admitted to trading on the GEM of the ISE after the Issue Date and will use
commercially reasonable efforts to maintain such listing as long as the Notes are outstanding, the Issuer cannot
assure you that the Notes will become or remain listed. If the Issuer cannot maintain the listing on the Official
List on the GEM of the ISE or it becomes unduly burdensome to make or maintain such listing, the Issuer may
cease to make or maintain such listing on the Official List on the GEM of the ISE, provided that it will use best
efforts to obtain and maintain the listing of the Notes on another recognized stock exchange, although there can
be no assurance that the Issuer will be able to do so. Although no assurance is made as to the liquidity of the
Notes as a result of listing on the Official List on the GEM of the ISE or another recognized stock exchange in
accordance with the Indenture, failure to be approved for listing or the delisting of the Notes from the Official
List on the GEM of the ISE or another stock exchange in accordance with the Indenture may have a material
adverse effect on a holder’s ability to resell Notes in the secondary market.

Our credit ratings may not reflect all risks of your investment in the Notes

The credit ratings assigned to the Notes are limited in scope and do not address all material risks relating to
an investment in the Notes but rather reflect only the view of each rating agency at the time the rating is issued.
The credit rating agencies also evaluate our industry and may change their credit rating for us based on their
overall view of our industry. There can be no assurance that the credit ratings assigned to the Notes will remain
in effect for any given period of time or that a rating will not be lowered, suspended or withdrawn entirely by the
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applicable rating agency if, in such rating agency’s judgment, circumstances so warrant. Credit ratings are not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold any security. Each agency’s rating should be evaluated independently of any
other agency’s rating. Actual or anticipated changes or downgrades in our credit ratings, including any
announcement that our ratings are under further review for a downgrade, could affect the market value of the
Notes and increase our corporate borrowing costs.

An increase in interest rates could result in a decrease in the relative value of the Notes

In general, as market interest rates rise, Notes bearing interest at a fixed rate generally decline in value
because the premium, if any, over market interest rates will decline. Consequently, if you purchase these Notes
and market interest rates increase, the market value of your Notes may decline. We cannot predict future levels of
market interest rates.

Investors may face foreign exchange risks by investing in the Notes

The Notes will be denominated and payable in USD. If investors measure their investment returns by
reference to a currency other than USD, an investment in the Notes will entail foreign exchange-related risks due
to, among other factors, possible significant changes in the value of the USD relative to the currency by reference
to which investors measure the return on their investments because of economic, political and other factors over
which we have no control. Depreciation of the USD against the currency by reference to which investors measure
the return on their investments could cause a decrease in the effective yield of the relevant Notes below their
stated coupon rates and could result in a loss to investors when the return on such Notes is translated into the
currency by reference to which the investors measure the return on their investments.

We may choose to repurchase or redeem a portion of the Notes when prevailing interest rates are relatively
low, including in open market purchases

We may seek to repurchase or redeem a portion of the Notes from time to time, especially when prevailing
interest rates are lower than the rate borne by such Notes. If prevailing rates are lower at the time of redemption,
you may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a comparable security at an effective interest rate as
high as the interest rate on such Notes being redeemed. Our redemption right also may adversely impact your
ability to sell such Notes.

We may also from time to time repurchase the Notes in the open market, privately negotiated transactions,
tender offers or otherwise. Any such repurchases or redemptions and the timing and amount thereof would
depend on prevailing market conditions, liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors. Such
transactions could impact the market for such Notes and negatively affect our liquidity.

You may not be able to recover in civil proceedings for U.S. securities law violations

The Issuer and most of the Guarantors and their respective subsidiaries are organized outside the
United States. All of the directors and executive officers of the Issuer and the Guarantors are non-residents of the
United States. Although we will submit to the jurisdiction of certain New York courts in connection with any
action under U.S. securities laws, you may be unable to effect service of process within the United States on any
non-resident directors and executive officers. In addition, as the assets of the Issuer and all of the Guarantors and
those of their directors and executive officers are located outside of the United States, you may be unable to
enforce judgments obtained in the U.S. courts against them. See “Service of Process and Enforcement of
Judgments.” Moreover, in light of recent decisions of the U.S. Supreme Court, actions of the Issuer and the
Guarantors may not be subject to the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States.

The Notes will initially be held in book-entry form, and therefore you must rely on the procedures of the
relevant clearing systems to exercise any rights and remedies

The Notes will be cleared through Euroclear and Clearstream and not through The Depository Trust
Company, and investors should note that the Notes can only be held through Euroclear or Clearstream accounts.
Unless and until Notes in definitive registered form are issued in exchange for book-entry interests (which may
occur only in very limited circumstances), owners of book-entry interests will not be considered owners or
Noteholders. The common depository (or its nominee) for Euroclear and Clearstream will be the sole registered
holder of the Global Notes. Payments of principal, interest and other amounts owing on or in respect of the
relevant Global Notes representing the Notes will be made to the Paying Agent, which will make payments to
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Euroclear and Clearstream. Thereafter, these payments will be credited to participants’ accounts that hold book-
entry interests in the Global Notes representing the Notes and credited by such participants to indirect
participants. After payment to the common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, we will have no
responsibility or liability for the payment of interest, principal or other amounts to the owners of book-entry
interests. Accordingly, if you own a book-entry interest in the Notes, you must rely on the procedures of
Euroclear and Clearstream and if you are not a participant in Euroclear and/or Clearstream, on the procedures of
the participant through which you own your interest, to exercise any rights and obligations of a holder of the
Notes under the Indenture. See “Book Entry, Delivery and Form.”

Unlike the holders of the Notes themselves, owners of book-entry interests will not have any direct rights to
act upon any solicitations for consents, requests for waivers or other actions from holders of the Notes. Instead, if
you own a book-entry interest, you will be permitted to act only to the extent you have received appropriate
proxies to do so from Euroclear and Clearstream or, if applicable, from a participant. The procedures
implemented for the granting of such proxies may not be sufficient to enable you to vote on any matters or on a
timely basis.

Similarly, upon the occurrence of an event of default under the Indenture, unless and until the relevant
definitive registered Notes are issued in respect of all book-entry interests, if you own a book-entry interest, you
will be restricted from acting through Euroclear and Clearstream. We cannot assure you that the procedures to be
implemented through Euroclear and Clearstream will be adequate to ensure the timely exercise of rights under
the Notes.

The Trustee may request Noteholders to provide an indemnity and/or security and/or prefunding to its
satisfaction

In certain circumstances, the Trustee may (at its sole discretion) request Noteholders to provide an
indemnity and/or security and/or prefunding to its satisfaction before it takes actions on behalf of Noteholders.
The Trustee shall not be obliged to take any such actions if not indemnified and/or secured and/or prefunded to
its satisfaction. Negotiating and agreeing to an indemnity and/or security and/or prefunding can be a lengthy
process and may impact on when such actions can be taken. Notwithstanding the provision of an indemnity or
security or prefunding to it, the Trustee may not be able to take actions in breach of the terms of the Indenture or
the terms and conditions of the Notes and in circumstances where there is uncertainty or dispute as to the
applicable laws or regulations.

Modifications and waivers may be made in respect of the terms and conditions of the Notes and the Indenture
by the Trustee or less than all of the Noteholders

The Indenture will contain provisions for amendment of the terms and conditions of the Notes and the
Indenture, as well as waiver of such terms and conditions. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all
Noteholders, including those Noteholders who do not vote in any solicitation for consents or waivers and those
Noteholders who vote in a manner contrary to the majority. Certain terms and conditions of the Notes and the
Indenture required a super-majority (i.e., holders of Notes representing at least 90% of the outstanding principal
amount of the Notes) to consent to such amendment or waiver in order to bind all the Noteholders. Furthermore,
there is a risk that the decision of the majority or super-majority (as applicable) of Noteholders may be adverse to
the interests of individual Noteholders.

The Indenture and the terms and conditions of the Notes will provide that the Trustee may (but shall not be
obliged to), without the consent of Noteholders, agree to any modification of the terms and conditions of the
Notes or the Indenture which is proper to make if, in the opinion of the Trustee, such modification will not be
materially prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders and any modification of the terms and conditions of the
Notes or the Indenture is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is to correct a manifest error. See “Description
of the Notes—Amendment, Supplement and Waiver.”

Certain covenants may be suspended upon the occurrence of a change in the Notes’ ratings

The Indenture will provide that, if at any time following the date of the Indenture, the Notes receive a rating
of Baa3 or better by Moody’s and a rating of BBB- or better by S&P and no default or event of default has
occurred and is continuing, then beginning that day and continuing until such time, if any, at which such Notes
cease to have such ratings, certain covenants will cease to be applicable to such Notes. See “Description of the
Notes—Certain Covenants—Suspension of Certain Covenants when notes Rated Investment Grade.” If these
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covenants were to cease to be applicable, we would be able to incur additional debt or make payments, including
dividends or investments, which may conflict with the interests of holders of the Notes. There can be no
assurance that the Notes will ever achieve an investment grade rating or that any such rating will be maintained.

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act may apply to the Notes

Sections 1471 through 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, commonly referred to
as “FATCA,” imposes U.S. federal withholding of 30% on payments of interest on the Notes and (beginning in
2019) gross proceeds from the sale or other disposition of the Notes to “foreign financial institutions” (which is
broadly defined for this purpose and in general includes investment vehicles) and certain other non-U.S. entities
(whether such foreign financial institutions or other non-U.S. entities are beneficial owners or intermediaries)
unless various U.S. information reporting and due diligence requirements (generally relating to ownership by
U.S. persons of interests in or accounts with those entities) have been satisfied, or an exemption applies. If
FATCA withholding is imposed, a beneficial owner that is not a foreign financial institution generally will be
entitled to a refund of any amounts withheld by filing a U.S. federal income tax return (which may entail
significant administrative burden). Potential investors should consult their tax advisors regarding the effects of
FATCA on their investments in the Notes.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The aggregate gross proceeds of the Offering are expected to be USD 325.0 million. We intend to use a
portion of the proceeds from the issuance of the Notes to repurchase 2019 Notes tendered and not validly
withdrawn in the 2019 Tender Offer, to fund the redemption of the SEK Notes and to pay the fees and expenses
related to the issuance of the Notes. Any remaining proceeds will be used for potential acquisitions and general
corporate purposes, including funding the growth of our business, and will be lent by the Issuer to the Group
companies for such purposes, as required.

The following table summarizes the expected sources and uses of proceeds in connection with the issuance
of the Notes. The actual amounts as compared to those set forth in the table and in the accompanying footnotes
are subject to adjustment and may differ at the time of the consummation of the Transactions depending on
several factors, including differences from our estimation of fees and expenses and interests accrued on our
existing debt until the relevant redemption dates.

Sources of Funds Uses of Funds
(in millions of Euros) (in millions of Euros)
Notes offered hereby® .......... 309.0 Repurchase of 2019 Notes and
Redemption of SEK
Notes® .............co.... 177.3
Fees and expenses® .......... 8.4
General corporate purposes . . . . . 123.3

Total Sources ................. 309.0 TotalUses .................. 309.0

(1) This amount reflects the expected gross proceeds of USD 325.0 million from the offering of the Notes translated into Euros. See
“Presentation of Financial and other Information—Currencies.”

(2) We intend to use a portion of the proceeds of the issuance of the Notes to repurchase the 2019 Notes tendered and not validly withdrawn
in the 2019 Notes Tender Offer. The amount of EUR 177.3 million includes the principal amount of the 2019 Notes of EUR 125.2
million (USD 131.7 million) and associated tender premium and accrued and unpaid interest at closing of EUR 10.6 million. The Issuer
may in certain circumstances use a portion of the proceeds of the Offering to redeem the SEK Notes in full, which is estimated to cost
approximately EUR 42 million (including principal, redemption premium and accrued and unpaid interest). See “Description of
Indebtedness —SEK Notes.”

(3) Represents estimated fees and expenses associated with the issuance of the Notes.
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CAPITALIZATION

The table below sets forth our consolidated capitalization as of December 31, 2016 (i) on an actual historical

basis, (i) as adjusted for the issue of the Notes and the application of proceeds therefrom as described in “Use of
Proceeds” as if it had occurred on December 31, 2016 and (iii) as further adjusted for the incurrence of certain
debt after December 31, 2016. This table should be read in conjunction with “Use of Proceeds,” “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition,” “Description of Certain
Indebtedness” and “Description of Notes” and the Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Offering

Memorandum.
As of December 31, 2016
Actual As Adjusted

(in millions of EUR)
Cash and cash equivalents) .. ............................ 157.6 277.2
Debt
2019 NOteS@) L.t 194.3 66.4
SEK NOtes®) ... 39.6 —
2021 NOES .« o vttt e ettt e e e e e e 142.4 142.4
Friendly Finance Notes ........... ... ... ... 2.8 2.8
Loans from related parties .............. ... .. ... 3.7 —
Other debt® . ... .. 14.4 14.4
Notes offered hereby® . ..... ... ... ... . ... . . — 309.0
Totaldebt . ... ... ... . .. . .. . 397.2 535.0
Equity
Share capital . ........ . .. .. 35.8 35.8
Retained earnings . ...........c.o it 232.4 232.4
Reserves® . . . e (38.8) (38.8)
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Group ...... 2294 2294
Non-controlling interests . .......... ...ttt 0.7 0.7
Total capitalization® .. .................................. 627.3 765.1

(€]

(@)
3)

“
(O]

(6)
(@)

The adjusted amount consists of cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2016 and as adjusted to reflect the repayment at maturity
on March 31, 2017 of the EUR 3.0 million loan from a related party and early repayment in April 2017 of the EUR 0.7 million loan from
arelated party, as well as the use of proceeds from the issuance of the Notes. See “Use of Proceeds” and “Related Party Transactions.”
The Issuer intends to use a portion of the proceeds to repurchase the 2019 Notes tendered and not validly withdrawn in the 2019 Notes
Tender Offer.

The Issuer may in certain circumstances use a portion of the proceeds of the Offering to redeem the SEK Notes in full, which is
estimated to cost approximately EUR 42 million (including principal, redemption premium and accrued and unpaid interest). See
“Description of Indebtedness—SEK Notes.”

Other debt consists of (i) amounts outstanding under loans from Ameriabank CJSC of EUR 0.2 million, (ii) other loans in the Group of
EUR 3.9 million, (iii) other loans of Friendly Finance of EUR 6.8 million and (iv) other loans of TBIF Group of EUR 3.5 million.

This amount reflects the aggregate principal amount of USD325.0 million (as an indicative amount) from the offering of the Notes
translated into Euros. See “Presentation of Financial and Other Information—Currencies.”

Includes currency translation reserve, share base payment reserve and obligatory reserve.

Total capitalization is the sum of (i) total debt, (ii) total equity attributable to our equity holders and (iii) non-controlling interests.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND OPERATING DATA

The financial information set forth herein, has, unless otherwise indicated, been derived from the Financial
Statements. The Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with IFRS, in effect at the time of preparing
the relevant Financial Statements. The financial information set forth herein included certain financial measures
and ratios that are not determined in accordance with IFRS. See “Presentation of Financial and Other
Information.”

The selected consolidated financial information of the Company should also be read in conjunction with the
Financial Statements and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial
Condition.”

Certain amounts and percentages included in this Offering Memorandum have been subject to rounding
adjustments, accordingly, figures shown for the same category presented in different contexts may vary slightly
and figures in certain other contexts may not be the exact arithmetic results of their components as shown herein.

In the selected consolidated statement of comprehensive income data, the selected consolidated statement of
financial position data and the selected consolidated statement of cash flow data:

e the numbers relating to the year ended December 31, 2015 are taken from the 2015 comparatives
contained in the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2016; and

e the numbers relating to the year ended December 31, 2014 are taken from the 2014 comparatives
contained in the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2015.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME DATA

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
(EUR thousands)

Continuing operations
INterest INCOME . . . ottt e et et e e e e e 393155 318285 220333
INETESt EXPENSE . . . v e ottt e e e e e e (38 684) (28 657) (23749)
Netinterest income . ................. ... 0ttt 354471 289628 196 584
Fee and commisSSion INCOME . .. ..ot vttt et 2901 — —
Fee and commission XPenSe . .. ... .....uuetorninen et (809) — —
Net fee and commissionincome ................... .. ... .. ... ....... 2092 — —
Net trading l0SS . .. oot (7 337) (6 988) —
Other INCOME . . . .o o ettt e et e e et e e e e 14 314 3813 2150
Other XPEISE . . . vttt et e et e e e e (2 446) (1752) (4037)
Net impairment losses on loans and receivables ....................... ... (89672) (76964) (54 030)
General administrative XPenSes . . ..o v vttt vttt (190 383) (133 899) (80 020)
Profit before taxes ........ ... ... ... ... .. 81 039 73838 60 647
Corporate income tax for the reporting period ........................... (17 832) (15683) (11639)
Profit from continuing operations ................. ... ... ... .. ...... 63 207 58155 49008
Discontinued operations
Profit from discontinued operations, netoftax ................ ... ....... — 5910 (2748)
Profitfor the period . .. ........ ... ... .. .. .. . . . .. 63 207 64 065 46 260
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of Group . ......... e 62 823 63470 45646

Non-controlling interests(!) ... ... .. . . . . . . 384 595 614
PROFIT . . 63 207 64 065 46 260
Other comprehensive income that is or may be transferred to profit or loss

Net gain on available for sale financial assets: ....................... 5 — —

Reclassification of foreign currency differences on disposal of

SUDSIAIATIES: .« . ottt — (728) (165)

Foreign currency translation differences on foreign operations: ... ....... (4404) (5318) 1422

Other comprenensive INCOME: . .. .......ouuuuu et 4 399) (6 046) 1257
Total comprehensive income for the period .............. .. ... .. ... ... 58 808 58019 47517

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of Group . ........ ... 58 400 57414 47427

Non-controlling interest™) .. ... ... ... .. . . . . 408 605 90
Note:
(1) Non-controlling refers to minority shareholders who own 3% of the shares in our Swedish subsidiary and 20% of the shares in Friendly

Finance.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATA

As of December 31,
2016 2015 2014
(EUR thousands)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ........... ... ... 157 641 56 862 33713
Placements with otherbanks ............. ... ... ... .. ... ... ... 4752 — —
DeriVAtIVES . ot e 11 166 10503 18 626
Loans due from CUStOmers . .. ..........tintii it 493 897 308 288 241 375
Net investment in finance leases .............. ...ttt 13 082 — —
Financial assets available forsale ............... ... ... .. .. .......... 10 589 — 4418
Loans to related parties ... .........oiiiiin i 67 198 13732 134
Investments in aSSOCIALES . . . .o\ v vttt et e 2 080 — —
Prepaid eXpenses . ... ... 5602 2 675 3331
Non-current assets held forsale .............. ... ... . ... i, 8576 — —
Property and equipment ... ........ .. 12 345 4328 2108
Intangible assets and goodwill . ....... ... ... . . . . 83 175 18 030 2751
INCOME taX @SSt . . ..ottt e 16 053 5465 4700
Deferred tax asset . ... ..ottt 23 697 12 941 10 727
Other @SSetS . . oottt 21 531 5382 48 147
Total assets . ... ...ttt 931384 438206 370 030
Liabilities
Loans and bOrrowWIngs . .. ..ottt e 397 183 229462 231624
Deposits from CUStOMETS . ... ...ttt 237 119 9121 —
Income tax liabilities . ... ...... ...t e e 14 633 7 358 6 407
Other Habilities . . . . ..ot e 47 495 19 002 17 344
Liabilities held forsale . ...... ... .. . i 4 809 — 1 646
Total liabilities ........... ... .. .. .. .. . . . . 701239 264943 257 021
Share capital .. ... 35750 35750 35750
Retained earnings . . ...ttt e 232420 171048 107 578
RESIVES . .ot (38753) (34646) (31433)
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Group ................ 229417 172152 111895
Non-controlling iNterests . .. ... ...u. ittt e 728 1111 1114
Total equity . ... ... .. 230145 173263 113009
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities . . . .......................... 931384 438206 370030

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW DATA

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
(EUR thousands)

Net cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities ............... 106 224 74016 (389)
Net cash flows used in investing activities . .................c...ooouen .. (150 625) (52745) (3489)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) financing activities ............... 124 323 1770 15063
Effect of exchange rate fluctuationsoncash. ............ .. ... .. .. .... 236 (621) 2133
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period .................. 56862 34442 21124
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period .................... 137020 56862 34442
Minimum Statutory TESEIVE . .. ... v vttt ettt e 20 621 — —
Total cash on hand and cash at central banks . ........................ 157641 56862 34442
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NET DEBT

As of December 31
2016 2015 2014
(EUR millions)

Cash and cash equivalents ........... ... ittt 157.6 56.9 33.7
Bank loan . ... .. 0.2) (5.9) (6.2)
2015 NoOtes(D L Lo — — (43.4)
2019 NOteS—NON-CUITENL . . . oo\ttt et e et e e e et e ettt i — (167.2) (157.9)
2019 NOtES—CUITENL . . .\t vttt ettt et et e et e e e (194.3) (7.8) (7.3)
SEK NOtes—NON-CUITENT . . . .o\ttt ettt et e i e (38.4) (40.8) —
SEK NOteS—CUITENt . . . . ..ottt e e e (1.2) (1.3) —
2021 NOtES—NON-CUITENL . . . oo\t ettt e et et e et e et e (140.6) — —
2021 NOES—CUITENL . . .\t vttt ettt et et e e e e e (1.8) — —
Friendly Finance Notes—current . ...ttt (2.8) — —
Loans from related parties—non-current .. ..............coovuerenenen... (0.7) 0.7) (12.6)
Loans from related parties—current .. ............. ..t (3.0) 3.0 4.2)
Other 10ans——CUITENt . .. ... ...t e e (10.0) (2.8) —
Other 10ans NON—CUITENT . . . ... ..ottt i e 4.2) — —
Netdebt . ... ... ... . 239.6 172.6 197.9

Notes:

(1) The proceeds from the offering of the 2019 Notes were primarily used to (i) repurchase the 2015 Notes tendered and not validly
withdrawn in the tender offer for the 2015 Notes and (ii) satisfy and discharge any 2015 Notes not so tendered or repurchased (the “2015
Notes Defeasance”). The 2015 Notes Defeasance was completed in August 2014, hence this amount is not included in 2014 net debt.

OTHER FINANCIAL DATA
Year ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014
(EUR millions)

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA:
Profit for the period . ...... ... . . . 63.2 64.1 46.3
Provision for corporate income tax . ............i.i i 17.8 15.7 11.6
INETESt EXPENSE . . v v vttt e e e e e 38.7 28.7 23.8
Depreciation and amortization . ...t 5.1 1.6 0.9
EBITDDA .. 1249 110.0 82.6
Adjustments(h) . .. 12.5 8.6 7.6
Adjusted EBITDA ... ... .. 1374 118.6 90.2
Notes:

(1) Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure that represents EBITDA (profit for the period plus tax, plus interest expense, plus depreciation
and amortization) as adjusted by income/loss from discontinued operations, non-cash gains and losses attributable to movement in the
mark-to-market valuation of hedging obligations under IFRS, goodwill write-offs and certain other one-off or non-cash items. Adjusted
EBITDA, as presented in this Offering Memorandum, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures that are reported by other
companies due to differences in the way that these measures are calculated.

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
(EUR millions)
Summary breakdown of Adjustments to EBITDA
Discontinued Operations . . .. .........uutt et — 5.9 2.7
Neteffect of FX hedging ........ ... .. i 1.3 7.0 39
One-off costs and other prescribed adjustments . ........................ 52 7.5 0.9
Total . ... 12.5 8.6 7.6
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Net loans portfolio (in Euro millions)D) .. ... ... ... . oo ot
Capital/assets ratio® . ... ... e
Capital/net loan portfolio® . ... ... .. .
Interest coverage™ . ... ... ..
Adjusted EBITDA margin® . ... ... .
Profit margin® . ... ...
Return on average equity? .. ... .. ...
Return on average assets® ... ... ...
Operating expenses/interest income ratio® . ........... .. .. .. ... ......
Net impairment to revenue ratiol® ... ... ... . . L
Non-performing loans as a share of value of loans issuedD
TBI capital adequacy ratio . ....... ..ottt
Bank of Bulgaria statutory minimum capital adequacy requirement

Notes:
(1) Gross loan portfolio less provisions for bad debts.

(2) Total equity/total assets. Adjusted for effect of 2015 Notes Defeasance in 2014.

(3) Total equity/net loan portfolio.

(4) Adjusted EBITDA/interest expense.
(5) Adjusted EBITDA/interest income.
(6) Profit before tax/interest income.

As of
December 31,
2016 2015 2014
493.9 308.3 241.4
25% 40% 35%
47% 56% 47%
3.6x 4.1x 3.8x
35% 37% 41%
21% 23% 28%
31% 41% 55%
9% 14% 16%
48% 42% 36%
23% 24% 25%
9.3% 9.0% 8.8%
22.3% 19.5% 18.1%
13.5% 13.5% 13.5%

(7) Profit from continuing operations/average equity (sum of total equity as of the start and end of each period divided by two).
(8) Profit from continuing operations/average assets (sum of total assets as of the start and end of each period divided by two).

(9) General administrative expenses/interest income.
(10) Net impairment losses on loans and receivables/interest income.

(11) Non-performing loans with a delay of over 90 days/value of loans issued. The value of loans issued represents loans issued for the
two-year period before commencement of the 90 day past-due period, e.g., for December 31, 2016: October 1, 2014 to September 30,

2016.
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Introduction

This section presents the unaudited pro forma consolidated income statement for the year ended
December 31, 2016 of the Group and the related explanatory notes (the “Unaudited Pro Forma Financial
Information™).

The purpose of the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information is to simulate, using accounting principles
that are consistent with those used in relation to the preparation of the Group’s published historical consolidated
financial statements, the main effects of the acquisition of the business of TBIF Group on the consolidated
income statement of the Group, as if such acquisition of the business had taken place on January 1, 2016. The
Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information does not give effect to the offering of the Notes hereunder or the
application of the proceeds therefrom.

The Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information addresses a hypothetical situation and, therefore, does not
represent the actual financial position or results of operations of the Group.

As mentioned above, the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information represents a simulation, for
illustrative purposes only, of the main potential impacts that may derive from the acquisition of the business of
TBIF Group. In particular, as pro forma information is prepared to illustrate retrospectively the effects of
transactions that will occur subsequently using generally accepted regulations and reasonable assumptions, there
are limitations that are inherent to the nature of pro forma information; hence, had the acquisition of the business
of TBIF Group taken place on the dates assumed above, the actual effects would not necessarily have been the
same as those presented in the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information.

The Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information is based on our current estimates of, and good faith
assumptions regarding, the adjustments arising from the acquisition of the business of TBIF Group. The
Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information is for informational purposes only and does not purport to represent
or to be indicative of the consolidated results of operations or financial position that the Group would have
reported had the acquisition of the business of TBIF Group been completed as of the date presented, and is not,
and should not be taken as, representative of the Group’s future consolidated results of operations or financial
position, nor does it purport to project the Group’s financial position as of any future date or results of operations
for any future period. The unaudited pro forma financial data was not prepared in accordance with the
requirements of Regulation S-X of the Securities Act, the Prospectus Directive or any generally accepted
accounting standards.

Finally, it should be noted that the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information does not attempt to predict
or estimate the future results of the Group and should not be used for this purpose.
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Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Income Statement for the Year ended December 31, 2016

The following table shows the pro forma adjustments made in order to present the main potential effects of
the acquisition of the business of TBIF Group on the consolidated income statement of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2016.

Audited Unaudited Pro
Consolidated Forma
Group Financial Consolidated
Statements Income
for the Statement for the
year ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
PROFIT OR LOSS 2016 2016 Adjustments
(in thousands of EUR)
IntereSt INCOME . . . ..t e e 393,155 419,066 25911
INEErest EXPeNSe . .« vttt e e (38,684) (40,480) (1,795)
Netinterestincome .................................... 354,471 378,586
Fee and commiSsSion iINCOME . .. ... o, 2,901 8,664 5,763
Fee and commission eXpense . ...............oueuiniennnn.. (809) (1,673) (864)
Net fee and commission income . ...................... ... 2,092 6,991
Nettrading gain .. .........uuttn i (7,337) (6,002) 1,335
Other iNCOME . . ...t 14,314 16,827 2,513
Other eXPense . ... .v.vt ettt e (2,446) (2,437) 9
Net impairment losses on loans and receivables ............... (89,672) (93,216) (3,544)
General administrative eXpenses . ... .....oueuenenennenenen. (190,383) (207,757) (17,375)
Profit beforetaxes ......... ... ... ... ... . ... ... ... .. ... 81,039 92,991
Corporate income tax for the reporting period ................ (17,832) (18,833) (1,001)
Profit for the period ............ .. ... ... .. .. .. ... ... 63,207 74,158
Loss/gains from discontinued
OPEIAtIONS . ot vt ettt e e e e e — —
PROFIT . ... 63,207 74,158 10,952
Non-controlling interests . ... ........c.c.vuiinenennenenan.. 384 384 —
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Group ........... 62,823 73,775 10,952

Notes to the Unaudited Pro forma Financial Information
Basis of preparation

The historical financial information used to prepare the unaudited pro forma consolidated income statement
is derived from:

e the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the years ended December 31,
2016; and

e the audited consolidated financial statements of TBI Bank as of and for the year ended December 31,
2016.

TBI Bank is wholly and directly owned by TBIF Financial Services B.V.

TBIF Financial Services B.V. is a dormant holding company of TBI Bank, and its only major asset is its
shareholding of TBI Bank. For that reason, the financial information in relation to the TBIF Group in this
Offering Memorandum are the audited consolidated financial statements of TBI Bank as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Description of pro forma adjustments made in preparing the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information

The Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information shows a pro forma profit and loss account for Holdco,
assuming TBIF Group was acquired on December 31, 2015. To calculate the pro forma, full year figures for the
group were taken excluding TBI Bank. Full year financial information for TBI Bank was then added and the pro
forma group consolidated. Goodwill arising on the acquisition was assumed to be equal to that arising on the
actual date of the acquisition. On acquisition, fair value adjustments assigned to assets as part of the purchase
price allocation exercise were amortized from the date of acquisition. For the pro forma, the amortization of these
adjustments was assumed to commence on January 1, 2016.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with “Presentation of Financial and
Other Information,” “Capitalization,” “Summary Financial Information and Operating Data,” “Selected
Statistical Information” and the Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum.
Investors should not solely rely on the information contained in this section. The Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS.

The following discussion contains certain forward-looking statements, which are based on the current
beliefs and expectations of our management and involve risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties
could cause our future results to differ materially from those discussed below. See “Cautionary Note Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors” for a discussion of important factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained
in this Offering Memorandum.

Certain amounts and percentages included in this Offering Memorandum have been subject to rounding
adjustments; accordingly, figures shown for the same category presented in different contexts may vary slightly
and figures in certain other contexts may not be exact arithmetic results of their components as shown herein.

OVERVIEW

We are one of the largest online and mobile providers of unsecured consumer loans in our principal
European markets based on market share. Our principal European markets are Latvia, Lithuania, Finland,
Sweden, Denmark, Poland, Georgia and Spain. Our approximately 6.3 million registered online customers
represent the growing number of consumers use alternative financial services because of their convenience or
because they are underserved by more traditional consumer credit providers such as banks and credit card
companies. As a responsible lender, we work in close cooperation with the regulatory authorities in all of the
jurisdictions in which we operate.

We are a diversified provider of consumer loans and currently operate in 16 countries: Argentina, Armenia,
Bulgaria, the Czech Republic, Denmark, Dominican Republic, Finland, Georgia, Latvia, Lithuania, Mexico,
Poland, Romania, Slovakia, Spain and Sweden.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, our interest income was spread across our countries of operation by
the following percentages: Poland, 23.9%; Spain, 14.2%; Latvia, 11.0%; Denmark, 8.9%; Georgia, 8.7%;
Sweden, 6.4%; Finland, 5.6%; and Lithuania, 5.5%. Other countries, including Argentina, Armenia, the Czech
Republic, the Dominican Republic and Mexico accounted for 7.3% of our interest income for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

We offer Single Payment Loans with a term from one day up to 35 days and Installment Loans with a term
from one month up to 24 months via websites and mobile and selected offline channels. In September 2015, we
launched our third product, Credit Line, a revolving credit line, in Finland, and subsequently in Latvia in
September 2016. We also offer a range of products through our banking operations. For the year ended
December 31, 2016, online loans accounted for 64% of our net loan portfolio, whilst bank loans (comprising both
SME and retail loans) attributable to TBIF Group comprised 36% of our net loan portfolio.

As of December 31, 2016, our net loan portfolio, which represents our total loan portfolio less impairment,
was EUR 493.9 million (of which EUR 316.4 million was attributable to our online portfolio which excludes
TBIF Group, and EUR 177.5 million was attributable to TBIF Group), compared to EUR 308.3 million as of
December 31, 2015 and 24 1.4 million as of December 31, 2014.

In August 2016, as part of our strategy to enter new markets and pursue selective expansion opportunities,
the Group acquired TBI Bank (via the acquisition of TBI Bank’s direct parent company, TBIF), a consumer-
focused bank operating in Bulgaria and Romania. This acquisition enhanced the scale of our operations in these
two existing markets. TBI Bank maintains a consumer portfolio, including small-size loans (of a similar profile
in terms of size and maturity to our Installment Loans), Point of Sale financing and Credit Cards, as well as a
portfolio of SME loans, including leasing products. In 2016, the consumer portfolio and SME portfolio
accounted for 68% (62% in 2015) and 32% (38% in 2015), respectively, of TBI Bank’s net loan portfolio. We
believe that having an EU licensed bank within our Group will enable us to diversify our funding and lower
funding costs by accepting deposits, broaden our product range (for example, allowing us to offer credit cards to
our online customers) and operate in EU markets which require a banking license for consumer lending.
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We seek to minimize impairments through a range of advanced data-driven customer assessment
techniques. When impairments do occur, we aim to maximize recovery through an efficient debt collection
process. Our portfolio of loans overdue for more than 90 days (“non-performing loans”) as a share of online
loans issued has remained consistent, and was 9.3% for the year ended December 31, 2016, 9.0% for the year
ended December 31, 2015 and 8.8% for the year ended December 31, 2014. Similarly, our overall net
impairment to revenue ratio was 23% for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 24% for the year ended
December 31, 2015.

In the year ended December 31, 2016, we generated profit before tax (after impairment losses on loans and
receivables and general administrative expenses) of EUR 81.0 million and net profit of EUR 63.2 million. In
2015 and 2014, we generated profit before tax of EUR 73.8 million and EUR 60.6 million, respectively, and net
profit of EUR 64.1 million and EUR46.3 million, respectively.

We have strong EBITDA generation, recording EBITDA of EUR 124.9 million, EUR 110.0 million and
EUR 82.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively (with an EBITDA margin
of 31.8%, 34.5% and 37.5% respectively for those years). We are well capitalized, with total equity of EUR
230.1 million and EUR 173.3 million as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively (with an
equity to net customer loans ratio of 47% and 56% respectively for those years). TBIF Group’s capital adequacy
ratio was 22.3% and 19.5% as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

REPORTING SEGMENTS

We have the following reporting segments under IFRS: Latvia, Lithuania, Finland, Sweden, Denmark,
Poland, Georgia, Spain, Friendly Finance OU (“Friendly Finance”) and TBIF Group. In 2014 and 2013, we
reported six segments, and in 2015, we introduced Spain and Denmark as separate reporting segments. In 2016,
TBIF Group and Friendly Finance were introduced as new reporting segments.

In our Consolidated Financial Statements, we present in our segment information an additional item labeled
“Other,” which includes Argentina, Armenia, Bulgaria, the Czech Republic, the Dominican Republic and
Mexico.

Our Latvia reporting segment corresponds to our intermediate holding company, AS 4finance, which holds
our operating companies in Lithuania, Finland, Sweden, Denmark, Poland, Georgia, and Spain. As such, the
revenue and profit before tax of our Latvia segment includes both interest income received from its operations
and dividends received from subsidiaries of AS 4finance, recorded separately as “internal revenue”. Accordingly
the profit before tax of our Latvia segment is not comparable to the profit before tax of our other segments.

KEY FACTORS AFFECTING RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Loan amounts issued and movements in interest rates charged on loans

We generate substantially all of our net interest income from our portfolio of Single Payment Loans and
Installment Loans. Our results of operations, therefore, are affected by loan amounts issued and the interest rates
we are able to charge on our loans.

An increase in loan amounts issued has historically had a positive impact on our results of operations.
During the relevant periods covered herein, our business has undergone organic expansion with online loan
amounts issued (excluding TBIF Group and Friendly Finance) increasing to EUR 1,091 million in the year ended
December 31, 2016 from EUR 1,062 million in the year ended December 31, 2015 and EUR 804.6 million in the
year ended December 31, 2014. The significant increase in online loan amounts issued during the period under
review (excluding the TBIF Group and Friendly Finance) was attributable to the expansion of our operations
within existing jurisdictions and in new jurisdictions. We operated in 16 jurisdictions as of December 31, 2016,
compared to 10 as of January 1, 2014. Our online customer base increased to 6.3 million registered customers
(with a further 1.4 million registered acquired as a result of our acquisition of TBIF Group) as of December 31,
2016 from 0.5 million registered customers as of January 1, 2012, and the total number of online loans granted
increased to 13.4 million loans as of December 31, 2016 from 1.0 million loans as of January 1, 2012. See “—
Key Performance Indicators”, below, for a discussion of the volumes of loans issued in our eight key
jurisdictions (i.e., the eight of our ten reporting business segments that represent countries of operations,
excluding TBIF Group and Friendly Finance).
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An increase in the interest rates that we charge will generally have a positive impact on our interest income,
provided such increase does not lead to a reduction in loan amounts issued. In the year ended December 31,
2016, the average interest rate for our online net loans (calculated as the percentage of annualized interest income
over the average online net loan portfolio) paid by customers was 120%, compared to 116% in the year ended
December 31, 2015 and 105% in the year ended December 31, 2014. TBIF Group’s average interest rate is a
blend of consumer lending (cash lending, point-of-sale lending and credit cards) and SME / leasing, with average
annualized interest rate on loans to customers of 27% in the year ended December 31, 2016. The increase in
average interest rates during the period under review, together with the increase in loan amounts issued during
the period, contributed to an increase in interest income to EUR 393.2 million in the year ended December 31,
2016 from EUR 318.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2015 and from EUR 220.3 million in the year
ended December 31, 2014.

A decrease in the interest rates that we charge, whether caused by increased competition in the markets in
which we operate, interest rate caps set by regulatory authorities, macroeconomic developments or a combination
of these or any other factors, may have either a negative or a positive impact on our results of operations. A
decrease in interest rates would have a negative impact on our results of operations to the extent such decrease is
not offset by growth in loan amounts issued, greater cost efficiencies or a change in product portfolio. However,
a decrease in interest rates may have a positive effect on our results of operations to the extent the decline in rates
expands our customer base and therefore contributes to an offsetting increase in loan amounts issued.

Loan portfolio performance, and sales of loan portfolios

The ability to collect loan payments on a timely basis and recover debts that are overdue has a direct impact
on the performance of our loan portfolio and on the level of net impairment charges taken during a reporting
period.

The collection of loan payments on a timely basis depends, in part, on the strength of our underwriting and
credit approval process, including the effectiveness of our proprietary scoring system, as well as on changes to
our lending rules, such as restrictions on lending based on the age and past credit history of potential customers.
We use an automated system to register, identify and process the applications of customers and a unique data-
driven scoring system for assessing the creditworthiness of loan applicants. Our underwriting and credit approval
process enables us to be flexible and react quickly to changes in the market. We aim to set acceptance thresholds
that both manage our risks and maximize our profitability. Our non-performing loans as a percentage of issued
online loans was 9.3% as of December 31, 2016 compared to 9.0% as of December 31, 2015 and 8.8% as of
December 31, 2014.

As we expand into new markets, our initial customers represent on average a higher default risk than
returning or new customers in existing jurisdictions. Generally, this higher default risk is because we do not have
the same quality of behavioral evidence about customers in new jurisdictions that we have about customers in
existing jurisdictions. However, over time and as we acquire more information about customers in new markets,
our data-driven underwriting and debt collection policies in those markets generally improve. This is illustrated
by the trend in net impairment losses in Poland, where we commenced our operations in July 2012. Initially, net
impairment losses in Poland increased from EUR 5.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013
(representing 21.5% of interest income in Poland) to EUR 20.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
(representing 34.1% of interest income in Poland). Net impairment losses in Poland decreased to EUR
15.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2015 (representing 19.6% of interest income in Poland) and
increased to EUR 19.2 million in the year ended December 31, 2016 which as a percentage of interest income in
Poland was 20.4% as the Polish business matured.

We have also developed an efficient system for collecting non-performing loans which has contributed to
relatively low “loss given default” ratios (i.e., the share of loans and receivables lost in the event of default) of
57% in the year ended December 31, 2016, 53% in the year ended December 31, 2015 and 47% in the year ended
December 31, 2014. See “Business—Process—Debt Collection.”

There are structural variations in the loss given default ratio across our different markets, such that an
increase in the share of lending in countries such as Spain and Poland with higher than average ratios, for
example, will increase the overall Group ratio. See “—Key Performance Indicators” for loss given default ratio by
country, “Business—4finance Group’s Products—Single Payment Loans and Installment Loans” for further
discussion of our underwriting, credit approval and debt collection processes and “—Discussion of Critical
Accounting Policies—Impairment” for a description of our impairment policies.
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We also generate profit from the sale of certain of our loan portfolios that are non-performing, typically
once they are between one and two years overdue. The profit from loan portfolio sales, which reflects an over-
provisioning compared to the net asset value, is now recorded as a reduction of impairment losses, as per the
table below. Overall net impairment losses represented 23% of interest income for the year ended December 31,
2016, a reduction from 24% for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Year ended
December 31,

2016 2015
(in millions of EUR)

Impairment [0SSes 0N 10ANS . . . ..ottt e 105.8 84.7
Over provision on debt portfolio (portfolio net sale proceeds) . ....................... (7.6) (2.8)
Recovery from written-off loans .. ... ... . . (8.5) (5.0)
Total . . 89.7 77.0

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we generated EUR 7.6 million in net gains from the sale of certain
of our non-performing loans compared to EUR 2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Regulatory environment

We operate in a complex regulatory environment currently spanning 16 jurisdictions in relation to consumer
loans, consumer rights protection, debt collection and personal data processing, among other areas. Changes in
the regulatory environment may have a significant impact on our results of operations. See “Regulatory
Framework” for a description of the regulatory framework in our principal jurisdictions, including new
regulations in Latvia, Lithuania and Poland, that came into force in 2016. Certain jurisdictions where we operate
have imposed or are considering imposing caps on APR or total cost of credit, which may have either a positive
or negative effect on our operations. The net effect of these caps depends on several factors including our ability
to redesign our products in compliance with new regulations, the level of interest rates we are able to charge, the
response of our competitors in that market and changes in consumer behavior.

For example, in Lithuania, loan amounts issued decreased from EUR 100.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015 to EUR 8.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, representing a decrease of 91.6%
due to the introduction of more restrictive legislation which introduced significant affordability testing for new
loans. Similarly, interest income in Lithuania decreased from EUR 35.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2016 to EUR 21.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, representing a decrease of 38.4%. The fact that
the decrease in interest income in Lithuania as a result of these events was significantly smaller than the decrease
in the amount of loans issued, reflected the fact we had a roughly equal share of Installment Loans and Single
Payment loans in our portfolio, meaning that the net interest yielding portfolio only decreased minimally during
the year, highlighting the benefits of our diversified product offering in that market.

There are also associated costs with dealing with changes in the regulatory environment that have an impact
on our profitability, such costs relating to internal and external legal analysis and increased expense on IT
solutions. In addition, increased regulation has led us to increase our expenses related to compliance, legal and
consultancy costs, IT costs and legal and regulatory personnel. Our ability to adapt to increased regulation is an
important factor in mitigating the impact of such regulations on our business. For example, if regulators
introduce caps on pricing, we can adjust our marketing spend and risk cut-offs to continue to operate in a
profitable manner despite the lower revenue yield per customer. In Georgia, a 100% cap on effective interest rate
was introduced in January 2017. Previously, we charged 15% for a 30-day loan, with a “first loan for free” offer
for new customers (resulting in a blended average yield of 13% per month). After the cap became effective, the
pricing has been limited to 6% for a 30 day loan. To adjust for this change, we have withdrawn the “first loan for
free” offer and reduced our marketing spend, but still received an increased number of applications (driven by the
lower pricing which increases natural demand) and tightened our acceptance criteria for new customers. Whilst
the results in terms of profitability will depend on how extension behavior and repayments develop in future
months, we believe our ability to adjust these key levers on a real-time basis will mitigate the initial impact on
our profitability from the lower pricing.

Similarly, notwithstanding the caps on interests rates in Poland, introduced in the first quarter of 2016 (see
“Regulatory Framework—Poland”), we were able to adapt to such regulatory changes, recording interest income
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in Poland of EUR 94.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to EUR 81.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2015, representing an increase of 15.8%. In Latvia, in the fourth quarter of 2016, in
response to the regulator clarifying their position on extension pricing, we changed the pricing of our extensions
on Single Payment Loans from 12.5% to 7.5%. We have seen a minor reduction in interest income in Latvia in
the fourth quarter of 2016 as a result of such price changes.

Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions have been a key driver for the changes between our results of operations in the year ended
December 31, 2016 and the year ended December 31, 2015.

In August 2016, the Group acquired TBIF Group, a consumer-focused bank operating in Bulgaria and
Romania for a purchase price of EUR 82 million. TBIF Group maintains a consumer portfolio, including
small-size loans of a similar profile (in terms of size and maturity) to our Installment Loans, point of sale
financing and credit cards, as well as an SME portfolio, including leasing. Bank loans to consumers and SME
customers from TBI made up 36% of our net loan portfolio by product for the year ended December 31, 2016.
See “—Overview” for more information. In June 2016, the Group acquired 80% of the share capital of Friendly
Finance, an online consumer lender active in the Czech Republic, Poland, Spain, Slovakia and Georgia from
Tirona, our controlling shareholder, for a purchase price of EUR 28.8 million. The acquisition of Friendly
Finance added additional brands to our portfolio and an additional database of over one million registered
customers. Friendly Finance contributed EUR 26.2 million to our net loan portfolio, representing 5.3% of our net
loan portfolio as of December 31, 2016.

The acquisitions of TBIF Group and Friendly Finance have contributed significantly to our results of
operations. For example, as of December 31, 2016, our net loan portfolio, which represents our total loan
portfolio less impairment, was EUR 493.9 million (of which EUR 177.5 million was attributable to TBIF Group
and EUR 26.2 million was attributable to Friendly Finance), compared to EUR 308.3 million as of December 31,
2015. In addition, our interest income for the year ended December 31, 2016 increased to EUR 393.2 million
from EUR 318.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, primarily due to the contribution to interest
income from Friendly Finance of EUR 13.9 million and from TBIF Group of EUR 19.7 million.

The acquisition of TBI, in particular, has had, and may have, additional impacts on our results of operations.
Over the period under review, TBI’s cost of funding was lower than the Group’s overall cost of funding. To the
extent that this trend continues in the future, the presence of TBI as part of the Group may ultimately lower the
Group’s cost of funding. In addition, we have also generated new categories of income as a result of the
acquisition. For example, we recorded net fee and commission income for the year ended December 31, 2016, to
take into account income from TBI such as guarantees and letters of credit, transfers and transactions, and
agents’ commissions originating from an insurance agency contract.

As a result of our acquisition of TBIF Group which have a lower ratio of net impairment losses to interest
income, the increase in net impairment losses was slightly lower than the increase in interest income, reflecting
generally stable asset quality and the inclusion of TBI’s banking operations. Net impairment losses represented
22.8% of interest income for the year ended December 31, 2016, a reduction from 24.2% for the year ended
December 31, 2015.

There were no discontinued operations in the year ended December 31, 2016. In January 2015, a decision to
discontinue operations in Estonia was made as part of a strategic decision to place greater focus on markets
which provide a higher return on investment. In December 2014, a decision to sell the Group’s operations in the
Russian Federation was made. The decision was primarily driven by political and economic uncertainties in the
market. In the first half of 2015, the Russian Federation business was sold to a related party. This resulted in a
gain of EUR 6.4 million. In 2014, the North America business segment was sold to a related party outside of the
reporting group. This resulted in a gain of EUR 2.3 million.

Also on 1 January 2015, the Group sold 85% of its effectively discontinued operations in the United
Kingdom. Total loss from the sale of the United Kingdom operations amounted to EUR 0.2 million.

Product and country mix

Eight of our ten reportable segments represent the principal countries in which we operate (see “—Business
Segments” for more information). These segments (Latvia, Lithuania, Finland, Sweden, Denmark, Poland,
Georgia and Spain) are generally orientated towards different customer profiles and acquisition channels, and
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therefore have different customer characteristics, business models, risks, and profitability. Any change in the mix
of these jurisdictions will have an effect on our revenue and profitability. Upon entering a new jurisdiction, we
expect our loan issuance and revenues to be low. As we become more established, we seek to build higher
lending volumes and reach profitability. Whilst we acclimatize to a new business environment, we build
scorecards and collect data on a broad range of customers in order to establish our underwriting criteria for the
new market. As we establish in a new market, our financial profile changes, reflecting the more creditworthy
customer base that naturally emerges.

For example, at the initial marketing stage in a new country, we can control and adjust how much we spend
(and through which channels) to help drive a certain volume and type of potential customers to our websites. This
drives our application volumes.

At the underwriting stage, we can control and adjust our scorecards to change the credit scoring thresholds
for being granted a loan. This helps drive our acceptance rate, which together with the cost of marketing from the
initial stage forms the “cost per acquisition”.

As we develop in each market we fine tune these key operating levers to get the appropriate balance of cost
of acquisition and cost of risk to ensure we have optimal, and profitable, ‘unit economics’ for each product in
each market.

For example, increases in activity in a newer jurisdiction will mean higher revenue, but also, at least
initially, a higher default rate. In Spain, interest income increased from EUR 14.4 million to EUR 35.4 million to
EUR 56.0 million in the years ended December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016 respectively. Simultaneously, net
impairment losses also increased over the same period, from EUR 7.8 million to EUR 11.0 million to
EUR 17.4 million in the years ending December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively. A similar trend occurred
in Denmark, another of our newer markets. Interest income increased in Denmark from EUR 13.0 million to
EUR 22.0 million to EUR 34.8 million in the years ended December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively.
Concurrently, net impairment losses increased from EUR 2.7 million to EUR 5.8 million to EUR 9.6 million in
the years ending December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively.

Notwithstanding the increase in higher default rates as we develop in a new jurisdiction, our profitability
often increases as a result of the factors described above. For example, in Spain, our profit before tax increased
from a loss of EUR 5.4 million to a profit of EUR 3.2 million to EUR 7.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively. Similarly, in Denmark, our profit before tax increased from
EUR 5.9 million to EUR 9.3 million to EUR 13.4 million for the years ending December 31, 2014, 2015 and
2016, respectively. Our operations in new jurisdictions mature over time as our customer base, presence and
market share grows because returning customers represent an increasing proportion of lending volumes. For
these returning customers, the cost of acquisition is substantially lower (as they have already used our product
before and so are familiar with the brand) and the cost of risk is lower.

Currency risk

As of December 31, 2016, 71% of our net loans and advances due from customers were denominated in
non-Euro currencies. Our liabilities mainly comprise loans and borrowings denominated in US dollars, Swedish
Kronor and Euros, with US dollar-denominated loans and borrowings accounting for 49% of our liabilities as of
December 31, 2016. Therefore, we are subject to certain shifts in currency valuations, namely, the depreciation
against the US Dollar of the other currencies in which we extend loans and advances, and the depreciation
against the Euro, which is our reporting currency, of the other currencies. See “—Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Risk Management—Currency risk” for more information.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS—BUSINESS VOLUMES

Our key performance indicators in terms of business volume include (i) the number of registered customers;
(ii) the loan amounts issued; and (iii) the breakdown of loan issuance by product. The number of registered
customers reflects the number of customers who have applied for a loan, regardless of acceptance, and whose
contact information we retain. The loan amounts issued reflects the total amount of new loans issued during a
period. The breakdown of issuance by product represents the split between Single Payment Loans and
Installment Loans (and Line of Credit, where applicable). The table below summarizes these key performance
indicators for our eight key jurisdictions for the periods indicated.

Year ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Poland

Number of registered customers (in thousands) ............. .. .. ....cciuon... 1325 1097 811

Loan amounts issued (in millions of EUR) ... ...... ... 384.3 310.1 247.0
Share of Single Payment LOGNS . .. ........ ... ... 92% 98% 98%
Share of Installment Loans .. ......... ... ... 8% 2% 2%

Georgia

Number of registered customers (in thousands) ............. .. .. ..coiiinen... 885 724 459

Loan amounts issued (in millions of EUR) . .......c. . i 119.1 1284 76.5
Share of Single Payment LOGNS . .. ...........uuuiuuuunnnanenennn.. 100% 100% 100%
Share of Installment Loans . ............ ... . i, 0% 0% 0%

Latvia

Number of registered customers (in thousands) . ............c..c..uiienennenon. 482 460 428

Loan amounts issued (in millions of EUR) ... ...... ... 127.5 1245 107.7
Share of Single Payment LOGNS . .. ........ ... ... 76% 76% 73%
Share of Installment Loans . .......... ... ..., 23% 24% 27%
Share of Line of Credit LoanS .. ........ ... ... 1% 0% 0%

Lithuania

Number of registered customers (in thousands) .............. ..o iiiineenenon. 409 396 356

Loan amounts issued (in millions of EUR) ... ...... ... 8.5 100.6 73.3
Share of Single Payment LOGNS . .. ........ ..o ... 47% 50% 66%
Share of Installment Loans .. ......... ... ..., 53% 50% 34%

Finland

Number of registered customers (in thousands) ............. .. .. .. ..., 253 235 208

Loan amounts issued (in millions of EUR) ... ... 88.4 89.2 93.0
Share of Single Payment LOANS . .. ........ .. o, 95% 93% 93%
Share of Installment Loans . ............. . ... 0% 6% 7%
Share of Line of Credit Loans .. .......... ... ... 5% 1% 0%

Sweden

Number of registered customers (in thousands) ............. .. .. .. ciuinen... 162 143 116

Loan amounts issued (in millions of EUR) . .......c. .. 63.8 105.5 92.9
Share of Single Payment LOANS ... ........ ..o e, 73% 68% 77%
Share of Installment Loans . .......... ... . ... 27% 32% 23%

Spain

Number of registered customers (in thousands) .............c..c..uiinennenon. 605 408 219

Loan amounts issued (in millions of EUR) . ........ ... 1294 92.6 44.1
Share of Single Payment LOGNS . .. ........ ... ... 97% 100% 100%
Share of Installment Loans . .......... ... ... 3% 0% 0%

Denmark

Number of registered customers (in thousands) ............. .. .. ..couiiinon... 160 125 83

Loan amounts issued (in millions of EUR) . .......c.. i 101.8 74.5 42.3
Share of Single Payment LOANS ... ........ ..o, 78% 88% 100%
Share of Installment Loans . .......... ... . ... 22% 12% 0%

As of December 31, 2016 (compared to December 31, 2015), the number of registered customers increased
significantly in Poland, Spain, Georgia and Denmark mainly due to marketing activities designed to grow our
customer base in these markets. Similarly, our marketing activities prompted a significant increase to the number
of registered customers during the previous year, as at December 31, 2015 (compared to December 31, 2014), in
particular in the four markets discussed above.

Loan amounts issued have increased in certain markets and reduced in others for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2015. The most significant reduction was in
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Lithuania, where more restrictive legislation implemented on February 1, 2016 introduced significant
affordability testing for new loans, resulted in a market-wide reduction in volumes. See “—Key Factors Affecting
Results of Operations—Regulatory Environment” for more information on how new regulations in Lithuania
have impacted our operations. Likewise, loan amounts issued increased in certain markets and decreased in
others for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. The most
significant increases to loan amounts issued were in Spain and Denmark, where we placed a greater focus on
expanding our operations in these relatively new markets.

Installment Loans grew as a share of loan amounts issued in the year ended December 31, 2016 compared
with the year ended December 31, 2015 in Poland and Denmark in particular given the recent launch of
Installment loans in those markets. Similarly, Installment Loans also grew as a share of loan amounts issued in
the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended December 31, 2014, in particular in Denmark
(due to its launch in 2015) and in Sweden and Lithuania (due to the increased marketing of our Installment
Loans). We discontinued Installment Loans in Finland in late 2015 for strategic reasons. We may re-launch
Installment Loans in Finland depending on market evolution.

The table below provides further key metrics for our eight key jurisdictions for the periods indicated.

Year ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014
(in millions of EUR, except

percentages)

Latvia
Profit before tax() . ... 41.8 36.0 21.0
Net loan portfolio . .. ...t 48.7 50.2 51.2
Average interest rate on 10ans to CUSIOMErS ... .........vuuinerninenennnnen .. 87% 87% 82%
Loss givendefault ...... ... ... . . . . 35% 39% 36%
Poland
Profit before tax ... ... ... . 31.6 31.7 13.4
Net loan portfolio ... ... 81.4 69.1 54.6
Average interest rate on loans to CUSIOMErS . ... ...........ouuirninenenennen .. 125% 131% 133%
Loss given default ... ... ... . . 64% 66% 64%
Lithuania
Profit before tax ... ... 10.2 11.7 16.1
Net loan portfolio .. ... ... 22.4 52.4 38.0
Average interest rate on 10ans to CUSTOMETS . ... ..o vt vttt 58% 78% 74%
Loss givendefault . ....... .. .. . . 55% 40% 33%
Sweden
Profit before tax . ... 12.2 10.0 9.2
Netloan portfolio .. ... ... 22.4 32.0 24.1
Average interest rate on 10ans to CUSTOMEIS . ... ...t vttt 93% 93% 96%
Loss givendefault . ....... .. .. 42% 54% 52%
Finland
Profit before tax ... ... ... 7.2 5.6 6.5
Net loan portfolio . . . ...t e 19.3 22.1 20.9
Average interest rate on 1oans to CUSIOMErS ... ..........ouirernineneneenen .. 106% 100% 106%
Loss given default ... ... ... . . 47% 46% 38%
Spain
Profit before tax .. ... e 7.3 3.2 5.4
Net loan portfolio . ... ..o 26.3 20.1 11.4
Average interest rate on loans to CUStOMers . ..................ooiiuinannon... 242%  226% 169%
Loss givendefault ... ... .. .. . . 76% 76% 80%
Georgia
Profit before tax . ... 10.7 26.5 11.9
Net loan portfolio . ... ... 18.1 26.5 22.1
Average interest rate on 10ans to CUSTOMETS .. ... vt vttt een 154% 163% 158%
Loss givendefault . ....... .. .. 68% 49% 40%
Demark
Profit before tax .. ... ... 13.4 9.3 59
Net loan portfolio . .. ...t 32.5 23.7 13.2
Average interest rate on 10ans to CUSIOMErS ... .........vuuinerninenennenen .. 124% 119% 120%
Loss givendefault ........ ... . . . . 51% 48% 42%
Note:
(1) Includes intra-Group dividends received from subsidiaries of AS 4finance, recorded as internal revenue. See “—Reporting Segments”

above.
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DESCRIPTION OF CERTAIN INCOME STATEMENT LINE ITEMS

3

Below is a description of key line items from our income statement. See “—Discussion of Critical
Accounting Policies” and the notes to our Financial Statements for further discussion of the accounting treatment
of certain of these items.

Interest income

Interest income consists mainly of interest income from loans, and to a lesser extent penalty or late interest
charged to customers. Interest income from loans is recognized using the effective interest rate method. See
“Critical Accounting Policies—Income and expense recognition—Interest income and expense” for a description
of the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method uses the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the outstanding loan to the carrying
amount of such loan. Fees are recognized on a cash basis only when received.

Interest income from penalty or late interest charged to customers accounted for 9.2% and 10.3%,
respectively, of our total interest income in the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 respectively.

Interest expense

Interest expense primarily consists of interest payments on our outstanding notes, bank loans and other
loans. Interest expense is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method
uses the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of
the outstanding borrowing to the carrying amount of such borrowing.

Net interest income

Net interest income is interest income less interest expense.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income represents agents’ commissions, and transfers and transaction.

Fee and commission expense

Fee and commission expense represents agents’ commissions and bank transactions.

Net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income is fee and commission income less fee and commission expense.

Goodwill write-off

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of our share in the net
identifiable assets of the acquired entity as of the acquisition date. We write-off previously recognized goodwill
if management concludes there is a reasonable degree of doubt concerning the future profitability of the acquired
assets.

Net impairment losses on loans and receivables

Net impairment losses on loans and receivables represent the sum of impairment losses on loans extended to
customers, net proceeds from debt sales and write-offs of loans (i.e., any loan that is still not repaid after two
years), less any recoveries on loans written off. See “—Discussion of Critical Account Policies—Impairment” for
a description of our impairment policies and procedures.

General administrative expenses

General administrative expenses include marketing and sponsorship costs, personnel costs (including
customer service and debt collection expenses related to in-house debt collection activities), application
inspection costs, information technology expenses (including continuing investments in automation), debt
collection costs related to the use of external debt collection agencies, communication expenses, bank services
and rent and utilities.
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Other income/(expense)

In the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016 (including
comparative financial information for the year ended December 31, 2015), other income includes interest
income, income from services, rent income, income from insurance brokers activities, other income from clients,
and proceeds from share sales. Other expense represents cost of services rendered, and impairment of other
assets.

In the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 (including
comparative financial information for the year ended December 31, 2014), other income includes net gains from
debt portfolio sales, interest income, and income from services. Other expense represents net foreign exchange
loss / (gain), financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and cost of services rendered.

Because of this change in the way we record gains from portfolio sales in our audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2016, the “Other income/expense” line item in our comparative
financial information for 2015 included as part of the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2016 is not directly comparable to the “Other income/expense” line item included in our audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 and comparative financial information
for 2014. Our discussion and analysis of changes in income statement line items below is based, for 2016 and
2015, on our audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016 (and comparative
financial information for 2015) and, for 2015 and 2014, on our audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2015 (and comparative financial information for 2014).

Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax comprises current and deferred taxes.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 COMPARED TO THE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

The table below sets forth our results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2015.

Year ended
December 31,
2016 2015
(in millions of
EUR)
Continuing operations
Interest inCOME . ... ..ot e e e 393.2 318.3
INterest EXPensSe . . ... ..vt it e (38.7) (28.7)
Netinterestincome . ................. ... iiiniiiriniininnnn.. 3545 289.6
Fee and commission inCome . ...ttt 2.9 —
Fee and commission €Xpense . ... .........vuvreninennenenennnan.. (0.8) —
Net fee and commissionincome . ............................... 2.1 —
Net trading 1oSS . . ..o vt (7.3) (7.0)
Other iNCOME . ... ..ttt e et 14.3 3.8
Other EXPEeNSE . . ot vt ittt e e e e e (2.4) (1.8)
Net impairment losses on loans and receivables .................... (89.7) (77.0)
General adminiStrative €Xpenses . .. .. ..vvv vt v e ene e enenennnn . (190.4) (133.4)
Profit beforetaxes .. ......... ... .. ... . . .. ... 81.0 73.8
Income tax for the reporting period . ............ .. ... .. .. . ... (17.8) (15.7)
Profit from continuing operations ............................. 63.2 58.2
Discontinued operations
Profit from discontinued operations, netof tax ..................... 0.0 5.9
Profit for the period ............... ... ... ... . ... ... .. ... ... 63.2 64.1
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of Group . ...t 62.8 63.5
Non-controlling interestsV) .. ... ... ... . . i 0.4 0.6
PROFIT 63.2 64.1
Other comprehensive income that is or may be transferred to profit or loss
Net gain on available for sale financial assets: .. ................ 0.0 0.0
Reclassification of foreign currency differences on disposal of
SUDSIAIATIES: . .ot (0.0) 0.7
Foreign currency translation differences on foreign operations: . ... 4.4) (5.3)
Other comprehensive inCOMe: .. ..........c.ccouiiuuuuenenen.. 4.4) (6.0)
Total comprehensive income for the period . . .................... 58.8 58.0
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of Group . ........ .. ... i 58.4 57.4
Non-controlling interest) . . ... .. ... .. ... . 0.4 0.6

Note:
(1) Non-controlling interest refers to minority shareholders who own 3% of the shares in each of our Swedish and Lithuanian operating
subsidiaries and 20% of the shares in Friendly Finance for 2016.

Interest income

Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 393.2 million, a 23.5% increase compared
to EUR 318.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, reflecting an increase in the average balance of
outstanding net loans and the addition of the loan portfolios of Friendly Finance and TBIF Group, which
contributed EUR 13.9 million and EUR 19.7 million of interest income, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2016. The average balance of outstanding net online loans, in the year ended December 31, 2016
was EUR 299.2 million, an 8.9% increase compared to EUR 274.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2015.
The increase in the average balance of outstanding net online loans was mainly attributable to growth in loan
amounts issued to EUR 1,156.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2016 from EUR 1,064.3 million in the
year ended December 31, 2015, which, in turn, was mainly due to the expansion of operations in Poland, Spain,
Denmark, and the acquisition of Friendly Finance. The average interest rate on our online loans to customers
increased to 120% in the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to 116% in the year ended December 31,
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2015, which was mainly driven by our expansion in Poland, Denmark, Georgia and Spain, where average interest
rates were relatively higher than in more mature jurisdictions, such as Latvia, Sweden and Lithuania. This effect
more than offset an increase in the share of Installment Loans in our portfolio which, on average, have a lower
interest rate compared to Single Payment Loans.

The following table sets forth interest income by segment for the years ended December 31, 2016 and

December 31, 2015.
Interest income
% of % of
total total
2016 revenues 2015 revenues
(in millions of EUR, except percentages)
Latvia. . ... 43.1 11% 44.2 14%
Lithuania ......... ... e 21.7 6% 35.2 11%
Finland . . ... ... . . 22.0 6% 21.6 7%
Sweden . ... 25.2 6% 26.2 8%
Denmark ......... . ... . .. . 34.8 9% 22.0 7%
Poland ...... ... .. . . 94.0 24% 81.2 25%
GEOTZIA . v vttt e e e e 343 9% 39.7 12%
SPaAIN .o 56.0 14% 35.6 11%
Friendly Finance ........... .. .. .. .. .. 13.9 4% n/a —
TBIFGroup ... 19.7 5% n/a —
Other(D . .. 28.5 _6% 12.6 _5%
Discontinued operations® ... .......... ... .. .. . ... n/a — 0.3 0%
Total . ... . .. . 393.2 @% 318.6 @%
Notes:

(1) Other includes unallocated headquarters and IT costs, and other operating entities in Bulgaria, the Czech Republic, Romania, Argentina
and Armenia. Other also includes Spain and Denmark for the years ended December 31, 2014.

(2) We discontinued operations in Estonia in March 2015, discontinued operations in Russia in December 2014 and discontinued operations
in the United Kingdom and North America in 2013.

Interest income generated in the following countries increased by the percentages indicated for the year
ended December 31, 2016, compared to the year ended December 31, 2015:

Denmark (58.2%), primarily due to significant growth in volumes of issued loans, both in our Single
Payment Loans product and Installment Loans, which were launched in Denmark in the third quarter of
2015;

Spain (57.3%), primarily due to continued growth in volumes of issued loans, particularly from
returning customers;

Poland (15.8%), primarily due to growth in Installment Loans which were re-launched at the end of
2015 as well as continued growth in our Single Payment Loan product in Poland; and

Finland (1.9%), primarily due to a consistent performance of our Finnish operations notwithstanding
that we ceased offering Installment Loans in Finland in 2015.

Interest income generated in the following countries decreased by the percentages indicated for the year
ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2015:

Lithuania (38.3%), primarily due to the introduction of more restrictive legislation which introduced
significant affordability testing for new loans;

Georgia (13.6%), primarily due to a slight reduction in the volumes of issued loans and a reduction in
asset quality;

Sweden (3.8%), primarily due to lower volumes of issued loans in the second half of 2016 driven by a
lower spend on marketing; and

Latvia (2.5%), primarily due to a slight reduction in the volumes of issued loans.
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Interest expense

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 38.7 million, a 34.8% increase compared
to EUR 28.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, reflecting an increase in the average balance of our
overall level of indebtedness to EUR 313.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2016 from
EUR 230.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2015 as a result of issuing the 2021 Notes in May 2016 and
November 2016.

Net interest income

Our net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 354.5 million, a 22.4% increase
compared to EUR 289.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, reflecting the corresponding increases in
interest income and interest expense discussed above.

The ratio of interest expense to interest income increased to 9.8% for the year ended December 31, 2016
from 9.0% for the year ended December 31, 2015, in line with the increase in our loans and borrowings during
the same periods.

Fee and commission income

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we generated fee and commission income of EUR 2.9 million. This
was primarily attributable to the acquisition of TBIF Group, and included EUR 2.1 million in agents’
commissions, EUR 0.7 million in transfers and transactions, and EUR 0.1 million to other fee and commission
income. We did not record any fee and commission income for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Fee and commission expense

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we recorded fee and commission expense of EUR 0.8 million. This
was primarily attributable to the acquisition of TBIF Group, and included agents’ commissions of
EUR 0.4 million, bank transactions amounting to EUR 0.3 million, and other fee and commission expenses of
EUR 0.1 million. We did not record any fee and commission expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Net fee and commission income

Our net fee and commission income for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 2.1 million. We did
not record net fee and commission income for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Net impairment losses on loans and receivables

Net impairment losses for the year ended December 31, 2016 were EUR 89.7 million, a 16.5% increase
compared to EUR 77.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. The increase in net impairment losses was
slightly lower than the increase in interest income, reflecting generally stable asset quality and the inclusion of
banking operations as a result of our acquisition of TBIF Group which have a lower ratio of net impairment
losses to interest income. Net impairment losses represented 22.8% of interest income for the year ended
December 31, 2016, a reduction from 24.2% for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Year ended
December 31,
2016 2015
(imons M)
Impairment lossesonloans ................. .. .. ... .... 105.8 84.7
Over provision on debt portfolio (portfolio net sale proceeds) . . . (7.6) (2.8)
Recovery from written-off loans ... ....................... 8.5 (5.0
Total .. ... ... . 89.7 77.0

General administrative expenses

General administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 were EUR 190.4 million, a 42.2%
increase compared to EUR 133.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. The increase in general and
administrative expenses as a proportion of interest income primarily reflected both the Group’s investment in the
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growth of existing businesses, as well as the impact of including the higher cost base of Friendly Finance (due to
its earlier stage of development) and TBIF Group (due to its higher cost ratio due to its branch structure). The
increase in personnel costs to EUR 68.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 from EUR 39.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2015, or 73.6%, reflected significant staff growth last year, mainly attributable
to hiring in product development, IT, risk, legal & compliance and finance, as well as in new markets. The
increase in legal and consulting expenses to EUR 12.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 from EUR
7.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 and the increase in other costs to EUR 8.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2016 from EUR 3.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 include certain one-off
items related to the evaluation of potential acquisitions and funding opportunities, and costs associated with
having to adapt to changes in regulation (for example, in Lithuania) including consultation fees and legal advice.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of our general administrative expenses for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

Year ended
December 31,
2016 2015
(imons M)
Personnel costs . ........... . . . i 68.4 394
Marketing and sponsorship ......... .. .. .. .. . . ... 55.4 50.1
Legaland consulting . ........... .. . ..., 12.1 7.5
Debt collection costs . ...t 8.5 7.0
Research and development expenses ...................... 7.9 4.3
Application inspection COStS .. ... ...t 54 4.0
Rentand utilities ............. .. .. .. i 52 2.5
Depreciation and amortization ............... .. .. ... ..... 5.1 1.6
Communication EXPensSes . . ... .......euererninenenaen... 4.5 3.2
IT @XPeNSES . . oottt e e 3.6 6.9
Bankservices . ........... i 3.1 1.9
Travel ... ... 2.5 1.7
Other . ... .. 8.8 3.9

Total ... .. .. . .. . . 1904 1339

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, marketing and sponsorship expenses accounted for
29.1% and 37.4%, respectively, and personnel costs accounted for 35.9% and 29.4%, respectively, of general
administrative expenses.

Other income/(expense)

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 14.2 million compared to EUR 3.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2015. The increase in other income was primarily attributable to interest income
received from related parties of EUR 6.6 million (see “Related Party Transactions” for more information), rental
income of EUR 1.6 million, and income from insurance brokers activities of EUR 1.1 million.

Profit before tax

For the reasons stated above, our profit before tax for the year ended December 31, 2016 was
EUR 81.0 million, a 9.8% increase compared to EUR 73.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. The
profit before tax margin, i.e., profit before tax as a percentage of interest income, was 20.6% for the year ended
December 31, 2016 and 23.2% for the year ended December 31, 2015.
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The following table sets forth our profit/(loss) before tax by segment for the years ended December 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015.

Profit/(loss)
Years ended December 31,
% of % of
total total

2016 profits 2015 profits

(in millions of EUR, except percentages)
LatvialD) oo 41.8 52%  36.0 49%
Lithuania ........ ... 10.2 13% 11.7 16%
Finland .. ... . . 7.2 9% 5.6 8%
SWeAeN . . o\t 12.2 15% 10.0 14%
Poland . ... ... . 31.6 39%  31.7 43%
GEOTZIA vttt e 10.7 13%  26.5 36%
SPAIN .ot 7.3 9% 32 4%
Denmark . ...... ... 13.4 17% 9.3 13%
TBIF GIoup .. ..oovt i e e 8.4 _10% — —
Friendly Finance .......... .. ... .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. ... 0.2 0% — —
Other® . .. oo 340 19% (71 (15%)
Discontinued operations® . ....... ... ... .. . i e 0 _O% 5.9) ﬁ %)
Total®) .. ... 1772 — 1109 —

Notes:

(1) Includes intra-Group dividends received from subsidiaries of AS 4finance, recorded as internal revenue.

(2) Other includes internal dividends within AS 4finance, unallocated headquarters and IT costs and other operating entities in Bulgaria, the
Czech Republic, Romania, Argentina, Armenia, Mexico and Dominican Republic.

(3) We discontinued operations in Estonia in March 2015, discontinued operations in Russia in December 2014, and discontinued operations
in the United Kingdom and North America in 2013.

(4) Total is prior to the elimination of inter-segment dividends included in inter-segment profits, as described in note 40 of the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we recorded a decrease in profit before tax compared to the year
ended December 31, 2015 in the following jurisdictions:

Georgia (59.6%), principally due to lower issuance volumes which reduced our interest income in
Georgia by EUR 5.4 million, and an increase in net impairment losses from EUR 8.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2015 to EUR 14.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 itself due to
higher loss experienced on defaulted loans;

Lithuania (12.8%), principally due to the reduction in loan issuance (by 92%) and revenue (by 38%)
referred to above. The impact on profitability was mitigated by a reduction in marketing spend. See
“—Key Factors Affecting Results of Operations—Regulatory Changes” for more information; and

Poland (0.3%), principally due to an increase in interest income of EUR 12.8 million being offset by an
increase in general and administrative income of EUR 9.0 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we recorded an increase in profit before tax compared to the year
ended December 31, 2015 in the following jurisdictions:

Spain (128.1%) similarly due to a significant increase of EUR 20.4 million (57.3%) in interest income
which again reflects the addition of new products into the jurisdiction, and the general maturing of our
business in the market;

Denmark (44.1%), principally due to a significant increase of EUR 12.8 million (58.2%) in interest
income, the addition of new products into the jurisdiction, and the general maturing of our business in
the market;

Finland (28.6%), principally due to an increase in interest income of EUR 0.4 million, and a decrease
in interest expense of EUR 0.8 million, driven by a reduction in operating expenses, particularly in
marketing;

Sweden (22.0%), principally due to a decrease in interest expense of EUR 0.9 million and a decrease in

net impairment of EUR 3.9 million, driven by both a reduction in operating expenses, particularly in
marketing, and a tighter acceptance criteria on our customer applications; and
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e Latvia (16.1%), principally due to a decrease in interest expense of EUR 3.8 million, a decrease in net
impairment of EUR 6.4 million and a reduction in general and administrative expenses of EUR
3.2 million, driven by lower net impairment losses and a reduction in operating costs.

Corporate income tax

Our corporate income tax expense increased by 13.4% to EUR 17.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to EUR 15.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, reflecting an increase
in our profit before tax, which, in turn, was driven by growth in net interest income and a higher effective tax rate
in 2016 compared to 2015.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of our corporate income tax for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015.

Year ended
December 31,

2016 2015

(in millions
of EUR)

CUITENt TAX . o vttt 28.5 17.8
Deferred tax . ....... ... .. e (10.7) (2.1

TOtAl ... 17.8 157

For the year ended December 31, 2016, our effective tax rate was 22%, compared to 21% for the year ended
December 31, 2015. The increase in the effective tax rate was due to an increased interest income contribution
from those countries with a higher effective tax rate.

Profit from continuing operations

For the reasons stated above, our profit from continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2016
was EUR 63.2 million, an 8.6% increase compared to EUR 58.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax

We did not record a profit from discontinued operations, net of tax, for the year ended December 31, 2016.
We recorded a profit from discontinued operations, net of tax, for the year ended December 31, 2015 of
EUR 5.9 million, primarily due to the sale of our Russian business in 2015.

Profit for the period

For the reasons stated above, profit for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 63.2 million, a 1.4%
decrease compared to EUR 64.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2015.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 COMPARED TO THE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

The table below sets forth our results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2014.

Year ended
December 31,
2015 2014
(in millions
of EUR)
INterest iNCOME . . .. oo vttt e et e e 318.3 220.3
Interest eXpense . . ... ...t 28.7) (23.7)
Netinterestincome .................................. 289.6  196.6
Net impairment losses on loans and receivables ............. (79.8) (54.0)
General administrative eXpenses . .. ............c.oevuennn.. (133.9) (80.0)
Other inCome . ........utint i 6.6 2.2
Other eXpense . . . ... vttt e (8.7) 4.0)
Profit beforetaxes .............. ... ... ... ... .. ..... 73.8 60.6
Corporate income tax for the reporting period .............. (15.7) (11.6)
Profit from continuing operations ...................... 58.2 49.0
Discontinued operations
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax ......... 5.9 2.7
Profit for the period .................................. 64.1 46.3
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of Group . ... ...... ... .. ... .. ....... 63.5 45.6
Non-controlling interests™™ . ........................ 0.6 0.6

PROFIT ... . . 64.1 46.3
Other comprehensive income/(expenses):
Reclassification of foreign currency differences on disposal of

SUbSIAIArIes . . . ..o 0.7) 0.2)
Foreign currency translation differences on foreign

OPETALIONS .+ . vttt ettt e et e e e (5.3) 1.4
Other comprehensive inCome . .............c...cuuuuenenn.. 6.0 1.3
Total comprehensive income for the period .............. 58.0 47.5
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Group . .. ........ ... ... ... . ... 57.4 474
Non-controlling interests .. ..............ouiienennenan.. 0.6 0.1

Note:
(1) Non-controlling interest refers to minority shareholders who own 3% of the shares in each of our Swedish and Lithuanian operating
subsidiaries.

Interest income

Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2015 was EUR 318.3 million, a 44.5% increase compared
to EUR 220.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, reflecting an increase in the average balance of
outstanding net loans and an increase in the average interest rate. The average balance of outstanding net loans in
the year ended December 31, 2015 was EUR 274.8 million, a 31.1% increase compared to EUR 209.6 million in
the year ended December 31, 2014. The increase in the average balance was mainly attributable to the expansion
of operations in Poland, Denmark, Sweden, Finland and Latvia.

Due to continuing growth in our loan portfolio and in the number of loan transactions, we recorded an

increase in interest income in each of our key countries of operation for the year ended December 31, 2015
compared to the year ended December 31, 2014.
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The following table sets forth our interest income by segment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014.

Interest income

% of % of
total total
2015 revenues 2014 revenues
(in millions of EUR, except percentages)
Latvia®D 44.2 14% 40.8 18%
Lithuania .......... .. ... ... .. . . . 35.2 11% 27.0 12%
Finland . ...... ... ... ... .. . . . 21.6 7% 20.0 9%
Sweden . ... ... 26.2 8% 19.6 8%
Denmark ......... ... 22.0 7% 13.0 6%
Poland ....... ... ... . . .. . 81.2 25% 61.4 27%
GEOTZIA .ottt 39.7 12% 20.3 9%
SPaAIN .« o 35.6 11% 14.4 6%
Friendly Finance ........... ... .. .. .. . .. .. . ..., n/a — n/a —
TBIF Group . ......ooiini i n/a — n/a —
Other® . .. . 12.6 5% 3.8 1%
Discontinued operations® . ............... .. .. .. .. ..., 0.3 0% 10.6 4%
Total ....... ... . . . .. . 318.6 100% 230.9 100 %
Notes:

(1) Results are for AS 4finance, the holding company of the Issuer and certain of our other operating subsidiaries, including certain
subsidiaries outside of Latvia. See “Business—Group Structure—Legal structure”.

(2) Other includes unallocated headquarters and IT costs, and other operating entities in Bulgaria, the Czech Republic, Romania, Argentina
and Armenia. Other also includes Spain and Denmark for the years ended December 31, 2014.

(3) We discontinued operations in Estonia in March 2015 and discontinued operations in Russia in December 2014.

Interest income generated in the following countries increased by the percentages indicated in the year
ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended December 31, 2014:

e Spain (147.2%), Georgia (95.6%), and Denmark (69.2%), and Poland (32.2%), primarily due to our
expansion into these relatively new jurisdictions and our increased marketing efforts resulting in higher
volumes of issued loans;

e Sweden (33.7%), and Lithuania (30.4%), primarily due to an increase in issuance volumes, particularly
in Installment Loans; and

e Latvia (8.3%) and Finland (8.0%), primarily due to steady growth and an increase in returning
customers.

Interest expense

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 was EUR 28.7 million, a 21.1% increase compared
to EUR 23.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, reflecting an increase in the average balance of our
indebtedness to EUR 230.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2015 from EUR 180.4 million in the year
ended December 31, 2014, offset in part by a decrease in the average interest rate paid on our loans and
borrowings to 12.2% in the year ended December 31, 2015 from 13.1% in the year ended December 31, 2014
due to a refinancing of the 2015 Notes by way of the issuance of the 2019 Notes. We incurred additional debt,
including the SEK Notes, during 2015 in order to fund loan portfolio growth as part of our business expansion,
and paid full annual interest on the 2019 Notes.

Net interest income

Our net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2015 was EUR 289.6 million, a 47.3% increase
compared to EUR 196.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, reflecting the corresponding increases in
interest income and interest expense discussed above.

The ratio of interest expense to interest income increased to 9.0% for the year ended December 31, 2015
from 10.8% for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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Net impairment losses on loans and receivables

Net impairment losses for the year ended December 31, 2015 were EUR 79.8 million, a 47.8% increase
compared to EUR 54.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. The increase in net impairment losses
primarily reflected the expansion of our operations in both existing and new jurisdictions, where we would, at
least initially, expect to have a higher default rate. For example, as we expanded, we increased the volume of
loans extended to new customers, including those in new jurisdictions at the time (such as Denmark, Poland,
Spain and Georgia) who on average represented a slightly higher default risk than returning customers or new
customers in existing jurisdictions.

See “—Financial Position—Assets—Loan Portfolio” for a discussion of our non-performing loan coverage
ratios and average loss given default rates.

General administrative expenses

General administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 were EUR 133.9 million
(representing 42.1% of interest income), a 67.3% increase compared to EUR 80.0 million (representing 36.3% of
interest income) for the year ended December 31, 2014. The increase in general and administrative income as a
proportion of interest income primarily reflected an increase in marketing and brand awareness and personnel
costs, as well as growth in IT expenses and application inspection costs.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of our general administrative expenses for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Year ended
December 31,
2015 2014
(in millions
of EUR)
Marketing and sponsorship .............. .. .. ... .. ... 50.1 338
Personnel costs .. ...... ... 394 228
IT eXPenSes . ..ottt e e 11.2 3.2
Legalconsulting . ............i ot 7.5 3.7
Debt collection COStS ... ..ovu et 7.0 3.8
Application inSPection COSES . . .. ..vuvreenee ... 4.0 3.7
Communication €XPENSEeS . . .. ... .uveueneneinene e 32 24
Rentand utilities .............. .. i 2.5 1.5
Bank services .. ... 1.9 1.1
Travel . ... 1.7 0.8
Depreciation and amortization ............................ 1.6 0.9
Other . ... 39 23
Total . ... . .. 133.9  80.0

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, marketing and sponsorship expenses accounted for
37.4% and 42.2%, respectively, and personnel costs accounted for 29.4% and 28.5%, respectively, of general
administrative expenses.

Profit before tax

For the reasons stated above, our profit before tax for the year ended December 31, 2015 was
EUR 73.8 million, a 21.8% increase compared to EUR 60.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. The
profit before tax margin was 23.2% for the year ended December 31, 2015 and 27.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2014.
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The table below sets forth our profit/(loss) before tax by segment for the years ended December 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014.

Profit/(loss)
Years ended December 31,
% of % of
total total
2015 profits 2014 profits
(in millions of EUR, except percentages)
Latviat) ..o 36.0 49%  21.0 35%
Lithuania ... ...t e e 11.7 16% 16.1 27%
Finland . ... . . . 5.6 8% 6.5 11%
SWeden . ..ot 10.0 14% 9.2 15%
Poland .. ... ... . 31.7 43% 134 22%
GEOTZIA .« v vttt e e e e 26.5 36% 119 20%
SPAIN .« .o e et 3.2 4%  (5.4) (9%)
Denmark . ... 9.3 13% 5.9 _10%
TBIF Group .......................................... — — — -
Friendly Finance . .. ....... ... ... . . i — — — —
Other® . .o (17.1)  (15%) (102)  (14%)
Discontinued operations® . ........ .. .. ... . ... 5.9) _(5)% 2.7 _4%
Total® ... 110.9 — 71.2 i
Notes:

(1) Results are for AS 4finance, the holding company of the Issuer and certain of our other operating subsidiaries, including certain
subsidiaries outside of Latvia. See “Business—Group Structure—Legal structure”.

(2) Other includes internal dividends within AS 4finance, unallocated headquarters and IT costs, and other operating entities in Bulgaria, the
Czech Republic, Romania, Argentina and Armenia.

(3) We discontinued operations in Estonia in March 2015 and discontinued operations in Russia in December 2014.

(4) Total is prior to the elimination of inter-segment dividends included in inter-segment profits, as described in note 31 of the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015.

We recorded a decrease in profit before tax for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to the year
ended December 31, 2014 in the following jurisdictions:

L]

Lithuania (27.3%) due to a EUR 4.7 million increase to impairment and an increase in general and
administrative expenses of EUR 7.7 million; and

Finland (13.8%) due to an increase in interest expense of EUR 0.3 million and an increase to
impairment cost of EUR 2.2 million.

We recorded an increase in profit before tax for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to the year
ended December 31, 2014 in the following jurisdictions:

L]

Poland (136.6%) mainly due to an increase in interest income of EUR 19.8 million, driven by an
increase in loan issuance volumes;

Georgia (122.7%), due to an increase in interest income of EUR 19.4 million driven by our expansion
into the jurisdiction and our increased marketing efforts resulting in higher volumes of issued loans
whilst our cost base was still relatively low, and a lower impairment cost on our loan portfolio;

Denmark (57.6%) due to an increase of EUR 9.0 million in interest income driven by our expansion
into the jurisdiction and our increased marketing efforts resulting in higher volumes of issued loans
whilst our cost base was still relatively low, and a lower impairment cost on our loan portfolio;

Sweden (8.7%) due to an increase in interest income of EUR 6.6 million and a decrease in general and
administrative expenses of EUR 0.8 million; and

in Spain, we recorded a profit of EUR 3.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to a
loss of EUR 5.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 due to an increase in interest income of
EUR 21.2 million over the period, due to interest income becoming greater than our administrative
expenses, allowing us to become profitable in the jurisdiction.
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Corporate income tax

Our corporate income tax expense increased by 35.3% to EUR 15.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015 compared to EUR 11.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, reflecting an increase
in our profit before tax, which, in turn, was driven by growth in interest income and a prudent deferred tax
recognition policy, partially offset by a decrease in our effective tax rate.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of our corporate income tax for the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014.

Year ended
December 31,

2015 2014

(in millions
of EUR)

CUITENT LAX .« . o ottt e e e e e e e e e 17.8 18.5
Deferred tax ... ... ... . 2.1) (6.8

Total ... .. .. . 15.7 11.6

For the year ended December 31, 2015, our effective tax rate was 21% compared to 19% for the year ended
December 31, 2014. The increase in the effective tax rate was due to (i) an increase in our profit before tax,
which, in turn, was driven by growth in net interest income and a higher effective tax rate in 2015 compared to
2014 and (ii) a lower reduction of deferred tax assets in 2015.

Profit from continuing operations

For the reasons stated above, our profit from continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2015
was EUR 58.2 million, a 18.7% increase compared to EUR 49 million for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax

Profit from discontinued operation, net of tax, was EUR 5.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2016,
compared to a loss from continued operations, net of tax, of EUR 2.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2015.

Profit for the period

For the reasons stated above, profit for the year ended December 31, 2015 was EUR 64.1 million, a 38.4%
increase compared to EUR 46.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Liquidity
Following the completion of the Offering, our primary sources of liquidity are expected to consist of the
following:
e cash generated from our operating activities;
e bond offerings including the Notes and 2021 Notes;
e bank borrowings;
e deposits from TBIF Group; and
e proceeds from the Offering. See “Use of Proceeds.”

As of December 31, 2016, EUR 3.7 million was outstanding under our shareholder loans. Shareholder loans
are not expected to be a major source of financing in the future. Going forward, we expect deposits from TBI to
account for a growing share of our liquidity. As part of its strategy to both diversify sources of funds and lower
funding costs, we continue to explore secured funding alternatives for our current portfolios and for future
origination. For example, we are exploring securitization as a means of providing an alternative source and type
of funding for the Group whereby our operating entities sell receivables to a special purpose vehicle. We

anticipate that securitizations would enable us to diversify our funding source and type, increase our lending
capacity and lower our funding costs.
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The Company may, from time to time, engage in purchases of any of the 2019 Notes that remain
outstanding after the completion of the Offering, and use the proceeds thereof, in open market or private
transactions or otherwise.

As of December 31, 2016, we had cash and cash equivalents of EUR 157.6 million, compared to
EUR 56.9 million and EUR 33.7 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. This increase was
primarily driven by (i) an increase in our bank balances to EUR 79.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2016 from EUR 56.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, (ii) placements with other banks amounting
to EUR 50.2 million as at December 31, 2016 (as opposed to nil as at December 31, 2015), and (iii) cash held as
the minimum statutory reserve of EUR 20.6 million as at December 31, 2016 (as opposed to nil as at
December 31, 2015), mainly as a result of our acquisition of TBIF Group. The statutory minimum reserves are
not available for use in the Group’s day-to-day operations.

We anticipate that our primary use of cash will be to fund our loan portfolio and to service our debt
obligations.

The table below sets forth our net cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the
periods indicated.

Year ended
December 31,

2016 2015 2014

(in millions of EUR)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities ........................ 106.2 740 (0.4)
Net cash flows used in investing activities ... ...........oouiriininnennenenen .. (150.6) (52.8) (3.5)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) financing activities ........................ 124.3 1.8 15.1
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents™) .. ...... ... .. .. .. .. ... ... ..., 799 23.0 11.2

Note:
(1) Does not include effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash.

Cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities

Net cash flows used in operating activities are calculated as profit before taxes, adjusted for non-cash and
other items and the effect of changes to current assets and short-term liabilities, less corporate income tax paid.

Net cash flows from operating activities increased to EUR 106.2 million in the year ended December 31,
2016, compared to EUR 74.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. The increase was primarily due to
(i) a EUR 20.7 million increase in adjustments for impairment allowance due to an increase in our loan portfolio
over the period, (ii) a EUR 10.5 million decrease in adjustments for net losses on foreign exchange from
borrowings and other items due to EUR/USD foreign exchange movements, (iii) a EUR 37.0 million increase in
deposits due to the acquisition of TBIF Group, (iv) a EUR 26.7 million increase in adjustments for gains from
sales of portfolio due to more active sales of non-performing loans (which also contributes to the increase in
other assets), (v) an increase in other assets of EUR 64.8 million, due to the sale of non-performing loans, and
TBI finance leases and (vi) a EUR 47.4 million decrease in loans issued to customers due to lower issuance
volumes, (vii) less corporate income tax paid of EUR 16.4 million.

Net cash flows from operating activities increased to EUR 74.0 million in the year ended December 31,
2015 compared to net cash flows used in operating activities of EUR 0.4 million in the year ended December 31,
2014. The increase was primarily due to (i) a EUR 25.1 million increase in adjustments for increase in
impairment allowance due to loan portfolio growth, (ii) a decrease in adjustments for net losses on foreign
exchange from borrowings and other monetary items of EUR 6.0 million due to EUR/USD foreign exchange
movements, (iii) an EUR 4.9 million increase in adjustments for interest expenses due to higher interest expense
paid on borrowings (iv) a EUR 11.4 million adjustment for decreases in other assets (compared to
EUR 3.6 million adjustment for increases in other assets in 2014) due to greater receivables from offline service
providers in Spain and Georgia, and (v) a EUR 2.2 million increase in adjustments for gains from the sale of
portfolios resulting from the sale of portfolios in Latvia, Sweden, Finland, Denmark, Lithuania and Georgia in
2015.

The increase in impairment allowances on loans and advances due from customers in each of the periods
under review was due to our regular reassessment of such allowances, including a review of historical recovery
trends impacting the loss given default ratio.
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Cash flows used in investing activities

Our cash flows used in investing activities mainly include the purchase and disposition of property,
equipment and intangible assets, loans issued and loans repaid to related parties.

Net cash flows used in investing activities were EUR 150.6 million in the year ended December 31, 2016,
resulting primarily from (i) the purchase of property, equipment and intangible assets, which totaled
EUR 21.3 million, (ii) the flow of loan issuance to related parties of EUR 54.0 million (see “Related Party
Transactions” for more information), (iii) interest received on loans issued to related parties of EUR 1.1 million,
and (iv) the acquisition of subsidiaries of EUR 67.5 million relating to the acquisitions of the TBIF Group and
Friendly Finance.

Net cash flows used in investing activities were EUR 52.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2015,
resulting primarily from (i) the purchase of property, equipment and intangible assets, which totaled
EUR 20.3 million (mainly due to software development costs), (ii) the flow of loan issuance to related parties of
EUR 32.9 million (see “Related Party Transactions” for more information), (iii) interest received on loans issued
to related parties of EUR 1.7 million, and (iv) the effect of disposal and acquisition of subsidiaries
EUR 1.2 million.

Net cash flows used in investing activities were EUR 3.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2014,
resulting primarily from the purchase of property, equipment and intangible assets, which totaled
EUR 4.2 million, partially offset by interest received on loans issued to related parties of EUR 0.8 million.

Cash flows generated from/ (used in) financing activities

Our cash flows from financing activities mainly reflect proceeds received from borrowings, the repayment
of principal and interest on indebtedness and the payment of dividends.

Net cash flows used in financing activities were EUR 124.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2016
resulting primarily from proceeds from loans received and the issuance of our 2021 Notes of EUR 175.5 million,
partially offset by repayment of loans of EUR 14.3 million and interest payments of EUR 36.2 million.

Net cash flows generated from financing activities were EUR 1.8 million in the year ended December 31,
2015, resulting primarily from loans received and the issuance of Notes of EUR 79.0 million, partially offset by
repayment of loans of EUR 49.4 million and interest payments of EUR 27.3 million.

Net cash flows generated from financing activities were EUR 15.1 million in the year ended December 31,
2014, resulting primarily from proceeds from loans received and the issuance of our 2019 Notes in amount of
EUR 86.6 million, partially offset by repayment of loans of EUR 52.5 million relating to the 2015 Notes and
interest payments of EUR 18.7 million.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The following discussion compares our consolidated financial position as of December 31, 2016, 2015 and
2014.

Assets

We had total assets of EUR 931.4 million as of December 31, 2016, compared to EUR 438.2 million as of
December 31, 2015, representing an increase of EUR 493.2 million, or 112.6%. This increase was primarily due
to (i) an increase in loans due from customers to EUR 493.9 million (from EUR 308.3 million in 2015) (as
further explained below), (ii) an increase in cash and cash equivalents to EUR 157.6 million (from
EUR 56.9 million in 2015), itself primarily driven by an increase in our bank balances to EUR 79.3 million
(representing an increase in borrowings and increase in deposit funding from TBI Bank) for the year ended
December 31, 2016 from EUR 56.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, (iii) an increase in loans to
related parties to EUR 67.2 million (from EUR 13.7 million in 2015), primarily related to the increase in the loan
to V7 Limited to EUR 18.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 from EUR 3.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2015 and the increase in the loan to 4finance Group S.A. to EUR 31.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2016 from EUR 1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 (see “Related Party
Transactions” for more information), (iv) placements with other banks amounting to EUR 4.8 million as at
December 31, 2016 (as opposed to nil as at December 31, 2015) and (v) cash held as the minimum statutory
reserve of EUR 20.6 million as at December 31, 2016 (as opposed to nil as at December 31, 2015), mainly as a
result of our acquisition of TBIF Group.
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Finally, intangible assets and goodwill increased to EUR 83.2 million (from 18.0 million in 2015), primarily
due to the goodwill recorded as a result of our acquisitions of TBIF Group and Friendly Finance. As of
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, 70.5% and 83.3%, respectively, of our assets were self-liquidating,
i.e., loans and advances due from customers and cash, as a percentage of total assets.

We had total assets of EUR 438.2 million as of December 31, 2015, compared to EUR 370.0 million as of
December 31, 2014, representing an increase of EUR 68.2 million, or 18.4%. This increase was primarily due to
an increase in cash and cash equivalents (including proceeds from borrowings) to EUR 56.9 million (from
EUR 33.7 million in 2014), an increase in loans due from customers to EUR 308.3 million (from EUR
241.4 million in 2014), primarily due to an increase in our long term loans due from customers to EUR
16.3 million (from EUR 12.5 million in 2014) and an increase in our short term loans due from customers to
EUR 292.0 million (from EUR 228.9 million in 2014), an increase in loans to related parties to EUR 13.7 million
(from EUR 0.1 million in 2014) including a loan to Piressa Holdings Limited of EUR 5.1 million, a loan to V7
Limited of EUR 3.5 million, and a loan to 4finance Group S.A. of EUR 1.4 million and an increase in intangible
assets and goodwill to EUR 18.0 million (from 2.8 million in 2014), primarily due to an increase in licenses and
trademarks to EUR 2.0 million (from 0.8 million in 2014), an increase in software and other intangible assets to
EUR 6.1 million (from 0.3 million in 2014) and an increase in development costs to EUR 8.2 million (from nil in
2014).

Loan Portfolio

As of December 31, 2016, our total net loan portfolio equaled EUR 493.9 million, compared to
EUR 308.3 million as of December 31, 2015, representing an increase of EUR 185.6 million, or 60.2%. Our net
loan portfolio accounted for 53.0% of total assets as of December 31, 2016 and 70.4% of total assets as of
December 31, 2015. This principally reflected our acquisition of TBIF Group and its total net loan portfolio of
EUR 177.5 million.

As of December 31, 2015, our total net loan portfolio equaled EUR 308.3 million, compared to
EUR 241.4 million as of December 31, 2014, representing an increase of EUR 66.9 million, or 27.7%. Our net
loan portfolio accounted for 65.2% of total assets as of December 31, 2014. This principally reflected an increase
in both long term and short term loans issued to customers.

Our non-performing loan coverage ratio was 80.2% as of December 31, 2016 and 74.6% as of December 31,
2015. As of December 31, 2016, the average loss given default rate across our portfolios increased to 57%,
compared to 53% as of December 31, 2015.

See “Selected Statistical Information™ for further information on our loan portfolio.

Liabilities

We had total liabilities of EUR 701.2 million as of December 31, 2016 compared to EUR 265.0 million as
of December 31, 2015, representing an increase of EUR 436.2 million, or 164.6%. This increase was mainly
driven by an increase in loans and borrowings to EUR 397.2 million (from EUR 229.5 million in 2015),
primarily due to the issuance of the 2021 Notes in May and November 2016, an increase in deposits from
customers to EUR 237.1 million (from EUR 9.1 million in 2015), mainly resulting from the acquisition of TBIF
Group and an increase in other liabilities to EUR 47.5 million (from EUR 19.0 million in 2015), primarily due to
an increase in accrued expenses to EUR 12.4 million (from EUR 6.7 million in 2015) relating mainly to our
largest operating entities in Poland, Spain, Denmark, Latvia and the Czech Republic due to ordinary general and
administrative expenses. Other liabilities have also increased mainly due to our acquisition of TBIF Group and
Friendly Finance. TBIF Group’s other liabilities are EUR 3.5 million and Friendly Finance’s other liabilities are
EUR 0.8 million. Other liabilities mainly consist of salaries payable, overpayments received from clients, faulty
payments received, and accounts payable to related parties.

We had total liabilities of EUR 265.0 million as of December 31, 2015, compared to EUR 257.0 million as
of December 31, 2014, representing an increase of EUR 8.0 million, or 3.1%. The increase was primarily driven
by an increase in employee benefits to EUR 2.4 million (from EUR 1 million in 2014), primarily due to
provisions for unused vacations, and an increase in other liabilities to EUR 25.7 million (from EUR 17.3 million
in 2014), primarily due to an increase in accrued expenses to EUR 6.9 million (from EUR 3.0 million in 2014)
relating mainly to our largest operating entities in Poland, Spain, Denmark, Latvia and the Czech Republic due to
ordinary general and administrative expenses.
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Loans and borrowings

As of December 31, 2016 we had loans and borrowings of EUR 397.2 million, compared to
EUR 229.5 million as of December 31, 2015. The increase was primarily driven by the issuance of the 2021
Notes in 2016, increasing our borrowing in the form of notes to EUR 379.0 million (from EUR 217.0 million in
2015) and through the acquisition of TBIF Group’s and Friendly Finance. For example, EUR 3.5 million of our
loans and borrowings for the year ended December 31, 2016 was attributable to the loans and borrowings of
TBIF Group, and EUR 6.8 million of our loans and borrowings in the year ended December 31, 2016 was
attributable to the loans and borrowings of Friendly Finance. Our loans and borrowings accounted for 56.6% of
total liabilities as of December 31, 2016.

As of December 31, 2015, we had loans and borrowings of EUR 229.5 million, compared to
EUR 231.6 million as of December 31, 2014. This increase was primarily driven by the issuance of the SEK
Notes in 2015, increasing our borrowing in the form of notes to EUR 217.0 million (from EUR 208.6 million in
2014). Our loans and borrowings accounted for 86.6% of total liabilities as of December 31, 2015.

The table below sets forth the loans and borrowings as of the dates indicated. See “—Contractual
Obligations and Commercial Commitments” below for a description of our loans and borrowings.
As of December 31,
2016 2015 2014
(in millions of EUR)

Long term
AS Trasta Komercbanka® ....... ... .. .. .. ... . i — 4.7 6.2
Loans from banks@® . ... .. ... . . .. 0.2 — —
2021 NOES .o ettt e e e e e e 140.6 — —
2019 NOES ..ottt e et — 167.2 1579
SEK NOES . ..ot 384 40.8 —
FE NoOtes®) .. 2.8 — —
Other . ..o 4.9 0.7 12.6
Short term
AS Trasta Komercbanka® .. ... ... .. .. .. .. i — 1.2 —
2015 NOES ..ot — — 43.4
2021 NOES .« .ttt 1.8 — —
2019 NOtES ..ot 194.3 7.8 7.3
SEK NOES ...t 1.2 1.3 —
Other® ..o 13.0 5.8 4.2

Total . ... .. 397.2 2295 231.6

Note:

(1) In May 2011, AS 4finance signed a credit line agreement with AS Trasta Komercbanka with a maximum credit line limit of
EUR 7.7 million maturing in April 2015 and a fixed annual interest rate of 7% for the part of the credit line used and 0.5% for the unused
part of the facility. This loan was repaid in November 2016.

(2) Includes loans from banks (relating to TBI Bank).

(3) On June 30, 2016, the Group acquired Friendly Finance. In November 2015, its subsidiary, Friendly Finance Poland, issued
PLN 15 million (EUR 3.4 million) 10% notes due in May 2018.

(4) Other consists of loans from related parties, other debt attributable to Friendly Finance and a private placement in Sweden.

Equity

As of December 31, 2016 our total equity amounted to EUR 230.1 million, compared to EUR 173.3 million
as of December 31, 2015, representing an increase of EUR 56.8 million, or 32.8%, which was mainly attributable
to an increase in retained earnings. As at the date of this Offering Memorandum, we have not paid any dividends
in respect of the year ended December 31, 2016.

As of December 31, 2015 our total equity amounted to EUR 173.3 million, compared to EUR 113.0 million
as of December 31, 2014, representing an increase of EUR 60.3 million, or 53.4%. This increase was mainly due
to an increase in profits in 2015 compared to 2014. We did not pay any dividends to our shareholder in respect of
the year ended December 31, 2015.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS

The table below sets forth information regarding our contractual obligations and payments due by period as
of December 31, 2016.

Lessthan From 1to From3to From 6 months Above

1 month 3 months 6 months to 1 year 1year  Total

(in millions of EUR)
Loans and borrowings ..................... 4.0 3.0 4.2 1.8 52 182
Bonds ....... .. ... . 11.5 — — 185.7 181.8 379.0
Total ...... ... .. . ... . 15.5 3.0 4.2 187.5 187.0 397.2

As of December 31, 2016, none of our outstanding indebtedness was secured by collateral.

As of December 31, 2016, we were in compliance with all payments of principal and interest under our
outstanding indebtedness. The instruments governing our existing indebtedness contain certain covenants that
limit the future actions we may take or transactions we may enter into. The following is a brief description of the
principal terms of the TKB Line of Credit, the SEK Notes, the 2019 Notes, the 2021 Notes and the Friendly
Finance Notes. See “Description of Certain Indebtedness” for further discussions of our indebtedness.

TKB Credit Line

In May 2011, AS 4finance, entered into the TKB Credit Line, which allowed borrowings of up to
EUR 6.3 million. The TKB Credit Line was repaid in November 2016.

SEK Notes

In March 2015, 4finance S.A. issued SEK 225.0 million of 11.75% notes (the “SEK Notes”) which are
senior to all of our future subordinated debt. The SEK Notes are listed on the corporate bond list of Nasdaq
Stockholm. In September 2015, a further SEK 150.0 million of SEK Notes were issued at par. As of
December 31, 2016 the amount outstanding, including accrued and unpaid interest, under the SEK Notes was
EUR 39.6 million. The SEK Notes will mature in March 2018.

Redemption of the SEK Notes

On March 30, 2017, the Issuer issued a conditional notice to redeem all the outstanding SEK Notes pursuant
to the Redemption Option contained in the SEK Notes. The notice is conditional upon, amongst other things, the
aggregate gross proceeds of the Offering being such that the Interest Coverage Ratio as set out in the SEK Notes
would be below 2.5 to 1.0, on a pro forma basis. If the conditions are met, the SEK Notes will be redeemed at a
price equal to 106% of the aggregate principal amount of SEK Notes outstanding plus accrued and unpaid
interest, such redemption to occur on or about May 31, 2017. The Issuer has obtained a waiver of the requirement
to meet the SEK Notes Interest Coverage Ratio of 2.5 to 1.0 during the period between closing of the Offering
and redemption in full of the SEK Notes.

2019 Notes

In August 2014, we issued the 2019 Notes (a single tranche of USD 200 million 11.75% senior notes due
August 2019). The 2019 Notes are listed on the Irish Stock Exchange and are senior to all of our future
subordinated debt. As of December 31, 2016, the amount outstanding, including accrued and unpaid interest,
under the 2019 Notes was EUR 194.3 million. The 2019 Notes are subject to a number of restrictive covenants.
See “Description of Certain Indebtedness—Senior Notes Due 2019.”

On March 29, 2017, the Issuer launched the Consent Solicitation and the 2019 Notes Tender Offer. Pursuant
to the Consent Solicitation and 2019 Notes Tender Offer, the Issuer seeks to obtain consent to amend the 2019
Notes Indenture to remove certain covenants, terms and events of default in the indenture governing the 2019
Notes and invites the holders of the 2019 Notes to tender their 2019 Notes for purchase by the Issuer at a
purchase price of USD 1,060 per USD 1,000 for holders of the 2019 Notes who tender prior to the early
participation deadline, and a purchase price of USD 1,010 per USD 1,000 for holders of the 2019 Notes who
tender after the early participation deadline but prior to the expiration deadline, and on the terms and conditions
contained in the Tender Offer and Consent Solicitation Memorandum.
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Pursuant to the Tender Offer and Consent Solicitation Memorandum, the acceptance for purchase by the
Issuer of any of the 2019 Notes for purchase is subject to, among other things, the receipt of the Required
Consents to the proposed amendments, receipt of the Requisite Minimum Tenders and the issuance of the Notes
hereby.

2021 Notes

In May 2016, the Issuer issued EUR 100.0 million of 11.25% notes (the “2021 Notes”). The 2021 Notes are
listed on the Prime Standard regulated market segment of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. In November 2016, a
further EUR 50.0 million of 2021 Notes were issued at par. The 2021 Notes will mature in May 2021.

The 2021 Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by Holdco and by certain other direct and
indirect subsidiaries of Holdco. The 2021 Notes constitute general, direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations of the Issuer and shall at all times rank pari passu with all general, direct, unconditional,
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer.

As of December 31, 2016, the amount outstanding and accumulated interest under the 2021 Notes was
EUR 142.4 million.

Friendly Finance Notes

On June 30, 2016 the Group acquired Friendly Finance. In November 2015, its subsidiary, Friendly Finance
Poland, issued PLN 15 000 thousand (EUR 3.4 million) 10% notes due in May 2018.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

In the year ended December 31, 2016, we invested EUR 27.6 million in capital expenditures, primarily
related to other intangible assets. We historically have financed our capital expenditures mainly through
operating cash flows, external financing and shareholder loans and, except for shareholder loans (which we do
not expect to be a substantial source of financing in the future), expect to continue to do so in the future.

The following table sets forth our capital expenditures for the periods indicated:

As of
December 31,

2016 2015 2014

" (in millions of EUR)
Trademarks and licenses ... ...........c.oiiiiiinnnn... 0.9 1.3 0.5
Other intangible assets . ......... ..., 22.6 8.7 2.3
Leasehold improvements . ...............couiuiuinninenan... 0.6 .1 —
Information systems and IT ......... ... ... ... .. .. ... .... 1.7 2.3 1.0
Motor Vehicles . ......... 07 — —
Other fixed assets .. .......c.iuiini i 1.1 0.8 0.3
Total ... ... 27.6 142 4.2
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Net loans portfolio (in Euro millions)M . ........ ... .. ... ... ... ....
Capital/assets ratio® . ... ...
Capital/net loan portfolio® . ... ... .. .. . .
Interest cOverage™ ... ... . i
Adjusted EBITDA margin® . ... ... ...
Profit margin® . .. ... ...
Return on average equity? .. ... ... ... ...
Return on average assets® .. ... ... ...
Operating expenses/interest income ratio® . ................ .. .. .. ......
Net impairment to revenue ratiol® ... ... ... ... ... i
Non-performing loans as a share of value of loans issueddD . ..............
TBI capital adequacy ratio ... .........ouiuien i
Bank of Bulgaria statutory minimum capital adequacy requirement .........

Notes:

(1) Gross loan portfolio less provisions for bad debts.

(2) Total equity/total assets. Adjusted for effect of 2015 Notes Defeasance in 2014.
(3) Total equity/net loan portfolio.

(4) Adjusted EBITDA/interest expense.

(5) Adjusted EBITDA/interest income.

(6) Profit before tax/interest income.

As of
December 31,
2016 2015 2014
493.9 308.3 2414

25% 40% 35%
47% 56% 47%
3.6x 4.1x 3.8x
35% 37% 41%
21% 23% 28%
31% 41% 55%
9% 14% 16%
48% 42% 36%
23% 24% 25%
9.3% 9.0% 8.8%
22.3% 19.5% 18.1%
13.5% 13.5% 13.5%

(7) Profit from continuing operations/average equity (sum of total equity as of the start and end of each period divided by two).
(8) Profit from continuing operations/average assets (sum of total assets as of the start and end of each period divided by two).

(9) General administrative expenses/interest income.
(10) Net impairment losses on loans and receivables/interest income.

(11) Non-performing loans with a delay of over 90 days/value of loans issued. The value of loans issued represents loans issued for the
two-year period before commencement of the 90 day past-due period, e.g., for December 31, 2016: October 1, 2014 to September 30,

2016.

EBITDA AND NET ASSETS OF THE ISSUER AND GUARANTORS

The table below sets forth EBITDA and net assets of each of: (i) the Issuer, (ii) the Guarantors (including
Holdco) as a group and (iii) the non-guarantor subsidiaries as a group as of and for the year ended December 31,
2016 calculated on an aggregated basis without adjustments to intra-Group eliminations. The information in this

section is based on our structure as of December 31, 2016.

As of and for the year ended 31 December 2016

EBITDA (in % of Net assets (in % of
millions of EBITDA of millions of net assets of
EUR) the Group EUR) the Group

Issuer........ ... 41.7 33.4% 94.5 41.1%
Guarantors. . ............uteuireniiannan.. 204.9 164.1% 285.1 123.9%
Non-guarantor subsidiaries® . ............. 25.4 20.3% 86.5 37.6%
Consolidated adjustments® ............... (147.1) (117.8%) (235.9) (102.5%)
Total ............ ... .. ... ... ... .. ... 124.9 100.0% 230.1 100.0%

Notes:
(1) Includes TBIF Group companies as well as certain other entities.

(2) Intercompany transactions, including intra-group loans and interest payments, investments and dividends.

There were no Guarantors which individually comprised greater than 20% of our EBITDA for the year
ended December 31, 2016 except for AS 4finance, which accounted for EUR 38.5 million, or 30.8% of our
EBITDA and EUR 67.2 million or 29.2% of our net assets in 2016 and Vivus Finance sp.z.0.0. which accounted
for EUR 31.0 million, or 24.8% of our EBITDA and EUR 37.2 million, or 16.2% of our net assets for the year
ended December 31, 2016. There were no Guarantors which individually comprised greater than 20% of our net
assets as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 except for AS 4finance, which accounted for
EUR 67.2 million or 29.2% of our net assets and EUR 38.5 million or 30.8% of our EBITDA for the year ended
December 31, 2016. There are no risks specific to, or encumbrances on the assets of, the Company and Vivus
Finance s.p.z.0.0. that could have a material adverse effect on its ability to meet its obligations under its
guarantees. Please see the section entitled “Description of Issuer and Guarantors” for more information on the

Issuer and Guarantors.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT RISK MANAGEMENT

We are exposed to various market risks associated with our income, loan portfolio, assets, liabilities and
operations, including credit risk, concentration risk, liquidity risk, operational risks, currency risk, reputational
risk, capital management risk, regulatory risk and interest rate risk. The objective of risk management is to
manage and control risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on such risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss, if a counterparty or a customer fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises primarily in connection with our loans and advances to customers. Our credit policy sets
forth lending guidelines in accordance with our business strategy and risk management policy that are designed
to protect our assets as well as ensure compliance with local regulatory requirements. Lending policies differ
from country to country depending on the availability of data relevant to our business model. Loan credit risk is
managed by assessing multiple indicators that are analyzed prior to the loan being issued, including, but not
limited to, customer credit history checks and income levels. The indicators are objective, based purely on
statistical evidence and scored automatically. Specific credit scoring models are adjusted to specific social
customer groups and country requirements which, for example, may impose special obligations in relation to
customer solvency checks. Credit scoring models are periodically reviewed and, if necessary, adjusted to follow
market and specific client group tendencies.

We have implemented specific country adjusted debt collection procedures to ensure the efficient and timely
collection of debts. The repayment performance of delinquent customers is analyzed on a regular basis. Our
management believes that current procedures are sufficient to effectively monitor the credit risk of our delinquent
customers.

Concentration risk

Concentration risk arises if a significant percentage of our interest income is derived from a single
geographic area subject to the possibility of an adverse regulatory change. In the year ended December 31, 2016,
interest income generated in Poland represented 24% of our consolidated interest income, followed by Spain
(14%), Latvia (11%), Georgia (9%), Denmark (9%), Sweden (6%), Finland (6%) and Lithuania (6%). In the year
ended December 31, 2015, interest income generated in Poland represented 26% of our consolidated interest
income, followed by Latvia (14%), Georgia (12%), Spain (11%), Lithuania (11%), Sweden (8%), Denmark
(7%) and Finland (7%). The expansion of our business presence into new markets reduces concentration risk.
Despite the significant impact of certain jurisdictions on our overall results, customer concentration generally
does not pose a material risk as our loan portfolio consists of a high volume of small value loans.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that we may encounter difficulty in meeting our obligations as they relate to
financial liabilities settled through the delivery of cash or other financial assets as they fall due. Our liquidity
position is enhanced by the structure of our balance sheet: our assets are mainly short term, while our liabilities
are generally long term. To further manage liquidity risk, we fund our loans through a centralized treasury and an
intra-Group funding process, whereby cash balances are monitored on a daily basis, three-month cash flow
forecasts are performed on a weekly basis and funding is distributed through a single financial subsidiary, the
Issuer. Funding requests that are within budgeted loans are approved by the centralized treasury, while requests
in excess of budgeted amounts are subject to approval of the CFO. Cash is primarily held in the Issuer’s bank
accounts, with minimal cash balances remaining on the level of operating companies.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss caused by human behavior, systems failures, inadequate internal
processes, uncontrollable external events and external fraud. Operational risks are inherent in all of our
operations.

Operational risks are managed by our CRO, local risk managers at our key operating subsidiaries and a full-
time, Group-wide fraud analyst, whose mandate is solely to deal with fraud issues. To mitigate operational risks,
we have instituted Group-wide operational risk event reporting, conduct risk assessment when launching new
products, regularly re-assess existing risk-mitigation processes and have put into place a business continuity
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management policy to handle low probability, high-impact events. Business continuity management is overseen
by the CRO and is a critical feature of our operations in that clear guidelines have been developed to assist
operating subsidiaries in the event business continuity is threatened. We have also developed a Continuity Policy
and Plan, a disaster recovery plan in the event it becomes necessary to switch services from the main data center
to a recovery center and a Crisis Communication Plan for all key management and employees. To protect our IT
systems, we have located all key IT infrastructure in the United Kingdom and a recovery data center in the
United States. Each database server has a redundancy service, and all routers and other main nodes of IT
infrastructure are duplicated, with every pivotal device equipped with its own uninterruptable power supply.
Internet connections in each of our subsidiaries are backed up by an additional internet provider.

To further protect against operational risk, we have developed and implemented guidelines that require
(i) appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of business transactions, (ii) the
reconciliation and monitoring of transactions, (iii) effective documentation of controls and procedures,
(iv) compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements and (v) the periodic assessment of operational risks
and the adequacy of controls and procedures in place to address such risks. We also organize training and
professional development programs for both our management and employees and take out insurance where cost-
effective and relevant.

Currency risk

Our assets mainly comprise loans and advances due from customers, which accounted for 53% of total
assets as of December 31, 2016. As of such date, these loans and advances consisted of Single Payment Loans
and Installment Loans extended in a variety of currencies, including the Euro (in Finland, Spain, Latvia and
Lithuania), the Bulgarian Lev, the Czech Koruna, the Danish Krone, the Georgian Lari, the Polish Zloty and the
Swedish Krona. No loans were denominated in US Dollars. As of December 31, 2016, 71% of our net loans and
advances due from customers were denominated in non-Euro currencies. Our liabilities mainly comprise loans
and borrowings denominated in US dollars, Swedish Kronor and Euros, with US dollar-denominated loans and
borrowings accounting for 49% of our loans and borrowings as of December 31, 2016. Therefore, we are subject
to certain shifts in currency valuations, namely, the depreciation against the US Dollar of the other currencies in
which we extend loans and advances, and the depreciation against the Euro, which is our reporting currency, of
the other currencies. Although we have entered into a cross-currency swap and several forward agreements as a
hedge against the depreciation of the US Dollar against the Euro, such hedging has not provided us with 100%
coverage, nor has it protected us from fluctuations in the Euro value of our other operating currencies. We have
also entered into certain option agreements as a hedge against the fluctuation of the Polish Zloty and Georgian
Lari.

The table below sets forth our material open currency positions converted into Euros at the official exchange
rates as of December 31, 2016, together with the change in the value in Euros of each open currency position
following a hypothetical 10% depreciation of such currency against the Euro.

Change in Euro
value from 5%

Amount (in Exchange rate depreciation of
millions of (foreign foreign currency
EUR) currency/EUR) against Euro

PolishZloty ........ ... .. ... ... ..... 1.1 4.410 —
SwedishKrona ....................... (41.4) 9.552 4.1
Czechcrown ......................... 0.7 27.021 0.1)
GeorgianLari ........................ 0.5 2.782 0.1)
USdollar ....... ... .. i, (175.0) 1.054 45.0
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The table below sets forth the sensitivity of our net income and equity to changes in the foreign currency
exchange rates of selected operating currencies based on positions existing as of the dates indicated, assuming a
hypothetical 10% change in the SEK, CZK, PLN, USD and GEL to EUR exchange rates.

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2016 2015 2014
Net Net Net Net Net
income Equity income income income income
(in millions of EUR)
10% appreciation of SEK against EUR ................ 4.1 @1 & 4.1) — —
10% depreciation of SEK against EUR ................ 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.1 — —
10% appreciation of CZK against EUR ................ 0.5 0.5 0.1) (0.1) — —
10% depreciation of CZK against EUR ................ 0.1) (0.1 04 0.4 — —
10% appreciation of PLN against EUR ................ 2.9 2.9 0.2) 0.2) 0.6 0.6
10% depreciation of PLN against EUR ................ — — 1.7 1.7 (0.6) (0.6)
10% appreciation of USD against EUR ................ 7.7 (A7.7)  (1.3) (1.3) 1.9 1.9
10% depreciation of USD against EUR ................ 45.0 450 117 11.7 0.1) (0.1)
10% appreciation of GEL against EUR ................ 0.1 0.1 (0.6) (0.6) — —
10% depreciation of GEL against EUR ................ 0.1) (0.1 0.7 0.7 — —

Management does not consider there to be currency risk with respect to the Danish Krone since it is pegged
to the Euro and its rate of exchange is likely only to change as a result of a change in macro-economic policy. In
addition, on January 1, 2015, Lithuania adopted the Euro as its currency, replacing the Lithuanian Litas, which
was previously pegged to the Euro.

We evaluate opportunities to hedge against open positions in foreign currencies. As of December 31, 2016,
we maintained hedges against open positions in the following currencies: USD, CZK and PLN.

As of December 31, 2016, the fair value of these financial instruments was EUR 11.2 (December 31, 2015:
EUR 10.6 million). See also “Risk Factors—Risk Factors Relating to Our Business—Qur operations in various
countries subject us to foreign exchange risk.” See also “Related Party Transactions” for information about
hedges entered into where the counterparty was a related party.

Reputational risk

Reputational risk is the risk that we may be the subject of negative publicity due to, among other things, the
breach of applicable regulatory requirements. See “Risk Factors—Risk Factors relating to our Business—QOur
business is highly regulated, and if we fail to comply with existing or newly introduced applicable laws,
regulations, rules and guidance, as has recently occurred in Lithuania, we may be subject to fines or penalties,
have to exit certain markets or be restricted from carrying out certain operations.” Our management is aware of
the scrutiny and interest in the operations of short-term lending institutions by regulators, special interest groups
and members of the public. We seek to be transparent in the way we market our business, take steps to ensure
that our operations are in compliance with all applicable legal requirements and cooperate extensively with
regulators, when entering a new market and during consultations regarding proposed amendments to regulation.

Capital management

Capital management risk refers to managing the relationship between short-term assets and short-term
liabilities and maintaining each at efficient levels. Our capital management is not governed by any requirements
set by regulatory institutions or international bodies. Nevertheless, we review our capital position on a regular
basis to ensure positive equity in all our subsidiaries and to maintain sufficient funds to ensure that medium- and
long-term strategic goals are met. Our capital to assets ratio as of December 31, 2016 was 25%.

Regulatory risk

Regulatory risk is the risk that a change in laws and regulations in any of the jurisdictions in which we
operate could affect the manner in which we are able to conduct our business and ultimately have a material
adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows. We proactively cooperate with
regulators and closely monitor all changes in the regulatory regimes to identify associated risks and ensure
compliance in a timely manner. See “—Key Factors Affecting Results of Operations—Changes in the regulatory
framework.”
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that movements in interest rates may affect our income or the value of our
portfolio of financial assets and liabilities. We believe that interest rate risk is not material to our operations since
all of our loans are issued and payable at fixed interest rates and most of our borrowings are long-term in nature
and at fixed interest rates.

Interest rate risk on loans to customers arising from short-term repricing is not considered a material part of
interest rate risk since only a small portion of the assets in our portfolio is linked to variable market rates.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Following the introduction of our Line of Credit product in September 2015, the Group had contractual
obligations for undrawn credit facilities totaling EUR 0.8 million as of December 31, 2016. TBIF Group’s
undrawn online credit commitments for Corporate clients and individuals totaled EUR 3.0 million and
EUR 5.3 million respectively, and guarantees for corporate clients amounted to EUR 0.5 million.

DISCUSSION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our financial condition and results of operations presented in the Financial Statements and selected
statistical and other information appearing elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum are, to a large degree,
dependent upon our accounting policies which in some cases involve a significant amount of management
discretion. Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 3 to the 2014 Financial Statements on
pages F-175 to F-183 of this Offering Memorandum. We have identified the following accounting policies as the
most important policies for understanding our results of operations and financial condition.

Financial assets

We assess whether there is objective evidence that financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of
the asset that can be estimated reliably.

Specific impairment testing is not undertaken since our loan portfolio consists of a large number of small
exposure loans that would make individual impairment testing impracticable. Allowances for impairment are
assessed collectively, covering credit losses inherent in the loan portfolios and advances with similar credit risk
characteristics, including the portfolio of defaulted loans, which are defined as past due for more than 90 days. In
assessing collective impairment, we use statistical modeling of historical trends, taking into consideration such
factors as probability of default rates calculated for each delinquency bucket (see below), loss given default rates,
portfolio size and general economic conditions. Probability of default rates, timing of recoveries and the amount
of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are
such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical modeling. Default rates,
loss given default rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual
outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment provisions are assessed by our risk department on a monthly basis separately for each
delinquency bucket. Impairment provisions for each delinquency bucket are calculated pursuant to the following
formula: loan portfolio amount multiplied by probability of default multiplied by loss given default.

The loan portfolio amount includes all active loans (including principal and interest) at the end of each

month. Loan portfolio amounts are determined for each of the following delinquency buckets:

e No delay;

e 1-30 day delay;

e 31-60 day delay;

*  61-90 day delay;

* 91-360 day delay;

e 361-730 day delay; and
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e delay for more than 730 days.

Restructured loans, i.e., loans under a repayment plan, are classified as delayed in the applicable
delinquency group.

Probability of default is the probability that a loan in a given delinquency bucket becomes overdue by 91 or
more days. For each delinquency bucket, the probability of default is calculated by using a transition matrix,
which analyzes the movement between delinquency buckets over a one-month period. A transition matrix
analysis comprises of the following three steps:

1. determine how the balances in each delinquency bucket in the preceding month migrate into the
delinquency buckets of the current month. A portion of such balances may be paid in the current
month, a portion may remain in the same delinquency bucket as in the previous month and a portion
may migrate into a new delinquency bucket.

2. calculate the percentage, or roll rate, of outstanding loan balances for each delinquency bucket of the
previous month that fall into each delinquency bucket of the current month. To calculate the roll rate
for each delinquency bucket, we look to the percentage of loans that are in worse status in the current
month relative to the preceding month. For example, if 49% of non-delayed loans from the previous
month remained non-delayed in the current month and 36% were paid off, 15% of non-delayed loans
from the previous month would roll into worse status. Therefore, the roll rate for non-delayed loans
from the previous month would be 15%.

3. multiply the roll rates for each delinquency bucket from the previous month to predict the probability
of an account rolling from one delinquency bucket into default. For example, if the roll rates for the
previous month were 14% for non-delayed loans, 34% for loans delayed for 1-30 days, 84% for loans
delayed for 31-60 days and 88% for loans delayed for 61- 90 days, then the probability that a
non-delayed loan from the previous month would default would equal 14% multiplied by 34%
multiplied by 84% multiplied by 88%, or 3.5%.

Loss given default is the share of loans and receivables lost in the event of default. To calculate loss given
default, we assume that we can collect cash from defaulted loans up to 21 months (for Single Payment Loans), or
36 months (for Installment Loans), after the month in which the respective default has occurred. Loss given
default is equal to 1—recovery rate. The recovery rate is equal to discounted cash inflows (including principal
interest, fees and commissions) received during the 21 or 36 months (depending on product type) following
default. Cash inflows are decreased by external collection costs and discounted by using our weighted average
cost of capital. Calculating loss given default is a multi-step process:

1. determine amount of loans that enter into default (i.e., more than 90 days overdue) in each month and
calculate the actual recovery of total incoming amounts for each of the 21/36 months after the month in
which such loans defaulted.

2. for each of the 21/36 months after default, aggregate the recoveries for the 12 most recent vintage
months (subtracting external collection costs from these recoveries) and divide this number by the total
number of corresponding defaults. This gives the recovery percent for each month.

3. add the recovery percentages of each of the 21/36 months after default, and discount the sum by our
weighted average cost of capital to determine the recovery rate.

4.  for each month, calculate the loan given default rate as 1—recovery rate.

Management continuously monitors our recovery rates on delinquent loans and revises loss given default
rates based on actual recoveries received and taking into account the extent to which data is available to calculate
recovery rates for each of the 21/36 months following default or to conduct the 12-month vintage analysis. For
example, if data is only available to calculate recovery rates for several months after default, we may use
benchmark figures for those periods where we do not have our own historical data.

Impairment losses on the portfolio of assets carried at amortized cost are measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated discounted future cash
flows.

Impairment losses on financial assets are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income and
reflected in an allowance account against loans and advances. Interest on impaired assets is recognized indirectly
through a change in net impairment allowance when repayments take place. When a subsequent event causes the
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed.
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Any changes in debt collection laws or principles could affect cash inflows from non-performing loans as
well as any changes in loan underwriting criteria or mistakes in outside databases or scorecards could lead to
increased probabilities and defaults that could significantly impact the impairment of assets.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of our non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite lives and intangible assets not
yet ready for use are tested annually by comparing the carrying amounts of these assets with their recoverable
amounts, irrespective of whether there is any indication that such assets may be impaired.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that
largely are independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses on non-financial assets are recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

Reversal of impairment losses

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise call deposits in banks that are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
fair value and are used by us in the management of certain short-term commitments.

Financial instruments
Recognition

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position when we become a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All “regular way” purchases of financial assets are accounted for
at the settlement date.

Measurement

A financial asset or liability is initially measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or
liability not recognized at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or liability.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets, including derivatives that are assets, are measured at their
fair values, without any deduction for transaction costs that may be incurred on sale or other disposal, except for:

e loans and receivables that are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. See
“—Income and expense recognition—Interest income and expense” for a description of the effective
interest rate method; and

* investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured. Such investments are measured at cost.
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All financial liabilities, other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss and financial
liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset carried at fair value does not qualify for de-recognition,
are measured at amortized cost. Amortized cost is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Premiums
and discounts, including initial transaction costs, are included in the carrying amount of the related instrument
and amortized based on the effective interest rate of the instrument.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or would be paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which we have access at such date. The fair value of a liability reflects its
non-performance risk. When applicable, the fair value of an instrument is measured using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. When there is no
quoted price in an active market, we use valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all the factors that
market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

Our key financial instruments are cash, trade receivables and loans to customers and bonds issued, trade
payables, deposits from customers and other creditors arising from business activities.

Derivative financial instruments, such as swap and forward instruments, are initially recognized at fair value
on the date when the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. All
derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is
negative. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized immediately in the statement of comprehensive
income.

We are engaged in hedging activities of our foreign exchange risk. We do not apply hedge accounting
however. Given the low level of trading activity, the Group has estimated that any credit valuation adjustment or
debit valuation adjustment would be immaterial and, as such, has not incorporated these into the fair value of
derivatives.

Loans and advances

Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

For the purposes of the Financial Statements, trade receivables and loans to customers are accounted for at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. See “—Income and expense recognition—Interest income
and expense” for a description of the effective interest rate method. An impairment loss allowance is recognized
for credit losses.

We write off trade receivables and loans to customers when they are past due more than 730 days and are
deemed to be uncollectible. See “—Impairment,” above.

Provisions

A provision is recognized (provided it can be estimated reliably) in the statement of financial position when
we have a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of our business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of our business and which (i) represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operation, (ii) is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operation and (iii) constitutes operations that are ceased. Classification as a
discontinued operation occurs at the earlier of disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as
held-for-sale. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the comparative period is restated as if the operation had been discontinued
from the start of the comparative year. See “—Restatement of Accounts” for a discussion of the discontinuation
of certain of our operations.
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Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods.

Deferred tax is provided for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the
following temporary differences: (i) the initial recognition of goodwill, (ii) the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss and (iii) differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they probably will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Income and expense recognition

All significant income and expense categories, including interest income and expenses, are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income on an accrual basis.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income using the effective
interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter
period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, we
estimate future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit
losses.

Revenue is not recognized when there is doubt whether the cost of services will be covered.

Penalty fee income

Income from penalty fees is recognized when received.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of our share of the net
identifiable assets of such acquisition, calculated as of the date of acquisition. Goodwill on the acquisition of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. In respect of equity-accounted investees, the carrying amount of
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment in the associates or joint venture. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Gains or losses on the disposal of
an entity includes the carrying amount of goodwill related to the entity sold. Negative goodwill arising on an
acquisition is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Foreign currency

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into
Euros at the spot exchange rate on such date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the
difference between amortized cost in Euros at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and
payments during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end
of the period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate on the date of the transaction. The income and expenses of
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foreign operations are translated into Euros at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the respective
transaction and compared with the value of such transaction calculated at the exchange rate prevailing on the
reporting date. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held-for-sale if it is
highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use. Such assets
are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment loss on assets
held for sale is allocated to the remaining assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis. Once classified as
held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortized or depreciated.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND
FINANCIAL CONDITION OF TBIF GROUP

OVERVIEW

TBIF operates via a wholly owned subsidiary, TBI Bank, in Bulgaria and Romania. TBI Bank is primarily
focused on banking operations, including the provision of retail (including cash loans, Point of Sale financing,
and credit card products) and SME credit and operational leasing. For the year ended December 31, 2016, 75%
(EUR 142.9 million) of TBI Bank’s gross loan portfolio was attributable to its retail segment, and 25% (EUR
48.6 million) was attributable to the SME segment. For the retail segment, 50% of gross loans were cash loans,
approximately 43% were Point-of-Sale financing and approximately 6% was in the form of credit cards.

TBI Bank has a customer base of approximately 1.4 million people. In its retail segment, customers are
predominantly individuals with low to middle income. In the SME segment, TBI Bank has a range of clients,
including from sectors such as agriculture and food, trade, construction and services industries.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the average retail loan taken out by TBI Bank’s customers was
EUR 478, and the average loan taken out by TBI Bank’s SME clients was EUR 63,624. During the year ended
December 31, 2016, TBI Bank recorded a net increase in deposits from customers of EUR 34.6 million.

TBI Bank had consolidated assets of EUR 318.9 million as of December 31, 2016 (compared to
EUR 274.2 million as of December 31, 2015), including EUR 194.3 million of net customer loans (including net
finance leases of EUR 15.5 million). TBI Bank maintains a diversified loan portfolio consisting of loans to both
consumers and SMEs. In addition, as of December 31, 2016 TBI Bank had EUR 88.8 million in cash on hand and
balances with central banks and placements with other banks. Funding is predominantly through customer
deposits of EUR 224.4 million, representing 92% of TBI Bank’s total liabilities, as of December 31, 2016.

TBI Bank operates primarily in Bulgaria. TBI Bank operates in Romania through TBIB Bank Branch
Bucharest (“TBI Bank Branch”). Other TBIF group companies, controlled by TBI Bank, include TBI Leasing
SA (“TBI Leasing”) and TBI Credit SA (“TBI Credit”) in Romania, as well as TBI Rent EAD (“TBI Rent”) in
Bulgaria which is primarily engaged in divesting activities.

See “Business—TBI Bank—Product Overview” for more information on TBI Bank.

KEY FACTORS AFFECTING RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Competition

TBI Bank is predominantly a retail bank. The retail banking market in Bulgaria and Romania has remained
stable over the last five years, and there have been no significant new entrants into the market, nor any
substantial change in the ranking of other market participants. TBI Bank is one of the smallest banks in Bulgaria
and Romania based on market share, and so has been able to experience a period of significant growth since
2014, increasing its loan portfolio, and accumulating returning customers. TBI Bank has managed to leverage its
customer base in Bulgaria due to brand recognition as a result of the retail business being formerly run by TBI
Credit. When TBI Credit transferred the retail business to TBI Bank, customers were already familiar with the
TBI brand.

Cost of funding

External factors in Bulgaria which directly impact TBU Bank’s cost of funding have, in turn, an effect on its
results of operations, revenue and profitability. For example, the interest rate on customer deposits has
significantly reduced over the last two years. The banking market changed substantially in 2015, when the fourth
largest commercial bank in Bulgaria, KTB, became insolvent. The insolvency of KTB triggered a decrease in
interest rates paid on customer deposits. For example, in 2015, the average interest rate paid on customer deposits
was approximately 2-3%. However, over the last two years, external market conditions have driven the interest
rate to below 1%, in line with other EU banks. The impact on TBI Bank’s operations is mitigated by its product
diversification. For example, in 2016 approximately 44% of TBI Bank’s retail portfolio in Bulgaria and Romania
consisted of Point-of-Sale financing and other loans, meaning that TBI Bank is less reliant on attracting customer
deposits than other banks, notwithstanding that the drop in interest rate has not caused deposits to decline.
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Decrease in transactional business

As part of its transactional business, TBI Bank acted as an intermediary between “web-based” businesses
for electronic payments. In 2016, TBI Bank began to discontinue its transactional business and refocused
primarily on loans to consumers and SME / leasing. Nevertheless, TBI Bank managed to largely compensate the
effect of this discontinuation by a more efficient usage of resources, increasing fees & commissions income. All
non-lending income sources remained profitable in the year ended December 31, 2016, but given their volume
and general disconnect from TBI Bank’s main segments, they are classified as non-key factors.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses remain a key factor to affecting the results of operations of TBI Bank.
Staff costs increased in the year ended December 31, 2016 due to an increase in wages and salaries, which in turn
was caused by (i) hiring more employees in 2016 in line with the increase in the loan portfolio, and (ii) bonuses
being paid to staff who achieved key performance indicators. Administrative expenses were EUR 10.1 million in
2016, compared to EUR 9.0 million in 2015, due to TBI Bank’s expansion of its loan portfolio in 2016, meaning
that, in turn, advertising expenses increased by 57.8% to EUR 0.8 million in 2016, and IT services increased by
98.3% to EUR 0.5 million in 2016.

DESCRIPTION OF KEY INCOME STATEMENT LINE ITEMS

“«

Below is a description of key line items from the income statement of TBI Bank. See “—Discussion of
Critical Accounting Policies of TBI Bank” and the notes to the Financial Statements of TBI Bank for further
discussion of the accounting treatment of certain of these items.

Interest income

Interest income consists mainly of loans to customers. Impaired loans to customers comprised 18.7% of
loans to customers in each of 2016 and 2015.

Interest expense

Interest expense consists mainly of customer deposits and, to a lesser extent, deposits from banks and
financial institutions and other borrowings. Customer deposits accounted for 83.1% and 81.6%, respectively, of
interest expense in 2016 and 2015.

Net interest income

Net interest income is interest income less interest expense.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income consists mainly of agent commissions (mainly arising from an insurance
contract) and transfers and transactions. Agent commissions accounted for 73.8% and 44.6%, respectively, and
transfers and transactions accounted for 23.3% and 42.2%, respectively, of fee and commission income in 2016
and 2015.

Fee and commission expense

Fee and commission expense consists mainly of agent commissions (mainly arising from a credit brokerage
contract) and bank transaction expenses.

Net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income is fee and commission income less fee and commission expense.

Net trading gain

Net trading gain consisted mainly of net gains on financial assets in 2016 and net foreign translation gains in
2015.
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Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses consists mainly of staff costs, administrative expenses and, to a lesser extent,
depreciation and amortisation and operating lease rentals and other related costs.

Staff costs comprised 51.6% and 47.0%, respectively, of other operating expenses in 2016 and 2015. Staff
costs, in turn, consist of wages and, to a lesser extent, social security contributions. Wages accounted for 83.8%
and 84.6%, respectively, of staff costs in 2016 and 2015.

Administrative expenses comprised 32.0% and 39.0%, respectively, of other operating expenses in 2016 and
2015. Administrative expenses, in turn, consist mainly of (i) expenses on consultancy, legal and other
professional services, (ii) costs of hired services (i.e., courier services, postal services, and other ancillary
services to the business) and (iii) tax expenses principally related to withholding tax on interest income received
from Romanian operations, and to a lesser extent, (iv) advertising expenses, (v) IT services and (vi) annual
contributions to deposit guarantee schemes required by national legislation.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets comprised 8.9% and
9.2%, respectively, of other operating expenses in 2016 and 2015.

Loss on impairment of financial assets

Loss on impairment of financial assets represents mainly impairment loss allowances on loans to customers.
See “—Discussion of Critical Accounting Policies of TBI Bank—Impairment to financial assets for a description
of TBI Bank’s impairment policies and procedures.

Other operating income

Other operating income consists mainly of rental income from our car rental operations and operating lease
activities. Rental income comprised 80.1% and 61.4%, respectively, of other operating income in 2016 and 2015.

Income tax expense

Income tax consists of current tax, and, to a lesser extent in 2016, deferred tax.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 COMPARED TO THE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

The table below sets forth the results of operations for TBI Bank for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared to the year ended December 31, 2015.

Year ended
December 31,

2016 2015
(in millions of EUR)

INtereSt iNCOME . . ..ottt e e e 46.8 33.9
INterest eXPense . . ... .v vt e 3.3) 4.7

Netinterestincome .................................. 43.5 29.2

Fee and commissionincome .................couiinrnn... 8.6 10.1
Fee and commission eXpense . ...................coo.... (1.7) (1.9)

Net fee and commissionincome ........................ 7.0 8.2

Nettrading gain .. ........o.iuiiinin e, 2.0 4.7
Other operating eXpenses . . ... .....c.eeeueenenenaenen.. 31.7) (23.1)
Loss on impairment of other financial assets ............... 5.9) “4.2)
Impairment of other assets ............................. (0.0) 0.1)
Lossonderivatives . ............. ...t 0.5) 0.4)

Other Operating inCome . . . . ..o v vtie e 4.3 4.1

Profit before tax from continuing operations ............. 18.7 18.4
Income tax eXpense . ... .......ueuiritniii 2.1 (1.8)

Profit for the period ................................. 16.6 16.6



Interest income

Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 46.8 million, a 38.0% increase compared to
EUR 33.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, primarily due to the growth of TBI Bank’s loan
portfolio during 2016. The increase in loan portfolio during 2016 was mainly due to a wider strategy of TBI
Bank to grow the consumer leading business and to obtain a larger marker share in the Bulgarian market.

Interest expense

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 3.3 million, a 29.8 % decrease compared
to EUR 4.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, primarily due to a decrease in TBI Bank’s cost of
funding, itself due to increasing volumes of customer deposits. There was also a decrease in interest paid on
customer deposits to EUR 2.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2016 from EUR 3.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2015, mainly due to a decrease in interest rates.

Net interest income

Net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 43.5 million, a 49.0% increase
compared to EUR 29.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, reflecting the corresponding increase in
interest income and decrease in interest expense discussed above.

Fee and commission income

For the year ended December 31, 2016, TBI Bank generated fee and commission income of
EUR 8.6 million, a 14.9% decrease compared to EUR 10.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. This
was primarily attributable to a discontinuing of operations relating to TBI Bank’s transactional business in 2016.
As part of its transactional business, TBI Bank acted as an intermediary between “web-based” businesses for
electronic payments. In 2016, TBI Bank discontinued its transactional business. Fee and commission income
attributable to transfers and transactions for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 2.0 million, compared
to EUR 4.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Fee and commission expense

For the year ended December 31, 2016, TBI Bank recorded fee and commission expense of
EUR 1.6 million, an 15.8% decrease compared to EUR 1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. This
was attributable to discontinuing part of the operations relating to TBI Bank’s transactional business in 2016.

Net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 7.0 million, a 14.6%
decrease compared to EUR 8.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, reflecting the corresponding
decreases in fee and commission income and fee and commission expense as discussed above.

Net trading gain

Net trading gain for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 2.0 million, a 57.4 % decrease compared
to EUR 4.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. This was primarily attributable to the reduction of
TBI Bank’s transactional business in 2016 due to the transactional business generating revenue in USD as well as
EUR, and the net trading gain in 2015 being mainly attributable to such business. For example, net trading gain
on financial assets was EUR 1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to a loss of
EUR 18,000 for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 amounted to EUR 31.7 million, a 37.2%
increase compared to EUR 23.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. The key driver for the increase in
other operating expenses was the increase in staff costs from EUR 10.9 million in 2015 to EUR 16.4 million in
2016. Staff costs increased due to an increase in wages and salaries, which in turn was caused by (i) hiring more
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employees in 2016 in line with the increase in the loan portfolio, and (ii) bonuses being paid to staff who
achieved key performance indicators. Administrative expenses were EUR 10.1 million in 2016, compared to
EUR 9.0 million in 2015, due to TBI Bank’s expansion of its loan portfolio in 2016, meaning that, in turn,
advertising expenses increased by 57.8% to EUR 0.8 million in 2016, and IT services increased by 97.8% to
EUR 0.5 million in 2016.

Loss on impairment of financial assets

Loss on impairment of financial assets amounted to EUR 5.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2016,
a 40.4% increase compared to EUR 4.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, primarily due to the
increase in the size of the loan portfolio.

Impairment of other assets

TBI Bank recorded EUR 0.04 million in impairment of other assets for the year ended December 31, 2016,
compared to impairment of other assets of EUR 0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Loss on derivatives

Loss on derivatives for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 0.5 million, a 25.0% increase
compared to EUR 0.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. This was primarily attributable to foreign
exchange fluctuations. TBI Bank’s exposure to derivative contracts is monitored as part of its overall market risk
management strategy.

Other operating income

Other operating income for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 4.3 million, a 4.8% increase
compared to EUR 4.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. This was primarily attributable to an
increase in income from operating lease activities to EUR 3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2016
compared to EUR 2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, itself mainly due to the activities of two
operating companies in Bulgaria and Romania in car rental and operating leases. These operating companies
typically have large contracts with established local corporations. Any income that TBI Bank receives from these
entities is recorded as rental income.

Profit before tax

Profit before tax for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 18.8 million, a 1.6% increase compared to
EUR 18.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2016 was EUR 2.1 million, a 16.7% increase
compared to EUR 1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, due to an increase in TBI Bank’s profit
before tax.

Profit for the period

In the year ended December 31, 2016, profit was EUR 16.6 million and, therefore, there was no material
change compared to the year ended December 31, 2015 when profit was also EUR 16.6 million.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

TBI Bank’s primary sources of liquidity are customer deposits (and, to a lesser extent, bank deposits). In
2016, deposits accounted for 70% of funding (82.5% of which comprised term deposits) and capital accounted
for 23% of funding. TBI Bank also maintains for its SME business a EUR 3 million credit limit with the
Bulgarian Development Bank. Going forward, TBI Bank’s funding strategy includes expansion of deposits
through different channels, including on-line, and markets, including Germany and Poland,

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, deposits from customers amounted to EUR 224.4 million and
EUR 189.8 million, respectively, and deposits from banks amounted to EUR 3.0 million and EUR 12.6 million,
respectively. Cash and cash equivalents (see note 31 of the audited financial statements of TBI Bank as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2016) amounted to EUR 63.5 million and 60.5 million, respectively, at year-end
2016 and 2015.
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The table below sets forth our net cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the
periods indicated.

Year ended
December 31,

2016 2015
(in millions of EUR)

Net cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities . . 13.0 (1.4)
Net cash flows used in investing activities . .. .............. 5.9) 9.5)

Net cash flows generated from/(used in) financing activities . . “.1) 2.6
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ................. 3.0 (8.3)

Cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities

TBI Bank’s cash flows from operating activities reflect a variety of factors, including mainly loans to
customers, deposits from customers and banks and the issuance of finance leases.

In 2016, net cash flows generated from operating activities were EUR 13.0 million, mainly due to a net
increase in deposits from customers of EUR 34.6 million, driven, in large part, by a substantial increase in term
deposits from customers. This increase in customer term deposits reflected the fact that the interest rates paid to
customers on term deposits exceeded the market average in 2016. Partially offsetting this expansion in customer
deposits were a EUR 18.5 million net increase in retail loans (reflecting TBI Bank’s strategy to grow the business
and increase its market share), and a EUR 15.5 million net increase in finance leases (reflecting the acquisition of
TBI Leasing in Romania in 2016).

In 2015, net cash flows used in operating activities were EUR 1.4 million, reflecting mainly a
EUR 27.3 million net increase in loans to customers (reflecting TBI Bank’s strategy to grow the business and
increase its market share), a EUR 8.2 million net decrease in total deposits from customers (reflecting TBI
Bank’s strategy to mitigate excess liquidity) and a EUR 5.5 million net increase in available-for-sale financial
assets (reflecting new investment in government bonds issued by the Government of Romania). These outflows
were partially offset by a variety of factors, including a EUR 12.0 million net increase in deposits from banks
(reflecting TBI Bank’s strategy to manage short-term liquidity needs on the money market).

Cash flows used in investing activities

TBI Bank’s cash flows used in investing activities mainly include the purchase of property and equipment,
proceeds from the disposal of property and equipment, held-to-maturity financial assets purchased by TBI Bank
and the purchase of intangible assets.

In 2016, net cash flows used in investing activities were EUR 5.9 million, resulting primarily from the
EUR 4.1 million purchase of corporate debt securities and the EUR 3.1 million purchase of property and
equipment, offset by EUR 1.4 million in proceeds received from the disposal of property and equipment.

In 2015, net cash flows used in investing activities were EUR 9.5 million, resulting primarily from the
EUR 8.7 million purchase of property and equipment (mainly motor vehicles).

Cash flows generated from/ (used in) financing activities

TBI Bank’s cash flows from financing activities mainly reflect proceeds received from borrowings,
payments made on borrowings, and share capital increases.

In 2016, net cash flows used in financing activities were EUR 4.1 million, resulting from the
EUR 5.6 million in payments made on borrowings, including the early repayment of the subordinated loan
facility with Novo Ljubljanska Banka d.d. (Slovenia), partially offset by EUR 1.5 million in proceeds received
from the issuance of new shares.

In 2015, net cash flows generated from financing activities were EUR 2.6 million, resulting primarily from a

share capital increase of EUR 4.2 million and payments received on borrowings of EUR 0.6 million, partially
offset by payments made on borrowings of EUR 2.2 million
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FINANCIAL POSITION

The following discussion compares the consolidated financial position of TBI Bank as of December 31,
2016 and 2015.

Assets

We had total assets of EUR 318.9 million as of December 31, 2016, compared to EUR 274.2 million as of
December 31, 2015, representing an increase of EUR 44.7 million, or 16.3%. This increase was primarily due to
an increase in loans to customers, deposits with banks and non-current assets held for sale, as well as the issuance
of finance leases in 2016.

Net loans to customers (excluding finance leases) increased to EUR 178.8 million (from EUR 169.3 million
as of year-end 2015) mainly due to an increase in retail loans, offset by a decline in loans to corporates. The
balance of gross retail loans increased to EUR 142.9 million as of December 31, 2016, compared to EUR
114.0 million as of December 31, 2015.

Deposits with banks increased to EUR 50.2 million (from EUR 20.6 million as of year-end 2015) mainly
due to a substantial increase in current accounts with foreign banks. The balance of such accounts was
EUR 49.7 million as of December 31, 2016, compared to EUR 2.8 million as of December 31, 2015.

Non-current assets held for sale increased to EUR 15.4 million (from EUR 4.6 million in 2015) mainly due
to an increase in the balance of repossessed assets and tangible assets. In 2016, TBI Bank repossessed assets
under terminated or overdue loan agreements of EUR 7.5 million (compare to EUR 4.6 million in 2015); such
assets mainly consisted of buildings and land.

Cash on hand and balances with central banks declined to EUR 33.9 million (from EUR 56.0 million as of
year-end 2015).

Liabilities

We had total liabilities of EUR 244.3 million as of December 31, 2016 compared to EUR 217.5 million as
of December 31, 2015, representing an increase of EUR 26.8 million, or 12.3%. This increase was mainly due to
an increase in deposits from customers (reflecting in large part an increase in retail term deposits) to
EUR 224.4 million (from EUR 189.8 million as of year-end 2015). It was partially offset by a decrease in
deposits from banks to EUR 3.0 million (from EUR 12.6 million as of year-end 2015), reflecting TBI Bank’s
strategy to manage short-term liquidity needs on the money market.

Equity

As of December 31, 2016, TBI Bank’s total equity amounted to EUR 74.7 million, compared to
EUR 56.7 million as of December 31, 2015. The increase in equity was mainly due to retained earnings of
EUR 29.3 million as of December 31, 2016, compared to retained earnings of EUR 14.3 million as of
December 31, 2015.

CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

The table below sets forth information regarding TBI Bank’s contractual obligations and payments due by
period as of December 31, 2016 (excluding off-balance sheet items, which are discussed further below):

Less than 1 1-3 3-12 1-5
As of 31 December 2016 month months months years Total
(in thousands of EUR)

Deposits frombanks ........... ... . i 4.6 9.2 635 2,494 3,143
Derivatives . ... ... 16 — — — 16
Deposits from customers .. .............o.oiiiiien.. 63,775 28,813 120,296 13,880 226,766
Other borrowings . ... 38 40 139 272 489
Held-for-sale non-current liabilities .................... — 5,706 — — 5,706
Other liabilities . ......... ... ... . 8,510 2,242 762 — 11,514
Total liabilities (contractual maturity dates) ........... 72,345 36,810 121,832 16,647 247,636

100



Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

TBI Bank incurs contingent liabilities on loans and credit lines and irrevocable commitments (i.e., issuances
of guarantees and letters of credit) in the ordinary course of its business. The following table shows TBI Bank’s
contingent liabilities and irrevocable commitments (excluding operating lease commitments) as of the dates
indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015
(in thousands of EUR)

Guarantees
Corporate clients . ..., 950 1,787
Undrawn credit commitments
Corporate clients . ............o i, 5,715 5,856
Individuals . ....... ... .. . . 10,513 9,262
Total contingent liabilities and irrevocable

commitments . ............... ... . ... .......... 17,178 16,905

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT RISK MANAGEMENT

TBI Bank is exposed to a variety of risks, including credit risk, currency risk, liquidity risk and capital
management risk, among others. See Note 2 of TBI Bank’s 2016 Financial Statements for further discussion on
the risks facing TBI Bank, as well as its risk management policies.

Credit risk

TBI Bank is exposed to the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when they fall due.
TBI Bank manages its credit risk by placing limits on exposure to one borrower or group of borrowers,
geographical regions and industry segments. It also follows rigorous credit analysis procedures that includes
phone calls with customers, during which credit analysts verify material customer information, employment
references and confirmation on income sources.

TBI Bank classifies its credit exposure into four categories:

standard exposure, where the principal and interest are repaid currently in accordance with contractual
terms or are past due up to 30 days (provided delay was accidental), the debtor uses the loan for the purposes
stipulated in the loan agreement and TBI Bank has sufficient information on the debtor’s financial position.

watch exposure, where principal or interest payments are past due by 31-90 days, the debtor uses the loan
for purposes other than those stipulated in the loan agreement or the final maturity of a loan with bullet
repayment granted to a newly established company or a company with a poor credit history has been
renegotiated;

non-performing, where principal or interest payments are past due by 91-180 days or the debtor’s financial
position has deteriorated significantly and may jeopardize the repayment of his obligations;

loss, where principal or interest payments are past due by more than 180 days, the debtor suffers a
permanent shortage of money, the debtor has been declared bankrupt or is in liquidation (and there is a risk that
creditor demands will not be met, the amount due is subject to court proceedings or the court has awarded it to
TBI Bank, but it has not yet been collected or other conditions exist to jeopardize repayment.

TBI Bank takes collateral for a share of its loans to customers. In 2016 and 2015, 25.9% and 26.3% of total
gross loans to customers (loans before impairment) were covered by collateral. Mortgages are the most common
form of collateral.

The allowance for impairment loss as a share of gross loans to customers was 6.5% in 2016 and 5.5% in

2015. As of December 31, 2016, TBI Bank’s NPL share was 12.8% (compared to 13.4% as of December 31,
2015) and its NPL coverage ratio was 63.0% (compared to 63.7% as of December 31, 2015).
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As of December 31, 2016, the ten largest loans to customers comprised 9.3% of TBI Bank’s loan portfolio
(net of provisions), compared to 14.5% as of December 31, 2015. In 2016, TBI Bank’s net loan portfolio was
evenly split between Bulgaria and Romania and consisted of 68% consumer loans and 32% SME/leasing loans.
The table below sets forth TBI Bank’s exposure to credit risk by geographic sector:

Financial assets 2016 2015
- (in thousands of BGN)
Bulgaria . ... 227,617 254,950
Romania ......... ... . . . .. . 324,684 227,482
Other COUNLIIES . oo et 13,696 6,674
Total financial assets .. ............................ 565,997 489,106

Exposures to credit risk related to contingent liabilities and
irrevocable commitments:

Bulgaria . ... ... 12,873 11,760
Romania ......... . . . . . . 4,305 5,142
Other Countries . ...........ouuiiiiinn. — 3

Total financial assets and contingent liabilities and
irrevocable commitments . ....................... 583,175 506,011

TBI Bank is well diversified by economic sector. In 2016, consumer loans comprised 74% of TBI Bank’s
gross loan portfolio, excluding finance leases (of which 50% were cash loans, 43% POS loans, 6% credit cards
and 1% other loans), construction & real estate accounted for 10%, and other sectors represented less than 5%
each. The table below sets forth TBI Bank’s exposure to credit risk by economic sector:

2016 2016 2015 2015
(in thousands of BGN)
COMMETICE . o oottt e e e e e e 14,482 3.85% 25,520 7.22%
Agriculture . ... 13,638 3.62% 10,991 3.11%
Construction and real estate . ....................... 39,047 10.38% 42913 12.14%
SEIVICES o vttt 10,089 2.68% 25,813 7.30%
Manufacturing . ...t 5,501 1.46% 5,025 1.42%
TOULISIM . ..t 12,193 3.24% 19,001 5.38%
Other financial institutions . ........................ 81 0.02% 189 0.05%
Individuals .......... .. ... ... .. . . . ... 279,538 74.30% 223,010 63.10%
Staff ... 1,669 0.44% 941 0.27%
Total loans to customers . ......................... 376,238 100.00% 353,403 100.00%

TBI Bank relies on so-called “soft” collection as well as “legal” collection procedures. Soft collection
procedures are employed in respect of loans up to 120 days past due (or 209 days past due in Romania, as is
required by Romanian legislation). 10 days after the maturity date, defaulting customers are divided into a series
of buckets depending on the numbers of days delinquent. TBI Bank uses a variety of approaches to recover
amounts overdue, including the use of behavior scoring and customer segmentation models. TBI Bank employs
legal collection procedures for loans that are 120 days past due in Bulgaria and 180 days past due in Romania. In
Bulgaria, when a loan reaches 180 days past due, TBI Bank obtains a writ of execution, which is executed by a
bailiff. In Romania, when a loan reaches 209 days past due, matters are sent to the bailiff for collection.

Currency risk

TBI Bank does not maintain material open positions in currencies other than the Bulgarian Lev and the
Euro. The Bulgarian Lev is pegged to the Euro at an exchange rate of BGN 1.95583 to EUR 1. TBI Bank
maintains a partial hedge in the form of a forex swap on its open position in the Romanian Lei. As of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the hedge covered 77.5% and 70.1%, respectively, of such open position.

A hypothetical 10% depreciation of the Bulgarian Lev against foreign currencies (except the Euro) would
have led to a Euro 3.6 million loss, as measured on December 31, 2016, and a Euro 1.7 million loss, as measured
on December 31, 2015.

Liquidity risk
TBI Bank faces the risk that available cash resources may be insufficient to cover withdrawals on financial
liabilities as they become due and the inability to replace funds when they are withdrawn. TBI Bank measures its
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liquidity risk in a variety of ways, including regular review of liquidity ratios, including those set by the Group
and by the competent regulatory authority. TBI Bank monitors on a daily basis the liquidity of its assets and
liabilities by currency, amount and interest rate. With respect to a large portion of financial liabilities, comprising
term deposits from individuals and legal entities, TBI Bank takes measures to encourage customers to renew
their deposits.

TBI Bank’s liquidity coverage ratio (highly liquid assets as a share of short-term liabilities) was 361.4% as
of December 31, 2016. Its general liquidity ratio (i.e., cash and placements as a share of total liabilities) was
38.5% as of December 31, 2016 and 35.4% as of December 31, 2015. TBI Bank’s policy regarding liquidity
management is to maintain liquidity well above the 20% level require by the Bulgarian National Bank.

3

See “—Contractual Commitments” and “—Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements” for a discussion of TBI
Bank’s financial liabilities and commitments, including their maturity profile.

Capital management risk

TBI Bank manages its capital management risk by complying with capital requirements set by the regulators
of the markets where TBI Bank operates, ensuring its ability to continue as a going concern and maintain a strong
capital base. TBI Bank maintains two tiers of capital and applies the requirements of Regulations (EU) No
575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential requirements for credit
institutions and investment firms. See “—Information regarding Regulatory Capital of TBI Bank” for further
discussion of the composition of TBI Bank’s regulatory capital and risk-weighted assets as well as capital
adequacy ratios.

Operational risk

Operational risk, including reputational risk, is the risk of loss due to inadequate or ineffective
implementation of internal processes or systems operations, human error or other external factors. Operational
risk includes the integrity of TBI Bank’s information technology systems and the risk of loss due to a failure to
adhere to legal requirements, sound banking practices, TBI Bank’s internal regulations and code of conduct and
best practice industry standards.

DISCUSSION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF TBI BANK

TBI Bank has identified the following accounting policies as the most important policies for understanding
its results of operations and financial condition. TBI Bank’s significant accounting policies are described in
further detail in Note 1 of its 2016 Financial Statements.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are measured using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate
method calculates the amortized cost of a financial asset or liability and allocates interest income and expense
over the respective time period. It discounts the estimated future cash inflows and outflows over the expected life
of the financial instrument, or a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in bank accounts, cash held with central banks and in
nostro accounts with other banks, as well as bank deposits with an original maturity of less than three months.

Impairment of financial assets
TBI Bank classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets and other assets.

With respect to assets carried at amortized cost, such as loans and receivables, TBI Bank assesses at each
balance sheet date whether objective evidence for impairment exists as a result of an event occurring after the
asset’s initial recognition that impacts the estimated future cash flows from the asset. Objective evidence may
include the following:

e non-performance of contractual payments on principal or interest;

¢ financial difficulties of the debtor;
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e breach of clauses or provisions of the contract;

e filing of bankruptcy procedures;

e deterioration of competitive position of the debtor;
e decrease in the value of the loan collateral; and

e deterioration of the credit rating below the investment level.

TBI Bank measures impairment separately for individually significant financial assets and individually or on a
portfolio basis for financial assets that are not individually significant. TBI Bank reviews its loan portfolios for
impairment on at least a monthly basis. With respect to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments, if
there is objective evidence of impairment, the loss is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of
the asset and the present value of the estimated cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If subsequent to recognition of impairment, the
impairment loss decreases and this decrease may be objectively attributed to an event occurring after the
recognition of the loss (e.g., improvement of the debtor’s credit rating), the impairment loss is reversed, and the
amount of such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

With respect to available-for-sale financial assets, i.e., assets held over an indefinite period of time and that
may be disposed of in response to liquidity needs or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or prices of
securities, TBI Bank assesses whether objective data exists that such assets should be impaired. For equity
investments classified as available for sale, a prolonged or significant decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is taken into account when considering impairment.

Renegotiated loans are considered performing at the time of renegotiation. In subsequent periods, the asset
is considered in default and is disclosed as such only if the new terms and conditions have been breached.

Financial liabilities

Borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of cash inflows upon origination of the liability (less
transaction costs). Subsequently, borrowings are measured at amortized cost, with any difference between the net
cash flows and the amortized cost recognized as profit or loss (using the effective interest rate method over the
useful life of the liability). Deposits from banks and customers, subordinated term debt and other liabilities are
recognized at amortized cost.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the liability (provided such
liability can be measured reliably).

A new provisioning methodology in respect of consumer loans was introduced as of December 31, 2016.
The new methodology is based on probability of default and loss-given default methodologies, rather than the
previously used methodology of classifying fixed percentages of balance sheet exposure values to different delay
buckets.

Financial guarantee contracts

TBI Bank issues financial guarantees to banks, financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of customers
to secure loans, overdrafts and other bank facilities. They are initially recognized at fair value on the date of
issuance. Subsequently, they are measured at the higher of (i) the initial measurement less amortization
calculated for the recognition the commission income earned over the life of the guarantee and (ii) the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle any financial obligation arising at the balance sheet date.

INFORMATION REGARDING REGULATORY CAPITAL OF TBI BANK

TBI Bank reports regulatory capital according to and in compliance with Basel Committee requirements as
well as applicable EU directives, as adopted by the Bulgarian National Bank. TBI Bank measures risk-weighted
assets according to specified requirements which reflect the varying levels of risk attached to assets and
off-balance sheet exposures, and include amounts in respect of credit, market and other related risks.

104



The table below summarizes the composition of regulatory capital of TBI Bank and risk-weighted assets for

the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Tier-one capital

Share capital .......... .. ... .. .
Reserves and accumulated profit/(loss) from prior years . . . .

Less:

Intangible assets ............. i
Other deductions . ........... ...,

Total tier-one capital ...............................

Tier-two capital

Subordinated termdebt .......... ... ... ... .. ... ...

Total tier-two capital . . ............................

Risk-weighted assets

Balance sheetitems .......... ... . . ...
Off-balance sheetitems ........... ... .o ..

Total risk-weighted assets . . . .......................

Capital adequacyratio ............................

As of 31 December

2016 2015

(in BGN)

81,600 78,600
31,971 (161)

(1,629)  (1,808)
(89) (435)

111,853 76,196

— 535

— 535

361,630 291,803

761 21

362,391 291,824

22.34%  19.48%

Risk-weighted assets increased to EUR 185.3 million as of December 31, 2016 from EUR 149.2 million as

of December 31, 2015, mainly due to the increase in TBI Bank’s loan portfolio.

The Bulgarian National Bank requires each bank to hold a minimum level of equity of BGN
10,000 thousand and to maintain a minimum total regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets ratio of 13.5%,
comprising a capital adequacy ratio of at least 8%, a protective capital buffer of at least 2.5% and a systemic risk

buffer of at least 3%.

The table below sets forth certain capital ratios in respect of TBI Bank:

Capital adequacy ratio ............ ..o,
Common equity Tier 1 capital ratio
Liquidity ratio . ........ ...t
Liquidity coverage ratio . ................cooiinio...
Leverage ratio . ..........oouuuiinieiin.

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015

22.3% 19.48%
22.3% 19.35%
38.5% 35.4%
361.4% —
17.5% 13.8%

As of December 31, 2016, TBI Bank’s capital adequacy ratio increased to 22.3% from 19.5% as of
December 31, 2015 as the increase in risk-weighted assets from consumer loan growth was more than offset by

increase in retained earnings during the period.
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SELECTED STATISTICAL INFORMATION

THE GROUP

The following tables present certain of our selected statistical information and ratios for the periods
indicated. The following information should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements included
elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum, as well as “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Operations and Financial Condition” and “Selected Financial Information and Operating Data.” The statistical
information and discussion and analysis presented below for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014
are presented solely for the convenience of the reader for analytical purposes and, for certain items, differ from
and are not comparable to the presentation in the Financial Statements, as the basis for calculating such
information differs from that used in the Financial Statements.

Certain amounts and percentages included in this Offering Memorandum have been subject to rounding
adjustments; accordingly, figures shown for the same category presented in different contexts may vary slightly
and figures in certain other contexts may not be an exact arithmetic result of the figures shown herein.

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET AND INTEREST RATE DATA

Average balances for assets and liabilities are calculated based on nominal period averages. The average
balance as of each of the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is calculated as the average of the
year-start and year-end figures. Total interest income (expense) for the period and interest income (expense) for
each category reflect nominal amounts. The average rates earned on interest-earning assets and the average rates
paid on interest-bearing liabilities are also nominal rates. The average interest rate for each of the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is calculated as total interest income or expense, as applicable, for the year
divided by the average balance for the year. We believe that the calculation of averages on this basis is
appropriate since growth in our operations during the periods under review has generally been stable
month-to-month.

AVERAGE ASSETS AND INTEREST RATES

The table below presents the average balance of assets, interest income and average interest rates for the
periods indicated.

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
Average Average Average
Average Interest interest Average Interest interest Average Interest interest
balance income rate balance income rate balance income rate

Interest-earning assets
Loans and advances due
from customers (gross) .. 545.3 393.2 712% 371.1 3183 85.8% 268.5 220.3 82.0%

Finance leases (gross) .. ... 6.9 0.1 1.4% — — — — — —
Cash and cash

equivalents ........... 107.3 — 0.0% 453 — — 25.4 — —
Placements with other

banks ................ 2.4 — — — — — — — —
Total interest-earning

assets ................ 661.9 393.3 — 4164 318.3 — 2939  220.3 —
Provisions .............. (144.6) — — (96.3) — — (58.8) — —
Assets held for sale ....... 4.3 — — 2.2 — — 10.9 — —
Fixed assets ............. 8.3 — — 3.2 — — 2.0 — —
Other assets ............. 154.9 — — 78.6 — — 49.9 — —
Total assets; total interest

income .............. 684.8 393.3 — 404.1 318.3 — 297.7  220.3 —
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AVERAGE LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND INTEREST RATES

The table below presents the average balances of liabilities and total equity, interest expense and average
interest rates for the periods indicated.

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
Average Average Average
Average Interest interest Average Interest interest Average Interest interest
balance  expense rate balance  expense rate balance  expense rate
Interest-bearing
liabilities
Loans and borrowings ... 436.4 38.7 89% 235.1 28.7 12.2% 180.4 23.8 13.1%
Other liabilities ......... 332 — — 18.7 — — 14.1 — —
Total interest-bearing
liabilities . . . ......... 469.6 38.7 — 253.8 28.7 — 194.5 23.7 —
Liabilities held for sale . . . 2.4 — — 0.3 — — 7.4 — —
Non-interest-bearing
liabilities ............ 11.1 — — 6.9 — — 6.5 — —
Total liabilities . . . ... ... 483.0 — — 261.0 — — 208.3 — —
Total equity ........... 201.7 — — 143.1 — — 89.4 — —
Total liabilities and
equity; total interest
expense ............. 684.7 38.7 — 404.1 28.7 — 297.8 23.7 —

CHANGES IN INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE—VOLUME AND RATE ANALYSIS

The following tables allocate changes in interest income and interest expense between changes in volume
and changes in rates for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2015 and
for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. Volume and rate
variances are calculated based on movements in yearly average balances over the period and on changes in
interest rates on average net loans and advances due from customers and average loans and borrowings. The
portion of the net change attributable to change in volume is calculated by applying the prior year interest rate to
the change in volume and the remainder is allocated to change in rates.

2016/2015 2015/2014
Increase (decrease) due to changes Increase (decrease) due to changes
in in:
Interest Net Interest Net
Volume rate change Volume rate change
(in millions of EUR)

Loans and advances due from customers
Impact on interest income .. ................. 112.0 (373%) 74.7 65.2 9.8% 6.4
Loans and borrowings
Impact on interest expense . ................. 82.8 0.6% 0.5 50.1 0.5%) (0.3)
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INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS—YIELD AND YIELD SPREAD

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our yield and yield spread for the periods
indicated.

Year ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Average outstanding net balance of loans and advances to customers ................ 401.1 2749 209.7
Interest income earned on loans and advances to customers . ....................... 393.2 318.3 220.8
Net interest income earned (financial margin)( ........ ... .. .. ... .. .. .. .. ... 3545 289.6 196.6
Yield and Yield Spread

Gross yield D . ... 98% 116% 105%
Net yield ) 88% 105% 94%
Yield Spread . ... 10% 10% 11%
Notes:

(1) Net interest income earned (financial margin) is interest income on loans and advances to customers less interest expense.

(2) Gross yield is the average interest rate charged on loans and advances to customers. For each of the years ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014, the average interest rate on loans and advances to customers is calculated as the interest income on loans and advances to
customers divided by the average outstanding net balance of loans and advances to customers for the year.

(3) For each of the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, the net yield is calculated as the net interest income earned (financial
margin) divided by the average outstanding net balance of loans and advances to customers.

(4) Yield spread is the difference between gross yield and net yield.

RETURN ON AVERAGE TOTAL ASSETS AND AVERAGE EQUITY

The following table presents selected financial data and ratios for the periods indicated.

Year ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Profit for the period ... ... ... 63.2 64.1 463
Average total @sSetS ... ... .. 684.8 404.1 297.7
AVEIAZE EQUILY . . o oottt et e e e e e e 201.7 143.1 894
Net income as a percentage of:

Average total @sSetS ... ... ... 92% 159% 15.5%

Average equity(D) ... e 31.3% 44.8% 51.7%
Average equity as a percentage of average total assets .. .............c.oiiii.... 29.5% 35.4% 30.0%
Notes:

(1) The percentage of earnings paid to shareholders in dividends.

The following table presents selected financial data and ratios for the periods indicated based on results
from continuing operations.

Year ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Net income from continuing OPerations . . .. .. ........eueuernenen e enennn. 63.2 582 49.0
AVerage total @SSELS . .. ..t 684,8 404.1 297.7
AVETAZE CQUILY . . o o vttt et e et e e 201.7 1432 894
Net income of continuing operations as a percentage of:
Average total @SSELS . .. .. 92% 14.4% 16.5%
AVEIAZE CQUILY . . o ettt ettt e e e e e e 31.3% 40.6% 54.8%
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INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

We do not grant loans with floating interest rates. Our shareholder loans are contracted at fixed rates and
denominated in Euros; our 2019 Notes bear a fixed interest rate of 11.75% and are denominated in US Dollars;
our SEK Notes bear a fixed interest rate of 11.75% and are denominated in Swedish Krona and our 2021 Notes
bear a fixed interest rate of 11.25% and are denominated in Euros. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Results of Operations and Financial Condition—Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments.”

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table reflects our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities as of December 31,
2016. Fixed-rate instruments were classified in this table according to their contractual maturity.

As of December 31, 2016

Over Non-rate
0-30days 31-89days 90-179days 180-365days 366days sensitive Total

(in millions of EUR, except percentages)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents .. ... 157.6 — — — — — 157.6
Placements with other banks ... 4.8 — — — — — —
Loans and advances due from

CUStOMErS .. .............. 155.5 45.0 62.9 20.7 106.0 103.8 4939
Other interest-earning assets . . . . 1.1 7.9 5.8 4.9 75.9 1.4 97.0
Total assets ................ 319.0 52.9 68.7 25.6 1819 1052 753.3
Liabilities and equity
Loans and borrowings . . ....... 15.4 3.0 4.2 2259 148.6 — 397.1
Other interest-bearing

liabilities ................. 63.9 36.4 1254 1.5 14.8 — 242.0
Other non-interest bearing

liabilities ................. 11.8 — — — — — 11.8
Total liabilities and equity . ... 91.1 394 129.6 2274 163.4 — 650.9
Interest rate sensitivity gap® ... 2279 13.5 (60.9) (201.8) 18.5 105.2 1024
Cumulative interest rate

sensitivity gap ............. 2279 241.4 180.5 (21.3) (2.8) 1024
Cumulative gap as percentage of

total interest-earning assets . . . 71% 456% 263% (83%) 2%) (97%)
Note:

(1) Total assets less total liabilities and equity.

As of December 31, 2016, interest-earning assets totaled EUR 753.3 million. Our performing loan portfolio
represented 65.6% of our interest-earning assets. All of our loans are fixed-rate loans.

Of our interest-bearing liabilities totaling EUR 650.9 million as of December 31, 2016, the 2019 Notes
accounted for 29.9%, the SEK Notes accounted for 6.1%, the 2021 Notes accounted for 21.9%, Friendly Finance
Notes for 0.5% and deposits from customers accounted for 36.4%.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

We held cash and cash equivalents in the amount of EUR 157.6 million as of December 31, 2016,
representing 16.9% of our total assets.
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LOANS AND BORROWINGS
The following table sets forth our loans and borrowings for the periods indicated.

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
Amount Rate Amount  Rate Amount Rate

SEK Notes

Atendofperiod ........ ... ... ... .. ... 39.6 11.75% 421 11.75% — —

Average indebtedness during period® . ...... 40.9 — 42.1 — — —
2019 Notes

Atendofperiod ........ ... .. .. .. ... 194.3 11.75% 175.0  11.75% 208.6 11.75%

Average indebtedness during period® ....... 184.7 — 191.8 — 167.0 —
2021 Notes

Atendof period .......... ... ... ... ... .. 142.4 11.25%  — — — —

Average indebtedness during period™® ... .... 142.4 — — — — —
Friendly Finance OU Notes

Atendof period ........... .. ... ... ..., 2.8 10.0%  — — — —

Average indebtedness during period™® ... .... 2.8 — — — — —
TKB Credit Line

Atendofperiod ........ ... .. .. .. ... — — 59 7% 6.2 8.00%

Average indebtedness during period® ....... 3.0 — 6.1 — 4.7 —
Ameriabank CJSC

Atendof period ............. ... .. ...... 0.2 15% — — — —

Average indebtedness during period® . ...... 0.2 — — — — —
Loans from related parties

Atendofperiod ........ ... ... ... .. ... 37 14-15% 37 12-15% 16.8 12%-13.00%

Average indebtedness during period® ....... 3.7 — 10.3 — 8.8 —
Other loans

Atendofperiod ........ ... .. ... ... ... 142 2% -15% 28 3%-9% — —

Average indebtedness during period® . ...... 8.5 — 2.8 — — —
Note:

(1) Average indebtedness during the period is determined by taking the sum of indebtedness as of the first day of the relevant period and the
last day of such period and dividing by two.

LOAN PORTFOLIO

Total loan portfolio amounts set forth in this section include the total principal amount of performing and
non-performing loans outstanding as of the date presented. The terms “loan portfolio” and “total loan portfolio”
include total performing loans plus total non-performing loans.

Our total gross loan portfolio as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 amounted to EUR 665.1 million and
EUR 425.5 million, respectively. This increase was mainly due to an increase in the total number of active
clients.

The following table illustrates the split of our online loan portfolio in terms of the duration for which the
repayment of loans are delayed, as of December 31, 2016.

As of December 31,
2016
Total loan portfolio by duration for which the repayment of loans are
delayed®
Notdelayed .. ...t e 219.1
Restructured .. ... ... e )
Delayed 1-30 days . .....oninii i e 25.7
Delayed 31-60 days . ......oiiiini e 17.9
Delayed 61-90 days . ...t e 14.7
Delayed 91-360 days . ...ttt e 103.3
Delayed over 361 days . .......o.iui i e 93.3
Total . ... 474.0

Note:
(1) Excluding TBIF Group.
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Classification of our loan portfolio

The following table sets forth the classification of our online loan portfolio in terms of performing and

non-performing loan portfolios as of the dates indicated.

As of December 31,

2016 2015 2014
% of % of % of
Amount portfolio Amount portfolio Amount portfolio
Performing loan portfolio ....................... 2774 58.5% 268.4 63.1% 208.3 66.8%
Non-performing loan portfolio ................... 196.6 41.5% 157.1 36.9% 108.5 33.2%
Total loan portfolio® .......................... 474.0 100.0% 425.5 100.0% 316.8 100.0%
Note:

(1) Loan amounts include accrued interest.

Performing loan portfolio

The following table sets forth our online performing loan portfolio (including performing interest) by

product as of the dates indicated.

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
Performing loan portfolio by product:()
Single Payment Loans . ....... ... 1935 177.3 1504
Installment Loans . .. ...... ... i e e 81.0 90.6 579
Loan of Credit Loans . ........ ...ttt e 2.9 0.5 —
Total performing loan portfolio .............. ... ... .. .. ... ... .. .. ......... 2774 268.4 208.3

Note:
(1) Loan amounts include accrued interest.

Loans by geographic concentration

The following table sets forth our gross loan portfolio based on countries of operation as of the dates

indicated.
As of December 31,
2016 2015 2014
Loan % of Loan % of Loan % of
Amount® portfolio® Amount portfolio Amount portfolio

Latvia....... ... ... 59.8 9% 61.7 15% 61.9 19.5%
Poland ....... ... ... . . .. ... 114.0 17% 102.7 24% 80.7 25.5%
Lithuania ............ ... ... ... . ... ... ...... 343 5% 63.2 15% 45.6 14.4%
Sweden ....... ... .. ... 28.9 4% 433 10% 30.6 9.7%
Finland . ......... ... ... ... . ... ... ... ... ... 27.5 4% 31.5 T% 26.8 8.5%
Denmark ............. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 46.3 7% 31.3 T% 17.1 5.4%
Spain ... 53.4 8% 37.4 9% 20.9 6.6%
GeOIZIA . ottt et 36.4 5% 38.0 9% 26.1 8.2%
TBIFGroup . ......ooiniii i 191.1 29% — — — —
Friendly Finance ............................ 43.6 7% — — — —
Other® ... ... . 29.9 4% 16.4 4% 7.0 2.2%
Total gross loan portfolio .................... 665.1 100% 425.5 100% 316.8 100.0%
Notes:

(1) Gross Loan portfolio amounts include accrued interest and non-performing loans.
(2) Percentage of portfolio equals the loan amount by country divided by the Group’s total loan portfolio.
(3) Other includes Czech Republic, Bulgaria, Romania, Argentina, Armenia, Mexico and Dominican Republic.
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Total loan portfolio by loan balance

The following table sets forth the composition of our loan portfolio as of the dates indicated according to the
outstanding principal amount borrowed.

As of December 31,
2016 2015 2014
Loan % of Loan % of Loan % of

Amount®  portfolio Amount® portfolio Amount® portfolio
Outstanding Principal Amount Borrowed
Lessthan EUR200 . ....................... 40.8 9.5% 444 10.4% 92.1 29.1%
Between EUR 201 -400.................... 91.0 21.1% 101.1 23.8% 103.3 32.6%
Between EUR 401 -600.................... 68.2 159% 752 17.7% 61.1 19.3%
Between EUR 601 -800.................... 52.0 12.1% 52.3 12.3% 20.6 6.5%
Between EUR 809 -1000 ................... 454 10.5%  42.8 10.0% 13.5 4.2%
Over EUR 1000 .......... . .. ... o .... 133.0 30.9% 109.7 25.8% 26.2 8.3%
Total loan portfolio . . ..................... 430.4 100.0% 425.5 100.0% 316.8 100%

Note:
(1) Loan amounts are gross and include accrued interest.

Non-performing loan portfolio

We only write-off those loans which are overdue for more than 730 days.

As of December 31, 2016, our online non-performing loan portfolio was EUR 196.6 million, 9.3% of the
value of loans issued between October 1, 2013 and September 30, 2016. Our online non-performing loan
portfolio as of December 31, 2016 represented 41.5% of online loans outstanding as of such date. Of the total
non-performing loan portfolio as of December 31, 2016, EUR 17.0 million, or 9.5%, represented non-performing
interest. Our online non-performing loan portfolio increased by EUR 39.5 million, or 25.1%, during the year
ended December 31, 2016, compared to the year ended December 31, 2015, mainly as a result of a significant
increase of portfolio.

As of December 31, 2015, our total non-performing loan portfolio was EUR 157.1 million, 9.0% of the
value of loans issued between October 1, 2012 and September 30, 2014. Our non-performing loan portfolio as of
December 31, 2015 represented 36.9% of online loans outstanding as of such date. Of the total non-performing
loan portfolio as of December 31, 2015, EUR 13.5 million, or 8.6%, represented non-performing interest. Our
total non-performing loan portfolio increased by EUR 48.6 million, or 44.8%, during the year ended
December 31, 2015, compared to the year ended December 31, 2014, mainly as a result of a significant increase
of portfolio.

The following table sets forth an analysis of our non-performing loan portfolio (including non-performing
interest) by product as of the dates indicated.

As of December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Non-performing loan portfolio by product:("

Single Payment Loans . .......... ... i 1469 118.7 84.9
Installment Loans . ....... ...ttt 48.8 38.4 23.6
Lineof Credit Loans ... ... ... i 0.9 —
Total non-performing loan portfolio . . ................................. 196.6 157.1 108.5
Value of loans issued® . ... ... .. 2106 1739 1226
Non-performing loans as a share of value of loans issued .................... 93% 9.0% 8.8%

Notes:

(1) Loan amounts include accrued interest.

(2) The value of loans issued as of a particular date represents loans issued during the two-year before commencement of the 90 days
past-due period. Therefore, the applicable period for each reporting date is as follows: for December 31, 2016: October 1, 2014 to
September 30, 2016; for December 31, 2015: October 1, 2013 to September 30, 2015; and for December 31, 2014: October 1, 2012 to
September 30, 2014.
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ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

We employ an incurred loss impairment methodology that is prepared in accordance with IFRS. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition—Discussion of
Critical Accounting Policies—Impairment.” The following table sets forth certain information on our
non-performing loan portfolio and allowances for loan losses.

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
Allowances Allowances Allowances
Loan for loan Loan for loan Loan for loan

Amount®  Josses Amount® losses Amount® losses

Non-performing loan by product:

Single Payment Loans ......................... 146.9 97.8 118.7 70.2 84.9 45.8
Installment Loans ............ .. .. ... .. ...... 48.8 30.3 38.4 22.7 23.6 12.5
Lineof CreditLoans .. .......... .. ... .. ... ... 0.9 0.7 — — — —
Total non-performing loan portfolio and
allowances ............... ... .. .. ... ... 196.6 128.8 157.1 92.9 108.5 58.3
Note:

(1) Loan amount includes accrued interest.

ANALYSIS OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The following table sets forth an analysis of our allowance for loan losses for our online portfolio, including
movements in the balance of such allowances, as well as amounts of loans written off.

For the year ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

.................... 127.5 754 42.2

Balance of loan loss allowance at beginning of period

Plus:
Charge for loan loss allowance in continuing operations ................ 104.3 84.7 55.7
Charge for loan loss allowances in discontinued operations . ............. — 0.4) —
Less:
Written-off on disposal of portfolio . . ....... .. ... .. ... ... . ... (20.6) (2.8) (1.9)

Classified to assets held-for-sale ............... ... ... ... ......... — — (1.7)

Loan write-0ffS . . ... .. . e (51.5) (36.3) (16.7)
Acquired through business combinations .................... .. ......

Currency effect . ... e 2.1 (3.4) 2.2)
Balance of loan loss allowance at end of period ......................... 157.6 117.2 754

WORKOUT AND CREDIT RECOVERY

Debt recovery on loans that are up to 90 days past due are generally handled by our internal debt collection
unit, although on occasion we outsource such recoveries to external debt collection agencies. For loans that are
more than 90 days past due, we generally outsource debt recovery to debt collectors, but on occasion we handle
such recoveries in-house. Loans are written-off when repayment is more than 730 days past due. Written-off
loans become subject to consideration for further action, including the sale of any such loan at a discount. See

“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition—Discussion of
Critical Accounting Policies—Impairment.”
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SELECTED STATISTICAL INFORMATION FOR TBIF GROUP

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET AND INTEREST RATE DATA

Average balances for assets and liabilities are calculated based on nominal period averages. The average
balance as of each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 is calculated as the average of the year-start
and year-end figures. Total interest income (expense) for the period and interest income (expense) for each
category reflect nominal amounts. The average rates earned on interest-earning assets and the average rates paid
on interest-bearing liabilities are also nominal rates. The average interest rate for each of the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015 is calculated as total interest income or expense, as applicable, for the year divided
by the average balance for the year. We believe that the calculation of averages on this basis is appropriate since
growth in our operations during the periods under review has generally been stable month-to-month.

AVERAGE ASSETS AND INTEREST RATES

The table below presents the average balance of assets, interest income and average interest rates for the
periods indicated.

2016 2015
Average Average
Average Interest interest Average Interest interest
balance income rate balance income rate
Unaudited

Interest-earning assets
Loans and advances due from customers (gross) .. ... .. 194.7 46.7 24.0% 168.9 33.5 19.8%
Cash, cash equivalents and balances with banks ....... 414 — 0.0% 40.6 0.4 1.0%
Interest-earning investments() .. ........ ... .. ...... 8.1 0.1 1.2% 33 — —
Total interest-earning assets ..................... 2442 46.8 192% 212.8 339 15.9%
Provisions . ............ i 129 — — arn — —
Assetsheldforsale .............................. 10.0 — — 2.5 — —
Fixedassets ... ... ... ... ... .. 10.5 — — 10.3 — —
Other assets . . ..........iutin .. 44.7 — — 45.5 — —
Total assets; total interest income . ................ 296.5 46.8 15.8% 259.9 33.9 13.0%

Note:
(1) Interest-earning investments comprise debt securities classified as held for trading, available for sale, and held to maturity investments
that generate interest income for TBI Bank.

AVERAGE LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND INTEREST RATES

The table below presents the average balances of liabilities and total equity, interest expense and average
interest rates for the periods indicated.

2016 2015
Average Average
Average Interest interest Average Interest interest
balance expense rate balance  expense rate
Unaudited
Interest-bearing liabilities
Deposits, loans and borrowings (including held for
SAle) L 220.3 3.9 1.8% 207.6 5.3 2.5%
Total interest-bearing liabilities .................. 220.3 39 1.8% 207.6 5.3 2.5%
Liabilities held forsale . .......................... 0.4 — — — — —
Non-interest-bearing liabilities .. ................... 10.1 — — 6 — —
Total liabilities ................................ 230.8 3.9 1.6% 213.6 5.3 2.5%
Totalequity ............ ... ... ... .. ... ....... 65.7 — — 46.3 — —
Total liabilities and equity; total interest expense .... 296.5 39 1.3% 259.9 5.3 2.0%
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CHANGES IN INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE—VOLUME AND RATE ANALYSIS

The following tables allocate changes in interest income and interest expense between changes in volume
and changes in rates for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2015.
Volume and rate variances are calculated based on movements in yearly average balances over the period and on
changes in interest rates on average net loans and advances due from customers and average loans and
borrowings. The portion of the net change attributable to change in volume is calculated by applying the prior
year interest rate to the change in volume and the remainder is allocated to change in rates.

2016/2015

Increase (decrease) due to changes
in

Interest Net
Volume rate change
Unaudited
Loans and advances due from customers
Impact on interest income . ............. .. .. ..., 5.1 8.1 13.2
Deposits, loans and borrowings
Impact on interest EXPense . .. .. .o vt vt n e 0.3 (1.7) (1.4)

INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS—YIELD AND YIELD SPREAD

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our yield and yield spread for the periods
indicated.

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015
Unaudited

Average outstanding net balance of loans and advances to customers . .. . ... 194.7 168.9
Interest income earned on loans and advances to customers .............. 46.7 33.5
Net interest income earned (financial margin)® . ....................... 43.5 29.2
Yield and Yield Spread

Gross yield® ... 24.0% 19.8%
Net yield® .o 22.3% 17.2%
Yield Spread .. ... ... 1.7% 2.6%

Notes:

(1) Net interest income earned (financial margin) is interest income on loans and advances to customers less interest expense.

(2) Gross yield is the average interest rate charged on loans and advances to customers. For each of the years ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014, the average interest rate on loans and advances to customers is calculated as the interest income on loans and advances to
customers divided by the average outstanding net balance of loans and advances to customers for the year.

(3) For each of the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, the net yield is calculated as the net interest income earned (financial
margin) divided by the average outstanding net balance of loans and advances to customers.

(4) Yield spread is the difference between gross yield and net yield.

RETURN ON AVERAGE TOTAL ASSETS AND AVERAGE EQUITY

The following table presents selected financial data and ratios for the periods indicated.

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015
Unaudited

Profit for the period ... ... ... .. . 16.6 16.6
Average total @SSetS . . ... 296.5 259.9
AVEIaZe CQUILY .« . o . ottt et e e e 65.7 46.3
Net income as a percentage of:

Average total @SSets .. ... ... 5.6% 6.4%

Average equity() .. ... 25.3% 35.9%
Average equity as a percentage of average total assets ................... 22.2% 17.8%

Notes:
(1) The percentage of earnings paid to shareholders in dividends.

All the financial data and ratios in the above table relate to continuing operations. The group does not have
any discontinued operations in the indicated periods.

115



INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TBI Bank disburses loans to individuals and SME. SME products’ return is based on floating or including
for float clauses upon severe market changes interest rate. The predominating product of the bank—the retail
one, has its return structured by list of elements, such as management fee, monthly fee, insurance commission
and interest, where interest income is one of less frequent, in some cases—missing. The return on retail portfolio
products is practically driven by market and competition and not so much depended on money markets.

On liability side, as bank is predominantly funded by deposits, again the cost is sensitive mostly on deposits
markets both in Bulgaria and Romania following countries trends. Deposits products provided by bank have
fixed rates.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table reflects our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities as of December 31,
2016. Fixed-rate instruments were classified in this table according to their contractual maturity.

As of December 31, 2016

Over Non-rate
0-30days 31-89days 90-365days 366days sensitive Total

Assets
Cash, cash equivalents and balances with

banks ....... .. 88.8 — — — — 88.8
Loans and advances due from customers . . . . .. 12.5 85.1 53.6 383 — 194.2
Other interest-earning assets ............... 5.9 — — 4.1 — 10.0
Totalassets ............................ 107.2 85.1 53.6 424 — 293.0
Liabilities and equity
Deposits, loans and borrowings ............. 63.1 28.8 119.9 15.6 — 2274
Total liabilities and equity . ............... 63.1 28.8 119.9 15.6 — 2274
Interest rate sensitivity gap® ............... 441 56.3 (66.3) 26.8 — 60.9
Note:

(1) Total assets less total liabilities and equity.

As of December 31, 2016, interest-earning assets totaled EUR 293.1 million. Customer loans accounted for
the majority of our interest-earning assets. Deposits from customers accounted for 99 % of our interest-bearing
liabilities.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

We held cash, cash equivalents and balances with banks in the amount of EUR 88.8 million as of
December 31, 2016, representing 28.9 % of our total assets.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

The following table sets forth our loans and borrowings for the periods indicated.

As of December 31,
2016 2015
Amount Rate Amount Rate

Deposits and C/A

Atendofperiod . ... ..o 2244 1.2% 202.5 3.8%

Average indebtedness during period® . ..... ... .. oL o oo 2134 1.3% 202.6 3.8%
Other loans and borrowings

Atendof period . . ... ..ot 75 8.0% 62 145%

Average indebtedness during period® ...... ... .. L oL 69 87% 50 16.0%
Note:

(1) Average indebtedness during the period is determined by taking the sum of indebtedness as of the first day of the relevant period and the
last day of such period and dividing by two.
LOAN PORTFOLIO

Total loan portfolio amounts set forth in this section include the total amount of performing and
non-performing loans outstanding as of the date presented. The terms “loan portfolio” and “total loan portfolio”
include total performing loans plus total non-performing loans.
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Our total gross loan portfolio as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 amounted to EUR 208.6 million and EUR
180.7 million, respectively. This increase was mainly due to an increase in the total number of active clients.

The following table illustrates the split of our total portfolio in terms of the duration for which the
repayment of loans are delayed, as of December 31, 2016. The part of the portfolio which consists of individually
impaired loans is presented on a separate line.

As of December 31,

2016
Total loan portfolio by duration for which the repayment of loans are delayed
Not delayed / not individually impaired ... ..... ... ... .. . 140.2
Delayed 1-30 days ... ..ottt 22.8
Delayed 31-60 days . ... ..ottt 7.2
Delayed 61-90 days . ...t 2.2
Delayed over 91 days . ...t 13.3
Individually impaired . ... ... ... . 6.6

ASSETS BY GEORGRAPHIC CONCENTRATION

The following table sets forth our total assets based on countries of origination as of the dates indicated.

As of December 31,
2016 2015
Loan % of Loan % of
Amount portfolio Amount portfolio
Bulgaria ... .. . 116.4 40.2% 1304 52.1%
Romania ....... ... . 166.0 574% 116.3 46.5%
Other countries . ........ ..., 7.0 2.4% 34 1.4%
Total assets . .......... ... . i 289.4 100% 250.1 100%

ANALYSIS OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The following table sets forth an analysis of our allowance for loan losses, including movements in the
balance of such allowances, as well as amounts of loans written off.

As of December 31,
2016 2015
Balance of loan loss allowance at beginning of period .............. 114 10.9
Plus:
Charge for loan loss allowance in continuing operations .......... 1.4 3.3
Charge for loan loss allowances in discontinued operations . ...... — —
Less:
Written-off on disposal of portfolio .......................... 3.5) (4.8)
Classified to assets held-for-sale . ................... ... .. ... — —
Loan write-offs . ... ... .. . .. . . — —
Currency effect . ... — —
Balance of loan loss allowance at end of period ................... 14.3 11.4
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INDUSTRY

OVERVIEW

The European short-term loan market is a rapidly growing sector with considerable growth potential. The
market is heterogeneous in terms of products offered and regulatory oversight across EU Member States. The
provision of small, short-term unsecured loans to consumers operates within the larger context of the consumer
lending industry. It is dominated by, but not comprised solely of, non-banking institutions.

Following the global financial crisis starting in 2008, the banking sector experienced a shift in market
dynamics driven by increased regulation, e.g., Basel IIl and CRD IV, banks’ desires to improve their balance
sheets and to focus on core products in domestic markets, in addition to an overall decline in tolerance for credit
risk. As a consequence of the current regulatory environment, it has become more difficult for individuals to
obtain short-term credit from commercial banks. Demand for credit remains high among European consumers,
both on account of the regulatory environment and on higher consumer spending across Europe, many consumers
have turned to non-traditional lenders. These non-traditional lenders typically offer smaller short-term loans, with
repayment periods of less than one year.

The products and services offered by non-traditional lenders have become more visible in the media in
recent years, increasing awareness amongst consumers of the possibility of taking a quick, unsecured loan. As
these institutions establish themselves as a credible alternative to the types of short-term, unsecured lending
traditionally offered by banks, non-bank lending is expected to become an increasingly important aspect of
consumer lending.

Below is an overview of the small-loan consumer lending markets in certain of our key jurisdictions.

POLAND
Consumer lending market in Poland

Gross consumer lending in Poland increased by 4% in 2016 compared to 2015 (Euromonitor International:
Consumer Lending in Poland, November 2016).

The table below sets forth the amount and growth in gross lending of consumer credit and consumer lending
institutions in Poland for the years 2011-2016:

Value (PLN bn) % Value Growth
2011-16 2011/16
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 CAGR Total
Consumer Credit .. ..................... 923 952 108.0 113.8 118.8 123.6 6.0 33.8
Consumer Lending ..................... 141.6 1343 1445 150.6 158.2 164.1 3.0 15.9

Source: Euromonitor International from official statistics, trade associations, trade press, company research, trade interviews, trade sources

The table below sets forth the value and growth in the outstanding balance of consumer loans issued by
consumer credit and lending institutions in Poland for the years 2011-2016:

Value (PLN bn) % Value Growth
2011-16 2011/16
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 CAGR Total
Consumer Credit .. ..................... 213.0 211.5 219.2 230.6 240.0 2504 3.3 17.6
Consumer Lending ..................... 526.7 527.8 550.0 5809 614.0 646.9 4.2 22.8

Source: Euromonitor International from official statistics, trade associations, trade press, company research, trade interviews, trade sources

Source: Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit in Poland, November 2016 and Euromonitor International: Consumer Lending in
Poland, November 2016
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Small short-term loan market in Poland

In spite of stricter regulations for taking out personal loans and the Polish Act on Consumer Credit (ACC)
that came into force in March 2016, some banks eased lending standards, and together with higher investment
volumes, consumers benefited from improved credit availability. Slowly improving economic situation in the
country and rising disposable incomes resulted in higher amounts borrowed. The ACC also influenced the
non-bank lending business in Poland (such as payday loans).The main trend is the extension of the product
offering of payday lenders (which offered mainly short-term and small loans to date) with longer term
installment loans of higher value. (Euromonitor International: Consumer Lending in Poland, November 2016).

The number of new bank accounts in Poland increased in 2016, reducing the percentage of the unbanked
population to 19% in 2016 from 21% in 2015. This decline was the result of several factors, including the
following: In order to raise awareness of financial possibilities among the Polish unbanked population, the
National Bank of Poland (NBP) launched an Academy of Accessible Finance (Akademia Dostepne Finanse).
Poland also implemented an EU directive, which aimed to provide access to a basic bank account free of charge.
(Euromonitor International: Consumer Lending in Poland, November 2016).

Competitive landscape

Consumer credit continues to be dominated by such retail banks. The major lenders are the leading
commercial banks operating in Poland. The banks in Poland with the largest consumer credit portfolios include
PKO Bank Polski, Pekao SA, Bank Zachodni WBK, mBank, and Deutsche Bank Polska. (Euromonitor
International: Consumer Lending in Poland, November 2016).

However, those consumers who do not have a credit score to obtain a loan from a bank, or do not report any
official income often choose to use non-bank lenders. (Euromonitor International: Consumer Lending in Poland,
November 2016).

LATVIA
Consumer lending market in Latvia

The chart below illustrates the changes in demand for consumer loans for the periods indicated.
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Small short-term loan market of non-bank lenders in Latvia

The market for small, short-term consumer loans (so called “distance credits” or “payday loans” and
“instalment loans”) from non-bank lenders has grown since 2012, according to the Consumer Rights Protection
Center (Summary of non-bank lending market for 2012 and Overview of non-bank consumer lending sector
activity in the first half of 2016). The chart below sets out the volumes of portfolio of small, short-term consumer
loans issued by non-bank lenders at the end of the periods indicated.

Non-bank lender consumer credit
portfolio

® Non-bank lender short
term loan portfolio;
millions EUR

Source: Consumers Rights Protection Center

As a result of the increasing volume of loans issued by non-bank lenders, Latvia’s consumer lending market
has come under stricter regulation with changes in the regulatory framework adopted by the Latvian Parliament
(Saeima). See “Regulatory Framework—Latvia.” Nevertheless, we believe it is unlikely that this new level of
oversight will materially impact the growth of the consumer lending industry going forward, since the introduced
changes (for example, the obligation to evaluate consumers’ solvency, stricter rules for marketing consumer
loans and limitations on loan-related expenses) are designed more to define the common approaches non-bank
lenders should take in regards to consumer lending processes, than to create difficulties for the market.

Competitive landscape

The types of lenders operating in the consumer lending market can be divided into two main groups—banks
and non-bank lenders. According to the data of the Consumers Rights Protection Center and the Financial and
Capital Market Commission, by the end of June 2016 there were 60 licensed non-bank lenders and 23 banks and
branches of foreign banks in Latvia. These two groups are regulated by different authorities: the Consumers
Rights Protection Center and the Financial and Capital Market Commission, respectively. According to the data
of the Consumers Rights Protection Center, on June 30, 2016 there were 18 licensed non-bank lenders providing
distance credits and payday loans (similar to our Single Payment Loans) and 19 licensed non-bank lenders
providing consumer loans without collateral (similar to our Installment Loans).

LITHUANIA
Consumer lending market in Lithuania

The global financial crisis in 2008 had a negative impact on both the Lithuanian financial sector and on the
economy as a whole. In 2009, GDP in Lithuania declined by 14.8% compared to 2008, according to Global
Finance (Global Finance Magazine, Global Data, Country Data, Lithuania, at http://www.gfmag.com/
global-data/country-data/lithuania- gdp-country-report). In addition, the bankruptcy of the Lithuanian bank
Snoras, in 2011 further exacerbated the negative impact on the financial sector. Since 2010, however, the
Lithuanian economy in general and the financial sector in particular have improved, with GDP increasing
year-on-year between 2010 and 2015, according to Global Finance.
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In 2015, compared to 2014, the consumer loan market continued to expand—approximately
841,000 consumer loans were issued (a 7.3% increase from 2014), and, as of December 31, 2015, the total value
of consumer credit totalled approximately EUR 429.7 million) (a 26.4% increase from December 31, 2014) (The
Bank of Lithuania review of the consumer credit market of 2015 in Lithuanian: Lietuvos banko vartojimo kredito
rinkos apZvalga 2015; the Bank of Lithuania review of the consumer credit market of 2014 in Lithuanian:
Lietuvos banko vartojimo kredito rinkos apZvalga 2014).

Small short-term loan market in Lithuania

According to the Bank of Lithuania, there were 30 small, short-term loan providers operating in Lithuania in
2015, compared to 33 in 2014 and 39 in 2013 (Review of consumer credit market of 2015; Review of consumer
credit market of 2014, Review of consumer credit market of 2013). In 2015 in Lithuania, small, short-term loan
providers issued 551,060 small, short-term loans (a 22.0% decline from 2014) for a total amount of
EUR 62.4 million (a 20.0% decline from 2014) (Review of consumer credit market of 2015).

The outstanding balance of small, short-term loans in Lithuania as of December 31, 2015 was
EUR 24.3 million, a 22.0% decline from year-end 2014. As of December 31, 2015, there were 181,000 small,
short-term loan consumers in Lithuania with outstanding small, short-term loans with approximately 36% of
borrowers younger than 25 years old (Review of consumer credit market of 2015).

Competitive landscape

According to the Public List of Consumer Loans Providers, updated by the Bank of Lithuania on
January 24, 2017, there were 137 entities providing consumer loans in Lithuania. Out of the 137 entities, 49 are
non-licensed lenders (including four peer-to-peer lending platform operators), nine are banks and foreign bank
branches, six are leasing entities belonging to banking groups and 73 are credit unions (licensed non-banking
credit institutions).

The five largest consumer loan providers in Lithuania issued 67% of the total amount of consumer loans in
2015 (Review of consumer credit market of 2015). In 2015, peer-to-peer lending (i.e., consumer loans granted by
natural persons) commenced activity in Lithuania. From February 2016, such lending platforms must be included
in the Public List of Peer-to-Peer Lending Platform Operators (Review of the consumer credit market of 2015).

SWEDEN
Consumer lending market in Sweden

The Swedish consumer credit landscape benefitted from the Swedish central bank’s decision to adopt a
negative interest rate policy from February 2015 and a general rise in economic confidence linked to a rise in
house prices, however, growth was constrained by high household debt levels and a slower rise in real GDP in
2016 compared to 2015 (Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit in Sweden, November 2016). Both gross
lending and the outstanding balances of consumer lending in Sweden recorded positive growth rates in 2016.

The Swedish consumer credit market expanded in 2016, compared to 2015, with both gross lending and
outstanding balances of consumer lending recording positive growth rates in 2016 (Euromonitor International:
Consumer Credit in Sweden, November 2016).

The table below sets forth the values and growth in the gross lending of consumer credit and consumer
lending institutions in Sweden for the years 2011-2016.

Value (SEK bn) % Value Growth
2011-16 2011/16
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 CAGR Total
Consumer Credit .. ..................... 321.0 327.8 346.4 3554 369.1 379.2 34 18.1
Consumer Lending ..................... 682.6 700.3 731.4 75777 7845 8283 3.9 21.4

Source: Euromonitor International from official statistics, trade associations, trade press, company research, trade interviews, trade sources
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The table below sets forth the values and growth in the outstanding balance of consumer loans issued by
consumer credit and lending institutions in Sweden for the years 2011-2016.

Value (SEK bn) % Value Growth
2011-16 2011/16
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 CAGR Total
Consumer Credit . ................ 5352 5745 6034 6260 6404 6594 4.3 23.2
Consumer Lending ............... 2660.9 2797.7 2944.0 3115.0 3220.6 3464.9 54 30.2

Source: Euromonitor International from official statistics, trade associations, trade press, company research, trade interviews, trade sources

Source: Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit in Sweden, November 2016 and Euromonitor International: Consumer Lending in
Sweden, November 2016

Household indebtedness has been increasing in Sweden in recent years, while also growing faster than
household income. The average debt-to-income (“DTI”) ratio (i.e., total debt (mortgage, credit card and
consumer loans, but excluding student loans) divided by after-tax income) has increased from 324% in July 2010
to 343% in July 2016, while the median DTI ratio has risen from 233% to 269% in the same period. Average DTI
ratios are higher for lower income households. For example, in 2016, the average DTI ratio was 364% for
households with an after-tax income of SEK 17,000, compared to 298% for households with an after-tax income
of approximately SEK 53,000. Average DTI ratios are also higher for younger households. For example, in 2016,
the average DTI ratio was 436% for households in the 31-36 age range, compared to 248%% for households win
the 65-71 age range. (The Indebtedness of Swedish households: Update for 2016, November 2016, Sveriges
Riksbank).

Small short-term loan market in Sweden

SMS loans emerged strongly in recent years. These offer easy-access loans, often arranged via mobile
phones, with these however typically imposing high fees and interest rates. There was thus growing concern over
borrowers taking on excessive debt via such loans. This resulted in the regulatory body Finansinspektionen
introducing stricter credit checks and supervision in this area from July 2014, while interest rate caps, total loan
amount caps and restrictions on marketing and loan extensions are set to be introduced from 2018 (Euromonitor
International: Consumer Credit in Sweden, November 2016).

Competitive landscape

The competitive environment for consumer credit in Sweden is dominated by domestic retail banking
entities. The leading retail banks (and Sweden’s largest banks), namely Svenska Handelsbanken AB (publ),
Nordea Bank AB (publ), Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ) (SEB), and Swedbank AB (publ) all benefit
from long-established positions in the market. These leading retail banks are able to leverage their market
presence, including brand recognition and branch network, to acquire increasing market share in the small-loan
consumer lending market. Nevertheless, aided by internet comparison sites, such as compricer.se, which allow
borrowers to compare lending terms offered on the consumer lending market, Swedish consumers are
increasingly open to borrowing small monetary amounts from internet-based entities that do not have a long-
established position in the country (Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit in Sweden, January 2014).

FINLAND
Consumer lending market in Finland

According to the Federation of Finnish Financial Services, the outstanding balance of consumer loans in
Finland amounted to EUR 14.5 billion in December 2016, reflecting an increase of 3.9% over the prior 12-month
period (Federation of Finnish Financial Services: Monthly Financial Statistics, February 2017).

Small short-term loan market in Finland

According to a survey carried out in spring 2015, 1.8% of Finnish citizens have received small short-term
unsecured loans granted by short-term loan companies during the last 12 months (Federation of Finnish
Financial Services: Savings, Credit Granting and Methods of Payment in Finland, October 2015).

There was an increase in the amount of short-term loans granted in 2015, in terms of the number and
aggregate value of such loans: in 2015, approximately 471,000 short-term loans were granted, compared to
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approximately 410,000 in 2014 (an increase of 15% year-on-year), while the total value of new short-term loans
issued was EUR 230 million (an increase of 38% from 2014) (Statistics Finland: Outstanding Credit 2015,
4th Quarter, March 2016). Effective June 1, 2013, an interest-rate cap has been imposed on loans of less than
EUR 2,000. See “Regulatory Framework—Finland.” This interest rate cap has also had an adverse impact on
short-term loan companies, some of which have closed, while others altered their product offer focusing more on
so-called flexible credit (Statistics Finland: Outstanding Credit 2013, 4th Quarter, March 2014). The said
interest rate cap limits the annual interest rate applicable to loans for amounts of less than EUR 2,000 to no
greater than 50% above the reference rate applied by the European Central Bank and notified by the Bank of
Finland. According to annual report of the FCCA (2013), the interest rate cap, with certain other legislative
amendments (See “Regulatory Framework—Finland”), has had the intended controlling effect on the consumer
credit market.

Competitive landscape

The competitive environment for consumer lending is dominated by major retail banks in Finland. At the
end of 2015, the outstanding balance of consumer loans granted by financial institutions (some of which may
also be short-term loan companies) amounted to EUR 14 billion, compared to the outstanding balance of loans
granted by short-term loan companies and pawn shops of EUR 2 billion (Federation of Finnish Financial
Services: Monthly Financial Statistics, January 2016, and Official Statistics of Finland (OSF): Outstanding
credit, 4" Quarter of 2015, March 2016).

DENMARK
Consumer lending market in Denmark

The economic situation in Denmark was generally favorable in 2016. House prices increased, especially in
and around Copenhagen, and most houses and apartments sold quickly. There were also some worrying
economic signs, however, including higher than expected spending on the European refugee crisis by the Danish
government and the damage that falling oil prices caused to the Danish economy. These and other factors led the
Danish government to lower its GDP growth expectations for 2016 (Euromonitor International: Consumer
Credit in Denmark, November 2016).

In general, lending standards have become more stringent in Denmark in recent years. As of 2016, however,
quick loans and other types of lending that enjoyed strong expansion in recent years are yet to face stringent
regulation (Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit in Denmark, November 2016).

The table below sets forth the values and changes in the gross lending of consumer credit and consumer
lending institutions in Denmark for the years 2011-2016.

Value (EUR bn) % Value Growth
2011-16 2011/16
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 CAGR Total
Consumer Credit .. ..................... 128.8 132.8 136.3 1409 144.8 149.2 3.0 15.9
Consumer Lending ..................... 502.0 496.0 506.2 516.2 523.5 5329 1.2 6.1

Source: Euromonitor International from official statistics, trade associations, trade press, company research, trade interviews, trade sources

The table below sets forth the values and growth in the outstanding balance of consumer loans issued by
consumer credit and lending institutions in Denmark for the years 2011-2016.

Value (EUR bn) % Value Growth
2011-16 2011/16
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 CAGR Total
Consumer Credit . ................ 229.0 2363 2442 2525 2594  268.5 3.2 17.2
Consumer Lending ............... 2116.1 2142.7 21954 22223 2245.1 2301.1 1.7 8.7

Source: Euromonitor International from official statistics, trade associations, trade press, company research, trade interviews, trade sources

Source: Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit in Denmark, November 2016 and Euromonitor International: Consumer Lending in
Denmark, November 2016
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Statistics presented by StatsBank Denmark, illustrated in the figure below, show that the consumer credit
market remained relatively constant throughout 2015 and early 2016, with minor signs of recovery towards the
end of 2016.
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Small short-term loan market in Denmark

Most day-to-day banking transactions are managed by leading established banks. Danes will typically
contact their own banks first when wishing to obtain a loan of any type. That said, some consumers, particularly
young Danes who have reduced chances of borrowing from banks, are increasingly making use of quick loans.
This area still lacks strong regulation, hence quick loans can be obtained with relative ease in a short period of
time. Such loans are typically much more expensive than traditional bank loans. A trend in the advertising of
quick loans is that providers state potential borrowers will have their applications accepted or denied in a matter
of hours. Additionally, people who take out quick loans tend not to give much consideration to the terms and
conditions of various providers. Instead, they will usually contact the providers they have heard of the most via
internet and TV advertising, and typically fill out application forms online rather than contact providers
personally (Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit in Denmark, November 2016).

Competitive landscape

Consumer credit in Denmark is for the most part split between a handful of banks, led by Danske Bank A/S
and Nordea Bank AB. Other prominent players include Jyske Bank A/S, Sydbank A/S, Skandinaviska Enskilda
Banken AB and Santander Consumer Bank AB. Danes tend to prefer to remain with the same bank for many
years (Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit in Denmark, November 2016).

2014 saw the creation of a new leading Danish financial institution via the merger of Jyske Bank, Denmark’s
third largest bank, and BRFkredit, the fourth largest mortgage credit institution. Experts expect additional
mergers of retail banks in the future, particularly larger banks’ acquisition of smaller banks in the event
regulators impose additional regulations on the industry. (Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit in
Denmark, November 2016).

SPAIN
Consumer lending market in Spain

Despite high unemployment rates and political instability, the Spanish economy has shown signs of growth
in recent years, with real GDP expanding in 2016 compared to 2015. In part due to economic growth as well as
an expansive monetary policy, Spanish banks have begun to offer credit on terms more favorable to consumers;
consequently, outstanding balances of consumer credits increased by 4% in 2016. Nevertheless, a large segment
of the Spanish population remains without access to bank credit. (Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit
in Spain, November 2016).
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The table below sets forth the values and changes in the gross lending of consumer credit and consumer
lending institutions in Spain for the years 2011-2016.

Value (EUR bn) % Value Growth

2011-16 2011/16
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 CAGR Total

Consumer Credit . ...................c..... 73.0 65.1 60.6 64.7 70.8 779 1.3 6.8
Consumer Lending ........................ 106.7 94.1 80.3 88.8 103.0 121.0 2.5 13.4

Source: Euromonitor International from official statistics, trade associations, trade press, company research, trade interviews, trade sources

The table below sets forth the values and growth in the outstanding balance of consumer loans issued by
consumer credit and lending institutions in Spain for the years 2011-2016.

Value (EUR bn) % Value Growth
2011-16 2011/16
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 CAGR Total
Consumer Credit .. ..................... 198.3 1794 158.8 1534 1565 162.5 -3.9 -18.1
Consumer Lending ..................... 8109 773.8 728.5 706.0 682.6 669.6 -3.8 -17.4

Source: Euromonitor International from official statistics, trade associations, trade press, company research, trade interviews, trade sources

Source: Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit in Spain, November 2016 and Euromonitor International: Consumer Lending in Spain,
November 2016

Lending criteria of Spanish banks have remained largely unchanged since the financial crisis. In the face of
low interest rates and high competition, Spanish banks are beginning to pursue new strategies to increase revenue
by tightening their links with borrowers, including requiring borrowers to open bank accounts with them and to
have their wages and salaries paid into these accounts, as well as having their financial cards, insurance
packages, and other services with the lender and its affiliates. (Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit in
Spain, November 2016).

Small short-term loan market in Spain

In recent years, there has been an increase in demand for consumer loans in Spain, particularly as traditional
lenders continue to tighten their own lending standards. Within this context, non-traditional lenders have
emerged as an increasingly popular alternative source of financing, offering consumers quick access to credit
through internet platforms (Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit in Spain, November 2016).

Competitive landscape

Retail and savings banks continue to be the main lenders in the Spanish consumer credit market. They
include, among others, La Caixa, BBVA, Banco Santander, Banco Sabadell, Bankia and Banco Popular. Some of
these lenders have created special entities dealing exclusively with consumer loans such as Santander Consumer
Finance, Caixabank Consumer Finance, BBVA Consumer Finance and Bankinter Consumer Finance
(Euromonitor International: Consumer credit in Spain, November 2016). However, as discussed above,
non-traditional lenders have increased their presence in the consumer lending market in recent years.
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BULGARIA
Consumer lending market in Bulgaria

The consumer lending market in Bulgaria has shown signs of recovery after the global financial crisis. The
figure below displays the balance of consumer loans issued to households and non-profit institutions serving
households in Bulgaria as of the dates indicated.
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Source: Bulgarian National Bank: Corporations specializing in lending, 2016,
http://www.bnb.bg/Statistics/StOtherFinanciallnstitutions/StLendingCorporations/index.htm?toLang=_EN. Statistics of corporations
specializing in lending do not include leasing companies, which are reporting agents of other statistics.

Small short-term loan market in Bulgaria

As shown in the chart above, the volume of consumer loans issued by financial institutions has steadily
increased since the global financial crisis. As of December 31, 2009, the outstanding balance of consumer loans
was BGN 722,809 thousand, compared to BGN 1,214,330 thousand, BGN 1,432,226, thousand and BGN
1,753,786 thousand as of December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively.

CZECH REPUBLIC

Growth in consumer credit in the Czech Republic experienced mild growth in 2016, driven mainly by loan
refinancings and consolidation. Gross lending of Microcredits offered by both banks and non-bank lenders grew
by 4% in 2016, also contributing therefore to the overall growth in consumer credit. (Euromonitor International:
Consumer Credit in Czech Republic, November 2016).

The table below sets forth the values and changes in the gross lending of consumer credit and consumer
lending institutions in Czech Republic for the years 2011-2016.

Value (CZK bn) % Value Growth
2011-16 2011/16
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 CAGR Total
Consumer Credit .. ..................... 146.5 1529 1587 1623 1719 182.0 4.4 24.3
Consumer Lending ..................... 281.2 317.2 3325 3629 3544 359.0 5.0 27.6

Source: Euromonitor International from official statistics, trade associations, trade press, company research, trade interviews, trade sources
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The table below sets forth the values and growth in the outstanding balance of consumer loans issued by
consumer credit and lending institutions in Czech Republic for the years 2011-2016.

Value (CZK bn) % Value Growth
2011-16 2011/16
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 CAGR Total
Consumer Credit .. ............... 4144  424.1 4312 432.0 436.6 4403 1.2 6.2
Consumer Lending ............... 1133.8 1187.3 1234.1 1306.3 1365.3 1388.3 4.1 22.4

Source: Euromonitor International from official statistics, trade associations, trade press, company research, trade interviews, trade sources

Source: Euromonitor International: Consumer Credit in Czech Republic, November 2016 and Euromonitor International: Consumer Lending
in Czech Republic, November 2016

Competitive landscape

Major lenders in the Czech Republic are typically banks. The biggest lenders are the leading retail banks
Ceska sporitelna, Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka and Komercni banka. Non-banking lenders account for around
one-fifth of consumer credits by value, according to the Czech Statistics Office data. The biggest lenders are
Cetelem, Home Credit and Provident Financial. Non-banking lenders typically offer credit cards, specialized
loans and microcredit products (Euromonitor International: Consumer credit in Czech Republic, November
2016).

New legislation was introduced in December 2016, which increases capital requirements on all lenders,
simplifies early repayment procedures (including lowering caps on penalties for early repayment) and imposes a
maximum limit on the penalties that can be levied in respect of non-performing loans.(Euromonitor
International: Consumer credit in Czech Republic, November 2016).

GEORGIA
Consumer lending market in Georgia

According to the National Bank of Georgia, and as indicated in the chart below, the consumer loan industry
has expanded in Georgia in recent years (National Bank of Georgia: Consumer Loans (stocks), February 2017).
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BUSINESS

OVERVIEW

We are one of the largest online and mobile providers of unsecured consumer loans in our principal
European markets based on market share. Our principal European markets are Latvia, Lithuania, Finland,
Sweden, Denmark, Poland, Georgia and Spain. Our approximately 6.3 million registered online customers
represent the growing number of consumers who use alternative financial services because of their convenience
or because they are underserved by more traditional consumer credit providers such as banks and credit card
companies. As a responsible lender, we work in close cooperation with the regulatory authorities in all of the
jurisdictions in which we operate.

We are a diversified provider of consumer loans, currently operating in 16 countries: Argentina, Armenia,
Bulgaria, the Czech Republic, Denmark, Dominican Republic, Finland, Georgia, Latvia, Lithuania, Mexico,
Poland, Romania, Slovakia, Spain and Sweden. The chart below illustrates the percentage of our total interest
income for the year ended December 31, 2016 across our key primary operating jurisdictions and business
segments.
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We offer Single Payment Loans with a term from one day up to 35 days and Installment Loans with a term
from one month up to 24 months via websites and mobile and selected offline channels. In September 2015, we
launched our third product, Credit Line, a revolving credit line, in Finland, and subsequently in Latvia in
September 2016. We also offer a range of products through our banking operations. The chart below illustrates
the composition of our net loan portfolio by product as of December 31, 2016.
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As of December 31, 2016, our net loan portfolio, which represents our total loan portfolio less impairment,
was EUR 493.9 million (of which, EUR 316.4 million was attributable to our online portfolio which excludes
TBIF Group, and EUR 177.5 million was attributable to TBIF Group), compared to EUR 308.3 million as of
December 31, 2015, and EUR 241.4 million as of December 31, 2014. Installment Loans represented
approximately 30% of our net online loan portfolio as of December 31, 2016. The charts below illustrate our net
online loans issued over each of the years ended, and our overall net loan portfolio as of, December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014.

Online loans issued Net loan portfolio
(in millions of EUR)1 157 (in millions of EUR)
1,062 : 494
805
308
I ;
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* 2016 online loans issued and net loan portfolio presented in the charts above are presented inclusive of TBIF Group and Friendly
Finance, both of which were acquired during 2016; Friendly Finance contributed EUR 67 million to our 2016 online loans issued; TBIF
Group contributed EUR 177.5 million, and Friendly Finance contributed EUR 26.2 million to our net online loan portfolio as of year-end
2016.

In August 2016, as part of our strategy to enter new markets and pursue selective expansion opportunities,
the Group acquired TBI Bank (via the acquisition of TBI Bank’s direct parent company, TBIF), a consumer-
focused bank operating in Bulgaria and Romania. This acquisition enhanced the scale of our operations in these
two existing markets. TBI Bank maintains a consumer portfolio, including small-size loans (of a similar profile
in terms of size and maturity to our Installment Loans), Point of Sale financing and Credit Cards, as well as a
portfolio of small-to-medium enterprise (“SME”) loans, including leasing products. In 2016, the consumer
portfolio and SME portfolio accounted for 68% (62% in 2015) and 32% (38% in 2015), respectively, of TBI
Bank’s net loan portfolio. We believe that having an EU licensed bank within our Group will enable us to
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diversify our funding and lower funding costs by accepting deposits, broaden our product range (for example,
allowing us to offer credit cards to our online customers) and operate in EU markets which require a banking
license for consumer lending.

We have a strong brand portfolio which we deploy through diversified marketing channels to acquire
customers, including traditional mass media (such as television and radio) as well as digital channels (such as
cost-per-click, where we pay a fee each time our ad is clicked; search engine optimization (SEO) techniques, i.e.,
enhancing the visibility of a website in a search engine’s unpaid search results; and affiliate marketing, where a
commission is paid for each successful transaction). While our offering is predominantly online and mobile, we
also cooperate with partners in Latvia, Lithuania, Bulgaria, Romania, Spain, the Czech Republic and Poland, who
help us acquire customers, many of whom ultimately become online customers, through physical points of sale,
such as post offices, kiosks and brokers. Following the acquisition of Friendly Finance in mid-2016, we have
multiple Single Payment Loan brands operating within many of our markets, allowing us to operate with
different brand positioning in such jurisdictions.

Our sophisticated underwriting process mainly relies on data-driven statistical analysis, and is typically
conducted in less than three seconds. If approved, money is transferred into our customers’ accounts typically
within 15 minutes. As of December 31, 2016, our proprietary database contained information from 27 million
loan applications, including both traditional and alternative data points, that together with the historical
performance of our customers provides us with an efficient underwriting and scoring process which we believe to
be an important competitive advantage in our industry. We have a strong record for delivering high-quality
customer service with local customer care teams in each operating market, with over 80% of our online lending
volumes in 2016 issued to returning customers.

We seek to minimize defaults in our loan portfolio through a range of advanced data-driven customer
assessment techniques. When defaults do occur, we aim to maximize recovery through an efficient debt
collection process. Our portfolio of loans overdue for more than 90 days (“non-performing loans”) as a share of
online loans issued has remained relatively stable in recent years, at 9.3% for the year ended December 31, 2016
and 9.0% for the year ended December 31, 2015. Similarly, our ratio of net impairment (i.e., impairment losses,
net proceeds from debt sales and write-offs of loans not repaid within two years, less recoveries on loans written
off) to revenue was 23% for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 24% for the year ended December 31, 2015.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we generated profit before tax (after impairment losses on loans and
receivables and general administrative expenses) of EUR 81.0 million and net profit of EUR 63.2 million. In
2015 and 2014, we generated profit before tax of EUR 73.8 million and EUR 60.6 million, respectively, and net
profit of EUR 64.1 million and EUR 46.3 million, respectively.

We have strong EBITDA generation, recording EBITDA of EUR 124.9 million, EUR 110.0 million and
EUR 82.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively (with an EBITDA margin
of 31.8%, 34.5% and 37.5% respectively for those years). We are well capitalized, with total equity of EUR
230.1 million and EUR 173.3 million as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively (with a ratio
of total equity to net loan portfolio of 47% and 56% respectively as of those dates). TBIF Group’s total capital
adequacy ratio was 22.3% and 19.5% as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

KEY STRENGTHS AND STRATEGY
Key strengths
Simple and transparent online/mobile product offering

We have designed our products to offer simplicity, convenience and transparency to our customers. Our
convenient online and mobile loan products aim to protect customer privacy, provide easy online access to
funding and offer easy-to-understand fee and interest structures. Single Payment Loans are loans with a term
from one day up to 35 days with the customer having an option to extend maturity, and Installment Loans are
loans with a term from one month up to 24 months. For Single Payment Loans, customers are charged interest,
payable when the principal is repaid, ranging from 6% to 28% in Europe and 30% to 40% in Latin America. For
Installment Loans, customers are charged annual nominal interest rates ranging from 58% to 96%, payable
monthly on the outstanding principal, depending on the jurisdiction, loan amount and maturity. For Line of
Credit, customers have a minimum monthly repayment, along with a monthly interest rate of 8.5% to 10.0 %.
Maximum loan amounts under the Line of Credit are EUR 2,100.
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We design our websites to be as simple and convenient as possible to use, with clear terms and conditions.
With respect to our Single Payment Loans, we typically disburse loans to a customer’s bank account within
15 minutes of approving an online application. We believe that our customers value our services as an important
component of their personal finances because of the convenience and transparency of our products compared to
other alternatives.

Strong brand awareness built on sophisticated marketing framework

We have put into place a sophisticated marketing framework, which is a vital component of our customer
acquisition strategy. We utilize a three-phase, multi-channel country launch marketing strategy. When entering a
new market, we employ online marketing channels to build initial interest and attract customers to the product.
Online tools include cost per click advertising, where the most relevant promotion and placement has a higher
likelihood of driving consumer action with greater efficiency; SEO, which enhances the visibility of our websites
in a search engine’s unpaid search results; affiliate marketing, where we pay a commission for each successful
transaction; and other internet marketing, including website display advertising. In the second phase, known as
the market rollout phase, we promote the proposition through offline channels, including TV, radio and
billboards. In the third phase, which we implement in our more mature markets, we use performance marketing
and customer management programmes to stimulate returning customers and brand endorsement. We also
employ a dual-brand strategy in some markets, for example SMS Credit and Ondo Single Payment brands in
Latvia and the addition of Friendly Finance brands to allow a different brand identity and positioning within a
given market. We also provide sponsorships and support charitable projects. These activities require substantial
investment; as a result, marketing expenses were EUR 55.4 million in 2016, or 14.1% of our 2016 revenues.
They also help us maximize customer reach and create a strong positive brand awareness. Thanks in large part to
our marketing efforts, we maintain a leading position in terms of brand awareness in a number of our markets.

Market innovation leader with sophisticated data-driven underwriting process

We have established ourselves as a leader in European online and mobile consumer lending with a reach
across a large number of European markets. We believe that we have the expertise to remain a leader in terms of
innovation in our services and product offerings, expansion capabilities, ease of use, customer convenience and
anticipation of and compliance with regulatory changes. In addition, our IT systems have demonstrated a track
record for reliability and performance.

We use data-driven analysis and decision making in all aspects of our business. This use of data improves
our understanding of existing and potential customers, enabling us to optimize our marketing expenditure,
enhance credit risk management and also to develop new products efficiently. For example, in our credit scoring,
we evaluate predictive data from credit bureaus and alternative sources such as social networks and use
technologies such as device fingerprinting to combat fraud.

We have built in-house expertise with our proprietary credit scoring databases containing information from
27 million loan applications as of December 31, 2016. Our databases include both traditional data points, such as
address, income level and credit bureau data; and alternative data points, such as mobile carrier and device and
social media presence and provide valuable insight into customer attitudes and behaviors in our existing markets.
Since our inception through December 31, 2016, we have issued online loans in an aggregate of EUR 4.0 billion
and, as of December 31, 2016, we had reached 6.3 million registered online customers (i.e., loan applicants). Our
information in relation to existing markets can provide us with an advantage when applied to new markets. We
believe this targeted, data-driven approach brings us potential customers who are more likely to apply for our
loans and reduces our cost per acquisition of new customers (an important component of operating costs).

We attract customers through a diversified multi-channel and data-driven marketing strategy, focusing on
marketing to customers with the highest conversion potential. At the application stage, our customer
identification methods are customized by country to reflect regulatory requirements and available sources of
information. Within seconds, proprietary systems analyse the customer data and determine the creditworthiness
of the applicant. Our dynamic credit scoring model aims to ensure that we capture the best mix of customers in
terms of balancing risk and reward and optimizing the profitability of the business in both our existing and target
markets. We look to set acceptance thresholds that both manage our risks and maximize our profitability. Our
non-performing loans have remained stable in recent years as our business has matured. As a percentage of
issued online loans, non-performing loans amounted to 9.3% as of December 31, 2016, compared to 9.0% as of
December 31, 2015 and 8.8% as of December 31, 2014. Such ratio takes into account non-performing loans as of
a specific date as a percentage of loans issued during the two year period finishing 90 days prior to that specific
date.

131



High rates of returning customers reflect our high levels of customer satisfaction

We emphasize customer satisfaction and operational excellence in order to attract a high proportion of
returning customers, one of the important pillars of our business model. Returning customers of Single Payment
Loans represented over 80% of our Single Payment Loan customers (in terms of lending volumes) in the year
ended December 31, 2016, and the average returning Single Payment Loan customer had three transactions per
year with us. Returning customers allow us to leverage existing credit score databases and thus reduce the costs
associated with new customer acquisition. They also help give us a stable customer base to which we can offer
new products to help optimize our performance. We define a Single Payment Loan returning customer as a
customer who had taken out a loan, repaid it in full, and later applied for a separate Single Payment Loan.

We have developed a customer service division with 738 full-time-equivalent (“FTE”) specialists as of
December 31, 2016, delivering customer support in local languages across all of our markets (in most of which
we offer customer support on a 24/7 basis). We continuously work to improve customer satisfaction by creating
personal contact with customers through telephone calls, e-mail and chats to, among other things, discuss product
options, address customers’ questions, inform customers of their payment due dates and encourage on time
payment, discuss options for late payments and help customers with their applications. With approximately 64%
of our customers millenials (i.e., under 40 years old), we have adopted a diversified, multi-channel marketing
approach, including such methods as cost-per-click (i.e., where advertisers pay a fee each time one of their ads is
clicked), search engine optimization (SEO) (i.e., enhancing the visibility of a website in a search engine’s unpaid
search results) and affiliate marketing (i.e., where a commission is paid for each successful transaction) and other
internet marketing, including website display advertising. In addition, we carefully monitor different customer
service quality ratios, including but not limited to abandoned-call and repeated-call rates. We also survey
customers on their perception of our quality of service and we actively monitor net promoter scores. We have
also started to work with external review sites such as TrustPilot that give independent and publicly available
customer feedback. We have been recognized for our customer service, having won the Quality Service Star
award in our largest online market, Poland, in 2014 and 2015. We have also recently launched external
independent customer reviews via Trustpilot in some of our European markets. As of February 2017, the
Trustpilot rankings are all above 8 out of 10 and mostly above 9 out of 10. We believe this strong level of
customer satisfaction is one of the reasons why customers who wish to access credit again often return to us.

We have high rates of recovery on our non-performing loans

We mainly handle collection of payments delayed up to 90 days past maturity in-house and over the years
we have gained substantial expertise in debt collection strategies. In certain countries, we outsource portions of
our debt collection activities to leading international partners, such as Intrum Justititia, Euler Hermes and Svea
Finance, which allows us to test and compare the efficiency of internal versus external debt collection. We
monitor the results of debt collection procedures and implement what we deem to be the most appropriate and
efficient procedure in each jurisdiction, thereby increasing the effectiveness of our debt collection process.

We have developed policies and procedures for debt collection that have resulted in a Single Payment Loan
average recovery rate of 93.4% of the principal amount of Single Payment Loans issued with a maturity date
during 2014 (such loans having been issued between January 2014 and December 2014) within two years after
maturity, and an Installment Loan average recovery rate of 92.5% of principal amount of the Installment Loans
issued with a maturity date during 2013 (such loans having been issued between May 2012 and April 2013)
within three years after maturity (as defined in “—Process—Debt Collection—Debt Collection Statistics”).

Emphasis on being a responsible lender

We operate as a responsible lender. Our product terms, including fee and interest structures, are easy to
understand. Our underwriting and credit scoring process is rigorous. We have developed a robust proprietary
credit scoring database that helps us optimize our customer mix, balancing risk and reward, and maintain stable
non-performing loans ratios (both in terms of loans issued and total gross loans outstanding). While we charge
penalty interest for delayed loans, which made up 9% of our interest income in 2016, we do not employ hidden
fees, penalties, automatic loan extensions or compound interest, and we impose a maximum penalty limited to
two times the principal on a defaulted loan (except in Latvia, where such penalty is limited to the principal
amount of the loan). Our debt collection principles are designed to help customers find the best way to repay
their loans. We do not employ controversial collection practices, such as the use of continuous payment authority
or the direct debiting of monies from customers’ bank accounts, and rely only on reputable and carefully selected
external collection service providers. Not only do our business practices contribute to a high level of customer
satisfaction, they also help us to maintain productive relationships with regulatory bodies in the jurisdictions
where we operate as well as a positive brand image within the online lending industry.
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We conduct our business in a highly regulated industry. We work in close cooperation with governmental
authorities and consumer rights protection groups to support a fair and transparent market environment and
legislative framework. We are actively involved in the principal trade associations in our principal markets and
through these associations we may influence regulatory development as well as share knowledge with our peers.

Our Group and local legal and compliance teams continuously work to monitor the regulatory requirements
to which we are subject in each jurisdiction. We also work with external legal advisors in different jurisdictions.
Consequently we believe that we have the skills and capacity to manage the numerous regulatory requirements
applicable to our business and to adapt to regulatory changes successfully. For instance, we have rapidly adapted
our products to comply with new regulatory requirements in a number of jurisdictions in 2016, including Latvia,
Lithuania and Poland, and will continue to do so in the future for changes expected in other markets, such as
Sweden, Finland and Georgia.

Proven ability to adjust to regulatory change

We have the ability to dynamically adjust our business model in response to regulatory changes within a
particular market, and have a track record of doing this successfully as regulation has increased in many of our
markets in recent years. Our online lending business model has a number of key operating parameters at different
stages of the customer lifecycle that we adjust to optimize performance in specific markets. At the initial
marketing stage in a new country, we adjust application volumes by controlling how much we spend (and
through which channels) to target a certain volume and type of potential customer to our websites. At the
underwriting stage, we control and adjust our scorecards to change the credit scoring thresholds for being granted
a loan. This helps drive our acceptance rate, which together with the cost of marketing forms the cost per
acquisition. Subsequently, we monitor the loan repayments, extension characteristics and behaviour of those
customers who are late with repayments. The short term nature of our Single Payment Loans and the monthly
repayments on our Installment Loans and Line of Credit products mean this data is gathered on a timely basis.
We use such data to determine our impairment provisions and cost-of-risk based on roll rates, probability of
default and loss-given-default. We then assess how the cohorts of customers we have attracted and then selected
in the first two stages are performing, and use this to feed back into either marketing to a different customer
segment (i.e., marketing specifically to attract the types of customers we want to accept from a credit
perspective) and/or adjust the credit scoring to change acceptance rates for particular customer profiles.

As we develop in each market, we adjust these key operating levers to get the appropriate balance of cost of
acquisition and cost of risk to ensure we have optimal ‘unit economics’ for each product in each market. This is
aided over time as our customer base, presence and market share grows because returning customers represent an
increasing proportion of lending volumes. For these returning customers, the cost of acquisition is substantially
lower because they have already used our product and so are familiar with the brand, and the cost of risk is also
lower because we have propriety data on their previous repayment behaviour.

This flexibility has allowed us to adapt to regulatory change. For example, if regulators introduce caps on
pricing, we can seek to adjust our marketing spend and risk cut-offs in order to continue to operate in a profitable
manner despite the lower revenue yield per customer. In Georgia, a 100% cap on effective interest rate was
introduced in January 2017. Previously we charged 15% for a 30 day loan, with a first loan for free offer for new
customers (resulting in a blended average yield of 13% per month). After the cap became effective, the pricing
has been limited to 6% for a 30 day loan. To adjust for this change, we have withdrawn the ‘first loan for free’
offer and reduced our marketing spend, but still received an increased number of applications (driven by the
lower pricing which increases natural demand) and tightened our acceptance criteria for new customers. Whilst
the results in terms of profitability will depend on how extension behaviour and repayments develop in coming
months, we believe our ability to adjust these key levers on a real-time basis will significantly mitigate the initial
impact on our profitability from lower pricing.

As an additional measure, we also review the design of our products to see if it can be better adjusted to suit
a modified regulatory framework. For example, we may offer customers a premium service (such as faster
disbursement of funds) for an additional fee. An example of a more significant re-design occurred when Google
introduced paid search restrictions on products with less than a 60-day maturity. We are now trialing a 61-day
product in Poland that runs in parallel with our normal 30-day product.

Regulatory changes also affect the broader market. Not all of our competitors have the resources or
experience to adjust to new regulatory regimes. This is particularly the case for pricing caps because our products

already tend to cost less than those of our peers. For example, in Poland, our Single Payment Loan costs 16% for
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30 days whereas most other operators charge 20-25% (closer to the current cap of 28%). If a new and lower cap
is introduced, as is being currently considered by Polish regulators, the reduction in revenue for us will be
proportionately lower. Over a longer time period, such as following the changes in Poland in March 2016, we
tend to see an increase in market share as smaller competitors who are less able to adapt have a lower presence in
the market or withdraw.

Strong financial position

We have a strong balance sheet and have demonstrated strong cash flow characteristics supported by a
flexible business model and a disciplined growth strategy. We achieved an annualized return on average equity
and an annualized return on average assets from continuing operations of 31% and 9%, respectively, in the year
ended December 31, 2016, as well as a profit before tax and interest income growth for continuing operations of
10% and 24 %, respectively, in the year ended December 31, 2016. We have achieved a profit before tax margin
of 21% for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to 23% for the year ended December 31, 2015. We are
well capitalized with a capital to assets ratio of 25% as of December 31, 2016. We employ a conservative
strategy regarding the maturity profile of our balance sheet. The majority of our borrowings are not due for at
least one year, whereas our online loan portfolio is short term in nature, with 74.7% of the performing loan
portfolio as of December 31, 2016 having a maturity of less than 90 days. The short term nature of our loan
portfolio enables us to generate revenue and reinvest it into new loans to customers.

We operate a flexible cost base and infrastructure. 82% of our general administrative costs shown in our
income statement for the year ended December 31, 2016 were variable costs which broadly correlate to loan sales
(i.e., all marketing and sponsorship costs, personnel costs, application inspection costs, IT expenses, debt
collection costs, communication expenses and bank services). Our revenue base is geographically diverse, which
has helped us to naturally hedge our financial performance against foreign exchange rate movements in our
markets. We believe this has supported our historic growth profile.

Experienced management with proven track record

Our executive team and country managers consist of experienced professionals who have worked in
different segments of the international financial and banking sectors. Their knowledge, experience and support
have proven to be significant assets to us both on the strategic front and in the development of new products and
we believe such knowledge, experience and support provide us with a significant competitive advantage.

Strategy
Consolidate and strengthen our leadership position in our core markets and develop new markets

We are a leader in the Single Payment Loans market in our core markets and aim to maintain such position.
Our net online Single Payment Loan portfolio in these markets amounted to EUR 187.8 million as of
December 31, 2016. We plan to maintain our market leadership for Single Payment Loans in these core markets,
in part, through our marketing efforts and by adapting quickly to new regulations and by focusing on achieving
efficiencies.

At year-end 2016, nearly half of our products were less than 18 months old, with 15 out of the 33 online
products being offered online having been launched since the third quarter of 2015. This range of products reflect
our entry into new markets, such as Argentina, Mexico and Romania in 2015 and the Dominican Republic in
August 2016, the roll-out and re-launch of Installment Loans in existing markets, like Spain and the Czech
Republic, and the launch of new products, such as our Line of Credit offering in Finland and Latvia. We believe
there are growth opportunities for these markets and products, which we plan to capture by further development
of distribution channels and investments in marketing, IT and customer service.

More generally, we plan to invest in marketing in all markets of operations to maintain or increase our brand
recognition and grow our market share. We aim to increase the number of distribution channels we use in order
to attract new customers. We also plan to continue to refine our underwriting and debt collection processes in
every market of operation and more significantly the markets in which we recently launched our operations, such
as the Dominican Republic, Romania, Argentina, Armenia and Mexico.

Leverage our acquisition of TBI Bank, including use of our EU banking license

In August 2016, we acquired TBI Bank (via the acquisition of TBI Bank’s direct parent company, TBIF), a
consumer-focused bank operating in Bulgaria and Romania. TBI Bank maintains a consumer portfolio, including
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small-size loans of a similar profile (in terms of size and maturity) to our Installment Loans, Point of Sale
financing and Credit Cards, as well as an SME portfolio, including leasing. This acquisition expands our product
offering and may serve as a platform for further expansion of such offerings. For example, TBI Bank currently
offers credit cards in Bulgaria and Romania and in the future we may use this capability to offer card-based
lending products in other markets. In February 2017, we secured Romanian and Polish regulatory approvals to
use TBI Bank’s credit card license in Poland. In addition, we anticipate the TBI Bank acquisition will allow us to
diversify and lower our costs of funds as well as operate within certain jurisdictions, such as Germany, which
require a banking license. It also gives us flexibility in the event that regulatory changes (in any EU jurisdiction)
restrict lending business only to entities which have banking licenses.

Introduction of new products

We plan to continue our innovative approach, offering convenient online services and transparent and
competitive lending products to customers not served by traditional lenders. We plan to continue to leverage our
existing proprietary database to introduce Installment Loans in existing markets where we do not already offer
them, and also develop new products in certain markets. For example, in 2015, we launched our third product,
Line of Credit, in Finland which we later launched in Latvia in 2016. In the 4™ quarter of 2016, we also
commenced a trial of a Point of Sale product in Spain. Through our acquisition of TBI Bank, we have the
capability to offer credit cards. TBI Bank currently offers these in Bulgaria and Romania and in the future we
may use this capability to offer card-based lending products in other markets. We expect our continued
investment in our products to drive continuing increase in our revenues.

Continue to maintain a high level of investment in technology

We plan to continue to invest in our underlying systems and technology. We aim to enhance our software
platform to support more rapid product development and rollout of products across our countries of operation.
We will continue to integrate the latest technologies into our business, including in the areas of digital marketing
(e.g., IPonWeb), anti-fraud (e.g., lovation), risk tools (e.g., Experian risk suite) and payment systems.

As we capture an ever broader range of traditional and alternative data, we plan to further develop our data
management and governance capabilities so that the information can be effectively utilized in our marketing
technology, credit scoring and risk management.

Continue to pursue selective expansion opportunities

We regularly evaluate strategic opportunities for our business, such as acquisition transactions in new
countries, particularly in Latin America and Asia, as well as our existing markets, and offerings of securities in
the international capital markets (including a possible public offering of our shares), and will continue to do so in
the future. Making use of both organic growth and acquisitions, we aim to leverage our existing expertise to
expand over time into countries which we believe have an attractive customer base and growth potential.

The decision to acquire an existing entity or expand through organic growth in a new market is driven by the
analysis of several factors, including acquisition price, the cost and time required to build up a local operation,
licensing requirements and the likelihood that we could successfully manage the integration of an existing entity
into our Group operating model. For example, in 2015, we started greenfield operations in Romania and Mexico,
but acquired small businesses in Armenia and Argentina that accelerated our entry into those markets.

As we aim to build one of the world’s leading digital consumer finance businesses, we regularly review and
consider potential acquisition opportunities around the world.

HISTORY

AS 4finance was founded in Latvia in February 2008 by a group of individuals and companies and
commenced operations offering Single Payment Loans in July 2008 and Installment Loans in August 2009.

Our initial objective was to provide flexible and convenient consumer financial services to customers in four
countries, Sweden, Finland, Lithuania and Latvia, and more broadly to become the leader in Northern European
and Scandinavian markets for online Single Payment Loans. The services we originally provided focused on
Single Payment Loans through e-commerce, such as using the Group’s internet platform, phone calls or text
messages. We introduced online Installment Loans in Sweden, Finland, Lithuania, Latvia and Poland, as well as
online deposit-taking in Sweden. In 2012, we for the first time had days when we issued over 10,000 loans per
day and achieved over 4,000 registrations per day. In September 2015, we launched our third product, Line of
Credit, in Finland which we later launched in Latvia in 2016.
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From 2009 to 2013, we initiated operations in Bulgaria, Canada, the Czech Republic, Denmark, Estonia,
Finland, Georgia, Poland, Russia, Spain, Sweden and the United Kingdom, principally through the establishment
of new start-up entities. During this period, we also started a Canadian-based company, which provided
management and administration service to a U.S. third-party entity that provided Single Payment Loans to
customers in the United States. In December 2013, we discontinued operations in the United Kingdom and
North America business segments as part of a strategic decision to place greater focus on markets which
provided, and which we believed would continue to provide, a higher return on investment. For the United
Kingdom, our decision was also based on the uncertainty around a potential cap on annual percentage rates
(“APR”) chargeable on loans that U.K. regulatory authorities were considering introducing. We sold our North
America business (including the loan operations in Canada and the management and administration services
provided to the United States) to a related party on January 1, 2014. See “Related Party Transactions.” In
December 2014, we decided to sell our operations in the Russian Federation, mainly due to political and
economic uncertainties in the market. The Russian Federation business segment was sold to a related party
outside the reporting group. The sale of 85% of the ceased operations in the United Kingdom was effective from
January 1, 2015. In March 2015 and mainly due to unfavorable market conditions, we discontinued our
operations in Estonia. See “—Group Structure—Legal Structure” below.

In 2015, we launched Installment Loans in Denmark, with further launches in Spain, Romania and the
Czech Republic in 2016. In 2015, we also commenced operations in Romania and Mexico through the
establishment of new start-up entities. In April 2015, we acquired GoodCredit Armenia, which holds a credit
organization license from the Central Bank of Armenia. The main activities of GoodCredit Armenia are micro-/
SME business and consumer lending. This acquisition has enabled us to expand our activities in the Republic of
Armenia.

In May 2015, we acquired Prestamo Movil in Argentina. The main activities of Prestamo Movil are
consumer lending through Single Payment Loans. In October 2015, we started lending in Argentina under the
Vivus brand.

In June 2016, the Group acquired 80% of the share capital of Friendly Finance OU (an online consumer
lender active in the Czech Republic, Poland, Spain, Slovakia and Georgia) from Tirona, our controlling
shareholder, for a purchase price of EUR 28.8 million. See “Related Party Transactions.” The acquisition of
Friendly Finance added additional brands to our portfolio and an additional database of over one million
registered customers, reinforcing our position in our core markets.

In August 2016, we completed the purchase of TBI Bank through the acquisition of 100% of the share
capital of TBI Bank’s direct parent company, TBIF Financial Services B.V. from its parent company, Kardan
N.V., for a sum of EUR 82 million. TBI Bank is a consumer-focused financial group in Bulgaria and Romania
with consolidated assets of EUR 318.9 million as of December 31, 2016. TBI Bank maintains a diversified loan
portfolio consisting of loans to both consumers and SMEs. Funding is predominantly through customer deposits
and customer accounts of EUR 224.4 million, representing 91.8% of TBI Bank’s total liabilities, as of
December 31, 2016.

PRODUCTS
Single Payment Loans

We offer Single Payment Loans to customers in all of our countries of operation except for Armenia (where
its offline/online hybrid business model does not suit the issuance of such loans). Single Payment Loans are
short-term, unsecured loans provided via websites and mobile and selected offline channels in principal amounts
of between approximately EUR 10 and EUR 2,120 for a term from one day up to 35 calendar days (or 30 or 31
days, depending on jurisdiction). The average size of our Single Payment Loans in 2016 was EUR 318. We
generally disburse loans to a customer’s bank account within 15 minutes of approving an online application. In
Argentina and Mexico, such transfers can take between 12-24 hours due to local banking systems. Repayment
amounts and dates are finalized at the application time. Customers have the option to repay the loan on the due
date or pay a fee to extend the loan terms for a further fixed period of up to 30 days. A loan may be extended in
such a way several times depending on the regulation in each country, and the Group policy is to limit such
extensions to no more than a one year period. If a customer has extended for one year, the customer is contacted
by one of our customer service representatives in order to agree a suitable repayment schedule. In each of our
markets, the interest rates we charge range from 6% to 40% per 30 days. In certain countries, we offer new
customers of Single Payment Loans a discounted or interest-free first loan, whereby the customer may repay a
loan with no interest at the end of the first 30-day period. In Finland, customers are granted a credit line of up to
EUR 2,010.
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The table below describes key terms for returning customers (i.e., a customer who has taken at least one
loan with us, repaid it, and then subsequently applied for and was approved for another loan) of Single Payment
Loans in our countries of operation, ordered in accordance with the date of launch of operations in the respective
countries. For the relevant websites used for the products, see “Business—Intellectual property.”

Approx. Approx.

Launch / Minimum Maximum
Acquisition Amount Amount Term
Country Date Product Name (EUR) (EUR) (days) Application
Latvia .......... July 2008 SMSCREDIT 50 425 10-30 Internet, phone, phone

text message (sms),
offline partners
(e.g., post office, gas
stations, kiosks)
smartphone application
Latvia .......... October 2014 ONDO 50 425 10-30 Internet, phone, phone
text message (sms),
offline partners,
smartphone application
Lithuania ....... November 2008 SMSCREDIT 50 750 14 -30 Internet, phone, phone
text message (sms),
offline partners (post
office, kiosks),
smartphone application

Finland ......... May 2009 VIVUS 10 2,010 3-30 Internet, phone

Sweden......... August 2010 VIVUS 50 2,120 30 Internet, phone

Denmark ....... April 2012 VIVUS 13 1,340 30 Internet

Poland ......... July 2012 VIVUS 23 1,150 1-30 Internet, phone, offline
partners, smartphone
application

Spain .......... December 2012 VIVUS 50 1,000 7-30 Internet, phone, offline

partners, smartphone
application, loan shops

Georgia ........ February 2013 VIVUS 20 255 7-30 Internet, phone, offline
partners, including loan
shops

Georgia ........ March 2013 MYCREDIT® 17 343  5-31 Internet

Czech Republic .. May 2013 ZAPLO 37 740  7-30 Internet, phone, offline
partners, smartphone
application

Poland ......... August 2013 POZYCZKOMAT® 45 928 7-35 Internet

Slovakia ........ October 2013  POZICZKOMAT® 50 900 7-31 Internet

Bulgaria ........ December 2013 VIVUS 25 511  5-30 Internet, offline partners

Czech Republic .. November 2014 PUICKOMAT® 18 814 5-31 Internet

Romania ........ June 2015 ZAPLO 33 331 5-30 Internet, offline cash at
the partner

Argentina . ...... May 2015 VIVUS 60 351 7-30 Internet

Spain .......... November 2016 CREDITOCAJERO®™ 50 1,000 5-31 Internet

Mexico ......... November 2015 VIVUS 51 304 7-30 Internet

Dominican

Republic . ... .. August 2016 ~ VIVUS 20 297  7-30 Internet

Argentina . ...... December 2016 MYCREDIT® 60 425 7-31 Internet

(1) Acquired as part of the Friendly Finance OU acquisition. In Scandinavia, certain products have different characteristics; in Finland,
customers are granted a EUR 2,010 line of credit and can draw down up to that amount, with one single repayment. In Sweden and
Denmark, there is a minimum-to-pay concept, rather than a fixed maturity, although in practice, many customers opt to make a full single
repayment.

In all of our countries of operation, we offer Single Payment Loans via our internet platform. In addition, in

certain countries, such as Latvia, Lithuania, Poland, Czech Republic, Spain, Georgia and Bulgaria, we also offer
Single Payment Loans by phone, iOS and Android applications or through offline points of sale maintained either
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by us or by partner organizations. In addition to these platforms, we also offer Single Payment Loans by text
message (SMS) in Latvia, Lithuania, Georgia, Czech Republic, and Sweden.

Generally, the approximate maximum Single Payment Loan amount we offer does not exceed EUR 800.
However, in certain jurisdictions with financially stronger customers, such as Finland, Denmark and Sweden, we
offer higher maximum amounts, as described in the table above.

We expect to launch Single Payment Loans in the new jurisdictions in which we may operate in the future.

Installment Loans

Currently, we offer Installment Loans to customers in Latvia, Lithuania, Sweden, Poland, Armenia,
Denmark, Spain, Romania and the Czech Republic. In those jurisdictions where we offer both Single Payment
Loans and Installment Loans, we offer each product under different brands. As part of our overall strategy, we
intend to offer Installment Loans in more of the jurisdictions where we currently only offer Single Payment
Loans. Our Installment Loans are unsecured loans in amounts of between approximately EUR 50 and EUR 3,245
for a term of up to 24 months. Installment Loans generally require repayment of portions of the outstanding
principal balance in multiple monthly installments, with the option to extend repayments for up to 30 days. As of
December 2016, we charge a nominal annual interest rate of between 45% — 200% on our Installment Loan
product. Our Installment Loans also allow customers to re-borrow amounts and increase installments in
increments of their choosing, up to the provided loan limit. The customer may repay the outstanding loan balance
in full at any time or make required minimum payments in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement.

We also offered Installment Loans in Finland from August 2012 until November 2015, when we suspended
our offering of such products. We may re-launch Installment Loans in Finland depending on market evolution.

The table below describes key terms for returning customers of Installment Loans in the countries in which
we operate.

Approx. Approx.
Minimum Maximum

Product Amount Amount Term
M Launch Date Name (EUR) (EUR) (months) Application
Latvia ............ August 2009  VIVUS 50 1,500 1-24 Internet
Lithuania .......... August 2011 VIVUS 100 3,000 3-24 Internet, offline partners,
offline cash (loans paid in
cash in post offices)
Sweden ........... October 2012 ONEA 54 3,182 3-24 Internet, phone
Poland ............ April 2014 ZAPLO 232 2,320 3-24 Internet, phone
Armenia .......... April 2015 KIMBI/ 96 385 12-24  Office
GOOD
CREDIT
Denmark .......... June 2015 ZAPLO 670 2,680 3-18 Internet
Spain ............. May 2016 ZAPLO 300 2,500 3-24 Internet
Romania .......... July 2016 ONNEN 220 2,205 3-24 Internet
Czech Republic . .. .. December KIMBI 370 2,220 3-24 Internet

2016

During 2016, the average Installment Loan principal amount at issued across all jurisdictions was EUR 578.
The maturity of Installment Loans also varies by country. In Lithuania and Poland, prospective customers may
apply for Installment Loans either through our internet platform or at an offline point of sale. In Armenia,
prospective customers apply at the offices of GoodCredit. In the other countries where we offer Installment
Loans, customers apply via our internet platform.

We expect to launch Installment Loans in the new jurisdictions in which we may operate in the future.
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Line of Credit

In September 2015, we launched our third product, Line of Credit, in Finland. Line of Credit is an open-
ended revolving credit line of up to EUR 2,100. Customers have a minimum monthly repayment, along with a
monthly interest rate of 8.5% to 10%, and a drawdown fee. Pricing and fees charged to customers are transparent,
and provided that the minimum monthly repayment fee is met, Line of Credit has flexible payment options, and
customers can change their repayment date. The distribution channels for Line of Credit is online. In September
2016, we launched Line of Credit in Latvia with a maximum amount of up to EUR 1,500. We plan to expand
Line of Credit to other countries of operation.

Online deposit-taking

In Sweden, we offer deposit-taking services online to individuals for terms of up to three years and also
offer call deposits under the brand “4spar”. As of December 31, 2016, total deposits of 4spar AB (a subsidiary in
Sweden) were EUR 12.5 million. The activities of 4spar AB are primarily regulated by the Swedish Deposit-
Taking Business Act (Sw. lag (2004:299) om inlaningsverksamhet). The maximum amount of any deposit that
can be accepted from a customer is limited by Swedish law to SEK 50,000 (approximately EUR 5,400).

We offer six types of deposit products on the Swedish market, as detailed in the table below. Customer
service for all deposit accounts is offered at no cost to the customer. Clients may also withdraw money directly
from their profile page at www.4spar.se without contacting customer service beforehand.

Account Interest type Interest
Depositaccount 6.5% . ....... ... Floating 6.5%
Interestaccount 3 Month . .......................... Fixed 7.1%
Interest account6 Month . .......................... Fixed 7.6%
Interestaccount 1 Year ............................ Fixed 8%
Interestaccount2 Year ...............c.c.cuuininin... Fixed 9.1%
Interestaccount3 Year ............................ Fixed 10%

Call deposits are offered for an unlimited term and may be withdrawn by a customer at any time without a
fee. Call deposits bear a floating interest rate that currently is 6.5% per annum. The minimum amount for call
deposits is SEK 1,000 (approximately EUR 115).

Deposits on interest accounts are offered for fixed terms of between three months to three years, and may
not be withdrawn early by a customer without the loss of interest accrued on them. Deposits on interest accounts
bear a fixed interest rate that currently is between 7.1% and 10% per annum depending on the term of the
deposit. The minimum amount required to be deposited in respect of interest accounts is in each case SEK 10,000
(approximately EUR 1,150).

New Product Development

Our growth has been based on understanding our customers’ needs and providing clear, flexible and
convenient solutions to their problems. Continuing this tradition, we are developing products targeting customers
in both the near-prime and sub-prime market segments. When determining whether to introduce a new product,
we take into consideration costs, regulatory framework, competitive environment, as well as the following:

(i) Customers’ Profile: we analyze a number of factors such as whether the customers’ expenditure
matches or exceeds their income, if they have limited or no savings, if they have recently been late on making
any payments, if they have a limited credit history (for instance if customers are of a young age or recent
immigrants), whether customers use financings to provide for lifestyle choices or necessities, whether they have
relationships with banks and if they are employed by a third party or self-employed.

(i1) Financial needs: we analyze whether customers require financing in order to pay their bills, purchase
consumer goods, purchase automobiles, pay for travel, social and family events, or pay for education or medical
expenses or home improvements.

(iii) Drivers: we analyze whether the financing needs arise due to an emergency, whether they are
spontaneous or pre-planned and whether customers are looking for speed and simplicity, to be able to perform
monthly payments or to increase affordability.
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TBI Bank—Product Overview

TBI Bank offers its customer base three main lending products: consumer loans, point-of-sale financing and
credit cards. The bank also lends to SMEs, including leasing. The business is mainly funded by deposits and
current accounts from both consumers and SMEs.

Retail
Consumer loans

Consumer loans (which are similar to Installment Loans offered elsewhere in the Group other than as to
term) represent approximately half of TBI Bank’s gross consumer lending portfolio as of December 31, 2016.
Unsecured personal loans are offered with a maturity from 3 to 36 months in Bulgaria and from 6 to 60 months in
Romania with average sizes of approximately EUR 598 and EUR 852, respectively. Loan applications are
accepted primarily through the bank’s branches. The average IRR (i.e., effective rate) on consumer loans is
approximately 46.3% for Bulgaria and 49% for Romania (including application review fee, interest rate and
insurance). We do not expect any cannibalism with respect to our existing Installment Loan products in these
markets because of the large size of the market (approximately 27 million people) and the small size of our
online lending portfolio in such markets.

Point-of-sale financing

Through i